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USEC nc NYSE USU global energy company is leading supplier of

enriched uranium fuel Uranium enrichment is key step in the produc

tion of nuclear fuel used by commercial nuclear plants around the world

to generate clean low-cost electricity USEC revenue in 2008 totaled

$1 billion1 which included approximately one-quarter from international

sales Through itsubsidiary the Unjted States EnrLchment Corporation

USEC operates iheony uranium nrihment facility in the United States

The Company is building the Arrin Centrifuge Plant highly efficient

uranium enrichment facility in Fketon Ohio tFwitl support the nuclear

II industrys growth Through its USEC is leading supplier
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ABOUT THE COVER Employees from USEC and Honeywe1lchnplogy Solutions work jgethbr to assemble

AC100 series centrifuge machines at the American CentYfuge flant



dollar amounts in mi/tons except per share data

Revenue $1614.6 $1928.0 $1848.6

Gross profit 228.8 287.5 336.9

Advanced technology costs 110.2 127.3 105.5

Selling general and administrative 54.3 45.3 48.8

Net income 48.7 96.6 106.2

Net income per sharebasic .44 1.04 1.22

Net income per sharediluted .35 .94 1.22

Gross profit margin 14.2% 14.9% 18.2%

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 104.9 109.2 278.1

Debt to total capitalization at year end 37% 36% 13%

Revenues rnulativ ncome
in millions.l

Expenditures on ACP in millions1

in millions
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Dear FeUow Sharehoders

2008 was productive year for USEC as our effort to

build the American Centrifuge Plant began showing

solid results As
you may recall we started building

the plant in Piketon Ohio in May 2007 after the U.S

Nuclear Regulatory Commission issued construc

tion and operating license to USEC But the plant is

much more than just concrete and steel We are

leading historic renewal of the uranium enrichment

industrial base in the United States for nuclear fuel

and if needed national security purposes We are

re-establishing manufacturing infrastructure that lay

dormant for two decades to provide competitive

U.S-owned source of nuclear fuel for Americas 104

power reactors as well as the reactors for many cus

tomers around the world

While we are leading this effort several other

major U.S corporations equally committed to

rebuilding our nations nuclear power manufacturing

base have joined us Together with these strategic

suppliers we can create approximately 8000 direct

and indirect jobs around the country Given the dire

straits of our economy creating these skilled jobs

can also play role in improving communities in

dozen states This is project that is focused on

meeting Americas energy environmental and eco

nomic needs

We have many achievements to show for our

efforts in 2008 We logged tens of thousands of

hours operating the American Centrifuge machines

involved in our Lead Cascade test program We

released the initial design for the AC100 the name

we have given our series of commercial centrifuge

machines and worked closely with our strategic

suppliers to transfer the technology to their manu

facturing facilities They have begun production of

machine components Looking ahead we are value

engineering the AC100 to reduce its mariufacuring

cost while continuing research and development

efforts These efforts may well lead to an even more

productive centrifuge design that can be integrated

into the American Centrifuge Plant as we deploy

machines over the next several years

We are re-establishing manufactunng

infrastructure that lay dormant for two decades

to provide S-owned source of nuclear fuel

for Americas 1Ot power reactors



The successful deployment of the American

Centrifuge technology has been key focus but not

our only one Our Paducah employees produced the

highest amount of enrichment at the plant in 14
years

while working at one of their best safety records ever

In January the U.S Supreme Court ruled unani

mously in our favor in long-standing trade case

that should ensure level playing field with our

foreign-owned and controlled competitors and an

orderly transition to robust and competitive nuclear

fuel market We earned $49 million of net income

despite run-up in prices paid for our two largest

cost factors electric power and purchases from Rus

sia Despite these accomplishments we ended the

year with one important disappointment the Bush

administrations Department of Energy did not take

action to select any advanced energy projects for

funding under its Loan Guarantee Program That

remains one of our top priorities as we enter 2009

The uncertainty surrounding project funding has

forced us to begin taking steps to moderate our

pace of spending on the American Centrifuge Plant

This was not step taken lightly because it will likely

increase the cost of the plant and delay the deploy

ment of the centrifuge machines Nonetheless if the

project is not selected by DOE in the near future or

we determine funding will not be available in the

timeframe we need we will need to take additional

steps to reduce spending on the project As we write

this letter we are seeing positive signs from the

Obama administration that the Loan Guarantee

Program with its potential to create thousands of

jobs as we revitalize the U.S nuclear power industry

will be an emphasis for DOE We look forward to

working with the new administration to accelerate

approval for projects to be funded by the Loan

Guarantee Program

The marketfor our product continues to improve

During the past two years U.S utilities applied for

construction and operating licenses for 26 new

power reactors in the United States More than three

dozen actc

wide and plans arE

tors to begin constru

potential market for the low enriched

needed to fuel these and the 440 existing

We are meeting with customers regarding long-term

contracts for the output of the American Centrifuge

Plant and expect to have much of the plants capac

ity obligated for its first decade of operation later

this year

An organizations backbone is its people and

we have outstanding employees working diligently

to execute the plans we have laid out to build our

business Our people testing the American Centri

fuge technology in Oak Ridge Tennessee and build

ing parts there at the Technology Manufacturing

Center are putting in long hours The staff in Piketon

Ohio is eager to begin installing and operating the

centrifuge machines in the commercial plant Our

employees in Paducah Kentucky continue to get

top performance out of the 50-year-old gaseous

diffusion plant Other employees are supplying high

quality government contract services or providing

used uranium fuel storage technology for our utility

customers Together the 3000 employees of USEC

many of whom are shareholders are pulling together

to build long-term value

Sincerely

March 2009



AMERICAN CENTRIFUGE

This unique transporter can

move six 43-foot tell AC100

centrifuge machines from the

sssemhly ares to the production

building The transporter can he

driven from either end at top

speed of shout mph



Positioning USEC for nudear

powers growth

The American Centrifuge Plant

under construction since May

2007 is taking shape as 1.8 mil

lion square feet of floor space

and production infrastructure

is prepared for the 11500 cen

trifuge machines expected to

be installed over the next sev

eral years Prototype centri

fuges operating for more than

150000 machine hours have

provided significant data during

the Lead Cascade integrated

testing program since August

2007 We are now in the process

of building cascade of AC100

series machines the name weve

given our initial commercial cen

trifuge This next cascade will

verify the commercial machines

performance and will train staff

ano suppliers on best practices

for manufacturing quality con

trol assembly and installation

We have transferred the

American Centrifuge technol

ogy to strategic suppliers who

are preparing their facilities for

high-volume manufacturing

Components for these unique

43-foot-tall machines are being

made in states across America

and assembled in Piketon Ohio

at the American Centrifuge

Plant At peak production as

many as 8000 jobs could be

created as we re-establish the

U.S nuclear industrial manufac

turing base When complete

the American Centrifuge Plant

is expected to have capacity

of 3.8 million separative work

units SWUs and we have the

potential to roughly double

that capacity

Because the American

Centrifuge machines will use

95 percent less electricity

as compared to our current

gaseous diffusion technology

we expect to substantially

reduce USECs carbon foot

print As the country increas

ingly turns to nuclear power as

the primary source of green

house gas emissions-free

baseload electricity our use of

energy efficient centrifuge

technology will further enhance

nuclear powers standing as

clean-air alternative

Were building first-class facility

that will lead the world in safely enriching

uranium while providing America with

energy security

Steve Fetherolf

ACP ConstrucOon Manager



PROVEN TRACK RECORD OF SAFETY AND REUABftTY

USECS Paducah plant dI tL1t fl 2008 vi
eiectr

ty during non

srnmer months Ihons

of pounds of uranium

transported in large cyhn

ders are processed each

year at Paducah

fl fl iecad



Paducah plant delivers product

on time spec

Our plant in Paducah Kentucky is one of the largest industrial complexes in the United

States Because the plant uses the gaseous diffusion technology it is also one of the

largest consumers of electricity in the United States

Although the plant is more than

50 years old the Paducah team

continues to set records for

efficiency production and

safety USEC bought 25 percent

more electric power than in the

past during the non-summer

months of 2008 to increase

production and to create addi

tional uranium underfeeding

opportunities The Paducah

team responded by producing

the most separative work units

in 14 years This was accom

plished by increasing the num

ber of production cells on line

and by improving the efficient

use of the power well above

our operating plan thereby

lowering production costs The

uranium obtained through

underfeeding operations and

sold as feed stock for enrich

ment also helped to significantly

reduce Paducahs production

cost All this was accomplished

with culture of safety first

Paducah had its best safety

record since 2004

Megatons to Megawatts

Since 1994 USEC has been the

United States executive agent

for the important nonprolifera

tion program known as

Megatons to Megawatts To

date USEC has bought nuclear

fuel created by recycling ura

riium from the equivaent of

more than 14000 former Soviet

nuclear warheads Dozens of

reactors mostly in the United

States are fueled each year

with Megatons to Megawatts

low enriched uranium sup

plying about 10 percent of

Americas electricity Many

consider this to be the most

successful nonproliferation pro

gram which ensures that these

former weapons are beat into

peaceful plowshares USEC is

proud of its record of success

fully managing this program

and will continue to serve

as the U.S executive agent

through the programs com

pletion in 2013

Were always looking for safer better ways to

work Our lab is more productive because weve

successfully merged advanced technology with

our proven analytical procedures

Ayrie Crump
Paducdh Rado hemstry Technician



BUftDING ON NUCLEM

With approximately three dozen

power reactors under construc

tion worldwide and dozens

more planned including new

nuclear reactors in the United

States USEC sees opportunities

in this renaissance of nuclear

power OurAmerican Centrifuge

Plant employs scalable mod

ulartechnology that can expand

to meet fuel requirements for

growing fleet of reactors so

we can match our SWU capacity

to demand as we sign long-

term supply contracts with our

customers As the number of

reactors in operation increases

USEC will be positioned to

meet this growing demand

without overbuilding centri

fuge capacity

Our customers are also seek

ing near-term solution to the

problem of lack of storage

space for used nuclear fuel The

long-term repository site at

Yucca Mountain Nevada is

more than two decades behind

schedule and U.S utilities were

counting on shipping fuel to

Yucca Mountain to make room

available in the spent fuel pools

at their reactors NAC our sub

sidiary is leader in dry cask

storage for this used fuel In

February 2009 NACs most

advanced storage system

MAGNASTOR was licensed by

the U.S Nuclear Regulatory

Commission for use in the

United States This system has

the largest capacity for fuel

assemblies of any concrete-

based multipurpose canister

system approved to date and

consists of welded stainless

steel canister inside steel-

lined concrete cask for storage

on-site at the power plant

The MAGNASTOR System industry4eading

capacity competitive cost and operational

advantages will make it preferred storage

solution for many nuclear utilities

Juan Subiry

NAC Director of Technical

Sales and Marketing
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This annual report on Form 10-K including Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations in Item contains forward-looking statements that is

statements related to future events In this context forward-looking statements may address our

expected future business and financial performance and often contain words such as expects

anticipates intends plans believes will and other words of similarmeaning Forward-

looking statements by their nature address matters that are to different degrees uncertain For

USEC particular risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual future results to differ materially

from those expressed in our forward-looking statements include but are not limited to risks related

to the deployment of the American Centrifuge technology including our ability to meet targets for

performance cost and schedule and to obtain financing our success in obtaining loan guarantee for

the American Centrifuge Plant and the impact of delays in financing on project spending cost and

schedule uncertainty regarding the cost of electric power used at our gaseous diffusion plant our

dependence on deliveries under the Russian Contract and on single production facility our inability

under most existing long-term contracts to directly pass on to customers increases in our costs the

decrease or elimination of duties charged on imports of foreign-produced low enriched uranium

pricing trends in the uranium and enrichment markets and their impact on our profitability changes



to or termination of our contracts with the U.S government and changes in U.S government

priorities and the availability of government funding including loan guarantees the impact of

government regulation the outcome of legal proceedings and other contingencies including lawsuits

and government investigations or audits the competitive environment for our products and services

changes in the nuclear energy industry the potential impact of volatile financial market conditions on

our pension assets and credit and insurance facilities and other risks and uncertainties discussed in

this and our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission Revenue and operating

results can fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter and in some cases year to year For

discussion of these risks and uncertainties and other factors that may affect our future results please

see Item 1A of this report entitled Risk Factors We do not undertake to update our forward-

looking statements except as required by law

Items and Business and Properties

Overview

USEC global energy company is leading supplier of low enriched uranium LEU for

commercial nuclear power plants LEU is critical component in the production of nuclear fuel for

reactors to produce electricity We

supply LEU to both domestic and international utilities for use in about 150 nuclear reactors

worldwide

are deploying what we anticipate will be the worlds most advanced uranium enrichment

technology known as the American Centrifuge

are the exclusive executive agent for the U.S government under nuclear nonproliferation

program with Russia known as Megatons to Megawatts

perform contract work for the U.S Department of Energy DOE and its contractors at the

Paducah and Portsmouth gaseous diffusion plants GDPs and

provide transportation and storage systems for spent nuclear fuel and provide nuclear and

energy consulting services

USEC Inc is organized under Delaware law USEC was U.S government corporation until July

28 1998 when the company completed an initial public offering of common stock In connection with

the privatization the U.S government transferred all of its interest in the business to USEC with the

exception of certain liabilities from prior operations of the U.S government References to USEC or

we include USEC Inc and its wholly owned subsidiaries as well as the predecessor to USEC unless

the context otherwise indicates glossary of certain terms used in our industry and herein is included

in Part IV of this annual report

Uranium and Enrichment

In its natural state uranium is principally comprised of two isotopes uranium-235 U235 and

uranium-238 U238 U238 is the more abundant isotope but it is not readily fissionable in light

water nuclear reactors U235 is fissile but its concentration in natural uranium is only 0.711% by

weight Most commercial nuclear power reactors require LEU fuel with U235 concentration greater

than natural uranium and up to 5% by weight Uranium enrichment is the process by which the

concentration of U2 is increased to that level



The following outlines the steps for converting natural uranium into LEU fuel commonly known

as the nuclear fuel cycle

Mining and Milling Natural or unenriched uranium is removed from the earth in the

form of ore and then crushed and concentrated

Conversion Uranium concentrates are combined with fluorine gas to produce uranium

hexafluoride UF6 solid at room temperature and gas when heated UF6 is shipped

to an enrichment plant

Enrichment UF6 is enriched in process that increases the concentration of the U235

isotope in the UF6 from its natural state of 0.711% up to 5% which is usable as fuel for

light water commercial nuclear power reactors Depleted uranium is by-product of the

uranium enrichment process The standard measure of uranium enrichment is separative

work unit SWU SWU represents the effort that is required to transform given

amount of natural uranium into two streams of uranium one enriched in the U235 isotope

and the other depleted in the U235 isotope SWIJs are measured using standard formula

derived from the physics of uranium enrichment The amount of enrichment deemed to

be contained in LEU under this formula is commonly referred to as its SWU component

and the quantity of natural uranium deemed to be used in the production of LEU under

this formula is referred to as its uranium component

Fuel Fabrication LEU is converted to uranium oxide and formed into small ceramic

pellets by fabricators The pellets are loaded into metal tubes that form fuel assemblies

which are shipped to nuclear power plants

Nuclear Power Plant The fuel assemblies are loaded into nuclear reactors to create

energy from controlled chain reaction Nuclear power plants generate over 15% of the

worlds electricity

Consumers Businesses and homeowners rely on the steady baseload electricity

supplied by nuclear power and value its clean air qualities

Commercial Nuclear Fuel Cycle
Enrichment Is one of series of steps required to preper

naturally occurring uranium for us as nuclear fuel

AiMing and Milling Cosworalcn

Uranium MInes conversion Of Uranium

and MUls to Uranium Hezelluorids

i4
NucPauer Plenf

Light Water Conversion to Uranium Oxide

Reactor and Fabrication of FuelMs.m

fr \l
Depleted Uranium



We produce or acquire LEU from two principal sources We produce LEU at the Paducah GDP in

Paducah Kentucky and we acquire LEU by purchasing the SWU component of LEU from Russia

under the Megatons to Megawatts program

Products and Services

Low Enriched Uranium

The majority of our customers are domestic and international utilities that operate nuclear power

plants Our revenue is derived primarily from

sales of the SWU component of LEU
sales of both the SWU and uranium components of LEU and

sales of uranium

Our agreements with electric utilities are primarily long-term fixed-commitment contracts under

which our customers are obligated to purchase specified quantity of SWU or uranium from us or

long-term requirements contracts under which they are obligated to purchase percentage of their

SWU requirements from us Under requirements contracts customers only make purchases if the

reactor has requirements The timing of requirements is associated with reactor refueling outages

Contract Services

We perform contract work for DOE and DOE contractors at the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs

including infrastructure support services and maintenance of the Portsmouth GDP in state of cold

shutdown in preparation for decontamination and decommissioning

Through our subsidiary NAC we are leading provider of nuclear energy services and

technologies specializing in

design fabrication and implementation of spent nuclear fuel technologies

nuclear materials transportation and

nuclear fuel cycle consulting services

Revenue by Geographic Area Major Customers and Segment Information

Revenue attributed to domestic and foreign customers including customers in foreign country

representing 10% or more of total revenue follows in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

United States $1212.5 $1310.6 $1109.5

Foreign

Japan 242.6 274.7 389.8

Other 159.5 342.7 349.3

402.1 617.4 739.1

1.614.6 i.92S.O 1.M6

Our 10 largest utility customers represented 57% of revenue and our three largest utility

customers represented 30% of revenue in 2008 Revenue from two domestic customers Exelon

Corporation and Entergy Corporation each represented more than 10% but less than 15% of

revenue in 2008 Revenue from U.S government contracts represented 12% of revenue in 2008 9%

of revenue in 2007 and 10% of revenue in 2006 No other customer represented more than 10% of



revenue Reference is made to segment information reported in note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements

SWU and Uranium Backlog

Backlog is the aggregate dollar amount of SWU and uranium that we expect to sell in future peiiods

under contracts with customers At December 31 2008 we had contracts with customers aggregating

an estimated $6.9 billion including $1.7 billion expected to be delivered in 2009 compared with $6.5

billion at December 31 2007 Backlog is partially based on customers estimates of their fuel

requirements and other assumptions including our estimates of selling prices which are subject to

change Prices may be adjusted based on SWU or uranium market prices prevailing at the time of

delivery Pricing elements may include escalation based on general inflation index or power price

index We utilize external composite forecasts of future market prices and inflation rates in our pricing

estimates

Gaseous Diffusion Plants

Two existing technologies are currently used commercially to enrich uranium for nuclear power

plants gaseous diffusion and gas centrifuge We currently use the older gaseous diffusion technology

and are deploying gas centrifuge technology to replace our gaseous diffusion operations See

Business and Properties The American Centrifuge Plant

Gaseous Diffusion Process

The gaseous diffusion process separates the lighter U235 isotope from the heavier U8 The

fundamental building block of the gaseous diffusion process is known as stage consisting of

compressor converter control valve and associated piping Compressors driven by large electric

motors are used to circulate the process gas and maintain flow Converters contain porous tubes

known as barrier through which process gas is diffused Stages are grouped together in series to

form an operating unit called cell cell is the smallest group of stages that can be removed from

service for maintenance Gaseous diffusion plants are designed so that cells can be taken off line with

little or no interruption in the process

The process begins with the heating of solid UF6 to form gas that is forced through the bather

Because 235
is lighter than 238 it moves through the barrier more easily As the gas moves the

two isotopes are separated increasing the U5 concentration and decreasing the concentration of

U238 in the finished product The gaseous diffusion process requires significant amounts of electric

power to push uranium through the barrier

Paducah GD

We operate the Paducah GDP located in Paducah Kentucky The Paducah GDP Consists of four

process buildings and is one of the largest industrial facilities in the world The process buildings

have total floor area of 150 acres and the site covers 750 acres We estimate that the maximum

capacity of the existing equipment is about million SWU per year In 2008 we produced

approximately 6.5 million SWU at the Paducah GDP for both LEU production and underfeeding

uranium The Paducah GDP has been certified by the NRC to produce LEU up to an assay of 5.5%

U235



Portsmouth GDP

We ceased uranium enrichment operations at the Portsmouth GDP located in Piketon Ohio in

2001 Under contract with DOE we maintain the Portsmouth GDP in state of cold shutdown in

preparation for DOE decontamination and decommissioning program DOE and USEC have

periodically extended the Portsmouth GDP cold shutdown contract most recently through April 30

2009 DOE has announced its intention to negotiate sole-source extension of the cold shutdown

contract through September 30 2010

Lease of Gaseous Diffusion Plants

We lease the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs from DOE The lease covers most but not all of the

buildings and facilities relating to gaseous diffusion activities Major provisions of the lease follow

except as provided in the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement described under

Business and Properties 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement and Related Agreements

with DOE we have the right to renew the lease at either plant indefinitely in six-

year increments and can adjust the property under lease to meet our changing

requirements The current lease term expires in 2016

we may leave the property in an as is condition at termination of the lease but

must remove wastes we generate and must place the plants in safe shutdown

condition

the U.S government is responsible for environmental liabilities associated with

plant operations prior to July 28 1998 except for liabilities relating to the disposal

of some identified wastes generated by USEC and stored at the plants

DOE is responsible for the costs of decontamination and decommissioning of the

plants

title to capital improvements not removed by us will transfer to DOE at the end of

the lease term and if we elect to remove any capital improvements we are

required to pay any increases in DOEs decontamination and decommissioning

costs that are result of our removing the capital improvements

DOE must indemnify us for costs and expenses related to claims asserted against

us or incurred by us arising out of the U.S governments operation occupation or

use of the plants prior to July 28 1998 and

DOE must indemnify us against claims for public liability as defined in the

Atomic Energy Act of 1954 as amended from nuclear incident or precautionary

evacuation in connection with activities under the lease Under the Price-

Anderson Act DOEs financial obligations under the indemnity are capped at

$12.5 billion for each nuclear incident or precautionary evacuation occurring

inside the United States

In December 2006 we signed lease agreement with DOE for our long-term use of facilities at

the Portsmouth GDP in Piketon for the American Centrifuge Plant The lease for these facilities and

other support facilities is stand-alone amendment to our current lease with DOE for the GDP

facilities Further details are provided in Business and Properties The American Centrifuge Plant



Raw Materials

Electric Power

The gaseous diffusion process uses significant amounts of electric power to enrich uranium Costs

for electric power are approximately 70-75% of production costs at the Paducah GDP In 2008 the

power load at the Paducah GDP averaged 1680 megawatts We purchase most of the electric power
for the Paducah GDP under power purchase agreement with Tennessee Valley Authority TVA
that expires May 31 2012 Pricing under the TVA power contract consisted of summer and non-

summer base energy price through May 31 2008 Beginning June 2008 the price consists of

year-round base energy price that increases moderately based on fixed annual schedule All prices

are subject to fuel cost adjustment provision to reflect changes in TVAs fuel costs purchased

power costs and related costs The impact of the fuel cost adjustment has been negative for USEC
imposing an average increase over base contract prices of about 15% in 2008 and 8% in 2007 The

impact of future fuel cost adjustments which are substantially influenced by coal prices purchased

power costs and hydroelectric power generation is uncertain and our cost of power could fluctuate in

the future above or below the agreed increases in the base energy price We expect the fuel cost

adjustment to continue to cause our purchase cost to remain above base contract prices The future

impact may be greater but is difficult to predict given uncertainty in energy prices

The quantity of power purchases under the TVA contract generally ranges from 300 megawatts in

the summer months June August to up to 2000 megawatts in the non-summer months We
supplement the TVA contract during the summer months with additional power purchased at market-

based prices Beginning June 2010 through the expiration of the contract on May 31 2012 the

quantity of non-summer power purchases will be reduced to maximum of 1650 megawatts at all

hours This is designed to provide transition for the TVA power system because of the significant

amount of power we purchase We expect to supplement the TVA contract with additional power

purchases beginning June 2010 and will be evaluating possible sources of power for delivery after

May 31 2012

We are required to provide financial assurance to support our payment obligations to TVA These

include letter of credit and weekly prepayments based on TVAs estimate of the price and our

usage of power

Uranium

Natural uranium is the feedstock in the production of LEU at the Paducah GDP In 2008 the plant

used the equivalent of approximately million kilograms of uranium in the production of LEU
Uranium is naturally occurring element and is mined from deposits located in Canada Australia

and other countries According to the World Nuclear Association there are adequate measured

resources of uranium to fuel nuclear power at current usage rates for at least 80 years

Mined uranium ore is crushed and concentrated and sent to uranium conversion facility where it

is converted to UF6 form suitable for uranium enrichment Two commercial uranium converters in

North America Cameco Corporation and ConverDyn deliver and hold title to uranium at the

Paducah GDP

Utility customers provide uranium to us as part of their enrichment contracts or purchase the

uranium required to produce LEU from us Customers who provide uranium to us generally do so by

acquiring title to uranium from Cameco ConverDyn and other suppliers at the Paducah GDP At

December 31 2008 we held uranium to which title was held by customers and suppliers with value

of $3.8 billion based on published price indicators The uranium is fungible and commingled with

our uranium inventory Title to uranium provided by customers generally remains with the customer

until delivery of LEU at which time title to LEU is transferred to the customer and we take title to



the uranium The uranium that we sell to utility customers comes from our uranium inventories

which includes uranium from underfeeding the enrichment process purchases of uranium from third-

party suppliers and uranium that we obtained from DOE prior to privatization

The quantity of uranium used in the production of LEU is to certain extent interchangeable with

the amount of SWU required to enrich the uranium Underfeeding is mode of operation that uses or

feeds less uranium Underfeeding supplements our supply of uranium but requires more SWLJ in the

enrichment process which requires more electric power In producing the same amount of LEU we

vary our production process to underfeed uranium based on the economics of the cost of electric

power relative to the prices of uranium and enrichment

Coolant

The Paducah GDP uses Freon as the primary process coolant The production of Freon in the

United States was terminated in 1995 and Freon is no longer commercially available We expect our

current supply of Freon to be sufficient to support at least 10 years of continued operations at current

use rates

GDP Equipment

GDP equipment components such as compressors coolers motors and valves requiring

maintenance are removed from service and repaired or rebuilt on site Common industrial

components such as the breakers condensers and transformers in the electrical system are procured

as needed Some components and systems are no longer produced and spare parts may not be readily

available In these situations replacement components or systems are identified tested and procured

from existing commercial sources or the plants technical and fabrication capabilities are used to

design and build replacements

Equipment utilization at the Paducah GDP averaged 97% in 2008 compared to 98% in 2007

Equipment utilization is based on measure of cells in operation The utilization of equipment is

highly dependent on power availability and costs We reduce equipment utilization and the related

power load in the summer months when the cost of electric power is high Equipment utilization is

also affected by repairs and maintenance activities The number of cells available for operation

increased in 2008 due to the recovery of number of cells which had been in standby for over 25

years

Russian Contract Megatons to Megawatts

We are the U.S governments exclusive executive agentExecutive Agent in connection with

government-to-government nonproliferation agreement between the United States and the Russian

Federation Under the agreement we have been designated by the U.S government to order LEU

derived from dismantled Soviet nuclear weapons In January 1994 USEC signed commercial

agreement Russian Contract with Russian government entity known as OAO Techsnabexport

TENEX to implement the program

We have agreed to purchase approximately 5.5 million SWU each calendar year for the remaining

term of the Russian Contract through 2013 Over the life of the 20-year Russian Contract we expect

to purchase about 92 million SWU contained in LEU derived from 500 metric tons of highly

enriched uranium As of December 31 2008 we had purchased 65 million SWU contained in LEU

derived from 350 metric tons of highly enriched uranium the equivalent of about 14000 nuclear

warheads Purchases under the Russian Contract constitute approximately one-half of our supply

mix Prices are determined using discount from an index of international and U.S price points

including both long-term and spot prices multi-year retrospective view of the index is used to

minimize the disruptive effect of short-term market price swings Increases in these price points in



recent years have resulted in increases to the index used to determine prices under the Russian

Contract On February 13 2009 we entered into an amendment to the Russian Contract to revise the

pricing methodology for the SWU component of LEU delivered in calendar years 2010 through

2013 Approval of both the U.S government and the government of the Russian Federation is

required for the amendment to become effective The current pricing methodology uses discount

from an index of international and U.S price points including both long-term and spot prices The

new pricing methodology is intended to enhance the stability of future pricing for both parties

through formula that combines different mix of price points and other pricing elements We
expect that prices paid under the Russian Contract as amended will continue to increase year over

year and that the total amount paid to the Russian Federation for the SWU component of the LEU
delivered under the Russian Contract over the 20 year term of the contract will

substantially exceed

$8 billion by the time the contract is completed in 2013 Officials of the Russian government have

announced that Russia will not extend the Russian Contract or the government-to-government

agreement it implements beyond 2013 Accordingly we do not anticipate that we will purchase

Russian SWU after 2013

Under the Russian Contract we are obligated to provide to TENEX an amount of uranium

equivalent to the uranium component of LEU delivered to us by TENEX totaling about million

kilograms per year We credit the uranium to an account at the Paducah GDP maintained on behalf of

TENEX TENEX holds the uranium or sells or otherwise exchanges this uranium in transactions with

other suppliers or utility customers From time to time TENEX may take physical delivery of

uranium supplied by uranium converter that would otherwise deliver such uranium to us Under

these arrangements the converter provides uranium to TENEX for shipment back to Russia and the

converter receives an equivalent amount of uranium in its account at the Paducah GDP

Under the terms of 1997 memorandum of agreement between USEC and the U.S government
we can be terminated or resign as the U.S Executive Agent or one or more additional executive

agents may be named Any new executive agent could represent significant new competitor

2002 DOE-USEC Agreement and Related Agreements with DOE

On June 172002 USEC and DOE signed an agreement in which both parties made long-term

commitments directed at resolving issues related to the stability and security of the domestic uranium

enrichment industry such agreement as amended the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement We and

DOE have entered into subsequent agreements relating to these commitments and have amended the

2002 DOE-USEC Agreement The following is summary of material provisions and an update of

activities under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement and related agreements

Megatons to Megawatts

The 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement provides that DOE will recommend against removal in whole

or in part of us as the U.S Executive Agent under the government-to-government nonproliferation

agreement between the United States and the Russian Federation as long as we order the specified

amount of LEU from TENEX and comply with our obligations under the 2002 DOE-USEC
Agreement and the Russian Contract

Remediating or Replacing Out-of-Specfication Uranium

Under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement DOE was obligated to remediate or replace 9550 metric

tons of UF6 transferred to us from DOE prior to privatization that contained elevated levels of

technetium The contaminant put the uranium out-of-specification for commercial use We operated

facilities at the Portsmouth GDP under contract with DOE to process and remove technetium from

the out-of-specification uranium and in October 2006 the remediation project for USEC-owned
uranium was completed We also processed and removed technetium from out-of-specification
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uranium owned by DOE under an agreement with DOE entered into in December 2004 The
remediation efforts were completed in September 2008 and we are currently performing services

related to demobilization

Domestic Enrichment Facilities

Under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement we agreed to operate the Paducah GDP at production

rate at or above 3.5 million SWU per year Historically we have operated at production rates

significantly above this level and in 2008 we produced approximately 6.5 million SWU at the

Paducah GDP for both LEU production and underfeeding uranium Production at Paducah may not

be reduced below minimum of 3.5 million SWU per year until six months before we have

completed centrifuge enrichment facility capable of producing LEU containing 3.5 million SWU
per year If the Paducah GDP is operated at less than the specified 3.5 million SWU in any given

fiscal year we may cure the defect by increasing LEU production to the 3.5 million SWTJ level in the

next fiscal year We may only use the right to cure once in each six-year lease period

If we do not maintain the requisite level of operations at the Paducah GDP and have not cured the

deficiency we are required to waive our exclusive
rights to lease the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs

If we cease operations at the Paducah GDP or lose our certification from the NRC DOE may take

actions it deems necessary to transition operation of the plant from us to ensure the continuity of
domestic enrichment operations and the fulfillment of supply contracts In either of the circumstances

described in the preceding two sentences DOE may be released from its obligations under the 2002
DOE-USEC Agreement We will be deemed to have ceased operations at the Paducah GDP if we

produce less than million SWU per year or fail to meet specific maintenance and operational

criteria established in the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement

Advanced Enrichment Technology

The 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement provides that we will begin operation of an enrichment facility

using advanced enrichment technology in accordance with certain milestones discussion of our
American Centrifuge uranium enrichment technology and those milestones is included under the

caption Business and Properties The American Centrifuge Plant Project Milestones under the

2002 DOE-USEC Agreement

Other

The 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement contains force majeure provisions that excuse our failure to

perform under the agreement if such failure arises from causes beyond our control and without our
fault or negligence

The American Centrifuge Plant

Since 2002 we have been developing and demonstrating uranium enrichment gas centrifuge

technology that we call the American Centrifuge We are deploying this technology in the American

Centrifuge Plant ACP being built in Piketon Ohio This technology was initially developed by
DOE during the l970s and 80s and successfully demonstrated but was ultimately not commercially
deployed for reasons unrelated to the technology itself We have modified and improved this

technology through the use of modern materials advanced computer-aided design digital controls

and state-of-the-art manufacturing processes

We are deploying the ACP to replace our gaseous diffusion uranium enrichment plant and to be
well positioned to meet demand for LEU Deploying the American Centrifuge technology will

substantially reduce our power costs and modernize our production capacity enabling us to stay

competitive in the long term Our baseline deployment schedule includes beginning initial
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commercial plant operations in 2010 and reaching an annual production capacity at the ACP of 3.8

million SWU per year at the end of 2012 However as discussed below in Capital
Requirements we have initiated steps to conserve cash and reduce the planned escalation of project

construction and machine manufacturing activities until we gain greater clarity on potential funding
for the project through the DOE Loan Guarantee Program These steps are likely to increase the cost

and extend the schedule for the project

We believe that the machine we deploy in the ACP will be the most advanced uranium enrichment

machine in the world We refer to our production centrifuge machine design as the AC 100 series

centrifuge machine The AC 100 series centrifuge machine is designed to produce 350 SWU per year
which output is substantially greater than our competitors machines As discussed below in

Value Engineering and Continued Technology Improvements we released an initial design for the

AC 100 machine in 2008 We anticipate releasing the design for the initial AC 100 series machines in

late March 2009 that will be deployed in the commercial plant We will continue optimization and

value-engineering efforts even after this design release

Our Marketing and Sales department has been engaging in discussions with our customers to sell

the output of the ACP We have signed long-term contracts with customers and have received

accepted offers from customers for additional commitments We will continue to meet with

customers during 2009 to sell ACP output which is critical to the success of the project Sales

contracts for this initial output represent strategic commitment by customers to ensure reliable

U.S.-based source of nuclear fuel that will be available for decades to come

Lead Cascade Test Program

We have been conducting Lead Cascade integrated testing program at our Piketon plant since

August 2007 The test program involves the integrated testing of multiple prototype machines in

cascade configuration and has demonstrated the ability to generate product assays in range useable

by commercial nuclear power plants Through the Lead Cascade test program we obtain data on

machine-to-machine interactions verify cascade performance models under variety of operating

conditions and obtain operating experience for our plant operators and technicians The centrifuge

machines involved in the Lead Cascade integrated testing program have operated for more than

150000 total machine hours providing data on equipment reliability and identifying opportunities to

further optimize the machine and cascade design These prototype machines confirmed design and

performance targets while verifying the predictions of our analytical performance models We have

tested the centrifuge machines in wide range of operating conditions unlikely to be seen in normal

plant operations Lead Cascade operations also give our employees experience in operating cascade

of machines in variety of conditions which allow us to refine operating and maintenance

procedures

Although the Lead Cascade test program has involved prototype machines improved AC 100

components and design features are being tested in special test stands in Oak Ridge Tennessee and

have been incrementally introduced during the current Lead Cascade operations The next step is

deploying cascade of AC 100 series machines as discussed below

Initial ACJOO Series Cascade

The initial design for the AC 100 machine reflects improvements learned during individual

machine testing and subsequent integrated testing of the prototype machine in cascade During

2008 the initial AC 100 machine design was released to our strategic uppliers in preparation for

installing test cascade of AC 100 series machines in Piketon in 2009 The strategic suppliers have

been manufacturing parts for the initial AC 100 machines and the first components to build these

machines were delivered in November 2008 In manufacturing parts for the AC 100 suppliers must

replicate on commercial basis manufacturing that we previously self-performed in building our
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prototype machines Start-up issues have arisen in this transfer of technology to our suppliers that

have delayed our timetable for operation of the initial AC 100 cascade We expected to encounter

start-up issues and the resolution of these issues at the outset will help to facilitate our transition to

high volume manufacturing Delays in our operation of the AC 100 cascade could affect our overall

deployment schedule but in
light of our slow down of spending in 2009 which is impacting our

schedule this may not have any additional impact

five-stage cascade of AC 100 machines is now expected to be operational early in the third

quarter of 2009 This cascade will be in commercial plant configuration and operate under

commercial plant conditions Additional machines will be added to the cascade until we reach

cascade of 40 to 50 machines which is expected late in the third quarter of 2009 This cascade of 40

to 50 machines would operate for the rest of 2009 Although this cascade will operate in closed-

loop configuration the flow of uranium feed and tails between individual machines in the cascade

will be similar to those expected in commercial plant operations This cascade is intended to provide

additional data on equipment operation and reliability that could identify opportunities to further

optimize the centrifuge and cascade design These initial AC 100 machines are expected to be

integrated into commercial cascade or used for spares

We expect that the first machines in the initial AC 100 series cascade will have throughput

somewhat less than 350 SWU per year as we continue to optimize the AC100 series machine For the

same reason the machines deployed in the first commercial cascade of the ACP may not achieve 350

SWU per year However we continue to be confident that the AC 100 series machines that are

deployed in the commercial plant will achieve an average performance level of 350 SWU per year

supporting an annual SWU production capacity of the ACP of 3.8 million SWU In addition our

testing program in Oak Ridge has demonstrated the potential for machine productivity beyond 350

SWU per year We may be able to assemble and install machines with greater SWU capacity at one

or more specific planned points as we build out the ACP which would provide us with an

opportunity to increase its annual SWU production capacity beyond 3.8 million SWU However as

discussed below in Capital Requirements our ability to achieve the 3.8 million SWU production

capacity may be delayed or limited by capital constraints and potential project cost increases

We believe an extensive Lead Cascade test program prior to beginning to manufacture thousands

of commercial plant centrifuges enables us to

Verify machine performance and identify modifications to improve performance improve

machine reliability or reduce costs

Complete facilities and integrated support equipment such as balancing stands assembly

stands and gas test stands needed to meet production levels of several hundred machines

per month

Train staff and supplier personnel on best practices for manufacturing quality control

transportation assembly installation and testing and

Validate manufacturing and assembly procedures

Value Engineering and Continued Technology Improvements

We anticipate releasing the design for the initial AC 100 series machine in late March 2009 that

will be deployed in the commercial plant This design will reflect some value-engineering

improvements from the initial AC100 design released in 2008 We plan to continue our value

engineering efforts and other efforts to optimize the machine going forward benefit of the modular

centrifuge process is the ability to deploy improved machines as they become available therefore

value-engineered aspects and other technology improvements can be integrated as the plant is built

out over several years
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As noted previously we expect to continue our research and development efforts during
commercial deployment New analytic capability and computer-aided manufacturing methods

provide an opportunity to develop more productive and less
costly machines as we seek to enhance

our capability in centrifuge technology and develop new series of machines This will result in

continued development spending that will be expensed

Construction of the American Centrifuge Plant

Most of the buildings required for the commercial plant were constructed in Piketon during the

1980s by DOE These existing structures include centrifuge assembly building uranium feed and
withdrawal

facility and two enrichment production buildings We began renovating and building the

ACP following receipt of construction and operating license from the NRC in April 2007 Fluor

Corporation Fluor manages the engineering procurement and construction management
activities In September 2008 USEC and Fluor signed an amended and restated contract for services

totaling approximately $1 billion through 2012 Under the new contract Fluor will be reimbursed for

costs plus fixed base fee and an incentive fee that increases based on cost savings produced

Construction of the ACP includes various systems including electric telecommunications HVAC
and water distribution Service modules provide utilities to the centrifuge machines and the piping
that enables UF6 gas to flow throughout the enrichment production facility Process systems will

integrate and support the centrifuge machines and cascades distributed control system will

monitor and control the enrichment processing equipment

The two production buildings have space for approximately 11500 centrifuges Contractors are

preparing the floor of the production buildings for machine mounts to support the centrifuges The
feed and withdrawal facility where uranium is introduced into plant systems and low enriched

uranium is withdrawn is undergoing substantial renovation new boiler that will provide heat to the

ACP is being installed along with associated hot water piping The first servicemodules which

support the operation of approximately 20 centrifuges each will be delivered by Teledyne Brown
Engineering Inc TBE in the first quarter of 2009

Machine Manufacturing and Assembly

During the past two years major focus for our American Centrifuge team has been working with

leading companies to create world-class industrial infrastructure needed to build components for

the highly sophisticated AC 100 machines and supporting equipment The highly specialized U.S
manufactunng base needed to build the AC 100 did not exist but is being established with USECs
leadership In 2008 for example we significantly refurbished

facility we purchased in Oak Ridge
and installed new production machining equipment robotics and computer controls and testing

systems to support the ramp-up to manufacturing centrifuge components We have contracted withBW Clinch River LLC BW subsidiary of the Babcock and Wilcox Co to manufacture

upper and lower suspension assemblies cap assemblies and column parts at this
facility BW is

also responsible for assembling and balancing rotors and procuring or manufacturing unclassified

metal parts

Under contract arrangements with USEC our suppliers are also helping to create the

manufacturing base for revitalized U.S nuclear fuel industry subsidiary of Alliant Techsystems
Inc or ATK is expanding facilities it has at the Allegany Ballistics Laboratory in Rocket Center
West Virginia It will produce the tall carbon-fiber rotor tubes for the centrifuges Major Tool

Machine Inc has built new automated production facility at its Indianapolis Indiana plant to

fabricate the steel casings for the machines and has delivered the first casings needed for the initial

cascade of AC100 machines TBE has significantly expanded manufacturing capacity in Huntsville

Alabama to produce 540 gas centrifuge service modules for the ACP These steel frame structures

hold valves cabling ductwork and electric supply Each service module supports up to 20 AC 100
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machines Curtiss-Wright Electro-Mechanical Corporation of Cheswick Pennsylvania is providing

the motor drives that spin the centrifuge rotor at very high speeds Honeywell Technology Solutions

is responsible for final assembly of the AC100 machines on site at the ACP

Concurrent with our initial deployment of capacity for 3.8 million SWU per year we are

analyzing the nuclear fuel market and other factors to determine the economics of adding additional

ACP capacity Although we will need an amendment to our NRC license for any expansion of the

ACP the environmental impact statement issued with our license contemplated the potential impact

of an expansion of the plant to approximately double its anticipated capacity The manufacturing

infrastructure that we are putting
into place to deploy the initial plant capacity will facilitate any

future expansion Because an expansion would not require creating this manufacturing infrastructure

or another demonstration of the technology the cost of any expansion is anticipated to be less than

the initial project

Project Budget

In 2008 we established baseline project budget of $3.5 billion following thorough bottom-up

review of the cost to build the ACP This budget includes amounts already spent but does not include

financing costs or financial assurance related to decommissioning obligations The expenditures to

date and budget at completion follow in millions
Cumulative Baseline

as of Project

December 31 Budget at

2008 Completion

Machine technology lead cascade and program management $361.2 $464.2

Machine manufacturing and assembly 389.7 1592.5

Commercial plant
422.2 1442.1

Project development deployment and construction $1.173.1 3.498.8

Other costs

Capitalized interest 25.0

Capitalized asset retirement obligations
13.0

Total ACP expenditures including accruals 1.211.1

Amount expensed as part of advanced technology costs $542.1

Amount capitalized as part of construction work in progress $601.8

Equipment building and land used for manufacturing and plant $47.0

Depreciation and transfers $4.5

Prepayments to suppliers for services not yet performed $24.7

While our project budget includes some degree of embedded contingency with respect to cost

assumptions for labor and materials such as carbon steel and stainless steel we remain subject to cost

escalation risk We are working with our strategic suppliers primarily under cost-reimbursement

agreements As we proceed with the project we intend for contracts with suppliers to transition from

cost-reimbursable model to fixed-price or incentive-based model as appropriate However if we

are not successful in obtaining fixed-price or incentive-based contracts in the timeframe we expect

this could increase costs We are also currently in discussions with our suppliers regarding slow

down of spending during 2009 from what was planned under our baseline schedule which will likely

increase the project cost as discussed below in Capital Requirements
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Several key budget variables such as labor costs the cost of raw materials to build the plant and

general inflation are outside our control and difficult to forecast and increases in these variables

could increase costs Our project budget assumes that certain cost savings are achieved through

value-engineering the AC 100 machine If we are not successful or these efforts take longer than we

expect that could impact our schedule and/or increase costs

If actual costs exceed the budget including the built-in management reserve and such costs

cannot otherwise be offset or financed we may elect to deploy fewer centrifuge machines in the plant

to mitigate such potential cost growth The modular nature of the plant construction permits normal

operation even if the scale is reduced from the current planned size reduced scale would reduce

the output of the plant absent offsetting improvements in machine performance

Capital Requirements

We must still raise the remainder of the capital needed to build the ACP and this has been and

will continue to be focus of management We do not believe public market financing for large

capital project such as the ACP is available to us given current financial market conditions We view

the DOE Loan Guarantee Program as the path for obtaining the debt financing to complete the

American Centrifuge project

The DOE Loan Guarantee Program was created by the Energy Policy Act of 2005 and in

December 2007 federal legislation authorized funding levels available through September 30 2009

of up to $2 billion for advanced facilities for the front end of the nuclear fuel cycle which includes

uranium enrichment DOE released its solicitation for the Loan Guarantee Program on June 30 2008
and we applied for $2 billion in funding in July 2008 Areva company majority owned by the

French government also applied for funding under this program for proposed plant in the U.S and

is also being considered by DOE Nonetheless we believe that our project is ideally suited for the

Loan Guarantee Program and are seeking selection of our project by DOE in the short term

followed by an expeditious funding commitment and financial closing

However we have no assurance that our project will be selected to move forward in the program
and if we are selected it could still take an extended period for the loan guarantee and funding to be

finalized Accordingly we have initiated steps to conserve cash and reduce the planned escalation of

project construction and machine manufacturing activities until we gain greater clarity on potential

funding for the project through the DOE Loan Guarantee Program In addition on parallel path we
continue to evaluate potential third-party investment

Our intent is to reduce our spending in 2009 to work within the combination of our expected funds

available through our cash from operations and available borrowings under our credit facility and

ensure that we have adequate liquidity for our ongoing operations Under our deployment schedule

for the ACP spending was expected to peak in 2009 with spending of approximately $800 million

including substantial ramp up in coming months with the hiring of plant construction workers and

preparing facilities that would provide key components for the AC 100 centrifuge machines Our

initial steps to slow the growth of project spending in 2009 include sharply reducing the planned

ramp up in hiring construction and craft workers for the ACP and deferring select procurements

Engineering procurement and construction EPC and machine manufacturing and assemblyMMA activities represent approximately 75% of planned spending in 2009 and we are

targeting spending reductions in these areas We are working with our EPC and MMA suppliers

such as Fluor TBE BW and ATK to identify and implement actions that can be taken to reduce

costs while minimizing the impact on project cost and schedule We do not expect to reduce planned

spending during 2009 on machine technology activities such as the Lead Cascade test program and

operation of the AC100 cascade which we view as critical near-term activities As potentially

offsetting benefit to our slow down of project activities we will also be looking for opportunities to

reduce concurrency in our schedule which could lower the overall risk of the project For example
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concurrency would be reduced if we are able to take more time to optimize the AC 100 design before

we commence high volume manufacturing

Our baseline schedule called for beginning commercial operations at the end of the first quarter of

2010 and reaching million SWU capacity in the first quarter of 2011 and the full 3.8 million SWU

capacity at the end of 2012 Our decision to slow spending until funding decision is made by the

DOE Loan Guarantee Program will likely increase the cost and extend the schedule for the project

The potential cost and schedule impact is highly uncertain at this point and we are working with our

suppliers to evaluate and minimize the impact At the same time we are actively pursuing action by

the DOE Loan Guarantee Program so that we can minimize the duration of any slow down and its

effect on cost and schedule Our ability to achieve the 3.8 million SWU production capacity may be

limited by capital
constraints and potential project cost increases including as result of our decision

to slow project spending In such circumstances achieving the full 3.8 million SWU capacity may

be delayed until additional capital from project cash flow from operations or other funding becomes

available As we gain greater clarity on potential funding through the DOE Loan Guarantee Program

and plan and coordinate with our strategic suppliers we will be better able to quantify changes to

cost and schedule We are currently engaged with suppliers in bottom-up analysis and we do not

expect to be in position to provide an update on the potential impact on cost and schedule until after

the first quarter of 2009

As part of this process we are planning and coordinating with our strategic suppliers regarding

various scenarios based on availability of DOE funding which could include additional reductions in

spending from those currently being considered if we continue to lack visibility into the receipt of

loan guarantee funding we might need to more drastically reduce procurements and staff which

would be more difficult to recover from and would lead to more significant delays and increased

costs We could also determine to take other actions to ensure that we have adequate liquidity for our

ongoing operations Further details are provided in Item 1A Risk Factors of this report

Project Milestones under the 2002 DOE-USECAgreement

The 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement as amended in January 2009 provides that we will develop

demonstrate and deploy the American Centrifuge technology in accordance with 15 milestones as

follows

Milestones under Milestone Achievement

2002 DOE-USEC Agreement Date Date

Begin refurbishment of K-i 600 centrifuge testing
December 2002 December 2002

facility in Oak Ridge Tennessee

Build and begin testing centrifuge end cap January 2003 January 2003

Submit license application for Lead Cascade to NRC April 2003 February 2003

NRC dockets Lead Cascade application
June 2003 March 2003

First rotor tube manufactured November 2003 September 2003

Centrifuge testing begins
January 2005 January 2005

Submit license application for commercial plant to March 2005 August 2004

NRC

NRC dockets commercial plant application May 2005 October 2004

Begin Lead Cascade centrifuge manufacturing June 2005 April 2005

Begin commercial plant construction and June 2007 May 2007

refurbishment

Lead Cascade operational and generating product October 2007 October2007

assay in range usable by commercial nuclear power

plants
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continued

Milestones under Milestone Achievement
2002 DOE-USEC Agreement Date Date

Secure firmfinancing commitments for the November 2009

construction of the commercial American Centrifuge

Plant with an annual capacity of approximately 3.5

million SWIJ per year

Begin commercial American Centrifuge Plant August 2010

operations

Commercial American Centrifuge Plant annual November 2011

capacity at million SWU per year

Commercial American Centrifuge Plant annual May 2013

capacity of approximately 3.5 million SWU per year

We believe our ability to meet the November 2009 financing milestone is dependent upon our

obtaining conmiitment for loan guarantee from DOE the receipt and timing of which is uncertain

Until we have met the November 2009 financing milestone DOE has full remedies under the

2002 DOE-USEC Agreement However if delaying event beyond our control and without our fault

or negligence occurs that would affect our ability to meet milestone we and DOE will jointly meet
to discuss in good faith possible adjustments to the milestones as appropriate to accommodate the

delaying event Once we have met the November 2009 financing milestone DOEs remedies under
the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement are limited to those circumstances where our gross negligence in

project planning and execution is responsible for schedule delays or in the circumstance where we

constructively or formally abandon the project or fail to diligently pursue the financing

commitments

The 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement provides DOE with specific remedies if we fail to meet

milestone that would materially impact our ability to begin commercial operations of the American

Centrifuge Plant on schedule These remedies include tenninating the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement
revoking our access to DOEs U.S centrifuge technology and requiring us to transfer our rights in

the American Centrifuge technology and facilities to DOE requiring us to reimburse DOE for certain

costs associated with the American Centrifuge project and recommending that we be removed as the

sole U.S Executive Agent under the Megatons to Megawatts program

Corporate Structure

In September 2008 we created four wholly owned subsidiaries to carry out future commercial

activities related to the American Centrifuge project We anticipate that these subsidiaries will own
the American Centrifuge Plant and equipment provide operations and maintenance services

manufacture centrifuge machines and conduct ongoing centrifuge research and development This

corporate structure will separate ownership and control of centrifuge technology from ownership of
the enrichment plant and also establish separate operations subsidiary This structure will facilitate

DOE loan guarantee financing and potential third-party investment while also facilitating any future

plant expansion
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NRC Operating License

We have an NRC license to possess and use radioactive material at the American Centrifuge

Demonstration Facility that expires in August 2011 In April 2007 the NRC issued license to

construct and operate the American Centrifuge Plant and we began construction of the American

Centrifuge Plant in May 2007 Our construction and operating license is for term of 30 years and

includes authorization to enrich uranium to U235 assay of up to 10% Our license is based on plant

designed with an initial annual production capacity of 3.8 million SWU Although we will need an

amendment to our NRC license for any significant expansion of the American Centrifuge Plant the

environmental report submitted with our license application and the environmental impact statement

issued by the NRC contemplated the potential expansion of the plant to approximately double the

currently expected capacity

American Centrifuge Plant Lease

We lease the facilities in Piketon for the American Centrifuge Plant from DOE The process

buildings that will house the cascades of centrifuges encompass more than 14 acres under roof The

lease for these facilities and other support facilities is stand-alone amendment to our lease with

DOE for the gaseous diffusion plant facilities in Piketon and in Paducah The initial term was

through June 2009 and on February 2009 we renewed it for an additional term of five years

through June 2014 We have the option to extend the lease term for additional five-year terms up to

2043 Thereafter we also have the right to extend the lease for up to an additional 20 years through

2063 if we agree to demolish the existing buildings leased to us after the lease term expires We

have the option with DOEs consent to expand the leased property to meet our needs until the

earlier of September 30 2013 or the expiration or termination of the GDP lease Rent is based on the

cost of lease administration and regulatory oversight and is approximately $1.6 million per year We

may terminate the lease upon three years notice DOE may terminate for default including default

under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement

Financial Assurance for Decontamination and Decommissioning

We own all capital improvements at the American Centrifuge Plant and unless otherwise

consented to by DOE must remove them by the conclusion of the lease term This provision is unlike

the lease of our gaseous diffusion plants where we may leave the property in an as is condition at

termination of the lease DOE generally only remains responsible for pre-existing conditions of the

American Centrifuge leased facilities At the conclusion of the 36-year lease period in 2043

assuming no further extensions we are obligated to return these leased facilities to DOE in

condition that meets NRC requirements and in the same condition as the facilities were in when they

were leased to us other than due to normal wear and tear We are required to provide financial

assurance to the NRC incrementally based on facility construction and centrifuge installation We are

also required to provide financial assurance to DOE in an amount equal to our current estimate of

costs to comply with lease turnover requirements less the amount of financial assurance required of

us by the NRC for decontamination and decommissioning DD As of December 31 2008 we

have provided financial assurance to the NRC and DOE in the form of surety bonds totaling $57.7

million that supports construction progress The surety bonds are partially collateralized with

interest-earning cash deposits

The financial assurance requirements will increase each year commensurate with the status of

facility
construction and operations As part

of our license to operate the American Centrifuge Plant

we provide the NRC with projection of the total DD cost The current estimate of the total DD
cost related to the NRC is $377.3 million in 2008 dollars and the projected total incremental lease

turnover cost related to DOE is estimated to be $25.5 million in 2008 dollars Financial assurance

will also be required for the disposition of depleted uranium generated from future centrifuge

operations
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Asset Retirement Obligations

DD requirements for the American Centrifuge Plant create asset retirement obligations As
construction of the American Centrifuge Plant takes place the present value of the related asset

retirement obligation is recognized as liability An equivalent amount is recognized as part of the

capitalized asset cost The liability is accreted or increased over time for the time value of money
The accretion is charged to cost of sales Upon commencement of commercial operations the asset

cost will be depreciated over the shorter of the asset life or the expected lease period

During each reporting period we reassess and revise the estimate of asset retirement obligations

based on construction progress cost evaluation of future DD expectations and other judgmental
considerations which impact the amount recorded in both construction work in progress and other

long-term liabilities Our asset retirement obligation liability balance as of December 31 2008 was
$13.7 million Cost of sales in 2008 includes accretion of the asset retirement obligation of $0.5

million

DOE Technology License

In December 2006 USEC and DOE signed an agreement licensing U.S gas centrifuge technology
to USEC for use in building new domestic uranium enrichment capacity We will pay royalties to the

U.S government on annual revenues from sales of LEU produced in the American Centrifuge Plant
The royalty ranges from 1% to 2% of annual gross revenue from these sales Payments are capped at

$100 million over the life of the technology license

Risks and Uncertainties

The successful construction and operation of the American Centrifuge Plant is dependent upon
number of factors including the availability and timing of financing performance of the American

Centrifuge technology overall cost and schedule and the achievement of milestones under the 2002
DOE-USEC Agreement Risks and uncertainties related to the American Centrifuge Plant are

described in further detail in Item 1A Risk Factors

Nuclear Regulatory Commission Regulation

Our operations are subject to regulation by the NRC The Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs are

regulated by and are required to be recertified by the NRC every five years In 2008 the NRC
granted renewal of the certifications for the five-year period ending December 2013 The

recertification represents NRCs determination that the plants are in compliance with NRC safety

safeguards and security regulations The NRC also regulates our operation of the American

Centrifuge Demonstration Facility and the construction of the American Centrifuge Plant

The NRC has the
authority to issue notices of violation for violations of the Atomic Energy Act of

1954 NRC regulations and conditions of licenses certificates of compliance or orders The NRC
has the authority to impose civil penalties for certain violations of its regulations We have received

notices of violation from NRC for violations of these regulations and certificate conditions However
in each case we took corrective action to bring the facilities into compliance with NRC regulations
We do not expect that any proposed notices of violation we have received will have material

adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations

Our operations require that we maintain security clearances that are overseen by the NRC and
DOE in accordance with the National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual These security
clearances could be suspended or revoked if we are determined by the NRC to be subject to foreign

ownership control or influence In addition statute and NRC regulations prohibit the NRC from

issuing any license or certificate to us ifit determines that we are owned controlled or dominated by
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an alien foreign corporation or foreign government

Environmental Compliance

Our operations are subject to various federal state and local requirements regulating the discharge

of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment Our

operations generate low-level radioactive waste that is stored on-site or is shipped off-site for

disposal at commercial facilities In addition our operations generate hazardous waste and mixed

waste i.e waste having both radioactive and hazardous component most of which is shipped off-

site for treatment and disposal Because of limited treatment and disposal capacity some mixed

waste is being temporarily stored at DOEs permitted storage facilities at the Portsmouth GDP We

have entered into consent decree with the State of Ohio that permits the continued storage of mixed

waste at DOEs permitted storage facilities and provides for schedule for sending the waste to off-

site treatment and disposal facilities We previously had entered into consent decree with the State

of Kentucky which was terminated in 2007 upon satisfaction of our obligations under the consent

decree

Our operations generate depleted uranium that is stored at the plants Depleted uranium is result

of the uranium enrichment process where the concentration of the U235 isotope in depleted uranium

is less than the concentration of .711% found in natural uranium All liabilities arising out of the

disposal of depleted uranium generated before July 28 1998 are direct liabilities of DOE The USEC

Privatization Act requires DOE upon our request to accept for disposal the depleted uranium

generated after the July 28 1998 privatization date provided we reimburse DOE for its costs

The gaseous diffusion plants were operated by agencies of the U.S government for approximately

40 years prior to July 28 1998 As result of such operation there is contamination and other

potential
environmental liabilities associated with the plants The Paducah GDP has been designated

as Superfund site under CERCLA and both the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs are undergoing

investigations under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Environmental liabilities

associated with plant operations prior to July 28 1998 are the responsibility of the U.S government

except for liabilities relating to the disposal of certain identified wastes generated by USEC and

stored at the plants The USEC Privatization Act and the lease for the plants provide that DOE

remains responsible for decontamination and decommissioning of the gaseous diffusion plants

As described above under Business and Properties The American Centrifuge Plant Financial

Assurance for Decommissioning we will be responsible for the decontamination and

decommissioning of the American Centrifuge Plant

Reference is made to Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements for information on operating costs

relating to environmental compliance

Occupational Safety and Health

Our operations are subject to regulations of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration

governing worker health and safety We maintain comprehensive worker safety program that

establishes high standards for worker safety directly involves our employees and monitors key

performance indicators in the workplace environment
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Competition and Foreign Trade

The highly competitive global uranium enrichment industry has four major producers of LEU

USEC

Urenco consortium of companies owned or controlled by the British and Dutch

governments and by two private German utilities

multinational consortium controlled by Areva company principally owned by
the French government and

the Russian governments State Atomic Energy Corporation Rosatom which
sells LEU through TENEX Russian government-owned entity

Two of our three major competitors Urenco and Areva own joint venture called the Enrichment

Technology Company which develops and manufactures centrifuge machines for both owners
There are also smaller producers of LEU in China Japan and Brazil that primarily serve portion of
their respective domestic markets

Global LEU suppliers compete primarily in terms of price and secondarily on reliability of supply
and customer service We believe that customers are attracted to our reputation as reliable long-
term supplier of enriched uranium and we intend to continue strengthening this reputation with the

planned transition to the American Centrifuge Plant

USEC and Areva currently use the gaseous diffusion process to produce LEU and are constructing

centrifuge enrichment plants to replace their gaseous diffusion production Urenco and Rosatom

already use centrifuge technology Gaseous diffusion plants generally have higher operating costs

than gas centrifuge plants due to the significant amounts of electric power required by the gaseous
diffusion process

We estimate that the enrichment industry market is
currently about 45 million SWU per year In

the past five years we have delivered LEU containing 10 to 13 million SWU per year of which
approximately 5.5 million SWU per year was obtained by us under the Russian Contract

Urenco publicly stated in 2008 that its European enrichment facilities would reach an annual

capacity of 11 million SWU by the end of 2008 Louisiana Energy Services LES group
controlled by Urenco is constructing gas centrifuge uranium enrichment plant in Lea County
New Mexico LES operations are expected to begin in the second half of 2009 Full capacity of

million SWU per year is expected in 2013 In November 2008 LES announced its plans to seek

license amendment to increase its planned capacity to 5.9 million SWU by 2015 Urenco
announced plans call for total capacity including LES of 18 million SWU by the end of 2015

Areva is constructing centrifuge enrichment plant to replace its Georges Besse gaseous diffusion

plant in France Initial production is expected in 2009 and full capacity of 7.5 million SWU per year
is expected by 2016 In addition Areva announced in December 2008 that it submitted license

application to the NRC to build its proposed Eagle Rock centrifuge uranium enrichment plant near
Idaho Falls Idaho Arevas plan calls for initial production in 2014 with targeted production rate of

million SWU per year reached in 2019

Areva and Urencos European centrifuge enrichment facilities as well as their plants under
construction or proposed in the U.S use or will use centrifuge machines supplied by the Enrichment

Technology Company
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All of our current competitors are owned or controlled in whole or in part by foreign

governments These competitors may make business decisions in both domestic and international

markets that are influenced by political or economic policy considerations rather than exclusively by

commercial considerations

In addition GE Hitachi has an agreement with Silex Systems Limited an Australian company to

license Silex laser enrichment technology USEC funded research and development of the Silex

technology for several years but terminated the arrangement in April 2003 to focus on the American

Centrifuge technology GE Hitachi has begun phased development process with the goal of

constructing commercial enrichment plant in Wilmington North Carolina with
target capacity of

between 3.5 million and million SWU per year Activities are currently focused on test ioop

facility to determine performance and reliability data which could be used to make decision on

whether or not to proceed with the construction of commercial plant

In addition to enrichment LEU may be produced by downblending government stockpiles of

highly enriched uranium Governments control the timing and availability of highly enriched

uranium released for this purpose and the release of this material to the market could impact market

conditions We have been the primary supplier of downblended highly enriched uranium made

available by the U.S and Russian governments To the extent LEU from downblended highly

enriched uranium are released into the market in future years for sale by others these quantities

would represent source of competition In December 2008 DOE published plan for the multi-year

disposition of its excess uranium inventories including the downblending of 12.1 metric tons of

highly enriched uranium to produce about 220 metric tons of LEU containing roughly 1.5 million

SWU of which about 170 metric tons could be used for general or special-purpose inventory for

DOE In the plan DOE stated its intention to minimize any material adverse impacts on the domestic

uranium mining conversion and enrichment industries

LEU that we supply to foreign customers is exported under the terms of international agreements

governing nuclear cooperation between the United States and the country of destination or other

entities For example exports to countries comprising the European Union take place within the

framework of an agreement for cooperation the EURATOM Agreement between the United

States and the European Atomic Energy Community which among other things permits LEU to be

exported from the United States to the European Union for as long as the EURATOM Agreement is

in effect

Government Investigation of LEU Imports from France

In 2001 the U.S Department of Commerce DOC determined that French enricher Eurodif

S.A consortium controlled by Areva had dumped LEU into the United States and in 2002 the

DOC imposed antidumping and countervailing duty anti-subsidy orders on imports of LEU

produced in France These orders were challenged by Eurodif and certain U.S utilities As result of

these challenges the countervailing duty order was revoked in May 2007 The antidumping order

remains in place

In 2005 the U.S Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit Federal Circuit concluded that

imports of French LEU pursuant to enrichment services transactions were not subject to the

antidumping law because such transactions involved sale of services rather than sale of

merchandise Both the U.S government and USEC sought reversal of the Federal Circuit decision

and in February 2008 we and the Solicitor General of the United States joined by the general

counsels of the Commerce Defense Energy and State Departments appealed the Federal Circuits

decision to the U.S Supreme Court On January 26 2009 the U.S Supreme Court in unanimous

ruling overturned the Federal Circuits 2005 decision This ruling gives the DOC the ability to

enforce its dumping finding against all imports of French LEU regardless of the form of contract

involved
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In January 2007 the DOC and the U.S International Trade Commission ITC initiated five-

year sunset reviews of the antidumping order against French LEU to determine if the order should

remain in place The DOC determined that termination of the antidumping order would likely lead to

continuation or recurrence of dumping of French LEU and the ITC determined that termination of

the order would likely lead to continuation or recurrence of material injury to the U.S enrichment

industry We supported both of these outcomes

The DOCs and ITCs final results in the sunset review have been challenged before the U.S

Court of International Trade CIT as has the ITCs original
material injury determination made in

2002 and determinations made by the DOC in past annual reviews of imports under the antidumping

order The issues in these appeals are separate from the decision of the U.S Supreme Court see

above and therefore the appeals of the DOC and ITC sunset review and original injury

determinations before the CIT are still pending reversal of either the ITCs original material injury

determination or the DOC or ITC determinations in either of the sunset review proceedings could

result in the revocation of the antidumping duty order at some point in the future and reversal of the

1OC determinations in past annual reviews could result in the reduction or elimination of

antidumping duties If the order is revoked or antidumping duties are significantly reduced or

eliminated the absence of any limitation on dumped French LEU could adversely affect market

prices for SWU and result in lost sales by us

Limitations on Imports ofLEUfrom Russia

Imports of LEU and other uranium products produced in the Russian Federation are subject to

quotas imposed under legislation enacted into law in September 2008 and under the 1992 Russian

Suspension Agreement

The legislation enacted in September 2008 imposes annual quotas on imports of Russian LEU

through 2020 From 2008-2011 the quotas only permit small amount of LEU to be imported The

quotas increase moderately in 2012 and 2013 and then from 2014-2020 are set at an amount equal to

approximately 20% of projected annual U.S consumption of LEU These quotas are substantially

similar to the quotas established under the amendments to the Russian Suspension Agreement

discussed below However the legislation also includes the possibility of expanded quotas of up to

an additional 5% of the domestic market annually beginning in 2014 if the Russian Federation

continues to downblend highly enriched uranium after the Russian Contract is complete As with the

amendment to the Russian Suspension Agreement the legislation also permits unlimited imports of

LEU for use in initial cores for any newly licensed U.S nuclear reactor

Prior to being amended in 2008 the Russian Suspension Agreement precluded the export of LEU

other than LEU under the Russian Contract from Russia to the United States for consumption in the

United States On February 2008 the DOC and Rosatom signed an amendment to the Russian

Suspension Agreement that permits the Russian government to sell stockpile of LEU containing

about 400000 SWU located in the United States and establishes annual export quotas for the sale of

Russian uranium products to U.S utilities starting in 2011 In 2021 the suspended investigation and

the Russian Suspension Agreement will be terminated and the export quotas will no longer apply

The September 2008 legislation provides that it supersedes the Russian Suspension Agreement in

cases where they conflict
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Employees

summary of our employees by location follows

No of Employees

at December 31

Location 2008

Paducah GDP Paducah KY 1172 1169

Portsmouth GDP Piketon OH 1156 1147

American Primarily Oak Ridge TN
500 397

Centrifuge and Piketon OH

NAC PrimarilyNorcross GA 62 63

Headquarters Bethesda MD 88 90

Total Employees 2978 2866

The United Steelworkers USW and the Security Police Fire Professionals of America

SPFPA represented 54% of the employees at the GDPs at December 31 2008 The number of

employees represented and the term of each contract follows

Number of Contract

Employees Trrn

Paducah GDP
USW Local 5-550 567 July 2011

SPFPALoca1 111 76 March2012

Portsmouth GDP
USW Local 5-689 517 May 2010

SPFPA Local 66 99 August 2012

In January 2008 we entered into an agreement with the USW and USW Local 5-689 resolving

issues related to the scope of the existing collective bargaining agreement at the Portsmouth GDP and

providing path forward for labor relations at the American Centrifuge Plant The agreement

recognizes that the existing Portsmouth GDP collective bargaining agreement does not apply to the

American Centrifuge Plant The agreement provides hiring preference for qualified USW
represented workers who apply for new jobs created by us for the American Centrifuge Plant It also

provides American Centrifuge Plant workers with an opportunity to decide on union representation

through an expedited election conducted by the National Labor Relations Board The agreement

states that we will remain neutral in union organizing campaign but will recognize the USW if

majority of eligible
ACP employees elect to join the union
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Available Information

Our internet website is www.usec.com We make available on our website or upon request

without charge access to our annual
report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current

reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed with or furnished to the Securities and

Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed with or

furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission

Our code of business conduct provides brief summary of the standards of conduct that are at the

foundation of our business operations The code of business conduct states that we conduct our

business in strict compliance with all applicable laws Each employee must read the code of business

conduct and sign form stating that he or she has read understands and agrees to comply with the

code of business conduct copy of the code of business conduct is available on our website or upon

request without charge We will disclose on the website any amendments to or waivers from the

code of business conduct that are required to be publicly disclosed

We also make available free of charge on our website or upon request our Board of Directors

Governance Guidelines and our Board committee charters
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Item 1A Risk Factors

Investors should carefully consider the risk factors below in addition to the other information

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The long-term viability of our business depends on our ability to replace our current enrichment

facility with the American Centrifuge Plant

We currently use gaseous diffusion uranium enrichment technology at the Paducah gaseous

diffusion plant Paducah GDP for approximately one-half of the LEU that we need to meet our

delivery obligations to our customers and to generate uranium through underfeeding to satisfy our

obligations under the Russian Contract However our competitors utilize or are in the process of

transitioning to centrifuge uranium enrichment technology Centrifuge technology is more efficient

and operationally cost-effective than gaseous diffusion technology which requires substantial

amounts of electric power to enrich uranium We must transition to lower operating cost

technology in order to remain competitive in the long term and one that is less dependent on volatile

energy markets

We are focused on developing and deploying an advanced uranium enrichment centrifuge

technology which we refer to as the American Centrifuge technology as replacement for our

gaseous diffusion technology We are not currently pursuing any strategies to replace our gaseous

diffusion operations with alternatives other than the American Centrifuge Plant ACP The

construction and deployment of the ACP is large and capital-intensive undertaking that is subject to

numerous risks and uncertainties If we are unable to successfully and timely deploy the ACP on

cost-effective basis due to the risks and uncertainties described in this section or for any other

reasons our gross profit margins cash flows liquidity and results of operations would be materially

and adversely affected and our business likely would not remain viable over the long term

Delays in our deployment of the American Centrifuge technology could adversely affect the overall

economics ability to finance and the likelihood of successful deployment of the ACP

Our baseline deployment schedule calls for beginning commercial plant operations at the end of

the first quarter of 2010 and having the full 3.8 million SWU capacity at the end of 2012 However

our recent decision to slow down project spending during 2009 in order to conserve cash will likely

delay this schedule and the delay could be significant We have also experienced delay in our

timetable for operation of the initial AC 100 cascade as part of our Lead Cascade test program as

result of start-up issues in the transfer of technology to our suppliers This could also impact our

overall schedule We have also experienced delays in the past from variety of factors including the

failure of certain materials to meet specifications performance problems with and failures of certain

centrifuge components and the time-consuming process of ensuring compliance with regulatory

requirements Our efforts to reduce the centrifuge machine cost through value engineering have been

delayed due to our focus on resolving issues related to component performance that arose during

Lead Cascade testing and we have continued to be unable to devote the necessary resources to value

engineering based on other competing factors which impacts cost
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As result of these and other factors including factors and circumstances similarto those that

have delayed us in the past we may be unable to meet our baseline project schedule or any revised

schedule Significant delays in our schedule could

increase our costs for the project both on an overall basis and in terms of the

incremental costs we must incur to recover from delays

cause us to fail to meet milestone under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement leading

DOE to exercise the remedies described in the risk factor relating to the 2002 DOE
USEC Agreement

make it more difficult for us to attract and retain customers and adversely affect our

ability to compete with other enrichment plants being built in the U.S and

extend the time under which we are contractually or otherwise required to continue to

operate our high-cost Paducah GDP

Any of these outcomes could
substantially reduce our revenues gross profit margins liquidity and

cash flows and adversely affect the overall economics ability to finance and the likelihood of

successful deployment of the ACP This would have material adverse impact on our business and

prospects because we believe the long-term viability of our business depends on the successful

deployment of the ACP

Our baseline deployment schedule and budget for the ACP are challenging To minimize potential

schedule delays we have made and expect to continue to make key decisions including decisions to

expend or commit to expend large amounts of capital and resources before we have financing to

complete the ACP and before we have received all relevant centrifuge machine performance data and

confirmation of the American Centrifuge projects costs schedule and overall viability

If we are not able to obtain timely action from DOE regarding loan guarantee or an alternate

capital commitment we will need to take additional steps to implement further spending
reductions with respect to the American Centrifuge project

We must raise capital to complete the ACP We do not believe public market financing for large

capital project such as the ACP is available to us given current financial market conditions We view

the DOE Loan Guarantee Program as the path for obtaining the debt financing to complete the

American Centrifuge project We believe that timely action by DOE regarding loan guarantee is

critical We have initiated
steps to slow down spending on the project in 2009 and reduce the planned

escalation of project construction and machine manufacturing activities until we gain greater clarity

on potential funding for the project through the DOE Loan Guarantee Program Our decision to slow

spending until funding decision is made by the DOE Loan Guarantee Program will likely increase

the cost and extend the schedule for the project We are planning and coordinating with our strategic

suppliers regarding various scenarios based on availability of DOE funding which could include

additional reductions in spending from those currently being considered If we continue to lack

visibility into the receipt of loan guarantee funding we might need to more drastically reduce

procurements and staff which would be more difficult to recover from and would lead to more

significant delays and increased costs and
potentially make the project uneconomic We could also be

forced to take other actions including tenninating the project Termination of the ACP would have

material adverse impact on our business and prospects because we believe the long-term viability of

our business depends on the successful deployment of the American Centrifuge Plant

The Loan Guarantee Program was created by the Energy Policy Act of 2005 and in December

2007 federal legislation authorized funding levels through September 30 2009 of up to $2 billion for

advanced facilities for the front end of the nuclear fuel cycle which includes uranium enrichment

DOE released its solicitation for the Loan Guarantee Program on June 30 2008 and we applied for

$2 billion in funding in July 2008 Our application is under review by DOE We cannot give any
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assurance that we will be selected or that we will receive DOE loan guarantee at all or in the

amount or the timeframe we seek The Loan Guarantee Program is competitive process Areva

company majority owned by the French government also has applied for funding under the program

for proposed plant in the U.S and is being considered by DOE This could adversely affect the

timing and amount of funding awarded to us if any Schedule delays cost increases or issues that

may arise with respect to the American Centrifuge technology could all adversely affect our

perceived creditworthiness and likelihood of selection for DOE loan guarantee

DOE has not yet issued any commitments or loan guarantees under the Loan Guarantee Program

including from an initial solicitation in August 2006 that did not apply to nuclear projects and has

not provided timeline for the process from solicitation to being granted loan guarantee The

change in Administration also has added delay to the process Funding under the program is only

authorized until September 30 2009

We also cannot give any assurances that if we are selected to proceed with negotiations under the

Loan Guarantee Program that sufficient funds will be allocated to our project We have requested

loan guarantee for $2 billion which is the entire amount authorized in the solicitation for front-end

nuclear facilities and Arevas competing project also is seeking the full $2 billion

On parallel path we continue to evaluate potential third-party investment however we cannot

assure you that we will be able to attract the capital we need to complete the American Centrifuge

project in timely manner or at all

Factors that could affect our ability to obtain financing or the cost of such financing include

the success of our demonstration of the American Centrifuge technology and the

estimated costs efficiency timing and return on investment of the deployment of the

American Centrifuge Plant described below

our ability to secure long-term SWIJ purchase commitments from customers on

satisfactory terms including adequate prices

our ability to get loan guarantees or other support from the U.S government

competition for financing or loan guarantees from another uranium enrichment

project and nuclear-related projects generally

the level of success of our current operations

SWU prices

USECs perceived competitive position and investor confidence in our industry and

in us

projected costs for the disposal of depleted uranium and the decontamination and

decommissioning of the American Centrifuge Plant and the impact of related

financial assurance requirements

additional downgrades in our credit rating

market price and volatility of our common stock

general economic and capital market conditions

conditions in energy markets

regulatory developments

our reliance on LEU delivered to us under the Russian Contract and uncertainty

regarding prices and deliveries under the Russian Contract and

restrictive covenants in the agreements governing our revolving credit facility and in

our outstanding notes and any future financing arrangements that limit our operating

and financial flexibility
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The centrifuge machines and supporting equipment that we deploy in the American Centrifuge

Plant may not meet our performance targets

The ACP is expected to have an annual production capacity of 3.8 million SWU which is based

on the expected performance of approximately 11500 centrifuge machines and related equipment

The expected output for the ACP is based on assumptions regarding performance and availability of

machines and related equipment and actual performance may be different than we expect Factors

that can influence performance include

The success of our efforts to optimize the machine we expect to deploy in the ACP to

achieve 350 SWU per year

The performance and reliability of individual components built by our strategic suppliers

Our ability to successfully transition the technology to build AC100 machines to our

strategic suppliers and

Differences in actual commercial plant conditions from the conditions used to generate our

test data

Our failure to achieve expected performance could affect the overall economics of the ACP and

our ability to finance and the likelihood of successful deployment of the ACP This could have

material adverse impact on our business and prospects

We rely on third-party suppliers for key components for our Cl00 machine and the American

Centrifuge Plant

We rely on third-party suppliers for key American Centrifuge components The failure of any of

our suppliers to provide their respective components as scheduled or at all or of the quality and the

precise specifications we need could result in substantial delays in or otherwise materially hamper
the deployment of the ACP There are limited number of potential suppliers for these key

components and finding alternate suppliers could be difficult time consuming and costly In

addition because such suppliers are few and due to our dependence on them for key components our

ability to obtain favorable contractual terms with these suppliers is limited We have entered into and

expect to enter into future agreements with suppliers in which we bear certain cost schedule and

performance risk Although we will seek to manage these risks we cannot provide any assurance that

we will be able to This could result in cost increases and unanticipated delays Our inability to

effectively integrate these suppliers and other key third-party suppliers could also result in delays and

otherwise increase our costs Delays could also occur if we decide to search for alternate suppliers or

to self-perform certain items that we previously anticipated outsourcing to third-party suppliers

The cost of the American Centrifuge project will likely exceed the baseline project budget and

increased costs and cost uncertainty could adversely affect our ability to finance and deploy the

American Centrifuge Plant

In 2008 we established baseline project budget for the ACP of $3.5 billion This budget includes

amounts already spent but does not include financing costs or financial assurance Through

Lecember 31 2008 we had spent $1.2 billion on the project which leaves going-forward cost of

$2.3 billion to complete the ACP

The project budget is subject to cost risk We are working with our strategic suppliers primarily

under cost-reimbursement agreements As we proceed with the project we intend for contracts with

suppliers to transition from cost-reimbursable model to fixed-price or incentive-based model as

appropriate However if we are not successful in obtaining fixed-price or incentive-based contracts

in the timeframe we expect this could increase costs We are also currently in discussions with our

suppliers regarding slowdown of spending during 2009 from what was originally planned which
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will likely have an impact on the project cost We are still in the early stages of planning and

coordinating with our strategic suppliers and the cost impact of any slowdown could be significantly

greater than we anticipate We could also be forced to make decision to more significantly slow

spending which could result in more significant
increased costs

Several key budget variables such as labor costs the cost of raw materials to build the plant and

general inflation are outside our control and difficult to forecast and increases in these variables

could increase costs Our project budget assumes that certain cost savings are achieved through value

engineering the AC100 machine If we are not successful or these efforts take longer than we expect

that could impact our schedule and/or increase costs

Increases in the cost of the ACP increase the amount of external capital we must raise and could

threaten our ability to successfully finance and deploy the ACP Our ability to achieve the 3.8 million

SWU plant capacity may be limited by capital
constraints and potential project cost increases

including as result of our decision to slow project spending until funding decision is made by the

DOE Loan Guarantee Program In such circumstances achieving the full 3.8 million capacity may

be delayed until additional capital from project cash flow from operations or other funding becomes

available This could have an adverse affect on our ability to successfully deploy the ACP

We cannot assure investors that costs associated with the ACP will not be materially higher than

anticipated or that efforts that we take to mitigate or minimize cost increases will be successful or

sufficient Our cost estimates and budget for the ACP have been and will continue to be based on

many assumptions that are subject to change as new information becomes available or as unexpected

events occur Regardless of our success in demonstrating the technical viability of the American

Centrifuge technology uncertainty surrounding our ability to accurately estimate costs or to limit

potential cost increases could jeopardize our ability to successfully finance and deploy the ACP Our

inability to finance and deploy the ACP would have material adverse impact on our business and

prospects because we believe the long-term viability of our business depends on the successful

deployment of the ACP

We are required to meet certain milestones under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement and our failure

to meet these milestones could cause DOE to exercise one or more remedies under the 2002 DOE

USEC Agreement

The 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement contains specific project milestones relating to the American

Centrifuge Plant As amended in January 2009 the following four milestones remain under the 2002

DOE-USEC Agreement

November 2009 Secure firm financing commitments for the construction of the

commercial American Centrifuge Plant with an annual capacity of approximately 3.5 million

SWU per year the Financing Milestone

August 2010 begin commercial American Centrifuge Plant operations

November 2011 commercial American Centrifuge Plant annual capacity at million SWU

per year and

May 2013 commercial American Centrifuge Plant annual capacity of approximately 3.5

million SWU per year

We believe our ability to meet the Financing Milestone is dependent upon our obtaining

commitment for loan guarantee from DOE the receipt and timing of which is uncertain In order to

meet the Financing Milestone we must obtain debt or equity commitments by November 2009

such commitments together with USEC equity contributions based on reasonable projections

acceptable to DOE need to be sufficient to meet the estimated costs to construct the ACP with an
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annual capacity of approximately 3.5 million SWU per year and the commitments must in the

reasonable judgment of DOE be likely to close and fund by May 2010 or within nine months of such

commitments whichever is earlier Therefore even if we are able to obtain commitment for loan

guarantee from DOE by November 2009 or earlier DOE could still determine that we have not met
the Financing Milestone

The dates of the August 2010 November 2011 and May 2013 milestones were set about five

months later than our baseline deployment schedule for the American Centrifuge Plant in order to

provide us with some flexibility in the case of an unanticipated delay However our recent decision

to slow down project spending during 2009 in order to conserve cash is likely to delay this schedule

The amount of the delay is uncertain at this point and delay of more than five months would impact
our ability to meet these milestones

Until we have met the Financing Milestone DOE has full remedies under the 2002 DOE-USEC
Agreement if we fail to meet milestone that would materially impact our ability to begin

commercial operations of the American Centrifuge Plant on schedule These remedies include

terminating the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement revoking our access to DOEs U.S centrifuge

technology that we require for the success of the American Centrifuge project and requiring us to

transfer our rights in the American Centrifuge technology and facilities to DOE and requiring us to

reimburse DOE for certain costs associated with the American Centrifuge project DOE could also

recommend that we be removed as the sole U.S Executive Agent under the Megatons to Megawatts

program Any of these actions could have material adverse impact on our business and prospects

The 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement provides that if delaying event beyond our control and

without our fault or negligence occurs which would affect our ability to meet milestone we and

DOE will jointly meet to discuss in good faith possible adjustments to the milestones as appropriate

to accommodate the delaying event However in such circumstance we may not be able to reach an

agreement regarding possible adjustments or DOE may assert that delaying event was not beyond
our control or without our fault or negligence Uncertainty surrounding our ability to meet the

milestones under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement could also adversely affect our ability to obtain

financing for the American Centrifuge project

Significant increases in the cost of the electric power supplied to the Paducah GDP have

materially increased our overall production costs and may in the future increase our cost of sales

to level above the average prices we bill our customers

Electric power constitutes approximately 70-75% of the production cost at the Paducah GDP We
purchase most of our electric power for the Paducah GDP from the Tennessee Valley Authority

TVA under multi-year power contract with TVA that expires in May 2012 The base price of

power under our power contract with TVA increases moderately each year through 2012 However
our power costs under the contract are also subject to monthly adjustments to account for changes in

TVA fuel costs purchased power costs and related costs which means that our actual power costs

could be greater than we anticipate The impact of the fuel cost adjustment has been negative for

USEC imposing an average increase over base contract prices of about 15% in 2008 and 8% in

2007 The fuel cost adjustment under the TVA contract in 2009 and beyond could be greater than we

experienced in 2008 and could also be very volatile Factors that could affect TVAs fuel and

purchased-power costs and the amount of the fuel cost adjustment include coal prices purchased

power costs and hydroelectric power generation We also purchase additional power for delivery

during the summer months at market prices which is the time of the year when market prices tend to

be the highest
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Higher costs for power put significant pressure on our business and will continue to do so unless

and until we are able to replace our existing gaseous diffusion operations with more efficient

centrifuge technology Our competitors utilize or are in the process of transitioning to centrifuge

technology which requires significantly less electric power than gaseous diffusion to enrich uranium

Although we are currently signing new contracts with customers in which prices for future

deliveries are adjusted in part on the basis of changes in power cost index most of our sales

contracts do not include provisions that permit us to pass through increases in power prices to our

customers As result our profit margins and cash flows under these older sales contracts are

significantly reduced by higher power costs Additionally profit margins under new sales contracts

that we enter into may be similarly impacted to the extent the adjustments in the power cost index are

not sufficient to account for increases in our power costs Accordingly if our power costs rise and

mitigating steps are unavailable or insufficient production at the Paducah GDP could become

uneconomic which will adversely affect the long-term viability of our business Increases in our

power costs also reduce the value to us of underfeeding which puts further upward pressure on our

production costs

In accordance with the TVA power contract we provide financial assurance to support our

payment obligations to TVA including providing an irrevocable letter of credit and making weekly

prepayments based on TVA estimate of the price and our usage of power significant increase in

the price we pay for power could increase the amount of this financial assurance which could

adversely affect our liquidity and reduce capital resources otherwise available to fund the American

Centrifuge project

Beginning June 2010 through the expiration of the contract in May 2012 the quantity of power

available to us under the contract is reduced which means we likely will be seeking to purchase

additional power the price of which is uncertain In addition capacity and prices under the TVA

contract are only agreed upon through May 2012 and we have not yet contracted for power for

periods beyond that time If we want to purchase power to operate the Paducah GDP beyond May

2012 we may be unable to reach an acceptable agreement and we are at risk for additional power

cost increases in the future

Deliveries of LEU under the Russian Contract account for approximately one-half of our supply

mix and significant delay or stoppage of deliveries could affect our ability to meet customer

orders and could pose significant risk to our continued operations and profitability

significant delay in or stoppage or termination of deliveries of LEU from Russia under the

Russian Contract or failure of the LEU to meet the Russian Contracts quality specifications could

adversely affect our ability to make deliveries to our customers delay stoppage or termination

could occur due to number of factors including logistical or technical problems with shipments

commercial or political disputes between the parties or their governments or failure or inability by

either party to meet the terms of the Russian Contract

Because our annual LEU production capacity is less than our total delivery commitments to

customers an interruption of deliveries under the Russian Contract could depending on the length of

such an interruption threaten our ability to fulfill these delivery commitments with adverse effects on

our reputation costs results of operations cash flows and long-term viability Depending upon the

reasons for the interruption and subject to limitations of liability and force majeure terms under our

sales contracts we could be required to compensate customers for failure or delay in delivery

On February 13 2009 we entered into an amendment to the Russian Contract to revise the pricing

methodology for delivery in calendar years 2010 through 2013 Approval of both the U.S

government and the government of the Russian Federation is required for the amendment to become

effective We are also awaiting the approval of the government of the Russian Federation regarding
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the price for deliveries in calendar year 2009 under the Russian Contract Failure or delay in

obtaining the required government approvals could have an adverse impact on our ability to receive

LEU in timely manner in order to meet our delivery commitments

The appointment of substitute or additional executive agent pursuant to the U.S governments

compliance with the terms of the Executive Agent agreement under which USEC is designated the

U.S Executive Agent would require that all or part of the fixed quantity of LEU available each year

under the Russian Contract be provided to the substitute or additional executive agent This would

not only reduce our access to LEU under the Russian Contract but would also create significant

new competitor which could impair our ability to meet our existing delivery commitments while

reducing our ability to bid for new sales Reduced access to LEU under the Russian Contract could

also increase our costs and reduce our gross profit margins

We depend on single production facility in Paducah Kentucky for approximately one-half of
our LEU supply and significant or extended unscheduled interruptions in production could affect

our ability to meet customer orders and pose significant risk to or could significantly limit our

continued operations and profitability

Our annual imports of Russian LEU under the Russian Contract account for approximately one-

half of the total amount of LEU that we need to meet our delivery obligations to customers In

addition some customers do not permit us to deliver Russian LEU to them under their contracts with

us Accordingly our production at the Paducah GDP is needed to meet our annual delivery

commitments An interruption of production at the Paducah GDP would result in drawdown of our

inventories of LEU Depending on the length and severity of the production interruption we could

be unable to meet our annual delivery conmiitinents with adverse effects on our reputation costs

results of operations cash flows and long-term viability Depending upon the reasons for the

interruption and subject to limitations on our liability and force majeure terms under our sales

contracts we also could be required to compensate customers for failure or delay in delivery

Production interruptions at the Paducah GDP could be caused by variety of factors such as

equipment breakdowns

interruptions of electric power including those interruptions permitted under the TVA power
agreement or an inability to purchase electric power at an acceptable price

regulatory enforcement actions

labor disruptions

unavailability or inadequate supply of uranium feedstock

natural or other disasters including seismic activity in the vicinity of the Paducah GDP
which is located near the New Madrid fault line or

accidents or other incidents

The Paducah GDP is owned by the U.S government Our rights to the plant are defined under

lease agreement with DOE and the law that the lease agreement implements Under the 2002 DOE
USEC Agreement we could lose our right to extend the lease of the Paducah GDP and could be

required to waive our exclusive right to lease the facility if we fail on more than one occasion within

specified periods to meet certain production thresholds and fail to cure the deficiency In addition

DOE could assume responsibility for operation of the Paducah GDP if we cease production at the

Paducah GDP and fail to recommence production within time periods specified in the 2002 DOE
USEC Agreement Without lease to the Paducah GDP and absent access to other sources of LEU
we would be unable to meet our annual delivery commitments to customers once our available

inventories were exhausted
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Our ability to retain key executives and managers is critical to the success of our business

The success of our business depends on our key executives managers and other skilled personnel

some of whom were involved in the development of our American Centrifuge technology and many

of whom have security clearances We do not have employment agreements with our corporate

executives or American Centrifuge project managers or other key personnel nor do we have key man

life insurance policies for them If our executives managers or other key personnel resign retire or

are terminated or their service is otherwise interrupted we may not be able to replace them in

timely manner and we could experience significant declines in productivity and delays in the

deployment of our American Centrifuge project on which the viability of our business depends

Given the proprietary nature of our American Centrifuge technology we are also at risk if key

American Centrifuge employees resign to work for competitor

The rights of our creditors under the documents governing our indebtedness may limit our

operating and financial flexibility

Our revolving credit facility includes various operating and financial covenants that restrict our

ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to among other things incur or prepay other indebtedness

grant liens sell assets make investments and acquisitions consummate certain mergers and other

fundamental changes make certain capital expenditures and declare or pay dividends or other

distributions Complying with these covenants may make it more difficult for us to successfully

execute our business strategy For example these covenants could limit our use of the credit facility

for capital expenditures related to the American Centrifuge Plant The revolving credit agreement

also requires that we maintain minimum level of available borrowings and contains reserve

provisions that may reduce the available borrowings under the credit facility periodically

Our failure to comply with obligations under the revolving credit facility or other agreements such

as the indenture governing our outstanding convertible notes surety bonds and the 2002 DOE-USEC

Agreement or the occurrence of fundamental change as defined in the indenture governing our

outstanding convertible notes or the occurrence of material adverse effect as defined in our credit

facility could result in an event of default under the credit facility default if not cured or waived

could permit acceleration of our indebtedness We cannot be certain that we will be able to remedy

any default If our indebtedness is accelerated we cannot be certain that we will have funds available

to pay the accelerated indebtedness or that we will have the ability to refinance the accelerated

indebtedness on terms favorable to us or at all In addition our revolving credit facility matures in

August 2010 We cannot be certain that we will have funds available to repay the indebtedness

outstanding under the facility at that time and to replace any outstanding letters of credit under the

facility or that we will have the ability to refinance the revolving credit facility on terms favorable to

us or at all

The current global financial crisis may adversely affect our liquidity business and prospects

The current global financial crisis which has included among other things significant
reductions

in available capital and liquidity from banks and other providers of credit substantial reductions

and/or fluctuations in equity values worldwide and concerns that the worldwide economy may enter

into prolonged recessionary period may adversely affect our liquidity business and prospects

The global financial crisis could result in an overall decrease in demand for electricity and

consequently decreased demand and increased price competition for LEU This could adversely

affect our revenues and results of operations The global financial crisis could also affect our

customers or potential
customers access to capital which could result in delay or cancellation of

plans to build additional reactors and otherwise affect the growth and outlook of the nuclear

industry We could also face increased credit risk with respect to customer collections
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The current global financial crisis could affect our ability to draw on our revolving credit facility

and therefore adversely affect our liquidity Our access to funds under our revolving credit facility is

dependent on the ability of the banks that are parties to the facility to meet their funding

commitments Those banks may not be able to meet their funding commitments to us if they

experience shortages of capital and liquidity or if they experience excessive volumes of borrowing

requests from borrowers within short period of time The current global financial market crisis

could also affect our ability to refinance our revolving credit facility when it matures in August 2010
and therefore adversely affect our liquidity

The current global financial market crisis could also result in additional reductions in the fair

value of our pension and postretirement benefit plan assets and higher than expected net benefit costs

and additional future funding obligations as described in note 10 to our consolidated financial

statements which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

Changes in the price for WUor uranium could affect our gross profit margins and ability to

service our indebtedness and finance the American Centrifuge project

Changes in the price for SWU and uranium are influenced by numerous factors such as

LEU and uranium production levels and costs in the industry

supply and demand shifts

actions taken by governments to regulate protect or promote trade in nuclear material

including the continuation of
existing restrictions on unfairly priced imports

actions taken by governments to narrow reduce or eliminate limits on trade in nuclear

material including the decrease or elimination of existing restrictions on unfairly

priced imports

actions of competitors

exchange rates

availability and cost of alternate fuels and

inflation

The long-term nature of our contracts with customers delays the impact of any material change in

market prices and may prolong any adverse impact of low market prices on our gross profit margins
For example even as prices increase and we secure new higher-priced contracts we are contractually

obligated to deliver LEU and uranium at lower prices under contracts signed prior to the increase

decrease in the price for SWU could also affect our future ability to service our indebtedness and
finance the American Centrifuge project

Additionally an increase in the price for SWU could result in an increase in the price that we pay
for the SWIT component of Russian LEU Currently the price we are charged for the SWU
component of Russian LEU under the Russian Contract is determined by formula that employs an
index of international and U.S price points which in turn reflects market prices Beginning in 2010
subject to receipt of necessary governmental approvals prices will be determined under formula

that combines different mix of price points and other pricing elements Under either formula

multi-year retrospective view of market-based price points in the formula is used to minimize the

disruptive effect of short-term swings in these price points However increases in market prices will

increase the prices Russia charges us and can substantially increase our costs of sales and inventories

This increase if not offset by increases in our sales prices would adversely affect our cash flows and
results of operations
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The release of excess government stockpiles of enriched uranium into the market could depress

market prices and reduce demand forLEU from our company

Foreign governments have stockpiles of LEU that they could sell in the market In addition LEU

may be produced by downblending stockpiles of highly enriched uranium owned by the U.S and

foreign governments The release of these stockpiles
into the market can depress prices and reduce

demand for LEU from us which could adversely affect our revenues cash flows and results of

operations

The long-term nature of our customer contracts could adversely affect our results of operations in

current and future years

As is typically the case in our industry we sell nearly all of our LEU under long-term contracts

The prices that we charge under many of our existing contracts particularly those reflecting terms

agreed to prior to 2006 only increase based on an agreed upon inflation index Therefore prices

under older contracts will not increase with changes that result in increases in our actual costs such

as increased power costs or increases in the prices we pay under the Russian Contract and do not

permit us to take advantage of market increases in the price of SWU These limitations combined

with our cost structure and our sensitivity to increased power costs due to the power-intensive

gaseous diffusion technology that we currently depend on could reduce our ability to cover our cost

of sales with revenues earned under our customer contracts and could materially and adversely

impact our gross profit margins and cash flows in current and future periods

In addition our older contracts give customers the flexibility to determine the amounts of natural

uranium that they deliver to us which can result in our receiving less uranium from customers than

we transfer from our inventory to the Russian Federation under the Russian Contract Over time to

the extent our inventory including uranium generated through underfeeding is insufficient to absorb

the difference we could be required to purchase uranium to continue to meet our obligations to the

Russian Federation Depending on the market price
of uranium this could have an adverse impact on

our gross profit margins cash flows results of operations and liquidity

We face significant competition from three major producers who may be less cost sensitive or may

be favored due to national loyalties and from emerging competitors in the domestic market

We compete with three major producers of LEU all of which are wholly or substantially owned

by governments Areva France Rosatom/TENEX Russia and Urenco Germany Netherlands and

the United Kingdom Currently these competitors utilize or are in the process of transitioning to

more efficient and cost-effective technology to enrich uranium than we use at the Paducah GDP

In addition Louisiana Energy Services group controlled by Urenco is constructing uranium

enrichment plant in New Mexico and Areva has proposed building centrifuge uranium enrichment

plant in Idaho and has applied for loan guarantee from DOE for its plant We also face potential

competition from GE Hitachi which has begun phased development process with the goal of

constructing commercial enrichment plant in North Carolina using an Australian laser enrichment

technology known as SILEX All of these represent competition in our efforts to sell output from the

ACP

Our competitors may have greater financial resources than we do including access to below-

market financing terms Our foreign competitors enjoy support from their government owners which

may enable them to be less cost- or profit-sensitive
than we are In addition decisions by our foreign

competitors may be influenced by political and economic policy considerations rather than

commercial considerations For example our foreign competitors may elect to increase their

production or exports of LEU even when not justified by market conditions thereby depressing

prices and reducing demand for our LEU which could adversely affect our revenues cash flows and
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results of operations Similarly the elimination or weakening of existing restrictions on imports from

our foreign competitors could adversely affect our revenues cash flows and results of operations

Imports of LEU and other uranium products produced in the Russian Federation are subject to

quotas through 2020 imposed under legislation enacted into law in September 2008 and under the

Russian Suspension Agreement Although we believe these limitations will preserve stable U.S

market this belief may prove to be wrong and the quantity of Russian uranium products permitted

under the limitations may depress market prices and result in reduced sales by us and reduced

revenues

Our dependence on our largest customers could adversely affect us

Our 10 largest utility customers represented 57% of our total revenue in 2008 and our three

largest utility customers represented 30% of our total revenue in 2008 To the extent our existing

contracts with these customers include prices that are greater than the prices at which we could sell to

others reduction in purchases from these customers whether due to their decision to increase

purchases from our competitors or for other reasons including disruption in their operations that

reduces their need for LEU from us could adversely affect our business and results of operations

Conversely to the extent that our contracts with these customers include prices that are lower than

the prices at which we could sell to others decision by these customers to exercise options under

these contracts to purchase more from us also could adversely affect our business and results of

operations

We are seeking to improve the pricing under new long-term contracts with our customers as

existing contracts come up for renewal However because price is significant factor in customers

choice of supplier of LEU when contracts come up for renewal customers may reduce their

purchases from us if we attempt to increase our prices in order to offset increases in our costs

resulting in the loss of new sales contracts Moreover once lost customers may be difficult to regain

because they typically purchase LEU under long-term contracts Therefore given the need to

maintain existing customer relationships particularly with our largest customers our ability to raise

prices in order to respond to increases in costs or other developments may be limited In addition

because we have fixed commitment to order LEU derived from at least 30 metric tons of highly

enriched uranium each year under the Russian Contract and to purchase the approximately

5.5 million SWU deemed to be contained in such material any reduction in purchases from us by our

customers below the level required for us to resell both our own production and the Russian material

could adversely affect our revenues cash flows and results of operations

Our ability to compete in certain foreign markets may be limitedforpolitical legal and economic

reasons

Agreements for cooperation between the U.S government and various foreign governments or

governmental agencies control the export of nuclear materials from the United States If any of the

agreements governing exports to countries in which our customers are located were to lapse

terminate or be amended it is possible we would not be able to make sales or deliver LEU to

customers in those countries This could adversely affect our results of operations

Purchases of LEU by customers in the European Union are subject to policy of the Euratom

Supply Agency that seeks to limit foreign enriched uranium to no more than 20% of European Union

consumption per year Further we are precluded from selling LEU in the Russian Federation by the

absence of an agreement for cooperation that permits exports to Russia
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Our future prospects are lied directly to the nuclear energy industry worldwide

Potential events that could affect either nuclear reactors under contract with us or the nuclear

industry as whole include

accidents terrorism or other incidents at nuclear facilities or involving shipments

of nuclear materials

regulatory actions or changes in regulations by nuclear regulatory bodies or

decisions by agencies courts or other bodies that limit our ability to seek relief

under applicable trade laws to offset unfair competition or pricing by foreign

competitors

disruptions in other areas of the nuclear fuel cycle such as uranium supplies or

conversion

civic opposition to or changes in government policies regarding nuclear

operations

business decisions concerning reactors or reactor operations

the need for generating capacity or

consolidation within the electric power industry

These events could adversely affect us to the extent they result in reduction or elimination of

customers contractual requirements to purchase from us the suspension or reduction of nuclear

reactor operations the reduction of supplies of raw materials lower demand burdensome regulation

disruptions of shipments or production increased competition from third parties increased

operational costs or difficulties or increased liability for actual or threatened property damage or

personal injury

Changes to or termination of any of our agreements with the U.S government or deterioration

in our relationship with the U.S government could adversely affect our results of operations

We or our subsidiaries are party to number of agreements and arrangements with the

U.S government that are important to our business including

leases for the gaseous diffusion plants and American Centrifuge facilities

the Executive Agent agreement under which we are designated the U.S Executive

Agent and purchase the SWU component of LEU under the Russian Contract

the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement and other agreements that address issues relating

to the domestic uranium enrichment industry and the American Centrifuge

technology

electric power purchase agreements with the Tennessee Valley Authority

contract work for DOE and DOE contractors at the Portsmouth and Paducah

GDPs including maintenance of the Portsmouth GDP in preparation for DOE

decontamination and decommissioning program and

NAC consulting and transportation activities

Termination or expiration of one or more of these agreements without replacement with an

equivalent agreement or arrangement that accomplishes the same objectives as the terminated or

expired agreements could adversely affect our results of operations In addition deterioration in

our relationship with the U.S agencies that are parties to these agreements could impair or impede

our ability to successfully implement these agreements which could adversely affect our results of

operations
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Our existing U.S government contracts are subject to continued appropriations by Congress and

may be terminated iffuture funding is not made available

Approximately 10% of our revenue is from U.S government contracts All contract work for

DOE including Portsmouth GDP maintenance and certain NAC consulting and transportation

activities is subject to the availability of DOE funding and congressional appropriations If funds

were not available we could be required to terminate these operations and incur related termination

costs In addition the criteria for awarding contracts to us may change such that we would not be

eligible to compete for such contracts which could adversely affect our results of operations

Revenue from U.S government contract work is based on cost accounting standards and

allowable costs that are subject to audit by the Defense Contract Audit Agency Allowable costs

include direct costs as well as allocations of indirect plant and corporate overhead costs Audit

adjustments could reduce the amounts we are allowed to bill for DOE contract work or require us to

refund to DOE portion of amounts already billed

Our operations are highly regulated by the NRC and DOE

Our operations including the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs and NAC are regulated by the

NRC In addition the American Centrifuge Demonstration Facility and the construction and

operation of the American Centrifuge Plant are licensed by the NRC which regulates our activities at

those facilities

Our gaseous diffusion
plants are required to be recertified every five years and the term of the

current certification expires on December 31 2013 The NRC could refuse to renew either or both of

the certificates if it determines that we are foreign owned controlled or dominated the

issuance of renewed certificate would be inimical to the maintenance of reliable and economic

domestic source of enrichment the issuance of renewed certificate would be adverse to U.S
defense or security objectives or the issuance of renewed certificate is otherwise not consistent

with applicable laws or regulations in effect at the time of renewal The same requirements apply to

NRCs issuance of the 30-year license for the American Centrifuge Plant If the certificate for the

Paducah GDP were not renewed we could no longer produce LEU at the Paducah GDP which
would threaten our ability to make deliveries to customers and meet the minimum production

requirements under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement jeopardize our cash flows and subject us to

various penalties under our customer contracts and the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement

The NRC has the authority to issue notices of violation for violations of the Atomic Energy Act of

1954 NRC regulations and conditions of licenses certificates of compliance or orders The NRC
has the authority to impose civil penalties or additional requirements and to order cessation of

operations for violations of its regulations Penalties under NRC regulations could include substantial

fines imposition of additional requirements or withdrawal or suspension of licenses or certificates

Any penalties imposed on us could adversely affect our results of operations The NRC also has the

authority to issue new regulatory requirements or to change existing requirements Changes to the

regulatory requirements could also adversely affect our results of operations

Our American Centrifuge development and manufacturing facilities in Oak Ridge and certain of

our operations at our other facilities are subject to regulation by DOE DOE has the authority to

impose civil penalties and additional requirements which could adversely affect our results of

operations
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Our operations require that we maintain security clearances that are overseen by the NRC and

DOE in accordance with the National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual These security

clearances could be suspended or revoked if we are determined by the NRC to be subject to foreign

ownership control or influence In addition statute and NRC regulations prohibit the NRC from

issuing any license or certificate to us if it determines that we are owned controlled or dominated by

an alien foreign corporation ora foreign government

Our certificate of incorporation gives us certain rights with respect to equity securities held

beneficially or of record by foreign persons If levels offoreign ownership set forth in our

certificate of incorporation are exceeded we have the right among other things to redeem or

exchange common stock held by foreign persons and in certain cases the applicable redemption

price or exchange value may be equal to the lower offair market value or foreign persons

purchase price

Our certificate of incorporation gives us certain rights with respect to shares of our common stock

held beneficially or of record by foreign persons Foreign persons are defined in our certificate of

incorporation to include among others an individual who is not U.S citizen an entity that is

organized under the laws of non-U.S jurisdiction and an entity that is controlled by individuals

who are not U.S citizens or by entities that are organized under the laws of non-U.S jurisdictions

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events is foreign ownership review event

and triggers the board of directors right to take various actions under our certificate of incorporation

the beneficial ownership by foreign person of 5% or more of the issued and outstanding

shares of any class of our equity securities 5% or more in voting power of the issued and

outstanding shares of all classes of our equity securities or less than 5% of the issued and

outstanding shares of any class of our equity securities or less than 5% of the voting power of the

issued and outstanding shares of all classes of our equity securities if such foreign person is entitled

to control the appointment and tenure of any of our management positions or any director the

beneficial ownership of any shares of any class of our equity securities by or for the account of

foreign uranium enrichment provider or foreign competitor referred to as contravening persons

or any ownership of or exercise of rights with respect to shares of any class of our equity

securities or other exercise or attempt to exercise control of us that is inconsistent with or in

violation of any regulatory restrictions or that could jeopardize the continued operations of our

facilities an adverse regulatory occurrence These rights
include requesting information from

holders or proposed holders of our securities refusing to permit the transfer of securities by such

holders suspending or limiting voting rights
of such holders redeeming or exchanging shares of our

stock owned by such holders on terms set forth in our certificate of incorporation and taking other

actions that we deem necessary or appropriate to ensure compliance with the foreign ownership

restrictions
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The terms and conditions of our rights with respect to our redemption or exchange right in respect
of shares held by foreign persons or contravening persons are as follows

Redemption price or exchange value Generally the redemption price or exchange
value for any shares of our common stock redeemed or exchanged would be their fair

market value However if we redeem or exchange shares held by foreign persons or

contravening persons and our Board in good faith determines that such person knew or

should have known that its ownership would constitute foreign ownership review

event other than shares for which our Board determined at the time of the persons

purchase that the ownership of or exercise of rights with respect to such shares did

not at such time constitute an adverse regulatory occurrence the redemption price or

exchange value is required to be the lesser of fair market value and the persons

purchase price for the shares redeemed or exchanged

Form of payment Cash securities or combination valued by our Board in good
faith

Notice At least 30 days notice of redemption is required however if we have

deposited the cash or securities for the redemption or exchange in trust for the benefit

of the relevant holders we may redeem shares held by such holders on the same day
that we provide notice

Accordingly there are situations in which foreign stockholder or contravening person could lose

the right to vote its shares or in which we may redeem or exchange shares held by foreign person or

contravening person and in which such redemption or exchange could be at the lesser of fair market
value and the persons purchase price for the shares redeemed or exchanged which could result in

significant loss for that person

Our operations are subject to numerous federal state and local environmental protection laws and
regulations

We incur substantial costs for compliance with environmental laws and regulations including the

handling treatment and disposal of hazardous low-level radioactive and mixed wastes generated as

result of our operations Unanticipated events or regulatory developments however could cause the

amount and timing of future environmental expenditures to vary substantially from those expected

Pursuant to numerous federal state and local environmental laws and regulations we are required

to hold multiple permits Some permits require periodic renewal or review of their conditions and we
cannot predict whether we will be able to renew such permits or whether material changes in permit

conditions will be imposed Changes in permits could increase costs of producing LEU and reduce

our profitability An inability to secure or renew permits could prevent us from producing LEU
needed to meet our delivery obligations to customers which would threaten our ability to make
deliveries to customers and meet the minimum production requirements under the 2002 DOE-USEC
Agreement adversely affect our reputation costs cash flows results of operations and long-term

viability and subject us to various penalties under our customer contracts and the 2002 DOE-USEC
Agreement

Our operations involve the use transportation and disposal of toxic hazardous and/or radioactive

materials and could result in liability without regard to ourfault or negligence

Our plant operations involve the use of toxic hazardous and radioactive materials release of

these materials could pose health risk to humans or animals If an accident were to occur its

severity could be significantly affected by the volume of the release and the speed of corrective

action taken by plant emergency response personnel as well as other factors beyond our control

such as weather and wind conditions Actions taken in response to an actual or suspected release of

these materials including precautionary evacuation could result in significant costs for which we
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could be legally responsible In addition to health risks release of these materials may cause

damage to or the loss of property and may adversely affect property values

We lease facilities from DOE for the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs the American Centrifuge

Plant and centrifuge test facilities in Piketon Ohio and Oak Ridge Tennessee Pursuant to the Price-

Anderson Act DOE has indemnified us against claims for public liability as defined in the Atomic

Energy Act of 1954 as amended arising out of or in connection with activities under those leases

resulting from nuclear incident or precautionary evacuation If an incident or evacuation is not

covered under the DOE indemnification we could be financially liable for damages arising from

such incident or evacuation which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and

financial condition In connection with international transportation of LEU it is possible for claim

related to nuclear incident occurring outside the United States to be asserted that would not fall

within the DOE indemnification under the Price-Anderson Act

While DOE has provided indemnification pursuant to the Price-Anderson Act there could be

delays in obtaining reimbursement for costs from DOE and DOE may determine that not all costs are

reimbursable under the indemnification

We do not maintain any nuclear liability insurance for our operations at the gaseous diffusion

plants Further American Nuclear Insurers the only provider of nuclear liability insurance has

declined to provide nuclear liability insurance to the American Centrifuge Plant due to past and

present DOE operations on the site In addition the Price Anderson Act indemnification does not

cover loss or damage to property located on our facilities due to nuclear incident

NACsbusiness involves providing products and services for the storage and transportation of

toxic hazardous and radioactive materials which if released or mishandled could cause personal

injury and property damage including environmental contamination or loss and could adversely

affect property values NAC obtains nuclear liability insurance to protect against third-party liability

resulting from nuclear incident but this insurance contains exclusions and limits and this insurance

would not cover all potential liabilities

In our contracts we seek to protect ourselves from liability but there is no assurance that such

contractual limitations on liability will be effective in all cases or that in the case of NACs

contracts NACs insurance will cover all the liabilities NAC has assumed under those contracts The

costs of defending against claim arising out of nuclear incident or precautionary evacuation and

any damages awarded as result of such claim could adversely affect our results of operations and

financial condition

The dollar amount of our sales backlog as stated at any given time is not necessarily indicative of

ourfuture sales revenues

Backlog is the aggregate dollar amount of SWU and uranium that we expect to sell in future

periods under contracts with customers As of December 31 2008 our sales backlog was an

estimated $6.9 billion including $1.7 billion expected to be delivered during 2009 There can be no

assurance that the revenues projected in our backlog will be realized or if realized will result in

profits Backlog is partially based on customers estimates of their fuel requirements and other

assumptions including our estimates of selling prices and inflation rates Such estimates are subject

to change For example some of our contracts include pricing elements based on SWU or uranium

market prices prevailing at the time of delivery Pricing elements may include escalation based on

general inflation index or power price index We utilize external composite forecasts of future

market prices and inflation rates in estimating prices that we will be entitled to charge in the future

These forecasts may not be accurate and therefore our estimates of future prices could be overstated

Any inaccuracy in our estimates of future prices would add to the imprecision of our backlog

estimate
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For variety of reasons the amounts of SWU and uranium that we will sell in the future under our

existing contracts or the timing of customer purchases under those contracts may differ from our

estimates Customers may not purchase as much as we predicted nor at the times we anticipated as

result of operational difficulties changes in fuel requirements or other reasons Reduced purchases

would reduce the revenues we actually receive from contracts included in the backlog For example
our revenue could be reduced by actions of the NRC or nuclear regulators in foreign countries

issuing orders to delay suspend or shut down nuclear reactor operations within their jurisdictions or

by an interruption of our production of LEU or deliveries of Russian LEU to us that we need to meet

our delivery commitments to customers Increases in our costs of production or other factors could

cause sales included in our backlog to be at prices that are below our cost of sales which could

adversely affect our results of operations and customers may purchase more under lower priced

contracts than we predicted

We use estimates in accounting for the future disposition of depleted uranium and changes in

these estimates or in actual costs could affect our future financial results and liquidity

We currently store depleted uranium at the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs and accrue estimated

costs for its future disposition The long-term liability for depleted uranium is dependent upon the

volume of depleted uranium generated and estimated processing transportation and disposal costs

which involves many assumptions Our estimated cost and accrued liability are subject to change as

new information becomes available and an increase in the estimate would have an adverse effect on
our results of operations

We anticipate that we will send most or all of our depleted uranium to DOE for disposition unless

more economic disposal option is available DOE is constructing facilities at the Paducah and

Portsmouth GDPs to process large quantities of depleted uranium owned by DOE Under federal law
DOE would also process our depleted uranium if we provided it to DOE If we were to dispose of our
uranium in this way we would be required to reimburse DOE for the related costs of disposal

including our pro rata share of capital costs

The NRC requires that we guarantee the disposition of our depleted uranium with financial

assurance Our estimate of the unit disposition cost for accrual purposes is approximately 35% less

than the unit disposition cost for financial assurance purposes which includes contingencies and

other potential costs as required by the NRC Any increase in our estimated unit cost of disposal will

require us to provide additional financial assurance and could adversely affect our liquidity The
amount of future depleted uranium disposal costs could also vary substantially from amounts accrued

and an increase in our actual cost of disposal could have material adverse impact on our results of

operations in future years

Financial assurance is also provided for the ultimate decontamination and decommissioning of the

American Centrifuge facilities to meet NRC and DOE requirements The amount of these

decontamination and decommissioning costs could vary from the amounts accrued

Deferral of revenue recognition could result in volatility in our quarterly and annual results

We do not recognize revenue for uranium or SWU sales in our LEU segment until LEU is

physically delivered Consequently in sales transactions where we have received payment and title

has transferred to the customer but delivery has not occurred because the terms of the agreement

require us to hold uranium to which the customer has title or because customer encounters delays in

taking delivery of LEU at our facilities recognition of revenue is deferred until LEU is physically

delivered This deferral can potentially be over an indefinite period and is outside our control and can
result in

volatility in our quarterly and annual results If in given period significant amount of

revenue is deferred or significant amount of previously deferred revenue is recognized earnings in

that period will be affected which could result in volatility in our quarterly and annual results
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Additional information on our deferred revenue is provided in note to our consolidated financial

statements

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter and even year to year

which could have an adverse effect on our cash flows

Under customer contracts with us for the supply of LEU to meet requirements for specific time

periods or specific reactor refuelings our customers order LEU from us based on their refueling

schedules for nuclear reactors which generally range from 12 to 18 months or in some cases up to

24 months Customer payments for the SWU component of such LEU typically average

approximately $15 million per order As result relatively small change in the timing of customer

orders due to change in customers refueling schedule may cause operating results to be

substantially above or below expectations which could have an adverse effect on our cash flows

The levels of returns on pension and postretirement benefit plan assets changes in interest rates

and other factors affecting the amounts we have to contribute to fundfuture pension and

postretirement benefit liabilities could adversely affect our earnings and cash flows in future

periods

Our earnings may be positively or negatively impacted by the amount of expense we record for

our employee benefit plans This is particularly true with expense for our pension and postretirement

benefit plans Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States GAAP require that

we calculate expense for the plans using actuarial valuations These valuations are based on

assumptions that we make relating to financial market and other economic conditions Changes in

key economic indicators can result in changes in the assumptions we use The key year-end

assumptions used to estimate pension and postretirement benefit expenses for the following year are

the discount rate the expected rate of return on plan assets healthcare cost trend rates and the rate of

increase in future compensation levels The rate of return on our pension assets and changes in

interest rates affect funding requirements for our defined benefit pension plans The amount we

contribute to our pension plans is determined by IRS regulations the Pension Protection Act of 2006

and government cost accounting standards For additional information and discussion regarding

how our financial statements are affected by pension and postretirement benefit plan accounting

policies see Critical Accounting Estimates in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations and note 10 to our consolidated financial statements

Anti-takeover provisions in Delaware law and in our charter bylaws and shareholder rights plan

and in the indenture governing our convertible notes could delay or prevent an acquisition of

USEC

We are Delaware corporation and the anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law impose various

impediments to the ability of third-party to acquire control of our company even if change of

control would be beneficial to our existing shareholders Our certificate of incorporation or charter

establishes restrictions on foreign ownership of our securities Other provisions of our charter and

bylaws may make it more difficult for third-party to acquire control of us without the consent of

our board of directors We also have adopted shareholder rights plan which could increase the cost

of or prevent takeover attempt These various restrictions could deprive shareholders of the

opportunity to realize takeover premiums for their shares Additionally if fundamental change

occurs prior to the maturity date of our convertible notes holders of the notes will have the right at

their option to require us to repurchase all or portion of their notes and if make-whole

fundamental change occurs prior to the maturity date of our convertible notes we will in some cases

increase the conversion rate for holder that elects to convert its notes in connection with such make

whole fundamental change In addition the indenture governing our convertible notes prohibits us

from engaging in certain mergers or acquisitions unless among other things the surviving entity

assumes our obligations under the notes These and other provisions could prevent or deter third
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party from acquiring us even where the acquisition could be beneficial to you

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Legal Proceedings

DOE Contract Services Matter

The U.S Department of Justice DOJ asserted in letter to us dated July 10 2006 that DOE
may have sustained damages in an amount that exceeds $6.9 million under our contract with DOE for

the supply of cold standby services at the Portsmouth GDP DOJ indicated that it was assessing

possible violations of the Civil False Claims Act FCA which allows for treble damages and civil

penalties and related claims in connection with invoices submitted under that contract We
responded to DOJ letter in September 2006 stating that the government does not have legitimate

basis for asserting any FCA or related claims under the cold standby contract and have been

cooperating with DOJ and the DOE Office of Investigations with respect to their inquiries into this

matter In supplemental presentation by DOJ and DOE on October 18 2007 DOJ identified revised

assertions of alleged overcharges of at least $14.6 million on the cold standby and two other cost-

type contracts again potentially in violation of the FCA We have responded to these assertions and

have provided several follow-up responses to DOJ and DOE in response to their requests for

additional data and analysis We believe that the DOJ and DOE analyses are significantly flawed and

no loss has been accrued We intend to defend vigorously any FCA or related claim that might be

asserted against us As part of our continuing discussions with DOJ we and DOJ have agreed several

times to extend the statute of limitations for this matter most recently to April 10 2009

Environmental Matter

Under cleanup agreement with the Environmental Protection Agency EPA we removed

certain material from site in South Carolina previously operated by Starmet CMI one of our former

contractors that was attributable to quantities of depleted uranium we had sent there under 1998

contract In June 2007 we were contacted by the EPA concerning costs incurred by the EPA for

additional cleanup at the Starmet site In January 2009 pursuant to the terms of September 2008

settlement agreement we paid the EPA $1.0 million for the share of additional cleanup costs

allocated to us in resolution of this matter At this time the EPA has completed its actions at the site

and USEC is not aware of any further claims associated with the site

Other

We are subject to various other legal proceedings and claims either asserted or unasserted which

arise in the ordinary course of business While the outcome of these claims cannot be predicted with

certainty we do not believe that the outcome of any of these legal matters will have material

adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

None
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Executive Officers of the Company

Executive officers are elected by and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors Executive

officers at February 26 2009 follow

Name Position

John Welch 58 President and Chief Executive Officer

John Barpoulis 44 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Peter Saba 47 Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Philip Sewell 62 Senior Vice President American Centrifuge and Russian HEU

Robert Van Namen 47 Senior Vice President Uranium Enrichment

Lance Wright 61 Senior Vice President Human Resources and Administration

John M.A Donelson 44 Vice President Marketing and Sales

Stephen Greene 51 Vice President Finance and Treasurer

Tracy Mey 48 Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

John Neumann 61 Vice President Government Relations

Russell Starkey Jr 66 Vice President American Centrifuge

Paul Sullivan 56 Vice President Operations and Chief Engineer

John Welch has been President and Chief Executive Officer since September 2005 Prior to

joining USEC Mr Welch served as consultant to several government and corporate entities Mr
Welch was Executive Vice President and Group Executive Marine Systems for General Dynamics

Corporation from January 2000 to March 2003 and President of General Dynamics Electric Boat

from 1995 to 2000

John Barpoulis has been Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since August 2006

Mr Barpoulis joined USEC as Vice President and Treasurer in March 2005 and served as Treasurer

until February 2007 Prior to joining USEC Mr Barpoulis was Vice President and Treasurer of

National Energy Gas Transmission Inc formerly subsidiary of PGE Corporation and certain

of its subsidiaries from 2003 to March 2005 and was Vice President and Assistant Treasurer from

2000 to 2003

Peter Saba has been Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary since February 2009

and was Vice President General Counsel and Secretary from April 2008 to February 2009 Prior to

joining USEC Mr Saba was of counsel in the global projects group at Paul Hastings Janofsky

Walker LLP from July 2005 to April 2008 Mr Saba also served at the Export-Import Bank of the

United States as chief operating officer from March 2003 to June 2005 and as senior vice president

for legal affairs and general counsel from June 2001 to June 2005 Prior to that he was counsel in

the energy and project finance group at Skadden Arps Slate Meagher Horn from March 1993 to

June 2001 and served in various capacities at the U.S Department of Energy from March 1989 to

January 1993 including as principal deputy assistant secretary in the Office of Domestic and

International Energy Policy
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Philip Sewell has been Senior Vice President American Centrifuge and Russian LIEU since

September 2005 Mr Sewell was Senior Vice President
directing international activities and

corporate development programs from August 2000 to September 2005 and assumed
responsibility

for the American Centrifuge program in April 2005 Prior to that Mr Sewell was Vice President

Corporate Development and International Trade from April 1998 to April 2000 and was Vice
President Corporate Development from 1993 to April 1998

Robert Van Namen has been Senior Vice President Uranium Enrichment since September 2005
Mr Van Namen was Senior Vice President

directing marketing and sales activities from January
2004 to September 2005 and was Vice President Marketing and Sales from January 1999 to January
2004 Prior to joining USEC Mr Van Namen was Manager of Nuclear Fuel for Duke Power

Company

Lance Wright has been Senior Vice President Human Resources and Administration since

February 2005 and was Vice President Human Resources and Administration from August 2003 to

February 2005 Prior to joining USEC Mr Wright was Vice President and Principal of Boyden
Global Executive Search from 2002 to 2003 and previously held director and manager positions in

Human Resources at ExxonMobil Corporation from 1986 to 2002

John M.A Donelson has been Vice President Marketing and Sales since December 2005 and was
previously Director North American and European Sales from June 2004 to December 2005
Director North American Sales from August 2000 to June 2004 and Senior Sales Executive from
July 1999 to August 2000

Stephen Greene has been Vice President Finance and Treasurer since February 2007 Prior to

joining USEC Mr Greene was Vice President and Executive Director of Pace Global Energy
Services an energy consulting firm from January 2006 to January 2007 Previously Mr Greene was

Vice President of Progress Energy an electric utility holding company and prior to that Vice
President of National Energy Gas Transmission Inc formerly subsidiary of PGE
Corporation

Tracy Mey has been Controller and Chief Accounting Officer since January 2007 and had been
Controller since June 2005 Prior to joining USECMr Mey was Controller and Chief Accounting
Officer of Power Services Company national energy company and former subsidiary of PGE
Corporation from June 2004 to May 2005 and previously was Corporate Controller of National

Energy Gas Transmission Inc formerly subsidiary of PGE Corporation from 1994 to 2004

John Neumann has been Vice President Government Relations since April 2004 Prior to

joining USECMr Neumann was Vice President Government Relations for the Edison Electric

Institute from 1995 to 2004

Russell Starkey Jr was named Vice President American Centrifuge in July 2008 and was
Vice President Operations from February 2005 to July 2008 General Manager of the Paducah plant
from October 2001 to February 2005 Training Manager from April 1998 to October 2001 and Senior
Staff Consultant from October 1997 to April 1998 Prior to joining USEC over 25 year period Mr
Starkey held variety of senior management positions including General Manager Robinson
Nuclear Plant Vice President Brunswick Nuclear Plant and Vice President Nuclear Services at
Carolina Power Light Co now subsidiary of Progress Energy

Paul Sullivan was named Vice President Operations and Chief Engineer in February 2009 Mr
Sullivan recently retired with the rank of Vice Admiral after 34 years of service in the U.S Navy He
most recently served as the Commander of the Naval Sea Systems Command He previously served

as Chief Engineer of the Naval Sea Systems Command and Program Manager of the Virginia and
Seawoif submarine classes
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

USECs common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol USU High

and low sales prices per share folkow

2008 2007

gk Lit

FirstQuarterendedMarch3l $9.31 $3.15 $16.62 $12.13

Second Quarter ended June 30 7.09 3.76 25.65 16.14

Third Quarter ended September30 6.36 4.29 22.31 9.56

Fourth Quarter ended December 31 5.34 2.58 10.48 7.81

No cash dividends were paid in 2007 or 2008 and we have no intention to pay cash dividends in

the foreseeable future

There are 250 million shares of common stock and 25 million shares of preferred stock

authorized At January 31 2009 there were 111349000 shares of common stock issued and

outstanding and approximately 53000 beneficial holders of common stock No preferred shares

have been issued

The following table gives information about the Companys common stock that may be issued

under the USEC Inc 1999 Equity Incentive Plan and Employee Stock Purchase Plan as of December

31 2008

Number of Number of

securities to be Weighted-average securities

issued upon exercise exercise price of remaining available

of outstanding outstanding for future issuance

options warrants options warrants under equity

Plan cateuorv and rights and rights comoensation plans

Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders 2120000 $8.52 5404000

Equity compensation plans not approved by security

holders

Total 2.120.000 5.404.000

Includes 5193000 shares with respect to which awards are available for issuance under the USEC Inc 1999

Equity Incentive Plan net of awards which terminate or are cancelled without being exercised or that are

settled for cash and 211000 shares available for issuance under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Board of Directors approved shareholder rights plan in 2001 Each shareholder of record on

May 2001 received preferred stock purchase rights that trade together with USEC common stock

and are not exercisable In the absence of further action by the Board the rights generally would

become exercisable and allow the holder to acquire USEC common stock at discounted price if

person or group acquires 15% or more of the outstanding shares of USEC common stock or

commences tender or exchange offer to acquire 15% or more of the common stock of USEC

However any rights held by the acquirer would not be exercisable The Board of Directors may

direct USEC to redeem the rights at $.01 per right at any time before the tenth day following the

acquisition of 15% or more of USEC common stock

In 2008 we did not make any unregistered sales of equity securities
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Matters Affecting our Foreign Stockholders

In order to aid in our compliance with certain regulatory requirements affecting us which are

described in Business Nuclear Regulatory Commission Regulation our certificate of

incorporation gives us certain rights with respect to shares of our common stock held beneficially or

of record by foreign persons Foreign persons are defined in our certificate of incorporation to

include among others an individual who is not U.S citizen an entity that is organized under the

laws of non-U.S jurisdiction and an entity that is controlled by individuals who are not

U.S citizens or by entities that are organized under the laws of non-U.S jurisdictions

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events is foreign ownership review event
and triggers the board of directors right to take various actions under our certificate of incorporation

the beneficial ownership by foreign person of 5% or more of the issued and outstanding

shares of any class of our equity securities 5% or more in voting power of the issued and

outstanding shares of all classes of our equity securities or less than 5% of the issued and

outstanding shares of any class of our equity securities or less than 5% of the voting power of the

issued and outstanding shares of all classes of our equity securities if such foreign person is entitled

to control the appointment and tenure of any of our management positions or any director the

beneficial ownership of any shares of any class of our equity securities by or for the account of

foreign uranium enrichment provider or foreign competitor referred to as contravening persons
or any ownership of or exercise of rights with respect to shares of any class of our equity

securities or other exercise or attempt to exercise control of us that is inconsistent with or in

violation of any regulatory restrictions or that could jeopardize the continued operations of our

facilities an adverse regulatory occurrence These rights include requesting information from

holders or proposed holders of our securities refusing to permit the transfer of securities by such

holders suspending or limiting voting rights of such holders redeeming or exchanging shares of our
stock owned by such holders on terms set forth in our certificate of incorporation and taking other

actions that we deem necessary or appropriate to ensure compliance with the foreign ownership
restrictions

For additional information regarding the foreign ownership restrictions set forth in our certificate

of incorporation please refer to Risk Factors Our certificate of incorporation gives us certain

rights with respect to equity securities held beneficially or of record by foreign persons If levels of

foreign ownership set forth in our certificate of incorporation are exceeded we have the right among
other things to redeem or exchange common stock held by foreign persons and in certain cases the

applicable redemption price or exchange value may be equal to the lower of fair market value or

foreign persons purchase price
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows comparison of cumulative total returns for an investment in the

common stock of USEC Inc the SP 500 Index and peer group of companies USEC is the only

U.S company in the uranium enrichment industry However USEC has identified peer group of

companies that share similar business attributes with it This group includes utilities with nuclear

power generation capabilities chemical processing companies and aluminum companies USEC

supplies companies in the utility industry and its business is similarto that of chemical processing

companies USEC shares characteristics with aluminum companies in that they are both large users

of electric power The graph reflects the investment of $100 on December 31 2003 in the

Companys common stock the SP 500 Index and the peer group and reflects the reinvestment of

dividends
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12/31/2003 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 12/31/2006 12/31/2007 12/31/2008

Dec.mber 31 Duc.mb.r 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Inc $100.00 $122.88 $158.45 $168.66 $119.32 $59.64

SP 500 Index $100.00 $110.88 $116.32 $134.69 $142.09 $89.63

PeerGroup Index $100.00 $114.29 $127.10 $149.07 $185.53 $123.57

The Peer Group consists of Air Products and Chemicals Inc Albemarle Corporation Alcoa Inc Constellation

Energy Group Inc Dominion Resources Inc Duke Energy Corporation Eastman Chemical Company Exelon

Corporation Georgia Gulf Corporation NL Industries Inc PPL Corporation Praxair Inc Progress Energy

Inc The Southern Company and XCEL Energy Inc In accordance with SEC requirements the return for each

issuer has been weighted according to the respective issuers stock market capitalization at the beginning of each

year for which return is indicated

Index

-0- Peer Group Index

51



Item Selected Financial Data

Selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements

and related notes and managements discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of

operations Selected financial data have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

millions except per share data

Revenue

Separative work units $1175.5 $1570.5 $1337.4 $1085.6 $1027.3

Uranium 217.1 163.5 316.7 261.3 224.0

U.S government contracts and other 222.0 194.0 194.5 212.4 165.9

Total revenue 1614.6 1928.0 1848.6 1559.3 1417.2

Cost of sales

Separative work units and uranium 1202.2 1473.6 1349.2 1148.4 1071.6

U.S government contracts and other 183.6 166.9 162.5 181.4 151.5

Total cost of sales 1385.8 1640.5 1511.7 1329.8 1223.1

Gross profit 228.8 287.5 336.9 229.5 194.1

Special charges 3.9 7.3

Advanced technology costs 110.2 127.3 105.5 94.5 58.5

Selling general and administrative 54.3 45.3 48.8 61.9 64.1

Other income expense net iL LD
Operating income 64.3 114.9 178.7 66.8 73.2

Interest expense 17.3 16.9 14.5 40.0 40.5

Interest income 24.7 33.8 6.2 10.5

Income before income taxes 71.7 131.8 170.4 37.3 36.6

Provision for income taxes 23.0 35.2 64.2 15.0 13.1

Net income $96.6 S106.2

Net income per share

Basic $.44 $1.04 $1.22 $.26 $.28

Diluted $.35 $.94 $1.22 $.26 $.28

Dividends per share $.55 $.55
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December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

millions

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents
$248.5 $886.1 $171.4 $259.1 $174.8

Inventories
1231.9 1153.4 924.2 1045.7 1165.6

Property plant and equipment net 736.1 292.2 189.9 171.2 178.0

Total assets 3055.3 3087.8 1861.4 2080.8 2003.4

Current portion of long-term debt 95.7
288.8

Long-term debt 575.0 725.05 150.0 150.0 475.0

Other long-term liabilities 601.5 337.5 300.3 270.2 244.4

Stockholders equity 1162.4 1309.5 986.0 907.6 918.7

Special charges of $3.9 million in 2006 include $2.6 million impairment of an intangible asset established

in 2004 relating to the acquisition of NAC $1.5 million related to consolidation of office space
in

connection with the 2005 restructuring plan and special credits totaling $0.2 million representing changes

in estimate of costs for termination benefits charged in 2005

The plan to restructure headquarters and field operations
resulted in special charges of $7.3 million in 2005

related to termination benefits principally consisting of severance benefits

Other income in 2005 includes $1.0 million from customs duties paid to USEC as result of trade actions

Other income in 2004 includes income of $4.4 million from customs duties paid to USEC as result of

trade actions partly offset by an expense of $2.7 million for acquired-in-process research and development

expense relating to the acquisition of NAC

In September 2007 we raised net proceeds after underwriter commissions and offering expenses of

approximately $775 million through the concurrent issuance of 23 million shares of common stock and

$575 million in aggregate principal amount of convertible notes
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conj unction with and is qualified in its entirety by

reference to the consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this

report

Overview

USEC global energy company is leading supplier of low enriched uranium LEU for

commercial nuclear power plants LEU is critical component in the production of nuclear fuel for

reactors to produce electricity We

supply LEU to both domestic and international utilities for use in about 150 nuclear reactors

worldwide

are deploying what we anticipate will be the worlds most advanced uranium enrichment

technology known as the American Centrifuge

are the exclusive executive agent for the U.S government under nuclear nonproliferation

program with Russia known as Megatons to Megawatts

perform contract work for the U.S Department of Energy DOE and its contractors at the

Paducah and Portsmouth gaseous diffusion plants GDPs and

provide transportation and storage systems for spent nuclear fuel and provide nuclear and

energy consulting services

Low Enriched Uranium

LEU consists of two components separative work units SWU and uranium SWU is

standard unit of measurement that represents the effort required to transform given amount of

natural uranium into two components enriched uranium having higher percentage of U235 and

depleted uranium having lower percentage of U235 The SWU contained in LEU is calculated using

an industry standard formula based on the physics of enrichment The amount of enrichment deemed

to be contained in LEU under this formula is commonly referred to as the SWU component and the

quantity of natural uranium used in the production of LEU under this formula is referred to as its

uranium component

We produce or acquire LEU from two principal sources We produce LEU at the Paducah GDP in

Paducah Kentucky Under the Megatons to Megawatts program we acquire LEU from Russia under

contract which we refer to as the Russian Contract to purchase the SWU component of LEU
recovered from dismantled nuclear weapons from the former Soviet Union for use as fuel in

commercial nuclear power plants

Our View of the Business Today

There are approximately 440 nuclear power reactors in operation today and international agencies

report that more than 100 reactors are on order or planned to be built over the next two decades In

addition approximately 260 more power reactors have been proposed Many of these new reactors

will be built in Asia Approximately 40 plants are currently under construction worldwide in 12

countries In addition many reactors in the current fleet are being upgraded to produce more

electricity or utilities are seeking to have their operating lives extended through equipment

improvements and regulatory permission Driving this expansion are environmental concerns and

volatility in the price of fossil fuels

U.S utilities have filed 17 applications for construction and operating licenses for 26 new reactors

with the U.S Nuclear Regulatory Commission NRC The NRC has also indicated it expects

license applications for more reactors will be filed by 2011 Growing acceptance by the public

concerns about climate change and legislation that provided financial incentives have encouraged
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utilities to announce plans for new nuclear reactors in the United States New reactors in the United

States are facing cost and financing pressures and many of these U.S utilities have applied for loan

guarantees DOE reported that it received 19 applications from U.S utilities for loan guarantees to

build 21 new reactors

To fuel potential new reactors uranium enrichment capacity will need to double by 2030

according to the World Nuclear Association New uranium enrichment plants including our

American Centrifuge Plant and other competing projects in the United States and worldwide are

being proposed and built to meet this new demand and to replace remaining higher production cost

gaseous diffusion plants These new uranium enrichment plant projects are supported by improved
fundamentals in the nuclear fuel industry including increased market prices for SWU Long-term

SWU price indicators associated with sales for deliveries in future periods increased 11% to $159 per

SWTJ during 2008 and increased 17% over the past two years Looking forward we believe market

supply and demand fundamentals suggest that SWU prices should remain firm as new reactors are

ordered and built in the markets we serve Increased SWU demand higher production costs for the

remaining gaseous diffusion plants and the need to cover capital investment for new enrichment

capacity are three drivers for increased market prices for SWU Because nuclear reactors provide

base load electricity and the demand for nuclear fuel from existing nuclear reactors is inelastic our

industry is less affected than others by the global economic downturn

As discussed in Business and Properties The American Centrifuge Plant we have been

developing and demonstrating highly efficient uranium enrichment gas centrifuge technology that

we call the American Centrifuge We are deploying this technology in the American Centrifuge Plant

ACP being built in Piketon Ohio During 2008 we continued our efforts with respect to the

centrifuge machine with the continued operation of cascade of prototype machines in our Lead

Cascade test program which has now operated for more than 150000 total machine hours

We refer to our production centrifuge machine design as the AC 100 series centrifuge machine

The AC100 series machine is designed to produce 350 SWU per year which output is substantially

greater than our competitors machines During 2008 we released an initial design for the AC 100

series machine to our strategic suppliers in preparation for installing test cascade of these AC 100

series machines in Piketon in 2009 We anticipate design release for the initial AC 100 series

machines in late March 2009 that will be deployed in the commercial plant The strategic suppliers

have been manufacturing parts for the initial AC 100 machines and the first components to build these

machines were delivered in November 2008 In manufacturing parts
for the AC 100 suppliers must

replicate on commercial basis manufacturing that we previously self-performed in building our

prototype machines Start-up issues have arisen in this transfer of technology to our suppliers that

have delayed our timetable for operation of the initial AC 100 cascade We expected to encounter

start-up issues and the resolution of these issues at the outset will help to facilitate our transition to

high volume manufacturing

five-stage cascade of AC 100 machines is now expected to be operational early in the third

quarter of 2009 This cascade will be in commercial plant configuration and operate under

commercial plant conditions Additional machines will be added to the cascade until we reach

cascade of 40 to 50 machines which is expected late in the third quarter of 2009 This cascade of 40

to 50 machines would operate for the rest of 2009

We expect that the first machines in the initial AC 100 series cascade will have throughput

somewhat less than 350 SWU per year as we continue to optimize the AC 100 series machine For the

same reason the machines deployed in the first commercial cascade of the ACP may not achieve 350

SWU per year However we continue to be confident that the AC 100 series machines that are

deployed in the commercial plant will achieve an average performance level of 350 SWTJ per year

supporting an annual SWU production capacity of the ACP of 3.8 million SWU
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During 2008 we also continued our construction efforts to build the ACP and to work with

leading companies to create world-class industrial infrastructure needed to build components for

the highly sophisticated AC100 machines and supporting equipment The highly specialized U.S
manufacturing base needed to build the AC 100 did not exist but is being established with our

leadership Under contract arrangements with USEC our suppliers are also helping to create the

manufacturing base for revitalized U.S nuclear fuel industry in dozen states Construction of the

ACP includes various systems including electric telecommunications cooling and water distribution

The two existing production buildings have space for approximately 11500 centrifuges

We must still raise the remainder of the capital needed to build the ACP and we view the DOE
Loan Guarantee Program as the path for obtaining the debt financing to complete the American

Centrifuge project Our baseline deployment schedule called for beginning initial commercial plant

operations in 2010 and reaching an annual production capacity of the ACP of 3.8 million SWU per

year at the end of 2012 However we have initiated steps to conserve cash and reduce the planned
escalation of

project construction and machine manufacturing activities until we gain greater clarity

on potential funding for the project through the DOE Loan Guarantee Program In addition on

parallel path we continue to evaluate potential third-party investment

Our decision to slow spending until decision is made by the DOE Loan Guarantee Program will

likely increase costs and extend the schedule for the project As we gain greater clarity on potential

funding through the DOE Loan Guarantee Program and plan and coordinate with our strategic

suppliers we will be better able to quantify changes to cost and schedule We are currently engaged
with suppliers in bottom-up analysis and we do not expect to be in position to provide an update

on the potential impact on cost and schedule until after the first quarter of 2009 Further details are

provided in Business and Properties The American Centrifuge Plant Liquidity and Capital
Resources and Item ARisk Factors

Our Marketing and Sales department continues to meet with customers to sell ACP output which
is important to our financing efforts for ACP We have signed long-term contracts with customers

and have received accepted offers from customers for additional commitments Sales contracts for

this initial output represent strategic commitment by customers to ensure reliable U.S.-based

source of nuclear fuel that will be available for decades to come

Even as we build our new production facility we have substantial current operations at the

gaseous diffusion plant we lease from the U.S govermnent in Paducah Kentucky Today our supply
mix involves producing half of the low enriched uranium sold at the Paducah GDP and purchasing
half under contract with Russia under highly successful nonproliferation program known as

Megatons to Megawatts Over the next several years we expect to transition the source of all of our

LEU supply to production from the ACP During this transition period we will seek to effectively

manage the ramp up in ACP capacity determine the end date for commercial production from the

Paducah GDP and conclude the Megatons to Megawatts program in 2013 Our business and
financial profile will reflect the combined characteristics of our sources of enrichment particularly

the gaseous diffusion and centrifuge operating environments During this transition period we will

also be looking at the potential expansion of the ACP beyond the initial 3.8 million SWU plant
which could be done incrementally once the initial ACP construction phase is complete The

manufacturing infrastructure that we are putting into place to deploy the initial plant capacity will

facilitate any future expansion Because an expansion would not require creating this manufacturing
infrastructure or another demonstration of the technology the cost of any expansion is anticipated to

be less than the initial project

In 2008 we exercised our option to extend the lease with DOE for the Paducah GDP through June

2016 providing us with flexibility within our current enrichment process to help us through this

critical transitional period Although we have been operating the Paducah GDP at the highest

efficiency in decades the costs to operate the Paducah GDP have increased in the past several years

56



because of increases in power costs Our long-term plan for the Paducah GDP is dependent upon

number of factors including the successful and timely startup of the ACP the cost of electric power

under our contract with the Tennessee Valley Authority TVA the
availability and cost of electric

power beyond the expiration of the TVA contract in May 2012 the demand for SWU and uranium

the cost to maintain the Paducah GDP and the timing and nature of any potential tails re-enrichment

program or other programs we may undertake

During the non-summer months of 2009 we expect to purchase 2000 megawatts of power from

TVA making USEC one of the largest industrial consumers of electric power in the United States

We have fixed-price contract that sets the base price for most of the power we purchase but our

costs fluctuate above or below the base contract price based on fuel and purchased power costs

experienced by TVA In 2008 this fuel cost adjustment increased our power cost over the base

contract price by about 15% which had significant effect on our net income and cash flow from

operations The impact of current economic conditions on energy prices has reduced recent weekly

power invoices and has made forward cost projections from TVA very volatile which results in

uncertainty in our financial projections We will also face uncertainty with respect to power costs as

we look to purchase supplemental power starting in June 2010 when our purchases under the TVA
contract are reduced from their current level of 2000 megawatts to 1650 megawatts and beyond the

term of the current contract with TVA that expires in May 2012

The manner in which Russian uranium products are introduced into the U.S market in the next

few years and after the Megatons to Megawatts program concludes in 2013 is significant to our

transition and to our long-term success Russia has large vertically integrated nuclear power

industry with excess capacity to enrich uranium In recent years we have been engaged in

international trade litigation to ensure that the U.S market is protected from the dumping of unfairly

priced foreign merchandise and on January 26 2009 the U.S Supreme Court in unanimous ruling

overturned the decision of an appellate court that had called into question the enforceability of the

application of U.S trade laws to all imports of LEU For more information see Business and

Properties Competition and Foreign Trade Government Investigation of LEU Imports from

France

In addition in September 2008 legislation was enacted that included provision to ensure the

implementation of the Megatons to Megawatts program through 2013 and imposed quotas on imports

of Russian LEU through 2020 that are similar to the quotas agreed to with Russia earlier in 2008

This legislation significantly reduces the threat of injury from imports of dumped Russian LEU but

does not apply to imports from any other country For more information see Business and

Properties Competition and Foreign Trade Limitations on Imports of LEU from Russia

Revenue from Sales of SWU and Uranium

Revenue from our LEU segment is derived primarily from

sales of the SWU component of LEU
sales of both the SWU and uranium components of LEU and

sales of uranium

The majority of our customers are domestic and international utilities that operate nuclear power

plants with international sales constituting approximately 30% of revenue from our LEU segment in

2008 Our agreements with electric utilities are primarily long-term fixed-commitment contracts

under which our customers are obligated to purchase specified quantity of SWU or uranium from

us or long-term requirements contracts under which our customers are obligated to purchase

percentage of their SWIJ requirements from us Under requirements contracts customer only

makes purchases if its reactor has requirements The timing of requirements is associated with reactor

refueling outages
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Backlog is the aggregate dollar amount of SWU and uranium that we expect to sell in future periods

under contracts with customers At December 31 2008 we had contracts with customers aggregating

an estimated $6.9 billion including $1.7 billion expected to be delivered in 2009 compared with $6.5

billion at December 31 2007 Backlog is partially based on customers estimates of their fuel

requirements and certain other assumptions including our estimates of selling prices which are subject

to change Prices may be adjusted based on SWU or uranium market prices prevailing at the time of

delivery Pricing elements may include escalation based on general inflation index or power price

index We utilize external composite forecasts of future market prices and inflation rates in our pricing

estimates

Our revenues and operating results can fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter and in some

cases year to year Customer demand is affected by among other things reactor operations

maintenance and the timing of refueling outages Utilities typically schedule the shutdown of their

reactors for refueling to coincide with the low electricity demand periods of spring and fall Thus

some reactors are scheduled for annual or two-year refuelings in the spring or fall or for 18-month

cycles alternating between both seasons Customer payments for the SWU component of LEU

typically average approximately $15 million per order As result relatively small change in the

timing of customer orders for LEU due to change in customers refueling schedule may cause

operating results to be substantially above or below expectations Customer requirements and orders

are more predictable over the longer term and we believe our performance is best measured on an

annual or even longer business cycle Our revenue could be adversely affected by actions of the

NRC or nuclear regulators in foreign countries issuing orders to modify delay suspend or shut down

nuclear reactor operations within their jurisdictions

Our financial performance over time can be significantly affected by changes in prices for SWU
The long-term SWU price indicator as published by TradeTech LLC in Nuclear Market Review is

an indication of base-year prices under new long-term enrichment contracts in our primary markets

Since our backlog includes contracts awarded to us in previous years the average SWU price billed

to customers typically lags behind the current price indicators Following are the long-term SWU
price indicator the long-term price for UF6 as calculated using indicators published in Nuclear

Market Review and the spot price indicator for UF6

December31

Long-term SWU price indicator $/SWU 159.00 143.00 136.00

UF6
Long-term price composite $/KgU 195.15 260.47 192.54

Spot price indicator $/KgU 140.00 241.00 199.00

substantial portion of our earnings and cash flows in recent years has been derived from sales of

uranium We expect to continue to supplement our supply of uranium by underfeeding the production

process at the Paducah GDP We may also purchase uranium from suppliers in connection with

specific customer contracts as we have in the past Underfeeding is mode of operation that uses or

feeds less uranium but requires more SWU in the enrichment process which requires more electric

power In producing the same amount of LEU we vary our production process to underfeed uranium

based on the economics of the cost of electric power relative to the prices of uranium and

enrichment As noted in the table above spot market prices for uranium declined in 2008 while

electric power costs increased pressuring the economics of underfeeding the enrichment process to

obtain uranium for resale Given supply and demand conditions in the spot uranium market we see

fewer opportunities for near-term spot sales We will continue to monitor and optimize the

economics of our production based on the cost of power and market conditions for SWU and

uranium
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We supply uranium to the Russian Federation for the LEU we receive under the Russian Contract

We replenish our uranium inventory with uranium supplied by customers under our contracts for the

sale of SWU and through underfeeding our production process Our older contracts give customers

the flexibility to determine the amounts of natural uranium that they deliver to us which can result in

our receiving less uranium from customers than we transfer from our inventory to the Russian

Federation under the Russian Contract Our new SWU sales contracts and certain older contracts that

we have renegotiated require customers to deliver greater amount of natural uranium to us

The recognition of revenue and earnings for uranium sales is deferred until LEU to which the

customer has title is physically delivered rather than at the time title transfers to the customer The

timing of revenue recognition for uranium sales is uncertain

Our contracts with customers are denominated in U.S dollars and although revenue has not been

directly affected by changes in the foreign exchange rate of the U.S dollar we may have

competitive price advantage or disadvantage obtaining new contracts in competitive bidding

process depending upon the weakness or strength of the U.S dollar Costs of our primary

competitors are denominated in the major European currencies

Revenue from U.S Government Contracts

We perform and earn revenue from contract work for DOE and DOE contractors at the Paducah

and Portsmouth GDPs including contract for maintenance of the Portsmouth GDP in cold

shutdown DOE and USEC have periodically extended the Portsmouth GDP cold shutdown contract

most recently through April 30 2009 DOE has announced its intention to negotiate sole-source

extension of the cold shutdown contract through September 30 2010 Continuation of U.S

government contracts is subject to DOE funding and Congressional appropriations Revenue from

U.S government contracts is based on allowable costs determined under government cost accounting

standards Allowable costs include direct costs as well as allocations of indirect plant and corporate

overhead costs and are subject to audit by the Defense Contract Audit Agency Also refer to DOE
Contract Services Matter in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements Revenue from the U.S

government contracts segment includes revenue from our subsidiary NAC International Inc

NAC
Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for SWU and uranium is based on the amount of SWU and uranium sold and

delivered during the period and is determined by combination of inventory levels and costs

production costs and purchase costs Production costs consist principally
of electric power labor and

benefits long-term depleted uranium disposition cost estimates materials depreciation and

amortization and maintenance and repairs Under the monthly moving average inventory cost

method that we use coupled with our inventories of SWU and uranium an increase or decrease in

production or purchase costs will have an effect on inventory costs and cost of sales over current and

future periods

We have agreed to purchase approximately 5.5 million SWU each calendar year for the remaining

term of the Russian Contract through 2013 Purchases under the Russian Contract are approximately

one-half of our supply mix Prices are determined using discount from an index of international and

U.S price points including both long-term and spot prices multi-year retrospective view of the

index is used to minimize the disruptive effect of short-term market price swings Increases in these

price points in recent years have resulted in increases to the index used to determine prices under the

Russian Contract On February 13 2009 we entered into an amendment to the Russian Contract to

revise the pricing methodology for delivery in calendar years 2010 through 2013 Approval of both

the U.S government and the government of the Russian Federation is required for the amendment to

become effective The new pricing methodology is intended to enhance the stability of future pricing
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for both parties through formula that combines different mix of price points and other pricing

elements We expect that prices paid under the Russian Contract as amended will continue to

increase year over year and that the total amount paid to the Russian Federation for the SWIJ

component of the LEU delivered under the Russian Contract over the 20 year term of the contract

will substantially exceed $8 billion by the time the contract is completed in 2013 Officials of the

Russian government have announced that Russia will not extend the Russian Contract or the

government-to-govermnent agreement it implements beyond 2013 Accordingly we do not

anticipate that we will purchase Russian SWU after 2013

We provide for the remainder of our supply mix from the Paducah GDP The gaseous diffusion

process uses significant amounts of electric power to enrich uranium Costs for electric power are

approximately 70-75% of production costs at the Paducah GDP In 2008 the power load at the

Paducah GDP averaged 1680 megawatts an increase of 11% compared to 2007 Additional

purchases of power allow us to underfeed the production process and increase our LEU production

The quantity of uranium that is added to uranium inventory from underfeeding is accounted for as

byproduct of the enrichment process Production costs are allocated to the uranium added to

inventory based on the net realizable value of the uranium and the remainder of production costs is

allocated to SWU inventory costs

We purchase most of the electric power for the Paducah GDP under power purchase agreement
with TVA that expires May 31 2012 Pricing under the TVA power contract consisted of summer
and non-summer base energy price through May 31 2008 Beginning June 2008 the price

consists of year-round base energy price that increases moderately based on fixed annual

schedule All prices are subject to fuel cost adjustment provision to reflect changes in TVAs fuel

costs purchased power costs and related costs The impact of the fuel cost adjustment has been

negative for USEC imposing an average increase over base contract prices of about 15% in 2008 and
8% in 2007 The impact of future fuel cost adjustments which is substantially influenced by coal

prices and hydroelectric power availability is uncertain and our cost of power could fluctuate in the

future above or below the agreed increases in the base energy price We expect the fuel cost

adjustment to continue to cause our purchase cost to remain above base contract prices but is

uncertain given volatile energy prices

The quantity of power purchases under the TVA contract generally ranges from 300 megawatts in

the summer months June August to up to 2000 megawatts in the non-summer months We
supplement the TVA contract during the summer months with additional power purchased at market-

based prices Beginning June 2010 through the expiration of the contract on May 31 2012 the

quantity of non-summer power purchases will be reduced to maximum of 1650 megawatts at all

hours This is designed to provide transition down for the TVA power system because of the

significant amount of power being purchased by us We expect to supplement the TVA contract with

additional power purchases beginning June 2010 and will be evaluating possible sources of power
for delivery after May 31 2012

We are required to provide financial assurance to support our payment obligations to TVA These
include letter of credit and weekly prepayments based on TVAs estimate of the price and our

usage of power
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Advanced Technology Costs

Expenditures related to American Centrifuge technology for the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 as well as cumulative expenditures as of December 31 2008 follow in millions

Cumulative

as of

December

2008 2007 2006 31 2008

Amount expensed as part of advanced technology costs $108.8 $125.9 $103.3 $542.1

Amount capitalized as part of construction work in progress .. 420.0 118.5 41.2 601.8

Equipment building and land used for manufacturing and plant 37.0 6.4 1.1 47.0

Depreciation and transfers 3.0 0.6 0.5 4.5

Prepayments to suppliers for services not yet performed 16.9 24.7

Total ACP expenditures including accruals 570.6 267i S145.1 1.211.1

Amounts capitalized include interest of $14.7 million in 2008 $6.3 million in 2007 and $3.1 million

in 2006 Cumulative capitalized interest as of December 31 2008 is $25.0 million

Depreciation and transfers represents the systematic and rational allocation of the costs for equipment

and building used for manufacturing and plant that are ready for their intended use These

depreciation and transfers are part of the amount capitalized as part of construction work in progress

Total expenditures are all American Centrifuge costs including but not limited to demonstration

facility licensing activities commercial plant facility program management interest related costs

and accrued asset retirement obligations capitalized This includes $48.5 million of accruals at

December 31 2008

For discussions of the financing plan for the American Centrifuge Plant see Managements
Discussion and Analysis Liquidity and Capital Resources For discussions of the project budget

for the American Centrifuge Plant see Business and Properties The American Centrifuge Plant

Project Budget Risks and uncertainties related to the deployment of the American Centrifuge Plant

are described in Item 1A Risk Factors of this report

Advanced technology costs also include research and development efforts undertaken for NAC
relating primarily to its new generation MAGNASTORTM dual-purpose dry storage system for spent

fuel MAGNASTOR or Modular Advanced Generation Nuclear All-purpose Storage System
consists of welded stainless steel canister inside steel-lined concrete cask for storage On

February 2009 MAGNASTOR was added to the NRCs list of dry storage casks approved for use

under general license MAGNASTOR has the largest capacity of any cask system approved to date

NAC will submit an amendment for the storage of damaged fuel and an application for transport

license including damaged fuel in 2009

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are summarized in note to our consolidated financial

statements which were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Included within these policies are certain policies that require critical accounting estimates and

judgments Critical accounting estimates are those that require management to make assumptions

about matters that are uncertain at the time the estimate is made and for which different estimates

often based on complex judgments probabilities and assumptions that we believe to be reasonable

but are inherently uncertain and unpredictable could have material impact on our operating results

and financial condition It is also possible that other professionals applying their own judgment to

the same facts and circumstances could develop and support range of alternative estimated

amounts We are also subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ from

estimated amounts such as the healthcare environment legislation and regulation
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The sensitivity analyses used below are not intended to provide reader with our predictions of

the variability of the estimates used Rather the sensitivities used are included to allow the reader to

understand general cause and effect of changes in estimates

We have identified the following to be our critical accounting estimates

Pension and Postretirement Health and Lfe Benefit Costs and Obligations

We provide retirement benefits under defined benefit pension plans and postretirement health and

life benefit plans The valuation of benefit obligations and costs is based on provisions of the plans

and actuarial assumptions that involve judgments and estimates Changes in actuarial assumptions

could impact the measurement of benefit obligations and benefit costs as follows

The weighted average expected return on benefit plan assets was 8.0% for 2008 and is 7.7%

for 2009 The expected return is based on historical returns and expectations of future returns

for the composition of the plans equity and debt securities 0.5% decrease in the expected

return on plan assets would increase annual pension costs by $2.8 million and postretirement

health and life costs by $0.2 million

The differences between the actual return on plan assets and expected return on plan assets

are accumulated in Net Actuarial Gains and Losses which are recognized as an increase or

decrease to benefit costs over number of years based on the employees average future

service lives provided such amounts exceed certain thresholds which are based upon the

obligation or the value of plan assets as provided by accounting standards

In 2008 actual returns for our defined benefit pension plan assets were significantly below

our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8% due to adverse conditions in the

financial markets This performance and the associated decline in pension plan asset values

did not impact our funding pattern with respect to these plans in 2008

weighted average discount rate of 6.1% was used at December 31 2008 to calculate the net

present value of benefit obligations The discount rate is the estimated rate at which the

benefit obligations could be effectively settled on the measurement date and is based on

yields of high quality fixed income investments whose cash flows match the timing and

amount of expected benefit payments of the plans 0.5% reduction in the discount rate

would increase the valuation of pension benefit obligations by $50.2 million and

postretirement health and life benefit obligations by $9.8 million and the resulting changes in

the valuations would increase annual pension costs by $5.6 million and postretirement health

and life benefit costs by $1.1 million

The healthcare costs trend rates are 8.25% projected in 2009 reducing to 5.0% in 2016 The

healthcare costs trend rate represents our estimate of the annual rate of increase in the gross

cost of providing benefits The trend rate is reflection of health care inflation assumptions

changes in healthcare utilization and delivery patterns technological advances and changes

in the health status of our plan participants 1% increase in the healthcare cost trend rates

would increase postretirement health benefit obligations by about $8.6 million and would

increase costs by about $1.0 million

Costs for the Future Disposition of Depleted Uranium and GDP Lease Turnover Costs

SWU and uranium inventories include estimates and judgments for production quantities and

production costs Production costs include estimates of future expenditures for the conversion

transportation and disposition of depleted uranium the treatment and disposal of hazardous low

level radioactive and mixed wastes and GDP lease turnover costs An increase or decrease in
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production costs has an effect on inventory costs and cost of sales over current and future periods

We store depleted uranium generated from our operations at the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs

and accrue estimated costs for its future disposition We anticipate that we will send most or all of

our depleted uranium to DOE for disposition unless more economic disposal option becomes

available DOE is constructing facilities at the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs to process large

quantities of depleted uranium owned by DOE Under federal law DOE would also process our

depleted uranium if we provided it to DOE for disposal If we were to dispose of our depleted

uranium in this way we would be required to reimburse DOE for the related costs of disposing our

depleted uranium including our pro rata share of DOE capital costs Processing DOE depleted

uranium is expected to take about 25 years The timing of the disposal of our depleted uranium has

not been determined The long-term liability for depleted uranium disposition is dependent upon the

volume of depleted uranium that we generate and estimated processing transportation and disposal

costs Our estimate of the unit disposal cost is based primarily on estimated cost data obtained from

DOE without consideration given to contingencies or reserves Our estimate of the unit cost is

periodically reviewed and updated as additional information becomes available

The NRC requires that we guarantee the disposition of our depleted uranium with financial

assurance Our estimate of the unit disposition cost for accrual purposes is approximately 35% less

than the unit disposition cost for financial assurance purposes which includes contingencies and

other potential costs as required by the NRC Our estimated cost and accrued liability as well as

financial assurance we provide for the disposition of depleted uranium are subject to change as

additional information becomes available

Lease turnover costs are estimated and accrued for the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs For the

operating Paducah GDP the balance of expected costs is being accrued over the expected productive

life of the plant Costs of returning the GDPs to DOE in acceptable condition include removing

uranium deposits as required and removing USEC-generated waste Significant estimates and

judgments relate to staffing and other costs associated with the planning execution and

documentation of the lease turnover requirements

The amount and timing of future costs could vary from amounts accrued At December 31 2008

the accrued liability for depleted uranium is $119.5 million and the accrued liability for lease

turnover costs is $55.4 million

American Centrifuge Technology Costs

Costs relating to the American Centrifuge technology are charged to expense or capitalized based

on the nature of the activities and estimates and judgments involving the completion of project

milestones Costs relating to the demonstration of American Centrifuge technology are charged to

expense as incurred Demonstration costs historically have included NRC licensing of the American

Centrifuge Demonstration Facility in Piketon Ohio engineering activities and assembling and

testing of centrifuge machines and equipment at centrifuge test facilities located in Oak Ridge

Tennessee and at the American Centrifuge Demonstration Facility

Capitalized costs relating to the American Centrifuge technology include NRC licensing of the

American Centrifuge Plant in Piketon Ohio engineering activities construction of centrifuge

machines and equipment leasehold improvements and other costs directly associated with the

commercial plant Capitalized centrifuge costs are recorded in property plant and equipment as part

of construction work in progress The continued capitalization of such costs is subject to ongoing

review and successful project completion During the second half of 2007 we moved from

demonstration phase to commercial plant phase in which significant expenditures are capitalized

based on managements judgment that the technology has high probability of commercial success

and meets internal targets related to physical control technical achievement and economic viability
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If conditions change and deployment were no longer probable costs that were previously capitalized
would be charged to expense

As we continue construction of the American Centrifuge Plant we create asset retirement

obligations based on our requirements to decontaminate and decommission DD the facility
The present value of an asset retirement obligation is recognized as liability and an equivalent

amount is recognized as part of the capitalized asset cost The liability is accreted or increased over
time for the time value of money The accretion is charged to cost of sales Upon commencement of

commercial operations the asset cost will be depreciated over the shorter of the asset life or the

expected lease period During each reporting period we reassess and revise the estimate of asset

retirement obligations based on construction progress cost evaluation of future DD expectations
and other judgmental considerations

Income Taxes

During the ordinary course of business there are transactions and calculations for which the

ultimate tax determination is uncertain As result we recognize tax liabilities based on estimates of

whether additional taxes and interest will be due To the extent that the final tax outcome of these

matters is different than the amounts that were initially recorded such differences will impact the

income tax provision in the period in which such detennination is made If the provision for income
taxes increases/decreases by 1% of income from continuing operations net income would have

declined/improved by $0.7 million in 2008

Accounting for income taxes involves estimates and judgments relating to the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and the future
recoverability of deferred tax assets In assessing the realization of

deferred tax assets we determine whether it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be
realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon generating sufficient

taxable income in future years when deferred tax assets are recoverable or are expected to reverse

Factors that may affect estimates of future taxable income include but are not limited to
competition changes in revenue costs or profit margins market share and developments related to

the American Centrifuge Plant We have determined that it is more likely than not that deferred tax

assets will be realized At December 31 2008 our net deferred tax assets were $341.2 million

Determining the need for or the amount of valuation allowance involves judgments estimates

and assumptions We review historical results forecasts of taxable income based upon business

plans eligible carryforward periods periods over which deferred tax assets are expected to reverse

developments related to the American Centrifuge Plant tax planning opportunities and other

relevant considerations The underlying assumptions may change from period to period If we were
to determine that it is more likely than not that all or some of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized in future years valuation allowance would result

In July 2006 the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in

Income Taxes FIN 48 which became effective January 2007 This interpretation clarifies the

accounting for income taxes by prescribing minimum recognition threshold that tax position is

required to meet before the related tax benefit may be recognized in the financial statements FIN 48
also provides guidance on derecognition measurement classification interest and penalties

accounting in interim periods disclosure and transition At December 31 2008 the liability for

unrecognized tax benefits included in other long-term liabilities was $3.8 million and accrued

interest and penalties totaled $0.9 million
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Results of Operations

We have two reportable segments measured and presented through the gross profit line of our

income statement the low enriched uranium LEU segment with two components separative

work units SWU and uranium and the U.S government contracts segment The LEU segment is

our primary business focus and includes sales of the SWIJ component of LEU sales of both SWU
and uranium components of LEU and sales of uranium The U.S government contracts segment

includes work performed for DOE and its contractors at the Portsmouth and Paducah GDPs as well

as nuclear energy services and technologies provided by NAC Intersegment sales between our

reportable segments were less than $0.1 million in each year presented below and have been

eliminated in consolidation

2008 Compared to 2007

2008 2007 Chance

millions

LEU segment
Revenue

SWU revenue $1175.5 $1570.5 $395.0 25%
Uranium revenue 217.1 163.5 53.6 33%

Total 1392.6 1734.0 341.4 20%
Cost of sales 1202.2 1473.6 271.4 18%

Gross profit $190.4 $260.4 570.0 27%

U.S government contracts segment

Revenue $222.0 $194.0 $28.0 14%

Cost of sales 183.6 166.9 16.7 10%
Gross profit $34 42%

Total

Revenue $1614.6 $1928.0 $313.4 16%
Cost of sales 1385.8 1640.5 254.7 16%

Gross profit
$228.8 $287.5 558.7 20%

Revenue

The volume of SWU sold declined 27% in 2008 compared to 2007 due to the timing of utility

customer refuelings Because majority of the reactors served by USEC are refueled on an 8-to-24

month cycle we anticipate deliveries in 2009 roughly similarto 2007 The average price billed to

customers for sales of SWU increased 2% reflecting the particular contracts under which SWU was

sold during the periods as well as the general trend of higher prices under contracts signed in recent

years There was no revenue under barter contracts in 2008 In 2007 revenue from the sales of SWU
under barter contracts based on the estimated fair value of uranium received in exchange for SWU
was $50.8 million

The volume of uranium sold in 2008 compared to 2007 declined 4% and the average price

increased 38% reflecting the timing of customer orders and the particular price mix of contracts

under which uranium was sold

Revenue from the U.S government contracts segment increased 14% in 2008 compared to 2007

Revenue for contract work at the Portsmouth GDP increased $18.8 million to $176.2 million in 2008

This increase was related to cold shutdown efforts and incremental revenue for fiscal 2002 DOE

contract work based on the resolution of concerns regarding billable incurred costs Revenue for

contract work at the Paducah GDP also increased by $1.2 million to $12.7 million in 2008 Revenue

for contract work at NAC increased $8.0 million to $33.1 million in 2008 due to the timing of sales
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for NAC

As of December 31 2008 we have finalized and submitted to DOE the billable incurred costs for

Portsmouth and Paducah GDP contract work for the six months ended December 31 2002 and the

years ended December 31 2003 2004 2005 2006 and 2007 At December 31 2008 $4.6 million

reflecting the elimination of allowances associated with estimates contained in the provisional billing

rates was recognized Additional revenue based on the difference between provisional billing rates

and final billing rates will be recognized upon completion of the DCAA audit and notice by DOE

authorizing final billing

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for SWU and uranium declined $271.4 million or 18% in 2008 compared to 2007

due to the declines in volumes sold partially offset by higher unit costs Under our monthly moving

average cost method new production and acquisition costs are averaged with the cost of inventories

at the beginning of the period Cost of sales per SWU was 4% higher in 2008 compared to 2007

Production costs increased $108.5 million or 14% in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to

10% increase in overall production volume and an increase in the average cost of electric power Unit

production costs increased 3% The cost of electric power increased by $104.7 million year-to-year

reflecting an additional 1.6 million megawatt hours purchased in 2008 an increase of 12% The

increase in production volume and power purchased resulted in 2% decline in our electric power

usage efficiency The average cost per megawatt hour increased 6% driven by TVA fuel cost

adjustments and higher costs for supplemental power purchased at market-based prices

Purchase costs for the SWU component of LEU under the Russian Contract increased $53.0

million in 2008 compared to 2007 due to an 11% increase in the market-based purchase cost per

SWU Purchase prices paid under the Russian Contract are set by market-based pricing formula and

have increased as market prices have increased in recent years

Cost of sales for the U.S government contracts segment increased $16.7 million or 10%
primarily due to increased contract work related to cold shutdown efforts and NAC timing of sales

Gross Profit

Our gross profit margin was 14.2% in 2008 compared to 14.9% in 2007 reflecting lower margins

in the LEU segment slightly offset by higher margins in the U.S government contracts segment

Gross profit for SWU and uranium declined $70.0 million in 2008 compared to 2007 due to lower

SWU sales volume and higher inventory costs partly offset by higher average sales prices for SWU
and uranium

Gross profit for the U.S government contracts segment increased $11.3 million in 2008 compared

to 2007 due to increased contract work related to cold shutdown efforts at the Portsmouth GDP
incremental revenue for fiscal 2002 DOE contract work based on the resolution of concerns

regarding billable incurred costs and the elimination of allowances associated with estimates

contained in the provisional billing rates for the six months ended December 31 2002 and the years

ended December 31 2003 2004 2005 2006 and 2007
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The following table presents elements of the accompanying consolidated statements of income

that are not categorized by segment amounts in millions except percentages

2008 2007 Chan2e

Gross profit
$228.8 $287.5 $58.7 20%

Advanced technology costs 110.2 127.3 17.1 13%

Selling general and administrative 9.0 20%

Operating income 64.3 114.9 50.6 44%

Interest expense
17.3 16.9 0.4 2%

Interest income 24.7 33.8 9.1 27%

Income before income taxes 71.7 131.8 60.1 46%

Provision for income taxes 23.0 35.2 12.2 35%

Net income 47 96.6 47.9I 50%

Advanced Technology Costs

The decrease in advanced technology costs reflects reduced demonstration costs for the American

Centrifuge technology Demonstration costs associated with assembling and testing of centrifuge

machines and equipment at our Oak Ridge test facilities has declined as spending has increased in

activities related to capitalized construction work in progress on the centrifuge machines and

American Centrifuge Plant Demonstration costs for the American Centrifuge technology were

$108.8 million in 2008 compared to $125.9 million in 2007 The remaining amounts included in

advanced technology costs are efforts by NAC to develop its MAGNASTOR storage system

Selling General and Administrative

Compensation and benefit expenses increased $2.1 million in 2008 compared to 2007 reflecting

the low level of stock-based compensation expense in 2007 that resulted from decline in our stock

price Consulting costs increased $1.9 million primarily related to strategy enterprise risk

management and organizational efforts Travel costs increased $1.1 million primarily related to

additional corporate travel related to the American Centrifuge project Selling general and

administrative expenses in 2007 reflect the reversal of previously accrued tax penalty of $3.4

million

Interest Expense and Interest Income

Interest expense increased $0.4 million or 2% reflecting full year of interest in 2008 on our

3.0% convertible senior notes or an increase of approximately $12.8 million offset by increased

interest amounts capitalized related to American Centrifuge of approximately $8.4 million as well as

reductions in interest expense as we repaid portion of our 6.75% senior notes In addition accrued

interest expense for taxes decreased $2.8 million period to period reflecting the reduction in our FIN

48 liability

Interest income declined $9.1 million or 27% in 2008 compared to 2007 Interest income in

2007 benefited from reversals of previously accrued interest expense on taxes and interest expense

recorded upon the adoption of FIN 48 effective January 2007 These reversals related to the

expiration of the U.S federal statute of limitations with respect to tax return years 1998 through 2003

and agreement on outstanding matters reached with the IRS during the second quarter of 2007

Partially offsetting the decline in interest income was $2.2 million increase of interest income on

short-term investments in 2008 as result of increased cash and investment balances following our

issuance of convertible notes and common stock in September 2007
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Provision for Income Tcves

The provision for income taxes in 2008 was $23.0 million including benefits of $4.4 million

primarily due to reversals of previously accrued amounts under accounting guidance provided in FIN

48 of $2.9 million and an increase in research credits of $1.5 million for 2007 which resulted from

research credit study completed in the third quarter 2008 The reversals of FIN 48 liabilities in 2008

of $2.9 million primarily resulted from the completion of IRS federal income tax audits for 2004

through 2006 The provision for income taxes of $35.2 million in 2007 included $12.6 million in

benefits due to reversals of accruals previously recorded and those associated with the adoption of

FIN 48 These reversals primarily resulted from the expiration of the U.S federal statute of

limitations with respect to tax return years 1998 through 2003

Excluding the effects of FIN 48 and research credit related adjustments the overall effective

income tax rate was 38% in 2008 and 36% in 2007 The increase is primarily due to decreases in

income before income taxes the manufacturing deduction and the FIN 48 penalty reversal offset by
the increase in the federal research credit In October 2008 the federal research credit was extended

through December 31 2009

Net Income

Net income declined $47.9 million or $0.60 per sharebasic and $0.59 per share-diluted in 2008

compared to 2007 due primarily to the after-tax impact of lower gross profits in the LEU segment
due to lower SWU sales volume which was result of the timing of utility customer refuelings and

higher inventory costs partially offset by higher average sales prices for SWU and uranium The

decline was partially offset by lower advanced technology expenses In addition the corresponding

period in 2007 benefited by $22.1 million from the impact of reversals of accruals previously

recorded and those associated with the adoption of FIN 48 released upon the U.S federal statute of

limitations expiration with respect to tax return years 1998 through 2003 and the completion of the

IRS examination for all tax years through 2003 The decline in net income per share also reflects our

issuance of 23 million shares of common stock in September 2007
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2007 Compared to 2006

Change

millions

LEU segment

Revenue

SWU revenue $1570.5 $1337.4 $233.1 17%

Uranium revenue 163.5 316.7 153.2 48%
Total 1734.0 1654.1 79.9 5%

Cost of sales 1.473.6 1349.2 124.4 9%
Gross profit

$260.4 $304.2 S44.5 15%

U.S government contracts segment

Revenue $194.0 $194.5 $0.5 0%

Cost of sales 166.9 L4A 3%
Gross profit

54.9 15%

Total

Revenue $1928.0 $1848.6 $79.4 4%

Cost of sales 1640.5 1511.7 128.8 9%
Gross profit

$287.5 $336.9 549.4 15%

Revenue

The volume of SWU sold increased 8% in 2007 compared to 2006 and the average price billed to

customers increased 9% The increase in volume reflects net increases in purchases by customers and

the timing of utility customer refuelings The increase in the average price reflects higher prices

charged to customers under contracts signed in recent years price increases from contractual

provisions for inflation and market adjustments and the mix of deliveries under newer versus older

contracts

Revenue from the sales of SWU under barter contracts based on the estimated fair value of

uranium received in exchange for SWU was $50.8 million in 2007 and $12.5 million in 2006

The volume of uranium sold decreased 60% reflecting declines in our inventory of uranium

available for sale The average price for uranium delivered increased 29% reflecting higher-priced

contracts signed with customers in recent years

Revenue from the U.S government contracts segment declined less than 1% in 2007 compared to

2006 Revenue for contract work at the Portsmouth GDP increased $0.7 million in 2007 due to an

additional scope of work performed under the cold shutdown contract partially offset by reduction

resulting from the completion of the legacy centrifuge equipment removal project in August 2006

Revenue for contract work at the Paducah GDP and NAC slightly declined in 2007 compared to

2006 offsetting the Portsmouth GDP increase

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for SWU and uranium increased $124.4 million or 9% in 2007 compared to 2006

primarily due to the 8% increase in the volume of SWU sold Cost of sales per SWU was 7% higher

reflecting increases in average inventory costs Under our monthly moving average cost method new

production and acquisition costs are averaged with the cost of inventories at the beginning of the

period
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Production costs increased $157.2 million or 25% primarily due to increases in the cost of

electric power Production levels increased 9% and unit production costs increased 14% The cost for

electric power increased $147.3 million reflecting an increase in the average cost per megawatt hour

and an increase in megawatt hours purchased The average cost per megawatt hour increased 22%
reflecting higher prices under the TVA power contract effective June 2006 The utilization of electric

power measure of production efficiency was about the same in 2007 as in 2006

Purchase costs for the SWU component of LEU under the Russian Contract increased $23.4

million due to increases in the market-based purchase cost per SWU Purchase prices paid under the

Russian Contract are set by market-based
pricing formula and have increased as market prices have

increased in recent years

Cost of sales for the U.S government contracts segment increased $4.4 million or 3% primarily

due to sales of lower margin contract services at NAC

Gross Profit

Our gross profit margin was 14.9% in 2007 compared to 18.2% in 2006 reflecting lower margins
in both segments

Gross profit for the LEU segment declined $44.5 million or 15% in 2007 compared to 2006 The

positive impact of increases in SWU and uranium sales prices was reduced in 2007 compared to

2006 as higher production and purchase costs were recognized in cost of sales In addition the

decline in uranium sales reflects reduced uranium available for sale

Gross profit for the U.S government contracts segment declined $4.9 million or 15% due to

sales of lower margin contract services at NAC

The following table presents elements of the accompanying consolidated statements of income

that are not categorized by segment amounts in millions except percentages

2007 2006 Chan2e

Gross profit $287.5 $336.9 $49.4 15%

Special charges 3.9 3.9

Advanced technology costs 127.3 105.5 21.8 21%

Selling general and administrative ..1

Operating income 114.9 178.7 63.8 36%
Interest expense 16.9 14.5 2.4 17%
Interest income 33.8 27.6 445%

Income before income taxes 131.8 170.4 38.6 23%
Provision for income taxes 35.2 64.2 29.0 45%

Net income 96.6 106.2 _____ 9%

Special Charges

Special charges in 2006 consisted of $1.3 million related to an organizational restructuring and

$2.6 million resulting from the impairment of an intangible asset related to the 2004 acquisition of

NAC The acquisition cost allocated to customer contracts and
relationships from the NAC

acquisition was reduced after DOE set aside certain contract work for small businesses for which

NAC did not qualify
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Advanced Technology Costs

The increase in advanced technology costs reflects increased demonstration costs for the

American Centrifuge technology MAC-related advanced technology costs were $1.3 million in 2007

and $2.1 million in 2006

Selling General and Administrative

The decline in selling general and administrative expenses reflects reversal in 2007 of

previously accrued tax penalty of $3.4 million We reached agreement with the IRS during the

second quarter of 2007 on certain deductions related to expenditures made in the tax return years

1998 through 2000 Consulting expenses declined $0.8 million in 2007 compared to 2006 Offsetting

these improvements were increased stock-based compensation expenses resulting primarily from

vesting of participants in our equity compensation plans

Interest Expense and Interest Income

Interest expense increased in 2007 compared to 2006 due to accrued interest on our $575.0 million

of convertible notes issued in September 2007 and increases of accrued interest for taxes The

increase is partly offset by an increase of $3.2 million in capitalized interest related to the American

Centrifuge Plant and our repayment of $288.8 million of our 6.625% senior notes on the scheduled

maturity date in January 2006

Interest income increased due in large part to reversals of previously accrued interest expense on

taxes and interest expense recorded upon the adoption of FIN 48 effective January 2007 These

reversals relate to the expiration of the U.S federal statute of limitations with respect to tax return

years 1998 through 2003 and agreement on outstanding matters reached with the IRS during the

second quarter of 2007 The increase in interest income is also due to increased cash and investment

balances resulting
from the proceeds from our issuances of convertible notes and common stock in

September 2007

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes in 2007 was $35.2 million with an overall effective income tax

rate of 27% We recorded the effects of $12.6 million of tax benefits due to reversals of accruals

previously recorded and those associated with the adoption of FIN 48 effective January 2007

Excluding these effects our effective tax rate would have been 36% in 2007 The most significant

items in the remaining difference between the effective tax rate in 2007 as compared to the statutory

federal and state income tax rate include the positive
effects related to our manufacturing deduction

and research and other tax credits

The provision for income taxes in 2006 was $64.2 million with an overall effective income tax

rate of 38% Differences between the effective tax rate in 2006 as compared to the statutory
federal

and state income tax rate include the effects of state deferred tax asset reductions offset by research

and other tax credits

Net Income

Net income declined $9.6 million or $0.18 per sharebasic and diluted in 2007 compared to

2006 reflecting the after-tax impacts of lower gross profits and higher American Centrifuge

demonstration costs partly offset by $22.1 million of tax-related effects from the impact of reversals

of accruals previously recorded and those associated with the adoption of FIN 48 released upon the

U.S federal statute of limitations expiration with respect to tax return years 1998 through 2003 and

the completion of the IRS examination for all tax years through 2003 The decline in net income per

71



share also reflects our issuance of 23 million shares of common stock in September 2007

2009 Outlook

As expressed in previous guidance we expect the volume of SWLJ sold in 2009 to return to level

similarto that seen in 2007 Because majority of our customers refuel their reactors on an 8-to-24

month cycle those customers who refueled reactors in 2007 are likely to require LEU again in 2009
In the past five years we have sold roughly 10 to 13 million SWU per year and we expect to exceed
the high end of that range in 2009

We expect total revenue in the range of $2.2 to $2.25 billion in 2009 Revenue from SWU sales is

expected to be approximately $1.8 billion or about 50% higher than 2008 SWU volume is expected

to be approximately 40% higher and the average price billed to customers is expected to be 10%

higher Revenue from uranium is expected to decline to just under $200 million in 2009 as spot
uranium

prices gradually fell during 2008 The recognition of this revenue is subject to the timing of

uranium used as feed stock in LEU deliveries Revenue from government services and other is

expected to be relatively flat at about $220 million in 2009

Electric power represents 70% to 75% of our cost of production at the Paducah GDP We have

contract with the Tennessee Valley Authority to purchase 2000 megawatts of power during the non
summer months of 2009 at fixed base price that increased slightly over 2008 Under this contract

we also pay an adjustment to reflect the cost of fuel or purchased power above or below the cost

assumed in that base price The fuel cost adjustment averaged 15% above the base price in 2008 and

TVA has continued to forecast increased fuel and purchased power costs for 2009 The uncertainty of

fuel prices in the current economic climate results in
difficulty in predicting this major production

cost component and variations from our forecast can significantly affect results We produce about

half of our supply and purchase half from Russia under the Megatons to Megawatts program Under
the programs market-based pricing formula we expect to pay Russia about 11% more for LEU
purchased in 2009 compared to 2008 reflecting increases in SWU market price indicators in recent

years

Our cost of sales reflecting higher production and purchase costs rolling through our inventory is

increasing faster than our average price billed to customers This has put pressure on our gross

margin in recent years and that trend is expected to continue in 2009 Thus although our average

price billed to customers is expected to improve from last year the expected increase in cost of sales

is greater We expect our gross profit margin in 2009 to be between 10% and 12% compared to

14.2% in 2008

The sharp downturn in the fair value of pension and postretirement benefit plan assets due

primarily to market conditions from 2008 will also result in higher net benefit costs in 2009 These

net benefit costs are embedded in our costs for both business segments as well as selling general and

administrative SGA expense Combined this net benefit cost is estimated to be approximately

$51 million higher than in 2008 and will also require us to fund these plans by approximately $15
million more than in 2008

Below the gross profit line we expect SGA expense to be approximately $57 million in 2009
We expect our income tax rate will be close to the combined federal and state statutory rate

Although much of our spending on the American Centrifuge Plant is anticipated to be capitalized we
expect to continue development and value engineering efforts that are expensed We expect to

expense roughly $120 million of spending during 2009 In addition our baseline plan for ACP
capital expenditures in 2009 is approximately $700 million but this amount will be affected by our

announced plan to slow down spending on the ACP as discussed in Liquidity and Capital

Resources
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Based on these projections we anticipate net income in range of $25 to $50 million for 2009

Cash flows from operations in 2008 were negative in part
due to build-up of SWU inventory in

advance of higher anticipated SWU deliveries in 2009 This inventory is expected to be monetized in

2009 thus substantially improving cash flow from operations year over year Although we expect

higher disbursements for electric power increased purchase costs from Russia and continued

significant ACP spending that is expensed we anticipate cash flow generated from operations in

range of $240 to $275 million

Our financial results guidance is subject to number of assumptions and uncertainties that could

affect results either positively or negatively Variations from our expectations could cause substantial

differences between our guidance and ultimate results Among the factors that could affect net

income and cash flows are

Changes to the electric power fuel cost adjustment from our current projection

The potential for significantly reduced ACP spending as result of our announced plan to

slow down project spending

The amount of spending on the ACP that is classified as an expense

The timing of recognition of previously deferred revenue particularly related to the sale of

uranium

Movement and timing of customer orders

Changes in SWU and uranium market price indicators and changes in inflation that can

affect the price of SWU billed to customers and

Additional uranium sales made possible by underfeeding the production process at the

Paducah GDP

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We provide for our liquidity requirements through our cash balances working capital and access to

our bank credit facility Our cash needs include the funding of American Centrifuge project activities

We had cash balance of $248.5 million as of December 31 2008 compared to $886.1 million at

December 31 2007 We need to raise significant amount of additional capital to continue funding

and to complete the American Centrifuge Plant We do not believe public market financing for

large capital project
such as the American Centrifuge Plant is available to us given current financial

market conditions In July 2008 we applied to the DOE Loan Guarantee Program as the path for

obtaining $2 billion in debt financing to complete the American Centrifuge Plant Areva company

majority owned by the French government also applied for funding under this program for

proposed plant in the U.S and is also being considered by DOE We are seeking selection of our

project by DOE in the short term followed by an expeditious funding commitment and financial

closing However we have no assurance that our project will be selected to move forward in the

program and if we are selected it could still take an extended period for the loan guarantee and

funding to be finalized Accordingly we have initiated steps to conserve cash and reduce the planned

escalation of project
construction and machine manufacturing activities until we gain greater clarity

on potential funding for the project through the DOE Loan Guarantee Program In addition on

parallel path we continue to evaluate potential third-party investment

Our intent is to reduce our spending in 2009 to work within the combination of our expected funds

available through our cash from operations and available borrowings under our credit facility and

ensure that we have adequate liquidity for our ongoing operations Under our deployment schedule

for the ACP spending was expected to peak in 2009 with spending of approximately $800 million

including substantial ramp up in coming months with the hiring of plant construction workers and
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preparing facilities that would provide key components for the AC100 centrifuge machines Our

initial steps to slow the growth of project spending in 2009 include sharply reducing the ramp up in

hiring construction and craft workers for the ACP and deferring select procurements We are working
with our suppliers to identify and implement actions that can be taken to reduce costs while

minimizing the impact on project cost and schedule We may also take other actions to ensure that

we have adequate liquidity for our ongoing operations and remain in compliance with covenants

under our debt agreements Further details are provided in Capital Structure and Financial

Resources and Part Item 1A Risk Factors of this report

Without DOE loan guarantee or other financing and without taking into account our plans to

slow down project spending in 2009 we anticipate that our cash expected internally generated cash

flow from operations and available borrowings under our revolving credit facility would be sufficient

to meet our cash needs for approximately 6-9 months under our baseline budget and schedule Taking
into account our plans to slow down project spending we anticipate that our liquidity will be
sufficient beyond this period If we determine that loan guarantee or alternative financing is not

forthcoming or available in the near term we will take additional steps to implement further project

spending reductions to maintain sufficient liquidity for at least twelve months However additional

funds may be necessary sooner than we currently anticipate if we are not successful in our efforts to

conserve cash or in the event of increases in the cost of the American Centrifuge project

unanticipated prepayments to suppliers increases in financial assurance unanticipated costs under

the Russian Contract increases in power costs or any shortfall in our estimated levels of operating
cash flow or to meet other unanticipated expenses

We believe the Paducah GDP provides meaningful operational backstop during the ACP
deployment period and we have the flexibility to extend its operations as part of any alternative

planning we may evaluate as the most prudent path for deploying the ACP

The change in cash and cash equivalents from our consolidated statements of cash flows are as

follows on summarized basis in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 104.9 $109.2 $278.1

Net cash used in investing activities 477.2 170.4 79.6

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 55.5 775.9 286.2

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 1637..6I 714.7 87.7

Operating Activities

During 2008 net cash used in operating activities was $104.9 million Net inventory balances

grew $270.6 million
reflecting increased production volume and costs and build-up of SWU

inventory in advance of higher anticipated SWU deliveries in 2009 An additional use of cash flow

was an increase in prepaid power costs of $17.7 million related to the TVA fuel adjustment and

prepaid taxes of $20.9 million decrease in accounts receivable of $98.8 million in 2008 following

strong sales in the fourth quarter of 2007 and increased deferred profits relating to uranium and LEU
that were sold but not shipped during the year provided increased cash flow Results of operations in

2008 contributed $48.7 million to cash flow and $34.2 million in non-cash adjustments for

depreciation and amortization

During 2007 we generated net cash flow from operating activities of $109.2 million Results of

operations of $96.6 million and $39.5 million in non-cash adjustments for depreciation and

amortization contributed to our operating cash Results of operations include approximately $22.1

million of non-cash related reversals of tax-related accruals previously recorded and those associated

with the adoption of FIN 48 These increases in cash flow were slightly offset by the timing of other

balance sheet items
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During 2006 we generated net cash flow from operating activities of $278.1 million Results of

operations contributed $106.2 million to cash flow and $36.7 million in non-cash adjustments for

depreciation and amortization reduction in net inventory balances of $176.1 million period to

period also contributed to cash flow as we sold from existing inventories as well as from current

production Reductions in accounts payable and other liabilities reduced cash flow from operations

by $82.1 million during the period principally from tax payments prepayment modifications under

the amended TVA contract and payments to our former president and chief executive officer in

settlement of his claims The timing of other balance sheet items principally the timing of accounts

receivable collections also contributed to the increase in cash flow

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures were $441.9 million in 2008 $137.2 million in 2007 and $44.8 million in

2006 Capital expenditures during these periods are principally associated with the American

Centrifuge Plant including prepayments made to suppliers for services not yet performed Cash

deposits are made as collateral for surety bonds were $35.3 million in 2008 $33.2 million in 2007

and $34.8 million in 2006 The surety bonds represent financial assurance relating primarily to the

future disposition of depleted uranium generated in our enrichment process and American Centrifuge

decontamination and decommissioning

Financing Activities

There were no short-term borrowings under the credit facility at December 31 2008 or at

December 31 2007 Aggregate borrowings and repayments under the revolving credit facility in

2008 were $48.3 million and the peak amount outstanding was $37.4 million In 2008 we

repurchased $54.3 million of the 6.75% senior notes due January 20 2009 The cost of the

repurchase was $52.8 million and was net of discount of $1.5 million Subsequently we repaid the

remaining principal balance of $95.7 million on the scheduled maturity date of January 20 2009 with

available cash

In September 2007 we raised net proceeds after underwriter commissions and offering expenses

of approximately $775 million through the concurrent issuance of 23 million shares of common stock

and $575 million in aggregate principal amount of convertible notes Other issuances of common

stock primarily from employee stock-based compensation plans provided cash flow from financing

activities of $0.1 million in 2008 $0.5 million in 2007 and $2.5 million in 2006 There were 111.8

million shares of common stock outstanding at December 31 2008 compared with 110.6 million at

December 31 2007 an increase of 1.2 million shares or 1% and 87.1 million at December 31

2006 or an increase from 2006 to 2007 of 23.5 million shares or 27%

In January 2006 we repaid the remaining principal balance of our 6.625% senior notes of $288.8

million on the scheduled maturity date using cash on hand and borrowing under our bank credit

facility of approximately $78.5 million We repaid the $78.5 million borrowing with funds from

operations by the end of January 2006
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Working Capital

December 31

2008 2007

millions

Cash and cash equivalents $248.5 $886.1

Accounts receivable 154.1 252.9

Inventories net 1101.7 831.1

Current portion of long-term debt 95.7

Other current assets and liabilities net 234.3 255.3

Working capital 1.1743 1.714.S

The decline in working capital of $540.5 million reflects cash used in investing activities of

$477.2 million in 2008 principally for capitalized expenditures associated with the American

Centrifuge Plant At December 31 2008 the current portion of long-term debt consisted of the

remaining balance of the 6.75% senior notes which were paid in full on the scheduled maturity date

of January 20 2009 The increase in net inventories reflects temporary build-up in anticipation of

greater volume of near-term SWU sales

Capital Structure and Financial Resources

At December 31 2008 our long-term debt consisted of $575.0 million in 3.0% convertible senior

notes due October 2014 These notes are unsecured obligations and rank on parity with all of our
other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness Financing costs of $14.3 million related to the

convertible notes were deferred and are being amortized over the life of the debt The current portion

of long-term debt included in current liabilities consisted of $95.7 million of 6.75% senior notes

which were paid in full at maturity on January 20 2009

In August 2005 we entered into five-year syndicated bank credit facility providing up to

$400.0 million in revolving credit commitments including up to $300.0 million in letters of credit

secured by assets of USEC Inc and our subsidiaries The credit facility is available to finance

working capital needs and fund capital programs including the American Centrifuge project

Financing costs of $3.5 million and $0.3 million to obtain and amend the credit facility respectively

were deferred and are being amortized over the five-year life

There were no short-term borrowings under the revolving credit facility at December 31 2008 or

December 31 2007 Letters of credit issued under the facility amounted to $48.0 million at

December 31 2008 and $38.4 million at December 31 2007

Outstanding borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at variable rate which at our

election is equal to either

the sum of the greater of the JPMorgan Chase Bank prime rate and the federal funds rate

plus of 1% plus margin ranging from 0.25% to 0.75% based upon collateral

availability or

the sum of LIBOR plus margin ranging from 2.0% to 2.5% based on collateral availability
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Borrowings under the credit facility are subject to limitations based on established percentages of

qualifying assets such as eligible accounts receivable and inventory The credit facility contains

various reserve provisions that reduce available borrowings under the facility periodically or restrict

the use of borrowings if certain requirements are not met including those listed below

December 31

Requirement

millions

Available Credit $343.0 $361.6

Credit facility provisions

Availability $35.0 $342.3 $360.9

Collateral Availability $75.0 $342.3 $393.3

Available Liquidity $125.0 $591.5 $1247.7

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 we met all of the reserve provision requirements by large

margin However we expect to have borrowings under the credit facility in 2009 which will reduce

Availability Collateral Availability and Available Liquidity

Available Credit reflects the levels of qualifying assets at the end of the previous month less any

borrowings or letters of credit and will fluctuate during the year Qualifying assets are reduced by

certain reserves principally reserve for future obligations to DOE with respect to the turnover of

the gaseous diffusion plants at the end of the term of the lease of these facilities

Availability means the lesser of $400 million and iithe sum of eligible receivables and

eligible inventory subject to caps less the sum of letters of credit issued outstanding loan balances

and accrued interest fees and expenses Availability equals Available Credit less accrued interest

fees and expenses

Collateral Availability means the sum of eligible receivables and eligible inventory subject to

caps minus the outstanding loans letters of credit issued and accrued interest fees and expenses

Available Liquidity means Availability plus cash balances in accounts controlled by the

administrative agent

Additional details regarding these reserve provisions follow

Requirement Outcome

Availability $35 million if not met at any time an event of default is triggered

Collateral Availability If not met for consecutive days then fixed charge ratio

$75 million required to be 1.00 to 1.00 until the 90th consecutive day

Collateral Availability is restored to $75 million

Available Liquidity If not met for consecutive days non-financed capital

$125 million expenditures are limited to $50 million until the 90th

consecutive day Available Liquidity is restored to $125

million

Other reserves under the revolving credit facility such as availability reserves and borrowing base

reserves are customary for credit facilities of this type

The revolving credit facility also includes various customary operating covenants including

restrictions on the incurrence and prepayment of other indebtedness granting of liens sales of assets
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making of investments maintenance of minimum amount of inventory and payment of dividends

or other distributions Failure to satisfy the covenants would constitute an event of default under the

revolving credit facility As of December 31 2008 we were in compliance with all of the covenants

Our current credit ratings are as follows

Standard Poors Moodys
Corporate creditlfamily rating B- B3
3.0% convertible senior notes CCC unrated

Outlook Negative Negative

Our debt to total capitalization ratio was 37% at December 31 2008 and 36% at December 31
2007

Financial Markets and Defined Benefit Pension Plans

In 2008 actual returns for our defined benefit pension plan assets were significantly below our

expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8% due to adverse conditions in the financial

markets This performance and the associated decline in pension plan asset values did not impact our

funding pattern with respect to these plans in 2008 summary of actual plan funding in 2008 and

expected funding in 2009 follows

Postretirement

Defined Benefit Health and Life

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

millions

Actual contributions in 2008 $10.3 $3.6

Expected contributions in 2009 23.6 5.3

The amount we contribute to our pension plans is determined by IRS regulations the Pension

Protection Act of 2006 and government cost accounting standards

The valuation of benefit obligations and costs in our financial statements requires judgments and
estimates including actuarial assumptions expectations of future returns on benefit plan assets and the

estimated discount rate at which benefit obligations could be effectively settled change in any of

these assumptions could result in different valuations Our financial statements and future funding
levels could be impacted to the extent actual results differ from these assumptions or lead to changes
in these assumptions Refer to the risks uncertainties and estimates related to pension plans in Item

1A Risk Factors and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations Critical Accounting Estimates and note 10 to our consolidated financial statements
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Financial Assurance and Related Liabilities

The NRC requires that we guarantee the disposition of our depleted uranium and stored wastes with

financial assurance The financial assurance in place for depleted uranium and stored wastes is based

on the quantity of depleted uranium and waste at the end of the prior year plus expected depleted

uranium generated over the current year We also provide financial assurance for the ultimate

decontamination and decommissioning DD of the American Centrifuge facilities to meet NRC

and DOE requirements Surety bonds for the disposition of depleted uranium and for DD are

partially collateralized by interest earning cash deposits included in other long-term assets

summary of financial assurance related liabilities and cash collateral follows in millions

Financial Assurance Lon2-Term Liabffity

December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2008 2007

Depleted uranium disposition
$232.0 $188.3 $119.5 $98.3

Decontamination and decommissioning of

American Centrifuge
57.7 41.6 13.7 4.4

Other financial assurance 22.9 16.5

Total financial assurance S312.6 S246..4

Letters of credit 48.0 38.4

Surety bonds 264.6 208.0

Cash collateral deposit for surety bonds $135.1 $97.0

The amount of financial assurance needed in the future for depleted uranium disposition is

anticipated to increase by an estimated $35 to $45 millionper year depending on Paducah GDP

production volumes and the estimated unit disposition cost defined by the NRC requirement

The amount of financial assurance needed for DD of the American Centrifuge Plant is anticipated

to increase to roughly $200 million by the end of 2009 depending on construction progress and cost

projections The current estimate of the total cost related to NRC and DOE DD requirements is $403

million Financial assurance will also be required for the disposition of depleted uranium generated

from future centrifuge operations

See note 15 to the consolidated financial statements for more detailed explanation regarding the

nature of differences between the financial assurance amounts and the related long-term liabilities
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Contractual Commitments

USEC had contractual commitments at December 31 2008 estimated as follows in millions

2010 2012

2009 2011 2013 Thereafter Total

Financing

Debt $95.7 $. $575.0 $670.7

Interest on debt 2Q J7 J.Q
116.2 34.5 34.5 592.3 777.5

Purchase Commitments

United States Enrichment Corporation 1163.0 2331.2 1651.7 5145.9

American Centrifuge 102.2 175.8

1265.2 2404.8 1651.7 5321.7

Expected payments on operating leases 6.7 11.1 6.8 29.2 53.8

Other long-term liabilities 29.5 54.7 81.1 436.2 601.5

SI 417.6 52505J S1.774.1 S1.057.7 56755

We paid the 6.750% senior notes balance of $95.7 million on the scheduled maturity date of January

20 2009 The 3.0% convertible senior notes amounting to $575 million are due October 2014

assuming no conversion to shares of common stock

Purchase commitments of subsidiary United States Enrichment Corporation include commitment

to purchase SWU under the Russian Contract of approximately $3.4 billion and commitment to

purchase power under the TVA contract of approximately $1.7 billion

Currently prices under the Russian Contract are determined using discount from an index of

international and U.S price points including both long-term and spot prices Beginning in 2010
subject to receipt of necessary governmental approvals prices will be determined under formula

that combines different mix of price points and other pricing elements Under either formula

multi-year retrospective view of market-based price points in the index is used to minimize the

disruptive effect of any short-term swings in these price points Actual amounts will vary based on

changes in the price points and other pricing elements

Capacity under the TVA power purchase agreement is fixed Prices are subject to monthly fuel cost

adjustments to reflect changes in TVAs fuel costs purchased power costs and related costs

Supply agreements for the purchase of materials goods and services for the manufacture of

centrifuge machines to be used in the American Centrifuge Plant Prices for minimum purchase

commitments above are subject to adjustment for inflation Contractual provisions for termination

payments total $26.7 million for these agreements

Other long-term liabilities reported on the balance sheet include pension benefit obligations and

postretirement health and life benefit obligations amounting to $391.2 millionaccrued depleted

uranium disposition costs of $119.5 million the long-termportion of accrued lease turnover costs of

$54.9 million and the liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $3.8 million

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In December 2006 DOE signed an agreement with us licensing U.S gas centrifuge technology to

USEC for use in building new domestic uranium enrichment capacity We will pay royalties to the

u.s government on annual revenues from sales of LEU produced in the American Centrifuge Plant

The royalty ranges from 1% to 2% of annual gross revenue from these sales Payments are capped at

$100 million over the life of the technology license Other than the letters of credit issued under the

credit facility the surety bonds and certain contractual commitments discussed above there were no
material off-balance sheet arrangements obligations or other relationships at December 31 2008 or

2007
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Environmental Matters

In addition to estimated costs for the future disposition
of depleted uranium we incur costs for

matters relating to compliance with environmental laws and regulations including the handling

treatment and disposal of hazardous low-level radioactive and mixed wastes generated as result of

our operations Environmental liabilities associated with GDP operations prior to July 28 1998 are

the responsibility of the U.S government except for liabilities relating to certain identified wastes

generated by us and stored at the GDPs DOE remains responsible for decontamination and

decommissioning of the GDPs Operating costs for environmental compliance including estimated

costs relating to the future disposition of depleted uranium amounted to $39.9 million in 2008 $44.9

million in 2007 and $32.2 million in 2006

Under cleanup agreement with the Environmental Protection Agency EPA we removed

certain material from site in South Carolina previously operated by Starmet CMI one of our former

contractors that was attributable to quantities of depleted uranium we had sent there under 1998

contract In June 2007 we were contacted by the EPA concerning costs incurred by the EPA for

additional cleanup at the Starmet site In January 2009 pursuant to the terms of September 2008

settlement agreement we paid the EPA $1.0 million for the share of additional cleanup costs allocated

to us in resolution of this matter At this time the EPA has completed its actions at the site and we are

not aware of any further claims associated with the site

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Implemented

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement of

Financial Accounting Standard SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements This statement

clarifies the definition of fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value when required

or permitted under other accounting pronouncements and expands the disclosures on fair value

measurements The implementation of SFAS No 157 for financial assets and liabilities effective

January 2008 did not have an impact on USECs financial position and results of operations

SFAS No 157 is effective beginning with USECs first quarter of 2009 for non-financial assets

and liabilities USEC does not expect that the adoption of the statement will have material effect on

its financial position or results of operations for the first quarter of 2009
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

At December 31 2008 the balance sheet carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents

accounts receivable accounts payable and accrued liabilities and payables under the Russian

Contract approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of the instruments

We have not entered into financial instruments for trading purposes At December 31 2008 the

fair value of USEC term debt based on the most recent trading price and related balance sheet

carrying amounts follow in millions

Balance Sheet Fair

CarrvinE Amount Value

Debt

6.75% senior notes due January 20 2009 $95.7 $94.9

3.0% convertible senior notes due October 2014 575.0 207.0

67O.7 3O1.9

Reference is made to additional information reported in managements discussion and analysis of

financial condition and results of operations included herein for quantitative and qualitative

disclosures relating to

commodity price risk for electric power requirements for the Paducah GDP refer to

Overview Cost of Sales and Results of Operations Cost of Sales

commodity price risk for raw materials needed for construction of the American Centrifuge

Plant that could affect the overall cost of the project refer to Item 1A Risk Factors The
cost of the American Centrifuge project will likely exceed the baseline project budget and

increased costs and cost uncertainty could adversely affect our ability to finance and deploy

the American Centrifuge Plant and

interest rate risk relating to any outstanding borrowings at variable interest rates under the

$400.0 million revolving credit agreement refer to Liquidity and Capital Resources

Capital Structure and Financial Resources

Item Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements together with related notes and the report of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP our independent registered public accounting firm are set forth on the

pages indicated in Part IV Item 15

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

USEC maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information

required to be disclosed by USEC in reports it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 is recorded processed summarized and reported on timely basis and that such information is

accumulated and communicated to management including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief

Financial Officer as appropriate to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure
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As of the end of the period covered by this report USEC carried out an evaluation under the

supervision and with the participation of the Companys management including the Chief Executive

Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of disclosure

controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15 Based upon and as of the date of

this evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that disclosure

controls and procedures were effective

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

USECs management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended and for an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting USECs internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are

being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company

and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of USECs internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this

evaluation management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective at

reasonable assurance level as of December 31 2008

The effectiveness of USECs internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008

has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm

as stated in their report which appears herein

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in internal control over financial reporting during the quarter

ended December 31 2008 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect

USECs internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART ifi

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Certain information regarding executive officers is included in Part of this annual report

Additional infonnation concerning directors executive officers and corporate governance is

incorporated herein by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation

14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the annual meeting of shareholders scheduled to

be held on April 30 2009

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information concerning management compensation is incorporated herein by reference to the

definitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 for the annual meeting of shareholders scheduled to be held on April 30 2009

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters

Information concerning security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and

related stockholder matters is incorporated herein by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement to

be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the annual

meeting of shareholders scheduled to be held on April 30 2009

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information concerning certain relationships and related transactions and director independence is

incorporated herein by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation

14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the annual meeting of shareholders scheduled to

be held on April 302009

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information concerning principal accountant fees and services is incorporated herein by reference

to the definitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 for the annual meeting of shareholders scheduled to be held on April 30 2009
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Consolidated Financial Statements

Reference is made to the consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this annual

report

Financial Statement Schedules

No financial statement schedules are required to be filed as part
of this annual report

Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibit Index are filed or incorporated by reference

as part
of this report

and such Exhibit Index is incorporated herein by reference The

accompanying Exhibit Index identifies each management contract or compensatory plan or

arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report and such listing is incorporated

herein by reference
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To Board of Directors and Stockholders of USEC Inc

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of

income consolidated statements of cash flows and consolidated statements of stockholders equity

present fairly in all material respects the financial position of USEC Inc and its subsidiaries at

December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three

years
in the period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects

effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established

in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these financial

statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in Managements Annual Report on

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A Our responsibility is to express

opinions on these financial statements and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

based on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in

all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles

used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of

internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our

audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances

We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements the Company changed the manner in

which it accounts for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans as of December 31 2006 As

discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements the Company changed the manner in which

it accounts for income taxes as of January 2007

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance

of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could

have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean Virginia

February 24 2009
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USEC Inc

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

millions except share and per share data
December 31

2008 2007

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $248.5 $886.1

Accounts receivable 154.1 252.9

Inventories

Separative work units 813.0 677.3

Uranium 402.1 465.9

Materials and supplies
16.8 10.2

Total Inventories 1231.9 1153.4

Deferred income taxes 67.9 49.5

Other current assets 188.3 88.7

Total Current Assets 1890.7 2430.6

Property Plant and Equipment net 736.1 292.2

Other Long-Term Assets

Deferred income taxes 273.3 180.1

Deposit for surety bonds 135.1 97.0

Pension asset
67.1

Bond financing costs net 12.0 13.8

Goodwill 6.8 6.8

Other long-term assets 1.3 0.2

Total Other Long-Term Assets 428.5 365.0

Total Assets 3.O553 t3..087.8

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt $95.7

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 172.3 162.2

Payables under Russian Contract 121.5 112.2

Inventories owed to customers and suppliers
130.2 322.3

Deferred revenue and advances from customers 196.7 119.1

Total Current Liabilities 716.4 715.8

Long-Term Debt 575.0 725.0

Other Long-Term Liabilities

Depleted uranium disposition
119.5 98.3

Postretirement health and life benefit obligations 168.1 130.6

Pension benefit liabilities 223.1 23.0

Other liabilities 90.8 85.6

Total Other Long-Term Liabilities 601.5 337.5

Commitments and Contingencies Note 16

Stockholders Equity

Preferred stock par
value $1.00 per share 25000000 shares

authorized none issued

Common stock par
value 10 per share 250000000 shares

authorized 123320000 shares issued 12.3 12.3

Excess of capital over par
value 1184.2 1186.2

Retained earnings
263.9 215.2

Treasury stock 1564000 and 12741000 shares 84.1 92.9

Accumulated other comprehensive loss net of tax 213.9 11.3

Total Stockholders Equity
1162.4 1309.5

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity 3..O553 S3.0g7.8

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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USEC Inc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
millions except per share data

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Revenue

Separative work units $1175.5 $1570.5 $1337.4

Uranium 217.1 163.5 316.7

U.S government contracts and other 222.0 194.0 194.5

Total revenue 1614.6 1928.0 1848.6

Cost of sales

Separative work units and uranium 1202.2 1473.6 1349.2

U.S government contracts and other 183.6 166.9 162.5

Total cost of sales 1385.8 1640.5 1511.7

Gross profit 228.8 287.5 336.9

Special charges 3.9

Advanced technology costs 110.2 127.3 105.5

Selling general and administrative
54.3 45.3 48.8

Operating income 64.3 114.9 178.7

Interest expense 17.3 16.9 14.5

Interest income 24.7 33.8 6.2

Income before income taxes 71.7 131.8 170.4

Provision for income taxes 23.0 35.2 64.2

Net income 47 S96.6 106.2

Net income per share basic
si .04 $1.22

Net income per share diluted
$.35 $.94 $1.22

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Basic 110.6 93.0 86.6

Diluted 158.7 105.8 86.8

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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USEC Inc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net income $48.7 $96.6 $106.2

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by used in

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 34.2 39.5 36.7

Deferred income taxes 3.1 40.6 13.4

Impairment of intangible asset 2.6

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable increase decrease 98.8 37.0 40.8

Inventories net increase decrease 270.6 36.2 176.1

Payables under Russian Contract increase decrease 9.3 6.9 6.3

Deferred revenue net of deferred costs increase decrease 24.5 5.1 3.7

Accrued depleted uranium disposition 21.2 26.8 24.5

Accounts payable and other liabilities decrease 31.2 25.1 82.1

Other net 42.9 3.3

Net Cash Provided by Used in Operating Activities 104.9 109.2 278.1

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities

Capital expenditures 441.9 137.2 44.8

Deposits for surety bonds 35.3 33.2 34.8

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 477.2 170.4 79k

Cash Flows Provided by Used in Financing Activities

Borrowings under credit facility
48.3 75.1 133.8

Repayments under credit facility 48.3 75.1 133.8

Repayment and repurchases of senior notes including premiums 54.3 288.8

Tax benefit related to stock-based compensation 0.9 0.4

Proceeds from issuance of convertible senior notes 575.0

Payments made for deferred financing costs 1.3 14.3 0.3

Common stock issued net of issuance costs ...QJ. 214.3 2.5

Net Cash Provided by Used in Financing Activities 55.5 775.9 286.2

Net Increase Decrease 637.6 714.7 87.7

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 886.1 171.4 259.1

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 24S.5 S6.1 S171..4

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Interest paid net of capitalized interest $15.9 $6.9 $19.3

Income taxes paid
50.0 101.9 107.3

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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USEC Inc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
millions except per share data

Common Accumulated

Stock Excess of Other

Par Value Capital Deferred Compre- Total Compre
$.1O per over Retained Treasury Comp- hensive Stockholders hensive

Share Par Value Earnings Stock ensation Income Loss Equity çome Loss

Balance at December 312005 10.0 970.6 31.3 99.5 2.7 2.1 907.6

Common stock issued

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 2.1 2.1

Restricted and other stock issued

netof amortization
2.7 1.9 4.6

Eliminate deferred compensation

under SFAS No 123R 2.7 2.7

Reduction in minimum pension liability

net 01 income tax of $0.5 million 1.1 1.1 1.1

Recognition of funding status of retirement

plans under SFAS No 158 net of income

tax benefit of $26.9 million 35.6 35.6

Net income 106.2 -_-_ ___ 106.2 106.2

Balance at December 312006 10.0 970.6 137.5 95.5 36.6 986.0 $107.3

Implementation of FIN 48 net of income tax

benefit of $7.5 million Note 12 18.9 18.9
Common stock issued

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 2.3 211.5 213.8

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 0.8 0.8

Restricted and other stock issued net of

amortization 4.1 1.8 5.9

Amortization of actuarial losses and prior

service costs credits and valuation revisions

net of income tax of $14.8 million 25.3 25.3 25.3

Net income
96.6 96.6 96.6

Balance at December 312007 12.3 1186.2 215.2 92.9 11.3 1309.5 $121.9

Restricted and other common stock issued net

of amortization 2.0 8.8 6.8

Valuation revisions and amortization of

actuarial losses and prior service costs

credits net of income tax of $114.7 million
202.6 202.6 202.6

Net income 48.7 48.7 48.7

Balance at December 312008 3.12.3 $1 1S42 $2639 S84.1 S21 391 $1.1 62-4 $1539

See notes to consolidated fmancial statements
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USEC Inc

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

USEC Inc USEC is global energy company and is leading supplier of low enriched

uranium LEU for commercial nuclear power plants

Customers typically provide uranium to us as part of their enrichment contracts Customers are

billed for the separative work units SWU deemed to be contained in the LEU delivered to them

SWU is standard unit of measurement that represents the effort required to transform given

amount of uranium into two streams enriched uranium having higher percentage of U235 and

depleted uranium having lower percentage of U235 The SWU contained in LEU is calculated using

an industry standard formula based on the physics of enrichment

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of USEC Inc its principal subsidiary

United States Enrichment Corporation and its other subsidiaries including NAC International Inc

NAC All material intercompany transactions are eliminated Certain amounts in the notes to the

consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the current presentation

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include temporary cash investments with original maturities of three

months or less

Inventories

Inventories of SWU and uranium are valued at the lower of cost or market Market is based on the

terms of long-term contracts with customers and for uranium not under contract market is based

primarily on published long-term price indicators at the balance sheet date SWU and uranium

inventory costs are determined using the monthly moving average cost method

SWU costs are based on production costs at the plants and purchase costs under the Russian

Contract Production costs consist principally of electric power labor and benefits depleted uranium

disposition cost estimates materials depreciation and amortization and maintenance and repairs The
cost of the SWU component of LEU purchased under the Russian Contract is recorded at acquisition

cost plus related shipping costs

Underfeeding is mode of operation that uses or feeds less uranium but requires more SWU in the

enrichment process which requires more electric power The quantity of uranium that is earned or

added to uranium inventory from underfeeding is accounted for as byproduct of the enrichment

process Production costs are allocated to the uranium earned based on the net realizable value of the

uranium and the remainder of production costs is allocated to SWU inventory costs

Revenue

Revenue is derived from sales of the SWU component of LEU from sales of both the SWU and

uranium components of LEU and from sales of uranium Revenue is recognized at the time LEU or

uranium is delivered under the terms of contracts with domestic and international electric utility
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customers USEC often advance ships LEU to nuclear fuel fabricators for scheduled or anticipated

orders from utility customers Based on customer orders USEC generally arranges for the transfer of

title of LEU from USEC to the customer for the specified quantity of LEU at the fuel fabricator

Revenue is recognized when delivery of LEU to the customer occurs at the fuel fabricator Some
customers take title and delivery of LEU at the Paducah plant and revenue is recognized when

delivery of LEU to the customer is complete

Certain customers make advance payments to be applied against future orders or deliveries

Advances from customers are reported as deferred revenue and revenue is recognized as LEU is

delivered Under SWIJ barter contracts USEC exchanges SWU for uranium Revenue from the sale

of SWU under barter contracts is recognized at the time LEU is delivered and is based on the fair

market value of the uranium received in exchange for SWU There was no revenue from SWU barter

contracts in 2008 Revenue from SWU barter contracts was $50.8 million in 2007 and $12.5 million

in 2006

USEC performs contract work primarily for the U.S Department of Energy DOE and DOE
contractors U.S government contract revenue includes billings for fees and reimbursements for

allowable costs that are determined in accordance with the terms of the underlying contracts USEC
records revenue as work is performed and as fees are earned Revenues determined based on
allowable costs include pension and other allocated costs that are determined in accordance with

government cost accounting standards whereas costs and expenses reflected in the financial

statements are determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles Amounts

representing contract change orders or final billing rates based on incurred costs are accrued and
included in revenue when they can be reliably estimated and realization is probable The final

settlement of the allowable costs submitted for reimbursement is subject to audit by the Defense
Contract Audit Agency DCAA and acceptance by DOE This process has been completed for

fiscal 2002 USEC first year as federal contractor under government cost accounting standards In

addition as of December 31 2008 USEC has finalized and submitted to DOE the billable incurred

costs for contract work for the six months ended December 31 2002 and the years ended December

31 2003 2004 2005 2006 and 2007 Based on USECs limited experience to date revenue

resulting from final billing rates is recognized upon completion of the DCAA audit and notice by
DOE authorizing final billing

Advanced Technology Costs

Costs relating to the American Centrifuge technology are charged to expense or capitalized based

on the nature of the activities and estimates and judgments involving the completion of project
milestones Costs relating to the demonstration of American Centrifuge technology are charged to

expense as incurred Demonstration costs include Nuclear Regulatory Commission NRC
licensing of the American Centrifuge Demonstration Facility in Piketon Ohio engineering activities

and assembling and
testing of centrifuge machines and equipment at centrifuge test facilities located

in Oak Ridge Tennessee and at the American Centrifuge Demonstration Facility

Capitalized costs relating to the American Centrifuge technology include NRC licensing of the

American Centrifuge Plant in Piketon Ohio engineering activities construction of centrifuge

machines and equipment leasehold improvements and other costs directly associated with the

commercial plant Capitalized centrifuge costs are recorded in property plant and equipment as part
of construction work in progress Amounts capitalized include interest of $14.7 million in 2008 $6.3

million in 2007 and $3.1 million in 2006 The continued capitalization of costs is subject to ongoing
review and successful project completion USECs move during the second half of 2007 from
demonstration phase to commercial plant phase in which significant expenditures are capitalized

was based on managements judgment that the technology has high probability of commercial
success and meets internal targets related to physical control technical achievement and economic

viability If conditions change and deployment were no longer probable costs that were previously
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capitalized would be charged to expense

In 2002 USEC and DOE signed an agreement in which both USEC and DOE made long-tenn

commitments directed at resolving issues related to the stability and security of the domestic uranium

enrichment industry Discussion of USEC commitments related to American Centrifuge project

milestones under this agreement is provided in note 16

Property Plant and Equipment

Construction work in progress is recorded at acquisition or construction cost Upon being placed

into service costs are transferred to leasehold improvements or machinery and equipment at which

time depreciation and amortization commences

USEC leases the Paducah gaseous diffusion plant GDP located in Paducah Kentucky and the

Portsmouth GDP located in Piketon Ohio from DOE Leasehold improvements and machinery and

equipment are recorded at acquisition cost and depreciated on straight line basis over the shorter of

the useful life of the assets or the expected productive life of the plant which is 2016 for the Paducah

GDP commensurate with an extension of the lease agreement exercised in June 2008 Maintenance

and repair costs are charged to production costs as incurred

Lease Turnover Costs and Asset Retirement Obligations

Property plant and equipment assets related to the GDPs are not subject to an asset retirement

obligation At the end of the lease ownership of plant and equipment that USEC leaves at the GDPs

transfers to DOE and responsibility
for decontamination and decommissioning of the GDPs remains

with DOE USEC estimates and accrues lease turnover costs For the operating Paducah GDP the

balance of expected costs is being accrued over the expected productive life of the plant Costs of

returning the GDPs to DOE in acceptable condition include removing uranium deposits as required

and removing USEC-generated waste Liabilities for lease turnover costs are based on current-dollar

cost estimates and are not discounted

USEC also leases facilities in Piketon Ohio from DOE for the American Centrifuge Plant USEC

owns all capital improvements and unless otherwise consented to by DOE must remove them by the

conclusion of the lease term At the conclusion of the 36-year lease period in 2043 assuming no

further extensions USEC is obligated to return these leased facilities to DOE in condition that

meets NRC requirements and in the same condition as the facilities were in when they were leased to

USEC other than due to normal wear and tear

Decontamination and decommissioning requirements for the American Centrifuge Plant create an

asset retirement obligation As construction of the American Centrifuge Plant takes place the present

value of the related asset retirement obligation is recognized as liability An equivalent amount is

recognized as part of the capitalized asset cost The liability is accreted or increased over time for

the time value of money The accretion is charged to cost of sales in the LEU segment Upon

commencement of commercial operations the asset cost will be depreciated over the shorter of the

asset life or the expected lease period

During each reporting period USEC reassesses and revises the estimate of the asset retirement

obligation based on construction progress cost evaluation of future decommissioning expectations

and other judgmental considerations which impact the amount recorded in both construction work in

progress and other long-term liabilities
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Long-Lived Assets

USEC evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets by performing impairment tests whenever

adverse conditions or changes in circumstances indicate possible impairment loss Impairment tests

are based on comparison of estimated future cash flows to the carrying values of long-lived assets

If impairment is indicated the asset carrying value is reduced to fair market value or if fair market

value is not readily available the asset is reduced to value determined by applying discount rate

to expected cash flows

Enviromnental Costs

Environmental costs relating to operations are accrued and charged to inventory costs as incurred

Estimated environmental costs including depleted uranium disposition and waste disposal are

accrued where environmental assessments indicate that storage treatment or disposal is probable and

costs can be reasonably estimated USEC stores depleted uranium at the Paducah and Portsmouth

GDPs for future disposition Changes in the estimated unit disposal cost result in charges to cost of

sales for the accumulated quantity of depleted uranium Liabilities for waste and depleted uranium

disposition are based on current-dollar cost estimates and are not discounted

Financial Instruments

The balance sheet carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable accounts

payable and accrued liabilities and payables under the Russian Contract approximate fair value

because of the short-term nature of the instruments

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Credit risk could result from the possibility of customer failing to perform or pay according to

the terms of contract Extension of credit is based on an evaluation of each customers financial

condition USEC regularly monitors credit risk exposure and takes steps to mitigate the likelihood of

such exposure resulting in loss

Stock-Based Compensation

USEC has stock-based compensation plans available to grant restricted stock restricted stock

units non-qualified stock options performance awards and other stock-based awards to key

employees and non-employee directors as well as an employee stock purchase plan Stock-based

compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is

recognized over the requisite service period which is either immediate recognition if the employee is

eligible to retire or on straight-line basis until the earlier of either the date of retirement eligibility

or the end of the vesting period

Deferred Income Taxes

USEC follows the asset and liability approach to account for deferred income taxes Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are recognized for the anticipated future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the balance sheet carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective

tax bases Deferred income taxes are based on income tax rates in effect for the years in which

temporary differences are expected to reverse The effect on deferred income taxes of change in

income tax rates is recognized in income when the change in rates is enacted in the law valuation

allowance is provided if it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets may not

be realized
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect reported amounts presented and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements Significant

estimates and judgments include but are not limited to pension and postretirement health and life

benefit costs and obligations costs for the conversion transportation and disposition of depleted

uranium accounting treatment for expenditures on American Centrifuge plant lease turnover costs

the tax bases of assets and liabilities the future recoverability of deferred tax assets and determination

of the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets Actual results may differ from such estimates and

estimates may change if the underlying conditions or assumptions change

New Accounting Standard

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement of

Financial Accounting Standard SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements This statement

clarifies the definition of fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value when required

or permitted under other accounting pronouncements and expands the disclosures on fair value

measurements The implementation of SFAS No 157 for financial assets and liabilities effective

January 2008 did not have an impact on USECs financial position and results of operations

SFAS No 157 is effective beginning with USECs first quarter of 2009 for non-financial assets

and liabilities USEC does not expect that the adoption of the statement will have material effect on

its financial position or results of operations for the first quarter of 2009

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

December 31
2008 2007

millions

Accounts receivable

Utility customers

Trade receivables $109.2 $160.9

Unbilled revenue 1.5 53.3

110.7 214.2

Contract services primarily Department of Energy

Billed revenue 26.6 24.9

Unbilled revenue 16.8 13.8

43.4 38.7

154.1 252.9

Other current assets

Deferred costs relating to deferred revenue $111.4 $58.3

Prepaid items 76.9 30.4

S1883 87

Accounts receivable are net of valuation and allowances for doubtful accounts totaling $14.5

million at December 31 2008 and $17.4 million at December 31 2007

Unbilled revenue for utility customers represents price adjustments for past deliveries that are not

yet billable under the applicable contracts

Billings for contract services related to DOE are invoiced based on provisional billing rates

approved by DOE Unbilled revenue represents the difference between actual costs incurred prior

to DCAA audit and notice by DOE authorizing final billing and provisional billing rate invoiced

amounts USEC expects to invoice and collect the unbilled amounts as billing rates are revised

submitted to and approved by DOE
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PURCHASE OF SEPARATIVE WORK UNITS UNDER RUSSIAN CONTRACT

USEC is the U.S governments exclusive executive agent Executive Agent in connection with

government-to-government nonproliferation agreement between the United States and the Russian

Federation Under the agreement USEC has been designated by the U.S government to order LEU
derived from dismantled Soviet nuclear weapons In January 1994 USEC signed commercial

agreement Russian Contract with Russian government entity known as OAO Techsnabexport

TENEX to implement the program

USEC has agreed to purchase approximately 5.5 million SWU each calendar year for the

remaining term of the Russian Contract through 2013 Over the life of the 20-year Russian Contract

USEC expects to purchase about 92 million SWIJ contained in LEU derived from 500 metric tons of

highly enriched uranium and as of December 31 2008 USEC had purchased 65 million SWU
contained in LEU derived from 352 metric tons of highly enriched uranium Purchases under the

Russian Contract approximate one-half of USECs supply mix Prices are determined using

discount from an index of international and U.S price points including both long-term and spot

prices multi-year retrospective view of the index is used to minimize the disruptive effect of any
short-term market price swings Increases in these price points in recent years have resulted in

increases to the index used to determine prices under the Russian Contract On February 13 2009

USEC entered into an amendment to the Russian Contract to revise the pricing methodology for

delivery in calendar years 2010 through 2013 Approval of both the U.S government and the

government of the Russian Federation is required for the amendment to become effective The new

pricing methodology is intended to enhance the stability of future pricing for both parties through

formula that combines different mix of price points and other pricing elements

The Russian Contract provides that the parties may agree on appropriate adjustments if necessary

to ensure that TENEX receives at least approximately $7.6 billion for the SWU component over the

20-year term of the Russian Contract through 2013 From inception of the Russian Contract in 1994

through December 31 2008 USEC has purchased the SWU component of LEU at an aggregate cost

of approximately $5.6 billion Purchases of SWU under the Russian Contract are expected to exceed

$0.5 billion per year through 2013

INVENTORIES

2008 2007

millions

Current assets

Separative work units $813.0 $677.3

Uranium 402.1 465.9

Materials and supplies 16.8 10.2

1231.9 1153.4

Current liabilities

Inventories owed to customers and suppliers 130.2 322.3

Inventories net 1.1O1.7 SS31.1

Inventories Owed to Customers and Suppliers

Generally title to uranium provided by customers as part of their enrichment contracts does not

pass to USEC until delivery of LEU In limited cases however title th the uranium passes to USEC

immediately upon delivery of the uranium by the customer Uranium provided by customers for

which title passed to USEC is recorded on the balance sheet at estimated fair values of $1.6 million at

December 31 2008 and $2.8 million at December 31 2007
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Additionally USEC owed SWU and uranium inventories to fabricators with cost totaling $128.6

million at December 31 2008 and $319.5 million at December 31 2007 Fabricators process LEU
into fuel for use in nuclear reactors Under inventory optimization arrangements between USEC and

domestic fabricators fabricators order bulk quantities of LEU from USEC based on scheduled or

anticipated orders from utility customers for deliveries in future periods As delivery obligations

under actual customer orders arise USEC satisfies these obligations by arranging for the transfer to

the customer of title to the speciflea quantity of LEU on the fabricators books Fabricators have

other inventory supplies and where fabricator has elected to order less material from USEC than

USEC is required to deliver to its customers at the fabricator the fabricator will use these other

inventories to satisfy USECs customer order obligations on USECs behalf In such cases the

transfer of title of LEU from USEC to the customer results in quantities of SWU and uranium owed

by USEC to the fabricator The amounts of SWU and uranium owed to fabricators are satisfied as

future bulk deliveries of LEU are made

Uranium Provided by Customers and Suppliers

USEC held uranium with estimated fair values of approximately $3.8 billion at December 31
2008 and $5.8 billion at December 31 2007 to which title was held by customers and suppliers and

for which no assets or liabilities were recorded on the balance sheet The reduction reflects 42%
decline in the uranium spot price indicator partially offset by 12% increase in quantities Utility

customers provide uranium to USEC as part of their enrichment contracts Generally title to uranium

provided by customers remains with the customer until delivery of LEU at which time title to LEU is

transferred to the customer and title to uranium is transferred to USEC

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

summary of changes in property plant and equipment follows in millions

Capital Transfers Capital Transfers

December 31 Expenditures and December 31 Expenditures and December 31
2005 Deoreciation Retirements Deuredation Retirements

Construction work in progress $29.0 $53.9 $1 1.1 $71.8 $141.5 $20.6 $192.7

Leasehold improvements 161.5 6.5 168.0 3.8 171.8

Machinery and equipment 1721 ji j0 2.7 63 I2LQ

370.2 55.1 3.5 421.8 144.2 10.5 5555

Accumulated depreciation and

amortization j9Q 3.4 231.9 L4
17t2 tl$9.9 S106.S S2922

Capital Transfers

December 31 Expenditures and December 31

2fii Deuredation Retirements

Construction work in progress $192.7 $472.5 $47.7 $617.5

Leasehold improvements 171.8 5.0 176.8

Machinery and equipment J2LQ _2J _4.L2

555.5 474.6 1.5 1028.6

Accumulated depreciation and

amortization 263.3 1.5

292.2 S443.9
_____

Capital expenditures include items in accounts payable and accrued liabilities for which cash is

paid in the following period
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USEC is working to construct and deploy the American Centrifuge Plant Construction work in

progress related to the American Centrifuge Plant none of which has yet been placed in service

totaled $601.8 million at December 31 2008 and $181.8 million at December 31 2007 Capitalized

asset retirement obligations included in construction work in progress totaled $13.0 million at

December 31 2008 and $4.3 million at December 31 2007

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES

USEC acquired NAC in 2004 allocating $7.5 million of the purchase cost to goodwill and $3.9

million to intangible assets related to customer contracts and relationships As part of the acquisition

tax-related valuation allowance of $2.3 million was established primarily for state net operating

losses that are available to offset future taxable income of NAC During 2006 USEC recognized

$0.7 million of tax benefits earned or expected to be earned from the net operating losses The offset

to these benefits was recorded as reduction to goodwill The goodwill amount is not deductible for

income tax purposes

The amount allocated to intangible assets included $3.4 million related to the management of the

Nuclear Materials Management and Safeguards System NMMSS for DOE This value was based

on three-year $25 million contract extension that ran through September 2008 and further

renewals that were anticipated through 2017 In 2006 DOE verbally communicated to NAC that the

NMMSS contract would be set aside for small business after the contract expired in 2008 and DOE
issued solicitation seeking qualified small businesses with an interest to bid special charge of

$2.6 million in 2006 represents an impairment of the intangible asset since NAC was not considered

qualified small business as defined by DOE The special charge was calculated after analyzing cash

flow projections and comparing the results to the estimated fair value of the assets acquired at the

date of acquisition Amortization of the remaining portion of intangible assets relating to NMMSS
was completed in 2008

Intangible assets related to NACs customer contracts and relationships reflect the special charge

and amortization as follows in millions

Gross

Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization

December 31 2005 $3.9 $0.3 $3.6

2006 amortization expense and special charge 0.4

December 31 2006 1.3 0.7 0.6

2007 amortization expense 0.4

December 31 2007 1.3 1.1 0.2

2008 amortization expense

December 31 2008
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITES

2008 2007

millions

Trade payables
$36.6 $47.3

Compensation and benefits 53.3 49.5

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt 7.9 9.6

Accrued income taxes payable
1.9 4.2

American Centrifuge accrued liabilities 48.5 15.5

Other accrued liabilities 24.1 36.1

S172.3 162.2

DEFERRED REVENUE AND ADVANCESFROM CUSTOMERS

Deferred revenue and advances from customers were as follows in millions

December 31
2008 2007

Deferred revenue $196.3 $116.4

Advances from customers 0.4 2.7

S196.7 119.1

In number of sales transactions title to uranium or LEU is transferred to the customer and USEC
receives payment under normal credit terms without physically delivering the uranium or LEU to the

customer This may occur because the terms of the agreement require USEC to hold the uranium to

which the customer has title or because the customer encounters brief delays in taking delivery of

LEU at USECs facilities In such cases recognition of revenue does not occur at the time title to

uranium or LEU transfers to the customer but instead is deferred until LEU to which the customer

has title is physically delivered Related costs associated with deferred revenue reported in other

current assets totaled $111.4 million at December 31 2008 and $58.3 million at December 31 2007

DEBT
December 31

2008 2007

millions

3.0% convertible senior notes due October 2014 $575.0 $575.0

6.75% senior notes due January 20 2009 150.0

67O.7 725.O

Convertible Senior Notes due 2014

In September 2007 USEC issued $575.0 million in convertible notes The notes bear interest at

rate of 3.0% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears on April and October of each year

beginning on April 2008 As part of this issuance USEC paid underwriting discounts and accrued

related offering expenses of $14.3 million These costs are deferred and are being amortized using the

effective interest rate method over the life of the convertible notes Amortization was $0.5 million in

2007 and $1.8 million in 2008

The notes are senior unsecured obligations and rank equally with all existing and future senior

unsecured debt of USEC Inc and senior to all subordinated debt of USEC Inc The notes are

structurally subordinated to all existing and future liabilities of subsidiaries of USEC Inc and will be

effectively subordinated to existing and future secured indebtedness of USEC Inc to the extent of the

value of the collateral
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Holders may convert their notes to common stock at their option on any day prior to the close of

business on the scheduled trading day immediately preceding August 2014 only under the following

circumstances during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading day period in

which the price per note for each trading day of that measurement period was less than 98% of the

product of the last reported sale price of USEC Inc common stock and the conversion rate on each

such day during any calendar quarter and only during such quarter if the last reported sale price

of USEC Inc common stock for 20 or more trading days in period of 30 consecutive trading days

ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter exceeds 120% of the

conversion price in effect on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter or

upon the occurrence of specified corporate events The notes will be convertible regardless of the

foregoing circumstances at any time from and including August 2014 through the scheduled

trading day immediately preceding the maturity date of the notes The notes were not eligible for

conversion as of December 31 2008

Upon conversion for each $1000 in principal amount outstanding USEC will deliver number of

shares of USEC Inc common stock equal to the conversion rate The initial conversion rate for the

notes is 83.6400 shares of common stock per $1000 in principal amount of notes equivalent to an

initial conversion price of approximately $1 1.956 per share of common stock The conversion rate will

be subject to adjustment in some events but will not be adjusted for accrued interest In addition if

make-whole fundamental change as defined in the indenture governing the notes occurs prior to the

maturity date of the notes USEC will in some cases increase the conversion rate for holder that

elects to convert its notes in connection with such make-whole fundamental change

Subject to certain exceptions holders may require USEC to repurchase for cash all or part of their

notes upon fundamental change as defined in the indenture governing the notes at price equal to

100% of the principal amount of the notes being repurchased plus any accrued and unpaid interest up

to but excluding the relevant repurchase date USEC may not redeem the notes prior to maturity

At December 31 2008 the fair value of the convertible notes based on quoted market prices was

$207.0 million compared with the balance sheet carrying amount of $575.0 million

Senior Notes due January 20 2009

Senior notes bearing interest at 6.75% amounted to $95.7 million in aggregate principal amount at

December 31 2008 and $150.0 million at December 31 2007 Interest was paid every six months in

arrears on January 20 and July 20 The remaining balance of the senior notes was paid on the

scheduled maturity date of January 20 2009 The senior notes were unsecured obligations ranking on

parity with all other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of USEC Inc At December 31 2008
the fair value of the senior notes calculated based on credit-adjusted spread over U.S Treasury

securities with similar maturities was $94.9 million

Revolving Credit Facility

In August 2005 USEC entered into five-year syndicated bank credit facility providing up to

$400.0 million in revolving credit commitments including up to $300.0 million in letters of credit

secured by assets of USEC Inc and its subsidiaries There were no short-term borrowings under the

revolving credit facility at December 31 2008 or at December 31 2007 In 2008 aggregate

borrowings and repayments amounted to $48.3 million and the peak amount outstanding was $37.4

million Letters of credit issued under the facility amounted to $48.0 million at December 31 2008

and $38.4 million at December 31 2007
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The revolving credit facility is available to finance working capital needs and fund capital

programs including the American Centrifuge project Financing costs of $3.5 million and $0.3

million to obtain and amend the credit facility respectively were deferred and are being amortized

over the life of the facility

Outstanding borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at variable rate which at our

election is equal to either

the sum of the greater of the JPMorgan Chase Bank prime rate and the federal funds rate

plus of 1% plus margin ranging from .25% to .75% based upon collateral availability

or

the sum of LIBOR plus margin ranging from 2.0% to 2.5% based on collateral availability

Borrowings under the credit facility are subject to limitations based on established percentages of

qualifying assets such as eligible accounts receivable and inventory The credit facility contains

various reserve provisions that reduce available borrowings under the facility periodically or restrict

the use of borrowings if certain requirements are not met including those listed below

December 31

Requirement QQZ

millions

Available Credit $343.0 $361.6

Credit facility provisions

Availability $35.0 $342.3 $360.9

Collateral Availability $75.0 $342.3 $393.3

Available Liquidity $125.0 $591.5 $1247.7

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 we met all of the reserve provision requirements by large

margin However we expect to have borrowings under the credit facility
in 2009 which will reduce

Availability Collateral Availability and Available Liquidity

Available Credit reflects the levels of qualifying assets at the end of the previous month less any

borrowings or letters of credit and will fluctuate during the year Qualifying assets are reduced by

certain reserves principally reserve for future obligations to DOE with respect to the turnover of

the gaseous diffusion plants at the end of the term of the lease of these facilities As result of the

capital USEC raised from the issuance of common stock and convertible notes in September 2007

qualifying assets are no longer reduced by $150.0 million reserve referred to in the agreement as

the senior note reserve

Availability means the lesser of $400 million and ii the sum of eligible receivables and

eligible inventory subject to caps less the sum of letters of credit issued outstanding loan balances

and accrued interest fees and expenses Availability equals Available Credit less accrued interest

fees and expenses

Collateral Availability means the sum of eligible receivables and eligible inventory subject to

caps minus the outstanding loans letters of credit issued and accrued interest fees and expenses

Available Liquidity means Availability plus cash balances in accounts controlled by the

administrative agent
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Additional details regarding these reserve provisions follow

Reuuirement Outcome

Availability $35 million If not met at any time an event of default is triggered

Collateral Availability if not met for consecutive days then fixed charge ratio

$75 million
required to be 1.00 to 1.00 until the 90th consecutive day
Collateral Availability is restored to $75 million

Available Liquidity If not met for consecutive days non-financed capital

$125 million expenditures are limited to $50 million until the 90th

consecutive day Available Liquidity is restored to $125

million

Other reserves under the revolving credit facility such as availability reserves and borrowing base

reserves are customary for credit facilities of this type

The revolving credit facility also includes various customary operating covenants including

restrictions on the incurrence and prepayment of other indebtedness granting of liens sales of assets

making of investments maintenance of minimum amount of inventory and payment of dividends

or other distributions Failure to satisfy the covenants would constitute an event of default under the

revolving credit facility In September 2007 the revolving credit facility was amended to specifically

permit the issuance of the convertible senior notes described above and any conversion of the

convertible senior notes into common stock

failure by USEC to comply with obligations under the revolving credit facility or other

agreements such as the indenture governing USECs outstanding convertible notes and the 2002

DOE-USEC Agreement or the occurrence of fundamental change as defined in the indenture

governing USECs outstanding convertible notes or the occurrence of material adverse effect as

defined in USECs credit facility could result in an event of default under the credit facility

default if not cured or waived could permit acceleration of USEC indebtedness

DOE Loan Guarantee Program

Included in other long-term assets are approximately $1.3 million for deferred financing costs

related to the DOE Loan Guarantee Program such as loan guarantee application fees paid to DOE
and third-party costs Deferred financing costs will be amortized over the life of the loan or if USEC
does not receive loan charged to expense

Other

In January 2006 USEC repaid the remaining balance of its 6.625% senior notes of $288.8 million

on the scheduled maturity date
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10 PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT HEALTH AND LIFE BENEFITS

There are approximately 7300 employees and retirees covered by defined benefit pension plans

providing retirement benefits based on compensation and years of service and approximately 4000

employees retirees and dependents covered by postretirement health and life benefit plans DOE
retained the obligation for postretirement health and life benefits for workers who retired prior to July

28 1998 Pursuant to the supplemental executive retirement plans SERP and pension restoration

plan USEC provides executive officers additional retirement benefits in excess of qualified plan

limits imposed by tax law Non-union employees hired on or after September 2008 do not

participate in defined benefit pension plan

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined

Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans requiring the recognition in the balance sheet of the

overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability and

an offsetting adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income loss component of

stockholders equity SFAS No 158 requires prospective application and was effective beginning

with USEC financial statements at December 31 2006 SFAS No 158 requires balance sheet

recognition of net actuarial losses and prior service costs and benefits items that are deferred and

recognized as net periodic benefit costs in the statement of income over time SFAS No 158 also

requires that plan assets and benefit obligations be measured at the year-end balance sheet date

which is consistent with USECs practice SFAS No 158 does not impact the measurement of plan

assets and benefit obligations or the determination of the amount of net periodic benefit cost in the

statement of income

During 2008 the defined benefit pension plans moved from overfunded to underfunded status

driven by decrease in the value of plan assets The expected return on plan assets is based on the

weighted average of long-term return expectations for the composition of the plans equity and debt

securities Expected returns for each asset class are based on historical returns and expectations of

future returns The differences between the actual return on plan assets and expected return on plan

assets are accumulated in Net Actuarial Gains and Losses The expected return on plan assets for

the defined benefit pension plans in 2008 was 8%
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Changes in the projected benefit obligations and plan assets and the funded status of the plans

follow in millions

Postretirement Health

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Life Benefit Plans

Years Ended Years Ended

December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2008 2007

Changes in Benefit Obligations

Obligations at beginning of year
$737.0 $744.4 $203.6 $202.2

Actuarial gains losses net 20.3 31.7 0.6 5.0

Service costs 17.4 17.9 4.4 4.1

Interest costs 45.7 43.1 12.1 11.8

Gross benefits paid 37.6 36.3 9.7 9.7

Other 0.4

Less federal subsidy on benefits paid Ji2

Obligations at end of year iZQ 21U 203.6

Changes in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 780.9 737.7 73.0 73.5

Actual return on plan assets 194.8 70.2 23.8 6.1

USEC contributions 10.3 9.8 3.6 3.1

Benefits paid 37.6 36.3 9.7 9.7

Other ._
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

43.1 73.0

Funded Unfunded status at end of year 224.0 43.9 168.1 130.6

Amounts recognized in assets and liabilities

Noncurrent assets $67.1

Current liabilities 0.9 0.2
Noncurrent liabilities 223.1 23.0 168.1 130.6

224.0 168.1 13O.6

Amounts recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income pre-tax

Net actuarial loss gain $302.0 $26.0 $55.1 $26.2

Prior service cost credit 9.2 23.0 37.4

3o9_c 11.2

Assumptions used to determine benefit

obligations at end of year

Discount rate 6.09% 6.21% 6.00% 5.96%

Compensation increases 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25

Projected benefit obligations for the defined benefit pension plans and the postretirement health

and life benefit plans were discounted at weighted average rates of 6.09% and 6.00% respectively to

determine the present values of the obligations as of December 31 2008 The discount rates are the

estimated rates at which the benefit obligations could be effectively settled on the measurement date

and are based on yields of high quality fixed income investments whose cash flows match the timing

and amount of expected benefit payments of the plans

The current portion of underfunded plan liabilities represents the expected benefit payments for

the following year in excess of the fair value of the plan assets at year-end Therefore the current

liability reflects projected benefit payments for SERP and the pension restoration plan in the

following year
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Projected benefit obligations are based on actuarial assumptions including future increases in

compensation Accumulated benefit obligations are based on actuarial assumptions but do not

include possible future increases in compensation The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined

benefit pension plans was $704.5 million at December 31 2008 and $661.9 million at December 31

2007 At December 31 2008 none of USEC plans had fair value of plan assets in excess of

accumulated benefit obligations

The expected cost of providing pension benefits is accrued over the years employees render

service and actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the employees average future service life

For postretirement health and life benefits actuarial gains and losses and prior service costs or

benefits are amortized over the employees average remaining years of service from age 40 until the

date of full benefit eligibility

USEC began receiving federal subsidy payments in 2006 in connection with change in Medicare

law affecting corporations that sponsor prescription drug benefits The Medicare Prescription Drug

Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 provides prescription drug benefits under Medicare

Medicare Part as well as federal subsidy payments to sponsors of plans that provide

prescription drug benefits that are at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part USEC in

consultation with its actuaries has determined that the prescription drug provisions of its

postretirement health benefit plan are at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part

The components of net benefit costs for pension and postretirement health and life benefit plans

were as follows in millions

Postretirement Health

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Life Benefit Plans

Years Ended December 31 Years Ended December 31

Service costs $17.4 $17.9 $18.3 $4.4 $4.1 $4.7

Interestcosts 45.7 43.1 40.7 12.1 11.8 11.0

Expected return on plan assets gains 61.4 58.0 53.8 5.2 5.6 5.5

Amortization of pnor service costs credit 1.7 1.8 1.7 14.5 14.5 14.5

Amortization of actuarial gains losses net 0.7 1.3 5.3 0.7 2.2 2.6

Other special charges

Net benefit costs 2..5

Assumptions used to determine net benefit costs

Discountrate 6.21% 5.75% 5.50% 5.96% 5.75% 5.50%

Expected return on plan assets 8.00 8.00 8.00 7.50 8.00 8.00

Compensation increases 4.25 4.00 3.75 4.25 4.00 3.75

The estimated actuarial net loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plans that

will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension benefit cost

during 2009 are $23.9 million and $1.7 million respectively The estimated actuarial net loss and

prior service cost credit for the postretirement health and life plans that will be amortized from

accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost during 2009 are $4.2 million and

$14.5 million respectively
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Healthcare cost trend rates used to measure postretirement health benefit obligations follow

December 31

2008 2007

Healthcare cost trend rate for the following year 8.25% 9.00%

Long-term rate that the healthcare cost trend rate

gradually declines to 5% 5%
Year that the healthcare cost trend rate is expected to

reach the long-term rate 2016 2014

one-percentage-point change in the assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have an effect on the

postretirement health benefit obligation and costs as follows in millions

One Percentage Point

Increase Decrease

Postretirement health benefit obligation $8.6 $8.3
Net benefit costs $1.0 $0.9

Benefit Plan Assets

Independent investment advisors manage assets in each category to maximize investment returns

within reasonable and prudent levels of risk Risk is reduced by diversifying plan assets in broad

mix of asset classes and by following strategic asset allocation approach Asset classes and
target

weights are adjusted periodically to optimize the long-term portfolio risk/return tradeoff to provide

liquidity for benefit payments and to align portfolio risk with the underlying obligations In 2008
actual returns for the defined benefit pension plan assets were significantly below the expected long-

term rate of return on plan assets of 8% due to adverse conditions in the financial markets

The allocation of plan assets between equity and debt securities and the target allocation range by
asset category follows

Percentage of Target

Plan Assets Allocation

December 31 Ranee

2008 2007 2008

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Equity securities 50% 60% 40-60%
Debt securities 40 40-60

100% 100%
Postretirement Health and Life Benefit Plans

Equity securities 67% 65% 55-75%

Debt securities 33 35 25-45

100% 100%

In order to attempt to reduce the volatility of pension plan assets and also to better align plan

assets with liabilities the target equity allocation was reduced in 2008 by 10% and the
target fixed

income allocation was increased by 10%
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Benefit Plan Cash Flows

USEC expects cash contributions to the plans in 2009 will be as follows $23.6 million for the

defined benefit pension plans and $5.3 millionfor the postretirement health and life benefit plans

Estimated future benefit plan payments and expected subsidies from Medicare follow in

millions
Postretirement Expected

Defined Benefit Health and Life Subsidies

Pension Plans Benefit Plans From Medicare

2009 $39.2 $11.4 $0.3

2010 41.0 13.2 0.4

2011 42.6 14.9 0.5

2012 51.2 16.3 0.7

2013 46.9 17.8 0.9

2014to2018 273.1 108.7 7.4

Other Plans

USEC sponsors 401k defined contribution plan for employees Employee contributions are

matched at established rates Amounts contributed are invested in range of investment options

available to participants and the funds are administered by an independent trustee USECs matching

cash contributions amounted to $7.4 million in 2008 $6.6 million in 2007 and $6.1 million in 2006

Under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan and previously under the 401k Restoration

Plan qualified employees contribute and USEC matches contributions in excess of amounts eligible

under the 401k plan USECs matching contributions amounted to $0.1 million in each of 2008

2007 and 2006
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11 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

USEC has stock-based compensation plans available to grant restricted stock restricted stock

units non-qualified stock options performance awards and other stock-based awards to key

employees and non-employee directors as well as an employee stock purchase plan summary of

stock-based compensation costs follows in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Total stock-based compensation costs

Restricted stock and restricted stock units $5.1 $5.2 $3.5

Stock options performance awards and other 1.2 0.8 0.8

Less costs capitalized as part of inventory .i.Q.2 ..LLi1 0.3

Expense included in selling general and

administrative

Total after-tax expense

As of December 31 2008 there was $4.1 million of unrecognized compensation cost adjusted for

estimated forfeitures related to non-vested stock-based payments granted of which $2.7 million

relates to restricted shares and restricted stock units and $1.4 million relates to stock options That

cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 1.6 years

Of the 16.9 million shares of common stock approved by stockholders for issuance under USECs
equity incentive plan and employee stock purchase plan there were 5404000 shares available for

future awards under the plan at December 31 2008 excluding outstanding awards which terminate

or are cancelled without being exercised or that are settled for cash including 4036000 shares

available for grants of stock options and 1368000 shares available for restricted stock or restricted

stock units performance awards and other stock-based awards as well as the employee stock

purchase plan USEC practice is to issue shares under stock-based compensation plans from

treasury stock

Restricted Stock Units and Restricted Stock

Under the long-term incentive program established in April 2006 the target award denominated in

shares of USEC stock is determined based on the average closing price of USECs common stock in

the calendar month prior to the beginning of the performance period The awards are then marked to

market each period with 80% of the adjustment based on the ending price of USECs common stock

The remaining 20% is based on market condition and is valued using Monte Carlo model

Compensation cost for these awards is generally recognized over three-year service period The

awards can be settled in cash or USEC stock or can be deferred for future settlement at the

employees discretion Since there is the potential for cash settlement the awards are classified as

liability Non-employee directors are granted restricted stock units as part
of their compensation for

serving on the Board of Directors which can only be settled in USEC stock The restricted stock units

vest over one or three years
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The fair value of restricted stock is determined based on the closing price of USECs common stock

on the grant date Compensation cost for restricted stock is amortized to expense on straight-line

basis over the vesting period which depending on the grant is amortized ratably over one- three- or

five-year period Sale of such shares is restricted prior to the date of vesting summary of restricted

shares activity for the year ended December 31 2008 follows shares in thousands

Weighted-Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Restricted Shares at December 312007 788 $10.82

Granted 820 5.84

Vested 338 11.15

Forfeited Li 13.09

Restricted Shares at December 31 2008 $7.46

Stock Options

The intrinsic value of an option if any represents the excess of the fair value of the common

stock over the exercise price The determination of the fair value of stock option awards is affected

by USEC stock price and number of complex and subjective variables Fair value is estimated

using the Black-Scholes option pricing model which includes number of assumptions including

USECs estimates of stock price volatility employee stock option exercise behaviors future dividend

payments and risk-free interest rates

The expected term of options granted is the estimated period of time from the beginning of the

vesting period to the date of expected exercise or other settlement based on historical exercises and

post-vesting terminations Future stock price volatility is estimated based on historical volatility for

the recent period equal to the expected term of the options The risk-free interest rate for the expected

option term is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant No cash dividends

are expected in the foreseeable future and therefore an expected dividend yield of zero is used in the

option valuation model Historical data are used to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures at the time

of grant Estimates for option forfeitures are revised in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ

from those estimates Compensation expense is recognized for stock option awards that are expected

to vest

Assumptions used to value option grants follow

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Risk-free interest rate 1.84-2.62% 4.5% 4.6%

Expected dividend yield

Expected volatility
50-56% 42% 41%

Expected option life 3.5 years
3.5 years 3.5 years

Weighted-average grant date fair value $2.23 $4.77 $4.21

Options granted 818000 258000 288000
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Stock options vest or become exercisable in equal annual installments over one to three year

period and expire or 10 years from the date of grant summary of stock option activity follows

Weighted-Average

Stock Weighted- Remaining Aggregate

Options Average Contractual Intrinsic Value

thousands Exercise Price Term years millions

Outstanding at December 31 2007 1318 10.23

Granted 818 5.85

Exercised

Forfeited or expired 12.65

Outstanding at December 31 2008 L5

Exercisable at December 31 2008
2.3

Cash received from the exercise of stock options was $0.8 million in 2007 and $2.1 million in

2006 The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $1.0 million in 2007 and $1.3 million in

2006 There were no options exercised in 2008

Stock options outstanding and options exercisable at December 31 2008 follow options in

thousands

Weighted

Average

Remaining
Stock Exercise Options Contractual Options

Outstandine Life in Years Exercisable

$3.63 to $7.00 1033 0.6 216

7.02to7.13 151 3.1 151

8.05 104 0.2 104

8.50 142 2.6 142

10.44to 11.88 103 1.7 103

12.09 225 2.3 149

12.l9to 14.28 275 3.0 125

16.90 __ 1.3

2.1 1.5 LOZZ

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the employee stock purchase plan participating employees may purchase shares of USEC
Inc common stock at 85% of the market price at the end of the six-month offer period There is

minimum holding period of one year Employees can elect to designate up to 10% of their

compensation to purchase common stock under the plan USEC is required to recognize the

compensation costs for the discounts provided under the plan effective January 2006 USEC
recognized expense of $0.1 million in each of the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 related

to this plan Shares purchased by employees amounted to approximately 132000 in 2008 and

approximately 54000 in 2007 At December 31 2008 there were 211000 remaining shares

available for purchase under the plan
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12 INCOME TAXES

Provision

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations is as follows in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Current

Federal $13.7 $68.3 $70.4

State and local _.L _LZ
19.9 75.8 77.6

Deferred

Federal 2.5 41.2 14.4

State and local 0.6 0.6 1.0

3.1 40.6 13.4

$23.0 $35.2 $64.2

Deferred Taxes

Future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes and USECs estimate of the tax bases of its assets and liabilities result in deferred

tax assets and liabilities as follows in millions
December 31

2008 2007

Deferred tax assets

Plant lease turnover and other exit costs $23.2 $23.9

Employee benefits costs 166.5 57.4

Inventory 44.8 28.7

Property plant and equipment 47.1 66.9

Tax intangibles 3.4 4.4

Deferred costs for depleted uranium 46.1 38.7

Net operating loss carryforwards 1.6 1.9

Accrued expenses 6.1 7.3

Other 5.2 3.4

$344.0 $232.6

Valuation allowance 1.5 1.8

Deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance 342.5 230.8

Deferred tax liabilities

Prepaid expenses 13
Deferred tax liabilities 1.3 1.2

$341.2 $229.6

The valuation allowances of $1.5 million and $1.8 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively reduce deferred tax assets and are recorded as result of the acquisition of NAC and

relate to state net operating losses that are available to offset future taxable income of NAC The

NAC state net operating losses currently expire through 2023 valuation allowance is provided if it

is more likely than not that all or portion of deferred tax asset will not be realized Tax benefits

earned or expected to be earned from the net operating losses are recorded as reductions to goodwill

and have been reflected in the balance The goodwill amount will not be deductible for income tax

purposes The $0.3 million decrease to the valuation allowance and net operating loss carryforwards

recorded in 2008 did not affect the deferred tax provision and was attributable to state net operating

losses that expired as of December 31 2008 for which full valuation allowances were previously
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recorded The deferred tax asset net of valuation allowance is more likely than not to be realized in

future years based on an assessment of positive and negative available evidence

Effective Tax Rate

reconciliation of income taxes calculated based on the federal
statutory income tax rate of 35%

and the effective tax rate follows

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Federal statutory tax rate 35% 35% 35%
State income taxes net of federal

Export tax incentives

Research and other tax credits

Manufacturing deduction

Other nondeductible expenses

Impact of state rate changes on deferred taxes

FIN 48 uncertain tax positions see below

32% 22

FIN 48 Uncertain Tax Positions

In July 2006 the FASB issued FASB
Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in

Income Taxes FIN 48 This interpretation clarifies the accounting for income taxes by
prescribing minimum recognition threshold that tax position is required to meet before the related

tax benefit may be recognized in the financial statements FIN 48 also provides guidance on

derecognition measurement classification interest and penalties accounting in interim periods

disclosure and transition

USEC adopted the provisions of FIN 48 effective January 2007 As result of implementing
FIN 48 USEC recognized $31.1 million increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits This

increase resulted in $7.5 million decrease in the January 2007 retained earnings balance and
$23.6 million increase in the deferred tax assets Implementation of FIN 48 also resulted in an

additional $11.4 million decrease in the January 2007 retained earnings balance for accrued

interest and penalties The liability for unrecognized tax benefits was $38.5 million at January
2007 of which $19.5 million would impact the effective tax rate if recognized

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized benefits is as follows in
millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007

Balance at beginning of the year $10.8 $38.5

Additions to tax positions of prior years 5.6

Reductions to tax positions of prior years 7.3 4.2
Additions for tax positions of current year 0.3 1.1

Settlements 12.2
Statute expiration 18.0
Balance at end of the year 10.S

Liability decrease .$7Q 27.7

Amount for unrecognized tax benefits included in other long-term liabilities
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During 2008 the liability for unrecognized tax benefits decreased $7.0 million of which $2.9

million decreased the tax provision The decrease was primarily as result of the completion of the

2004 through 2006 IRS examination and the filing of tax accounting method change

During 2007 the liability for unrecognized tax benefits decreased $27.7 million of which $12.6

million decreased the tax provisisn The decrease was primarily result of the expiration of the

federal statute of limitations for all tax years through 2003 the resolution of an issue with the IRS

and the completion of the IRS examination

The $2.9 million and $12.6 million tax provision decrease reduced the effective tax rate by 4%
and 9% for 2008 and 2007 respectively as shown in the rate reconciliation above All of the liability

balance at December 31 2008 of $3.8 million would affect the effective tax rate if recognized

USEC believes that the liability for unrecognized tax benefits will not materially change in the next

12 months

USEC and its subsidiaries file income tax returns with the U.S government and various states and

foreign jurisdictions In the third quarter of 2007 the IRS completed USEC federal income tax

return examination for tax years 1998 through 2003 As of December 31 2008 the federal statute of

limitations is closed with respect to all tax years through 2003 The IRS commenced an examination

of USECs 2004 through 2006 federal income tax returns during 2007 and the exam was completed

in July 2008 As of December 31 2008 the applicable Kentucky and Ohio statutes of limitations for

tax years 2004 forward and 2005 forward respectively had not yet expired

USEC recognizes accrued interest as component of interest expense and accrued penalties as

component of selling general and administrative expense in the consolidated statement of income

which is consistent with the reporting for these items in periods prior to the implementation of FIN

48 After implementation of FIN 48 USECs balance of accrued interest and penalties was $19.5

million at January 2007 Expenses for accrued interest and penalties totaled $0.5 million during

2008 and $3.3 million during 2007 During 2008 $1.5 million of previously accrued interest and

penalties were reversed primarily as result of the completion of the IRS exams for 2004 through

2006 and the filing of tax accounting method change During 2007 $16.4 million of previously

accrued interest and penalties were reversed as result of the expiration of the federal statute of

limitations and the completion of the IRS examination for all tax years through 2003 The reversal of

previously accrued interest was recorded as interest income and the reversal of the previously

accrued penalties was recorded as reduction to selling general and administrative expense in the

consolidated statement of income As result of settling the IRS examinations through 2003 USEC

made an interest payment to the IRS of $3.5 million in September 2007 and interest payments

totaling $1.0 million to various states in December 2007 Accrued interest and penalties as of

December 31 2008 totaled $0.9 million and as of December 31 2007 totaled $1.9 million
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13 STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common Stock

Changes in the number of shares of common stock outstanding follow in thousands

Shares Treasury Shares

Issued Stock Outstandina

Balance at December 31 2005 100320 13749 86571

Common stock issued 571 571

Balance at December 31 2006 100320 13178 87142

Common stock issued 23.000 437 23437

Balance at December 31 2007 123320 12741 110579

Common stock issued 1177 1.177

Balance at December 31 2008 123.320 11.564 111.756

In September 2007 USEC issued 23 million shares of common stock raising net proceeds of

approximately $214 million after underwriter commissions and offering expenses

Preferred Stock Purchase Rights

In April 2001 the Board of Directors approved shareholder rights plan under which

shareholders of record on May 2001 received rights that initially trade together with USEC
common stock and are not exercisable In the absence of further action by the Board the rights

generally would become exercisable and allow the holder to acquire USEC common stock at

discounted price if person or group acquires 15% or more of the outstanding shares of USEC
common stock or commences tender or exchange offer to acquire 15% or more of the common
stock of USEC However any rights held by the acquirer would not be exercisable The Board of

Directors may direct USEC to redeem the rights at $.01 per right at any time before the tenth day

following the acquisition of 15% or more of USEC common stock by person or group
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14 NET INCOME PER SHARE

Basic net income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number

of shares of common stock outstanding during the period excluding any unvested restricted stock

In calculating diluted net income per share the numerator is increased by interest expense on the

convertible notes net of tax and the denominator is increased by the weighted average number of

shares resulting from potentially dilutive stock compensation awards and the convertible notes

assuming full conversion Conversion of the convertible notes is not assumed if the effect is

antidilutive Convertible debt is antidilutive if foregone interest on the notes net of tax and

nondiscretionary adjustments per common share obtainable upon full conversion exceeds basic net

income per share

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in millions

Numerator

Net income $48.7 $96.6 $106.2

Interest expense on convertible notes net of tax

Net income if-converted 55.2 99.5 106.2

Denominator

Weighted average common shares 111.4 93.4 86.9

Less Weighted average unvested restricted stock... j4
Denominator for basic calculation 110.6 93.0 86.6

Weighted average effect of dilutive securities

Convertible notes 48.1 12.5

Stock compensation awards 0.3 0.2

Denominator for diluted calculation 158.7 105.8 86.8

Net income per share basic 1.04 1.22

Net income per
share diluted 1.22

Options to purchase shares of common stock having an exercise price greater than the average

share market price are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share options in

millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Options excluded from diluted earnings per share 2.0 0.1 0.4

$5.86 to $11.88 to

Exercise price of excluded options $16.90 $16.90 $16.90
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15 ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

Environmental compliance costs include the handling treatment and disposal of hazardous

substances and wastes Pursuant to the JJSEC Privatization Act environmental liabilities associated

with the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs prior to July 28 1998 are the responsibility of the U.S

government except for liabilities relating to certain identified wastes generated by USEC and stored

at the GDPs

Depleted Uranium

USEC stores depleted uranium at the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs and accrues estimated costs

for its future disposition USEC anticipates that it will send most or all of its depleted uranium to

DOE for disposition unless more economic disposal option becomes available DOE is constructing

facilities at the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs to process large quantities of depleted uranium owned

by DOE Under federal law DOE would also process USECs depleted uranium if provided to DOE
If we were to dispose of our uranium this way USEC would be required to reimburse DOE for the

related disposition costs of our depleted uranium including pro rata share of DOEs capital costs

Processing DOEs depleted uranium is expected to take about 25 years The timing of the disposal of

USECs depleted uranium has not been determined The long-term liability for depleted uranium

disposition is dependent upon the volume of depleted uranium generated and estimated processing

transportation and disposal costs USECs estimate of the unit disposal cost is based primarily on

estimated cost data obtained from DOE without consideration given to contingencies or reserves

USECs estimate is periodically reviewed as additional information becomes available USECs
estimate of the unit disposition cost for accrual purposes is approximately 35% less than the unit

disposition cost for financial assurance purposes which includes contingencies and other potential

costs as required by the NRC

Compliance with NRC regulations requires that USEC provide financial assurance regarding the

cost of the eventual disposition of USECs depleted uranium and stored wastes The financial

assurance requirement is based on our year-end liability plus expected volume increases over the

coming year including NRC required contingencies totaling to an annual projected required amount
At December 31 2008 the financial assurance requirements in place for 2009 principally the

amount associated with disposition of depleted uranium total $232.0 million and are covered by

combination of $204.5 million under surety bonds and $27.5 millionletter of credit

USEC estimated cost and accrued liability for depleted uranium disposition as well as related

financial assurance USEC provides are subject to change as additional information becomes

available

Stored Wastes

USECs operations generate hazardous low-level radioactive and mixed wastes The storage

treatment and disposal of wastes are regulated by federal and state laws USEC utilizes offsite

treatment and disposal facilities and stores wastes at the Paducah and Portsmouth GDPs pursuant to

permits orders and agreements with DOE and various state agencies Liabilities accrued for the

treatment and disposal of stored wastes generated by USECs operations amounted to $6.0 million at

December 31 2008 and $4.7 million at December 31 2007

GDP Lease Turnover

At the conclusion of the GDP lease with DOE USEC may leave the property in an as is

condition but must remove all wastes generated by USEC which are subject to off-site disposal and

must place the GDPs in safe shutdown condition Accrued liabilities for lease turnover costs

amounted to $55.4 million at December 31 2008 and $56.9 million at December 31 2007
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American Centrifuge Decontamination and Decommissioning

Financial Assurance

USEC leases facilities in Piketon Ohio from DOE for the American Centrifuge Plant At the

conclusion of the 36-year lease period in 2043 assuming no further extensions USEC is obligated to

return these leased facilities to DOE in condition that meets NRC requirements and in the same

condition as the facilities were in when they were leased to USEC other than due to normal wear

and tear USEC owns all capital improvements at the American Centrifuge Plant and unless

otherwise consented to by DOE must remove them by the conclusion of the lease term USEC is

required to provide financial assurance to the NRC incrementally based on facility construction and

centrifuge installation USEC is also required to provide financial assurance to DOE in an amount

equal to its current estimate of costs to comply with lease turnover requirements less the amount of

financial assurance required of USEC by the NRC for decontamination and decommissioning

DD As of December 31 2008 USEC has provided financial assurance to the NRC and DOE

for 2009 in the form of surety bonds totaling $57.7 million

The financial assurance requirements will increase each year commensurate with the status of

facility construction and operations As part
of USECs license to operate the American Centrifuge

Plant USEC provides the NRC with projection of the total DD cost The current estimate of the

total cost related to NRC requirements is $377.3 million in 2008 dollars and the projected total

incremental lease turnover cost related to DOE is estimated to be $25.5 million in 2008 dollars

Financial assurance will also be required for the disposition of depleted uranium generated from

future centrifuge operations

Asset Retirement Obligations

Commensurate with the American Centrifuge Plant commercial lease signed in December 2006

USEC recorded the financial assurance amount for 2006 of $8.8 million as the estimate of the present

value of the asset retirement obligation at year end In 2007 USEC reassessed and revised the

estimate of the asset retirement obligation reducing the amount recorded in both construction work in

progress and other long-term liabilities The estimate is also revised for any changes in long-term

inflation rate assumptions Additional retirement obligations are recognized as construction progress

continues as indicated by the increase during 2008 Changes in USECs asset retirement obligation

liability balance since December 31 2006 follow in millions

Balance at December 31 2006 $8.8

Additional retirement obligation and

revision of estimate 4.6

Time value accretion

Balance at December 31 2007 $4.4

Additional retirement obligation 8.8

Time value accretion

Balance at December 31 2008 S13.7

Surety Bond Collateral

Other long-term assets at December 31 2008 include interest-earning cash deposits of $135.1

millionprovided as collateral for surety bonds relating primarily to depleted uranium and American

Centrifuge Plant decontamination and decommissioning
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16 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Power Contracts and Commitments

The gaseous diffusion process uses significant amounts of electric power to enrich uranium
USEC purchases most of the electric power for the Paducah GDP from the Tennessee Valley

Authority TVA under an agreement for power deliveries through May 2012 Capacity under the

agreement is fixed As of December 31 2008 USEC is obligated to make minimum payments under
the agreement whether or not it takes delivery of electric power of approximately $1.7 billion

through May 2012 USECs costs are subject to monthly fuel cost adjustments to reflect changes in

TVAs fuel costs purchased power costs and related costs

American Centrifuge Plant

Milestones under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement

USEC is working to construct and deploy the American Centrifuge Plant as replacement for the

Paducah GDP In 2002 USEC and DOE signed an agreement such agreement as amended the

2002 DOE-USEC Agreement in which USEC and DOE made long-term commitments directed at

resolving issues related to the
stability and security of the domestic uranium enrichment industry

The 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement contains specific project milestones relating to the American

Centrifuge Plant At USECs request the last four milestones were amended in January 2009 to

replace milestones that were not aligned with USECs deployment schedule for the American

Centrifuge Plant The first of the new milestones requires that USEC secure firm financing

commitments by November 2009 for the construction of the commercial American Centrifuge
Plant with an annual capacity of approximately 3.5 million SWU per year

Until USEC has met the November 2009 financing milestone DOE has full remedies under the

2002 DOE-USEC Agreement However if delaying event beyond the control and without the fault

or negligence of USEC occurs which would affect USECs
ability to meet milestone DOE and

USEC will
jointly meet to discuss in good faith possible adjustments to the milestones as appropriate

to accommodate the delaying event Once USEC has met the November 2009 financing milestone
DOEs remedies under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement are limited to those circumstances where
USECs gross negligence in project planning and execution is responsible for schedule delays or in

the circumstance where USEC constructively or formally abandons the project or fails to diligently

pursue the financing commitments

The 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement provides DOE with specific remedies if USEC fails to meet
milestone that would materially impact USEC ability to begin commercial operations of the

American Centrifuge Plant on schedule These remedies could include terminating the 2002 DOE
USEC Agreement revoking USECs access to DOEs U.S centrifuge technology that USEC
requires for the success of the American Centrifuge project and requiring USEC to transfer its rights
in the American Centrifuge technology and facilities to DOE and requiring USEC to reimburse DOE
for certain costs associated with the American Centrifuge project DOE could also recommend that

USEC be removed as the sole U.S Executive Agent under the Megatons-to-Megawatts program
which could reduce or tenninate USECs access to Russian LEU Any of these actions could have
material adverse impact on USECs business
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Project Funding

USEC needs to raise significant
amount of additional capital to continue funding and to

complete the American Centrifuge Plant USEC does not believe public market financing for large

capital project such as American Centrifuge is available given current financial market conditions In

July 2008 USEC applied to the DOE Loan Guarantee Program as the path for obtaining $2 billion in

debt financing to complete the American Centrifuge Plant Areva company majority owned by the

French government also applied for funding under this program and is also being considered by

DOE USEC is seeking selection of its project by DOE in the short term followed by an

expeditious funding commitment and financial closing However USEC has no assurance that its

project will be selected to move forward in the program and if USEC is selected it could still take an

extended period for the loan guarantee and funding to be finalized Accordingly USEC has initiated

steps to conserve cash and reduce the planned escalation of project construction and machine

manufacturing activities until USEC gains greater clarity on potential funding for the project through

the DOE Loan Guarantee Program In addition on parallel path USEC continues to evaluate

potential third-party investment

Without DOE loan guarantee or other financing and without taking into account USECs plans

to slow down project spending in 2009 USEC anticipates that its cash expected internally generated

cash flow from operations and available borrowings under its revolving credit facility would be

sufficient to meet its cash needs for approximately 6-9 months under the baseline budget and

schedule Taking into account USECs plans to slow down project spending USEC anticipates that

its liquidity will be sufficient beyond this period If USEC determines that loan guarantee or

alternative financing is not forthcoming or available in the near term USEC will take additional steps

to implement further project spending reductions to maintain sufficient liquidity for at least twelve

months However additional funds may be necessary sooner than USEC currently anticipates
if

USEC is not successful in its efforts to conserve cash or in the event of increases in the cost of the

American Centrifuge project unanticipated prepayments to suppliers increases in financial

assurance unanticipated costs under the Russian Contract increases in power costs or any shortfall

in USEC estimated levels of operating cash flow or to meet other unanticipated expenses

Legal Matters

DOE Contract Services Matter

The U.S Department of Justice DOJ asserted in letter to USEC dated July 10 2006 that

DOE may have sustained damages in an amount that exceeds $6.9 million under USECs contract

with DOE for the supply of cold standby services at the Portsmouth GDP DOJ indicated that it was

assessing possible violations of the Civil False Claims Act FCAwhich allows for treble damages

and civil penalties and related claims in connection with invoices submitted under that

contract USEC responded to DOJs letter in September 2006 stating that the government does not

have legitimate basis for asserting any FCA or related claims under the cold standby contract and

has been cooperating with DOJ and the DOE Office of Investigations with respect to their inquiries

into this matter In supplemental presentation by DOJ and DOE on October 18 2007 DOJ

identified revised assertions of alleged overcharges of at least $14.6 million on the cold standby and

two other cost-type contracts again potentially
in violation of the FCA USEC has responded to these

assertions and has provided several follow-up responses to DOJ and DOE in response to their

requests for additional data and analysis USEC believes that the DOJ and DOE analyses are

significantly flawed and no loss has been accrued USEC intends to defend vigorously any FCA or

related claim that might be asserted against it As part
of USEC continuing discussions with DOJ

USEC and DOJ have agreed several times to extend the statute of limitations for this matter most

recently to April 10 2009
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Environmental Matter

Under cleanup agreement with the Environmental Protection Agency EPA USEC removed

certain material from site in South Carolina previously operated by Starmet CMI one of USECs
former contractors that was attributable to quantities of depleted uranium USEC had sent there under

1998 contract In June 2007 USEC was contacted by the EPA concerning costs incurred by the

EPA for additional cleanup at the Starmet site In January 2009 pursuant to the terms of September

2008 settlement agreement USEC paid the EPA $1.0 million for the share of additional cleanup

costs allocated to USEC in resolution of this matter At this time the EPA has completed its actions

at the site and USEC is not aware of any further claims associated with the site

Other Legal Matters

USEC is subject to various other legal proceedings and claims either asserted or unasserted

which arise in the ordinary course of business While the outcome of these claims cannot be

predicted with certainty USEC does not believe that the outcome of any of these legal matters will

have material adverse effect on its results of operations or financial condition

Lease Conunitments

Operating costs incurred under the operating leases with DOE for the Paducah Piketon and Oak

Ridge facilities and leases for office space and equipment amounted to $9.2 million in 2008 $8.3

millionin 2007 and $9.1 million in 2006 Future estimated minimum lease payments and expected

lease administration payments follow in millions

2009 $6.7

2010 5.8

2011 5.3

2012 3.5

2013 3.3

Thereafter 29.2

53.8

Except as provided in the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement USEC has the right to extend the lease

for the GDPs indefinitely and may terminate the lease in its entirety or with respect to one of the

plants at any time upon two years notice

The initial term of the American Centrifuge Plant lease was through June 30 2009 and on

February 2009 USEC renewed it for an additional term of five years through June 30 2014

USEC has the option to extend the lease term for additional five-year terms ending in 2043

Thereafter USEC has the right to extend the American Centrifuge Plant lease for up to an additional

20 years through 2063 if it agrees to demolish the existing buildings leased to USEC after the lease

term expires USEC has the option with DOEs consent to expand the leased property to meet its

needs until the earlier of September 30 2013 or the expiration or termination of the GDP lease

USEC may terminate the American Centrifuge Plant lease upon three years notice DOE may

terminate the lease for default including default under the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement

USEC has office space and equipment leases for our corporate headquarters in Bethesda

Maryland through November 2016 for our NAC operations in Norcross Georgia through February

2012 and for Washington D.C office through June 2011
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DOE Technology License

USEC has non-exclusive license in DOE inventions that pertain to enriching uranium using gas

centrifuge technology The license agreement with DOE provides for annual royalty payments based

on varying percentage 1% up to 2% of USECs annual revenues from sales of the SWLJ

component of LEU produced by USEC at the American Centrifuge Plant and any other facility using

DOE centrifuge technology There is minimum annual royalty payment of $100000 and the

maximum cumulative royalty over the life of the license is $100 million

17 REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAREA MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Revenue attributed to domestic and foreign customers including customers in foreign country

representing 10% or more of total revenue follows in millions

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

United States $1212.5 $1310.6 $1109.5

Foreign

Japan 242.6 274.7 389.8

Other 159.5 342.7 349.3

402.1 617.4 739.1

1.614.6 L92O SLS46

USECs 10 largest utility customers represented 57% of revenue and USECs three largest utility

customers represented 30% of revenue in 2008 Revenue from two domestic customers Exelon

Corporation and Entergy Corporation each represented more than 10% but less than 15% of

revenue in 2008 Revenue from U.S government contracts represented 12% of revenue in 2008 9%
of revenue in 2007 and 10% of revenue in 2006 No other customer represented more than 10% of

revenue
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USEC has two reportable segments measured and presented through the gross profit line of the

income statement the low enriched uranium LEU segment with two components separative

work units SWTJ and uranium and the U.S government contracts segment The LEU segment is

USECs primary business focus and includes sales of the SWU component of LEU sales of both

SWU and uranium components of LEU and sales of uranium The U.S government contracts

segment includes work performed for DOE and DOE contractors at the Portsmouth and Paducah

GDPs as well as nuclear energy services and technologies provided by NAC Gross profit is USECs
measure for segment reporting Intersegment sales were less than $0.1 million in each of 2008 2007

and 2006 and have been eliminated in consolidation

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

millions

Revenue

LEU segment

Separative work units $1175.5 $1570.5 $1337.4

Uranium
217.1 163.5 316.7

1392.6 1734.0 1654.1

U.S government contracts segment 222.0 194.0 194.5

SL614.6 L92S.O S1.846

Segment Gross Profit

LEU segment $190.4 $260.4 $304.9

U.S government contracts segment 38.4 27.1 32.0

Gross profit 228.8 287.5 336.9

Advanced technology costs 110.2 127.3 105.5

Selling general and administrative 54.3 45.3 48.8

Other net 3.9

Operating income 64.3 114.9 178.7

Interest income expense net 7.4 16.9 8.3

Income before income taxes 71.7 131.8 17O.4

2008 2007 2006

millions

Assets

LEU segment $2997.7 $3036.4 $1800.1

U.S government contracts segment 57.6 51.4 61.3

t3i155.3 3.0S7.S 1.S61.4

USECs long-term or long-lived assets include property plant and equipment and other assets

reported on the balance sheet at December 31 2008 all of which were located in the United States
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18 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA Unaudited

The following table summarizes quarterly and annual results of operations in millions except per

share data

March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31 Year

2008 2008 2008 2008 2008

Revenue $343.3 $249.0 $590.4 $431.9 $1614.6

Cost of sales 542.0 353.8 1385.8

Gross profit 38.8 63.5 48.4 78.1 228.8

Advanced technology costs 23.9 28.2 29.1 29.0 110.2

Selling general and administrative 12.4 54.3

Operating income 2.9 19.0 6.9 35.5 64.3

Interest expense 6.3 5.2 4.0 1.8 17.3

Interest income 10.8 6.0 4.5 3.4 24.7
Provision benefit for income taxes 3.0 9.0 iLQ i2Q
Net income $4.4 $j $j $481

Net income per share basic $.04 10 $.08 $.23 $.44

Net income per share diluted $.04 $.08 $.06 $16 $.35

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Basic 109.9 110.6 110.8 110.8 110.6

Diluted 110.2 158.7 158.9 158.9 158.7

March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31 Year

2007 2007 2007 2007 2007

Revenue $465.0 $211.1 $634.7 $617.2 $1928.0

Cost of sales 183.4 522.7 542.6 1640.5

Gross profit 73.2 27.7 112.0 74.6 287.5

Advanced technology costs 33.7 35.6 30.8 27.2 127.3

Selling general and administrative 12.5 11.5 9.0 12.3 45.3

Operating income loss 27.0 19.4 72.2 35.1 114.9

Interest expense 3.5 2.4 3.3 7.7 16.9

Interest income 9.9 7.9 3.9 12.1 33.8

Provision benefit for income taxes 5.9 27.2 14.4 35.2

Net income loss 32.3 13.4

Net income loss per share basic $.45 $.15 $.52 $.22 $1.04

Net income loss per
share diluted $.45 $.15 $.51 $.18 $.94

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Basic 86.8 87.1 87.9 110.1 93.0

Diluted 87.2 87.1 89.8 158.4 105.8

No effect of the convertible notes was recognized since the effect of full conversion was antidilutive

The calculation of net income per share and average number of shares outstanding on dilutive

basis for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 is provided in note 14 No dilutive

effect is recognized in periods in which net loss has occurred
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GLOSSARY

2002 DOE-USEC Agreement An agreement in which USEC and DOE made long-term

commitments directed at resolving issues related to the stability and security of the domestic uranium
enrichment industry such agreement as amended the 2002 DOE-USEC Agreement This

agreement provides that USEC will develop demonstrate and deploy the American Centrifuge

technology in accordance with 15 milestones

American Centrifuge An advanced uranium enrichment technology based on the proven workable
U.S centrifuge technology developed by DOE in the mid-1980s

American Centrifuge Demonstration Facility Demonstration facility in Piketon Ohio where
USEC has installed and is operating centrifuge machines as part of its Lead Cascade test program to

demonstrate the American Centrifuge technology

American Centrifuge Plant AC USECs planned commercial uranium enrichment facility

using centrifuge technology USEC plans to install thousands of centrifuge machines and operate the

facility in the gas centrifuge enrichment plant buildings in Piketon Ohio owned by DOE

Assay The concentration of U235 expressed by percentage of weight in given quantity of uranium
ore uranium hexafluoride uranium oxide or other uranium form An assay of 3% to 5% U235 is

required for most commercial nuclear power plants

Centrifuge technology for enriching uranium by spinning uranium hexafluoride at high speed
and using centrifugal force to separate the heavier U238 from the lighter U235

CERCLA The Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act 42
U.S.C 9601 et seq federal law passed in 1980 by the Superfund Amendments and
Reauthorization Act The act created government trust fund commonly known as Superfund to

investigate and clean up abandoned or uncontrolled hazardous waste sites

Depleted Uranium Uranium hexafluoride that is depleted in the U235 isotope as result of the

enrichment process

DOC The U.S Department of Commerce

DOE The U.S Department of Energy

Downblending The
diluting or mixing of highly enriched uranium with depleted or natural uranium

to produce low enriched uranium with concentration of U235 of less than 5% for use in commercial
nuclear reactors

Enrichment The
step in the nuclear fuel cycle that increases the weight percent of U235 relative to

j23s in order to make uranium usable as fuel for nuclear power reactors

EPA The U.S Environmental Protection Agency

Freon The trade name for group of chlorofluorocarbons CFCsused primarily as refrigerant
The Paducah GDP uses Freon as the primary process coolant The production of Freon in the United
States was terminated in 1995

Gaseous Diffusion means of enriching uranium hexafluoride which is heated to gas and

passed repeatedly through porous barrier to separate the heavier U238 from the lighter U235 The gas
that diffuses through the barrier becomes increasingly more concentrated or enriched
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Highly Enriched Uranium Uranium enriched in the isotope U235 to an assay equal to or greater

than 20%

Isotope One or more atoms of an element having the same atomic number but different mass

number

Lead Cascade An array of ful1-ize centrifuge machines operating in closed-loop configuration

from which samples are withdrawn for testing purposes and the enriched and depleted uranium

streams are recombined into feed material

Low Enriched Uranium LEU Uranium enriched in the isotope U235 to an assay of less than

20% Commercial grade LEU typically has an assay of 3% to 5% and is used as fuel in nuclear

reactors for the generation of electric power

Megatons to Megawatts The Russian Contract

Megawatt MW megawatt equals 1000 kilowatts One megawatt-hour represents one hour

of electricity consumption at constant rate of MW

Natural Uranium Uranium that has not been enriched or depleted in the isotope U235

NMMSS The Nuclear Materials Management and Safeguards System of the DOE and NRC

NRC The U.S Nuclear Regulatory Commission

Paducah GDP The Paducah gaseous diffusion plant in Paducah Kentucky

Portsmouth GDP The Portsmouth gaseous diffusion plant in Piketon Ohio

Price-Anderson Act Price-Anderson Nuclear Industry Indemnities Act of 1957 as amended

provides system of indemnification for certain legal liability resulting from nuclear incident in

connection with contractual activity for DOE

Russian Contract Contract dated January 14 1994 between USEC and TENEX to implement the

Agreement between the United States and the Russian Federation Concerning the Disposition of

Highly Enriched Uranium Extracted from Nuclear Weapons Under the contract USEC serves as

Executive Agent for the United States Government and TENEX serves as agent for the State Atomic

Energy Corporation Rosatom Executive Agent for the Russian government

Russian Suspension Agreement 1992 agreement between the U.S Commerce Department and

the Russian Ministry of Atomic Energy suspending an antidumping investigation against imports of

Russian uranium products that had resulted in preliminary duties in excess of 100% of the value of

the imports

Separative Work Unit SWU The standard measure of enrichment in the uranium enrichment

industry is separative work unit or SWU SWU represents the effort that is required to transform

given amount of natural uranium into two streams of uranium one enriched in the U235 isotope and

the other depleted in the U235 isotope and is measured using standard fonnula based on the physics

of uranium enrichment The amount of enrichment contained in LEU under this formula is

commonly referred to as the SWU component

Technetium byproduct from the operation of nuclear reactors and contaminant in natural

uranium
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TENEX OAO Techsnabexport agent for the State Atomic Energy Corporation Rosatom
Executive Agent for the Russian government under the Agreement between the United States and the

Russian Federation Concerning the Disposition of Highly Enriched Uranium Extracted from Nuclear

Weapons

TVA Tennessee Valley Authority federally-chartered corporation that supplies electric power to

the Paducah gaseous diffusion plant

Underfeeding mode of operation that uses or feeds less uranium but requires more SWU in the

enrichment process which requires more electric power

Uranium One of the heaviest elements found in nature Approximately 993 of every 1000

uranium atoms are U238 while approximately seven atoms are U235 which can be made to split or

fission and generate heat energy

UF6 See Uranium Hexafluonde

Uranium Hexafluoride UF6 Uranium chemical compound produced from converting natural

uranium oxide into fluoride at conversion plant Uranium hexafluonde is the feed material for

uranium enrichment plants
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Exhibit No

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of USEC Inc as amended incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2008 Commissionfile number 1-

14287

3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of USEC Inc dated December 13 2007 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 13 2007 Conunission file number

1-14287

4.1 Indenture dated January 15 1999 between USEC Inc and First Union National Bank incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30
1999 Commissionfile number 1-14287

4.2 Rights Agreement dated April 24 2001 between USEC Inc and Fleet National Bank as Rights

Agent including the form of Certificate of Designation Preferences and Rights as Exhibit the form

of Rights Certificates as Exhibit and the Summary of Rights as Exhibit incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 4.3 of the Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed April 24 2001 Commission file

number 1-14287

4.3 Indenture dated September 28 2007 between USEC Inc and Wells Fargo Bank N.A incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 28 2007

Commission file number 1-14287

10.1 Lease Agreement between the United States Department of Energy DOE and the United States

Enrichment Corporation dated as of July 1993 including notice of exercise of option to renew

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registration Statement on Form 5-1 filed June 29
1998 Commission file number 333-57955

10.2 Supplemental Agreement No to the Lease Agreement between DOE and the United States

Enrichment Corporation dated as of December 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of

the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006 Commission file number 1-

14287 Certain information has been omitted and filed separately pursuant to confidential treatment

under Rule 24b-2

10.3 Contract between United States Enrichment Corporation Executive Agent of the United States of

America and AO Techsnabexport Executive Agent of the Ministry of Atomic Energy Executive

Agent of the Russian Federation dated January 14 1994 as amended Russian Contract

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of the Registration Statement on Form S-i filed June 29

1998 Commission file number 333-57955

10.4 Amendment No 11 dated June 1998 to Russian Contract incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4

of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005 Commission file number

1-14287

10.5 Amendment No 12 dated March 1999 to Russian Contract incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.36 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended June 30 1999

Commission file number 1-14287

10.6 Amendment No 13 dated November 11 1999 to Russian Contract incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.6 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005 Commission
file number 1-14287

10.7 Amendment No 14 dated October 27 2000 to Russian Contract incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.7 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005 Commission
file number 1-14287

10.8 Amendment No 15 dated January 18 2001 to Russian Contract incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.8 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005 Commission
file number 1-14287
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10.9 Amendment No 17 dated December 2007 to Russian Contract Certain information has been

omitted and filed separately pursuant to request for confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2

10.10 Memorandum of Agreement dated April 1998 between the Office of Management and Budget and

United States Enrichment Corporation relating to post-privatization liabilities incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.18 of the Registration Statement on Form S-i filed June 29 1998

Commissionfile number 333-57955

10.11 Memorandum of Agreement entered into as of April 18 1997 between the United States acting by

and through the United States Department of State and the DOE and United States Enrichment

Corporation for United States Enrichment Corporation to serve as the United States Governments

Executive Agent under the Agreement between the United States and the Russian Federation

concerning the disposal of highly enriched uranium extracted from nuclear weapons incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.25 of the Registration Statement on Form S-I/A filed July 21 1998

Commissionfile number 333-57955

10.12 Power Contract between Tennessee Valley Authority and United States Enrichment Corporation

dated July 11 2000 TVA Power Contract incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 of the

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30 2000 Commission file number 1-

14287 Certain information has been omitted and filed separately pursuant to confidential treatment

under Rule 24b-2

10.13 Supplement No dated March 2006 to TVA Power Contract incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 of the Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2006

Commissionfile number 1-14287 Certain information has been omitted and filed separately

pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2

10.14 Supplement No dated March 2006 to TVA Power Contract incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 of the Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2006

Commissionfile number 1-14287 Certain information has been omitted and filed separately

pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2

10.15 Amendatory Agreement Supplement No dated April 2006 to TVA Power Contract

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarter ended

March 31 2006 Commission file number 1-14287 Certain information has been omitted and filed

separately pursuant to confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2

10.16 Amendatory Agreement Supplement No dated June 2007 to Power Contract between

Tennessee Valley Authority and United States Enrichment Corporation incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2007 Commission
file number 1-14287 Certain information has been omitted and filed separately pursuant to request

for confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2

10.17 Supplement No dated June 2008 to TVA Power Contract incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008 Commission
file number 1-14287 Certain information has been omitted and filed separately pursuant to

confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2

10.18 Agreement dated June 17 2002 between DOE and USEC Inc incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.54 of the current report on Form 8-K filed June 21 2002 Commission file number 1-

14287

10.19 Modification to Agreement dated June 17 2002 between DOE and USEC Inc dated August 20

2002 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2005 Commission file number 1-14287

10.20 Modification No dated January 12 2009 to Agreement dated June 17 2002 between DOE and

USEC Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

January 13 2009 Commission file number 1-14287
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10.21 Cooperative Research and Development Agreement Development of an Economically Attractive Gas

Centrifuge Machine and Enrichment Process by and between UT-Battelle LLC under its DOE
Contract and USEC Inc dated June 30 2000 Amendment dated July 12 2002 and Amendment

dated September 11 2002 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58 of the Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2002 Commission file number 1-14287

10.22 Amendment to the Cooperative Research and Development Agreement Development of an

Economically Attrctive Gas Centrifuge Machine and Enrichment Process by and between UT
Battelle LLC under its DOE Contract and USEC Inc dated February 28 2007 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2007

Commission file number 1-14287

10.23 Amendment to the Cooperative Research and Development Agreement Development of an

Economically Attractive Gas Centrifuge Machine and Enrichment Process by and between UT
Battelle LLC under its DOE Contract and USEC Inc dated August 10 2007 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30

2007 Commission file number 1-14287

10.24 Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of August 18 2005 among USEC Inc

United States Enrichment Corporation the lenders named therein JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as

administrative and collateral agent J.P Morgan Securities Inc Merrill Lynch Capital and Goldman

Sachs Credit Partners L.P as joint book managers and joint lead arrangers Merrill Lynch Capital

and Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P as co-syndication agents GMAC Commercial Finance LLC

and Wachovia Bank National Association as co-documentation agents and CIT Capital Securities

LLC as co-agent incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.83 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on August 23 2005 Commissionfile number 1-14287

10.25 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of August 18 2005

among USEC Inc United States Enrichment Corporation the lenders named therein JPMorgan

Chase Bank N.A as administrative and collateral agent and the other financial institutions named

therein dated March 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2006 Commission file number 1-14287

10.26 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement among USEC Inc
United States Enrichment Corporation the lenders named therein JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as

administrative and collateral agent and the other financial institutions named therein dated

October 16 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on October 19 2006 Commissionfile number 1-14287

10.27 Third Amendment dated September 21 2007 to the Amended and Restated Revolving Credit
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on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2006 Commission file number 1-14287
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21 Subsidiaries of USEC Inc

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP independent registered public accounting firm

31.1 Certification of the ChiefExecutive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14a/15d- 14a

31.2 Certification of the ChiefFinancial Officer pursuant to Rule 3a-14a115d- 14a

32 Certification of CEO and CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 Letter from U.S Department of State dated August 23 2002 in compliance with Rule 0-6 of the
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99.2 Annual CEO Certification dated April 30 2008 as filed with the New York Stock Exchange

Filed herewith
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arrangements required to be filed as exhibits pursuant to Item
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF USEC INC

Name of Subsidiary State of Incorporation

United States Enrichment Corporation Delaware

NAC International Inc Delaware
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8

File Numbers 333-71635 333-129410 333-117867 and 333-150564 and on Form S-3 File
Number 333-146063 of USEC Inc of our report dated February 24 2009 relating to the financial

statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting which appears in this

Form 10-K

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean Virginia

February 24 2009
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

John Welch certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of USEC Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit

to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under

which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e
and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-

151 for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating

to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within

those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and

presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation

of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of

the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

February 26 2009 Is John Welch

John Welch

President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

John Barpoulis certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of USEC Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or

omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in

this report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and

cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e
and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and

Sd-i 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating

to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within

those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and

presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation

of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of

the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

February 26 2009 Is John Barpoulis

John Barpoulis

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to

18 U.S.C Section 1350

as Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10-K of USEC Inc for the year ended December 31
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report
pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 John

Welch President and Chief Executive Officer and John Barpoulis Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer each hereby certifies that to the best of his knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the

financial condition and results of operations of USEC Inc

February 26 2009 Is John Welch

John Welch

President and Chief Executive Officer

February 26 2009 Is John BarDoulis

John Barpoulis

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 99.2

Domestic Company
Section 303A

Annual CEO Certification

As the Chief Executive Officer of USEC Inc USU and as required by Section 303A 12a of the

New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual hereby certify that as of the date hereof am
not aware of any violation by the Company of NYSEs corporate governance listing standards other

than has been notified to the Exchange pursuant to Section 303A.12b and disclosed on Exhibit to

the Companys Domestic Company Section 303A Annual Written Affirmation

This certification is

Without qualification

or

With qualification

By /s/ John Welch

Print Name John Welch

Title President and Chief Executive Officer

Date April 30 2008

Exhibit accompanied the Annual Written Affirmation
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Shareholder Information

Corporate Headquarters

USEC Inc

Two Democracy Center

6903 Rockledge Drive

Bethesda MD 20817-1818

Phone 301 564-3200

Fax 301 564-3211

Stock Exchange Listing

USEC Inc common stock is listed and

traded on the New York Stock

Exchange under the ticker symbol

USU As of January 31 2009 the

Company had approximately 53000

beneficial holders of its common stock

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders

will be held at 10a.m April 30 2009

at the Bethesda Marriott Suites 6711

Democracy Blvd Bethesda MD 20817

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Copies of USECs reports on Form

10-K Form 10-Q and Form 8-K as

filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission are available without

charge These items can be viewed and

printed by visiting the Investor Relations

section of our web site www.usec.com

or requests for printed copies of these

reports should be mailed to the atten

tion of Investor Relations at the address

listed above

Web Site

The Company maintains an Internet

site at www.usec.com that contains

substantial amount of information

about USEC and its activities corpo

rate governance news releases and

financial information Investors can

sign up
for e-mail alerts for Company

news releases or SEC filings by visiting

the Investor Relations section and

clicking on e-mail alerts There are

also links to our filings with the

Securities and Exchange Commission

E-mail inquiries to USEC Inc may be

addressed to financial@usec.com

Certifications

In April 2008 USEC submitted to the

New York Stock Exchange NYSE
certification by our chief executive

officer that he was not aware of any

violation by the Company of NYSE

corporate governance listing standards

Additionally contained in Exhibits 31.1

and 31.2 of this annual report are our

CEOs and CFOs certifications regard

ing the quality of our public disclosure

under Section 302 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

Investor Relations

Security analysts and representatives

of financial institutions may contact

Steven Wingfield DirectorInvestor

Relations 301 564-3354 or financial@

usec.com

Stock Held in Brokerage

Account or Street Name
When you purchase stock and it is

held for
you by your broker it is listed

with the Company in the brokers

name or street name Most USEC

Inc common shares are held in street

name accounts and if you hold your

stock in street name you receive all

correspondence annual reports and

proxy materials through your broker

Any questions you may have about

your shares should therefore be

directed to your broker

Transfer Agent Registrar

USEC Inc shareholder records are

maintained by our transfer agent

Computershare Shareholders of record

with inquiries relating to stock records

stock transfer change of ownership

change of address and consolidation

of accounts should contact

Computershare Trust Company N.A

P.O Box 43078

Providence RI 02940-3078

Phone 888 485-2938

Internet www.computershare.com

Overnight courier

250 Royall Street

Canton MA 02021

Independent Accountants

PricewaterhouseCoopers LIP

Mclean Virginia
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USEC Inc 11119

Two Democracy Center

6903 Rockledge Drive i/
Bethesda Marylafld 20817

March 19 2009

Dear Shareholder

You are cordially invited to attend our annual meeting of shareholders to be held on Thursday April 30
2009 at 1000 a.m Eastern Time at the Bethesda Marriott Suites 6711 Democracy Boulevard Bethesda

Maryland

Matters scheduled for consideration at this meeting are the election of ten directors the approval

of the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan the approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009

Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the ratification of the appointment of the Companys independent

auditors The meeting will also provide an opportunity to review with you USECs business during the year

ended December 31 2008

Your vote is important no matter how many shares you own We encourage you to vote your shares today

You may vote by completing and returning the enclosed proxy card in the postage-paid envelope provided or

by using telephone or Internet voting systems If you do attend the meeting and desire to vote in person you

may do so even though you have previously submitted your proxy

We appreciate your continued confidence in the Company and look forward to seeing you at the annual

meeting

Sincerely

James Mellor John Welch

Chairman of the Board President and ChiefExecutive Officer



USEC
Global Energy Company

USEC Inc
Two Democracy Center

6903 Rockledge Drive

Bethesda Maryland 20817

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
To Be Held April 30 2009

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of USEC Inc will be held on Thursday April 30 2009 at

1000 a.m Eastern Time at the Bethesda Marriott Suites 6711 Democracy Boulevard Bethesda Maryland
for the purpose of considering and voting upon

The election of ten directors for term of one year

The approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan

The approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as USECs independent

auditors for 2009 and

Such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjoumments thereof

We are enclosing copy of the Companys Amiual Report for the year ended December 31 2008 with

this Notice and Proxy Statement

The record date for determining shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting was the

close of business on March 2009 Please complete and return the enclosed proxy card in the postage-paid

envelope provided at your earliest convenience or use telephone or Internet voting systems to vote your
shares

By Order of the Board of Directors

Peter Saba

Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Bethesda Maryland

March 19 2009
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USEC Inc
Two Democracy Center

6903 Rockledge Drive

Bethesda Maryland 20817

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials

for the Shareholder Meeting to Be Held on April 30 2009

This proxy statement and our Annual Report for

the year ended December 31 2008 are available at www.edocumentview.com/USU

PROXY STATEMENT

We are providing these proxy materials in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of

USEC Inc of proxies to be voted at USEC Inc.s USEC the Company we us or our 2009 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders The meeting will be held at the Bethesda Marriott Suites 6711 Democracy

Boulevard Bethesda Maryland On April 30 2009 beginning at 1000 a.m Eastern Time The proxies also

may be voted at any adjoumments or postponements of the meeting

This Proxy Statement proxy card and our Annual Report for the
year ended December 31 2008 are

being mailed starting March 20 2009

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MEETING AND VOTING

Who may vote at the meeting

The Board set March 2009 as the record date for the meeting If you were the owner of USEC Inc

common stock at the close of business on March 2009 you may vote at the meeting You are entitled to

one vote for each share of common stock you held on the record date including shares

held directly in your name with our transfer agent Computershare Trust Company N.A as

shareholder of record

held for you in an account with broker bank or other nominee shares held in street name for

beneficial owner and

held for you under USEC employee stock ownership plan with our plan administrator Computershare
Trust Company N.A or under the USEC 401k plan with our plan administrator Fidelity each

USEC stock ownership plan

How many shares must be present to hold the meeting

majority of USECs outstanding shares of common stock as of the record date March 2009 must be

present at the meeting in order to hold the meeting and conduct business This is called quorum On the

record date there were 111348742 shares of USEC common stock outstanding each entitled to one vote

Your shares are counted as present at the meeting if you

are present and vote in
person at the meeting or

have properly submitted proxy card or voting instructions prior to the meeting

Abstentions and broker non-votes are counted as present and entitled to vote for purposes of

determining quorum broker non-vote occurs when bank broker or nominee holding shares for

beneficial owner does not vote on particular matter because it does not have discretionary voting power for

that particular matter and has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner If you are beneficial

owner your bank broker or other nominee is permitted to vote your shares on the election of directors and the

ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent auditors even if the

nominee does not receive vbting instructions from you as these matters are deemed to be routine in nature

Your broker does not have discretionary voting power with respect to the proposal to approve the USEC Inc



2009 Equity Incentive Plan or on the proposal to approve the USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

as these matters are deemed to be non-routine

How do vote my shares

You may vote using any of the following methods

By Mail

If you are shareholder of record or hold shares through USEC stock ownership plan be sure to

complete sign and date the proxy card accompanying this Proxy Statement and return it in the prepaid

envelope You should sign your name exactly as it appears on the proxy card If you are signing in

representative capacity for example as guardian executor trustee custodian attorney or officer of

corporation you should indicate your name and title or capacity If you are shareholder of record and you

return your signed proxy card but do not indicate your voting preferences the persons named as proxies in the

proxy card will vote the shares represented by that proxy as recommended by the Board of Directors

If you are beneficial owner whose shares are held of record by bank broker or other nominee be sure

to complete sign and return the voting instruction card received from your nominee

By Telephone or on the Internet

The telephone and Internet voting procedures established by USEC for shareholders of record are

designed to authenticate your identity allow you to give your voting instructions and confirm that those

instructions have been properly recorded

You can vote by calling the toll free telephone number on your proxy card and following the voice

prompts that you hear during the call By following the voice prompts you may vote your shares and confirm

that your instructions have been properly recorded

The website for Internet voting is www.envisionreports.comfUSU As with telephone voting you can

confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded

Telephone and Internet voting facilities for shareholders of record will be available 24 hours day

Proxies submitted by telephone or the Internet must be received by 1000 a.m Eastern Time on April 30

2009

The availability of telephone and Internet voting for beneficial owners will depend on the voting

processes of your broker bank or other nominee Therefore we recommend that you follow the voting

instructions in the materials you receive

If you vote by telephone or on the Internet you should not separately return your proxy card or voting

instruction card

In Person at the Annual Meeting

Even if you plan to attend the meeting we encourage you to vote by completing signing dating and

returning the enclosed proxy card or by voting using the Internet or telephone so your vote will be counted if

you later decide not to attend the meeting If you decide to change your vote at the meeting you may do so

by voting in person at the meeting If you choose to vote at the Annual Meeting

If you are shareholder of record you may vote by the ballot provided at the meeting

If you hold your shares in street name you must obtain and bring with you to the Annual Meeting

legal proxy from your bank broker nominee or other holder of record in order to vote by ballot at the

meeting



If you hold your shares through USEC stock ownership plan you cannot vote in person at the Annual

Meeting Please vote by signing and dating your proxy card and mailing it in the postage-paid envelope

provided or by using the Internet or telephone

What are my voting choices when voting for director nominees Item and what vote is needed to elect

directors

In the vote on the election of ten directors to serve until the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

shareholders may

vote FOR all nominees

WITHHOLD votes as to all nominees or

WITHHOLDvotes as to one or more specific nominees

Directors will be elected by plurality of the votes cast This means that the ten nominees who receive

the largest number of FOR votes cast will be elected as directors If you WITHHOLD authonty to vote

with respect to any director nominee your shares will be counted for purposes of establishing quorum but

will have no effect on the election of that nominee

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR each of the director nominees

What are my voting choices when voting on the proposal to approve the USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incen
tive Plan Item and what vote is needed for approval

In the vote on the proposal to approve the USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan shareholders may

vote FOR the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan

vote AGAINST the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan or

ABSTAIN from voting on the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan

The approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan requires the FOR vote of

majority of the shares present in person or by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on that proposal

provided that the total votes cast on the proposal represent more than 50% of USECs outstanding shares of

common stock as of the record date Abstentions will have the same effect as vote AGAINST the approval

of the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009

Equity Incentive Plan

What are my voting choices when voting on the proposal to approve the USEC Inc 2O09 Employee

Stock Purchase Plan Item and what vote is needed for approval

In the vote on the proposal to approve the USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan shareholders

may

vote FOR the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

vote AGAINST the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan or

ABSTAIN from voting on the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan requires the FOR vote of

majority of the shares present in person or by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on that proposal

Abstentions will have the same effect as vote AGAINST the approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009

Employee Stock Purchase Plan



What are my voting choices when voting on the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouSeCoop

ers LLP as the Companys independent auditors Item and what vote is needed to ratify their

appointment

In the vote on the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent

auditors for 2009 shareholders may

vote FOR the ratification

vote AGAINST the ratification or

ABSTAIN from voting on the ratification

The ratification of the appointment of the independent auditors requires the FOR vote of majority of

the shares present in person or by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on that proposal Abstentions will

have the same effect as vote AGAINST the ratification of the appointment of the independent auditors

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the ratification of the appointment of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent auditors

What if do not specify choice for matter when returning proxy

Shareholders should specify their choice for each matter on the enclosed proxy card If you just sign and

submit your proxy card without marking your vote your shares will be voted

Item FOR each director nominee

Item FOR the approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan

Item FOR the approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and

Item FOR the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as USECs

independent auditors for 2009

May revoke my proxy and change my vote

You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted at the meeting by

submitting properly executed proxy card with later date which proxy card is received prior to the

date of the Annual Meeting

delivering to the Secretary of USEC prior to the date of the Annual Meeting written notice of

revocation bearing later date than the proxy or

voting in person at the Annual Meeting

How are proxies solicited and what is the cost

We have hired Morrow Co LLC located at 470 West Avenue Stamford CT 06902 to assist us in

soliciting proxies from banks brokers and nominees and we will pay Morrow Co LLC fee of

approximately $10000 plus expenses for these services We will reimburse banks brokerage houses and

other institutions custodians nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses
in forwarding proxy material

to their principals

Our directors officers and employees may also solicit proxies by mail e-mail telephone or personal

contact They will not receive additional compensation for these activities

What is householding

If you and other residents at your mailing address own shares of USEC stock in street name your

broker or bank or other nominee may have notified you that your household will receive only one annual

report proxy statement and Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials for each company in which you



hold stock through that broker or bank or other nominee This practice is known as householding Unless

you responded that you did not want to participate in householding you were deemed to have consented to

the process Your broker or bank or other nominee will send one copy of our annual report proxy statement

and Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials to your address Each shareholder will continue to

receive separate proxy card or voting instruction card

If you would like to receive your own set of USECs future annual report proxy statement and Notice of

Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or if you share an address with another USEC shareholder and

together both of you would like to receive only single set of USEC annual disclosure documents please

contact Broadridge Financial Solutions Householding Department 51 Mercedes Way Edgewood New York

11717 or call them at 800 542-1061 Be sure to indicate your name the name of your brokerage firm or

bank or other nominee and your account number Any revocation of your consent to householding will be

effective 30 days following its receipt

If you did not receive an individual copy of this years proxy statement our annual report or the Notice

of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials we will promptly send copy to you if you address written

request to USEC Inc Two Democracy Center 6903 Rockledge Drive Bethesda Maryland 20817 Attention

Investor Relations or call 301 564-3238



ITEM ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

On the nomination of our Board of Directors James Mellor Michael Armacost Joyce Brown

Joseph Doyle William Habermeyer John Hall William Madia Henson Moore Joseph

Paquette Jr and John Welch will stand for re-election at the meeting each to hold office until the next

Annual Meeting of Shareholders and until his or her successor is elected and qualified Each of the nominees

presently is member of our Board

Unless otherwise directed shares represented by proxies solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors will

be voted for the nominees listed below All nominees have consented to serve if elected but if any nominee

becomes unavailable to serve the persons named as proxies may exercise their discretion to vote for

substitute nominee

The principal occupations of and certain other information about the nominees are set forth on the

following pages

The Board recommends vote FOR the election of these nominees as directors

NOMINEES FOR DIRECTORS

James Mellor Director since 1998

Age 78

Mr Mellor retired in 1997 as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of General

Dynamics Corporation company engaged in shipbuilding and marine systems land

and amphibious combat systems information systems and business aviation

businesses position he held since 1994 Prior to assuming that position Mr Mellor

was President and Chief Executive Officer from 1993 to 1994 and was previously

President and Chief Operating Officer of General Dynamics Mr Mellor served as

interim President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company from December 2004

to October 2005 Mr Mellor also serves on the Board of Trustees of the Scripps

Research Institute and the Board of Directors of IDT Corporation

Michael Armacost Director since 2002

Age 71

Mr Armacost is Walter Shorenstein distinguished fellow and visiting

professor in the Asia/Pacific Research Center at Stanford University Mr Armacost

served as President and Trustee of The Brookings Institution from 1995 to 2002 He

served as Undersecretary of State for Political Affairs from 1984 to 1989 as U.S

Ambassador to Japan from 1989 to 1993 and to the Philippines from 1982 to 1984

Mr Armacost also serves on the Board of Directors of AFLAC Inc

Joyce Brown Director since 1998

Age 62

Dr Brown is the President of the Fashion Institute of Technology of the State

University of New York position she has held since 1998 From 1994 to 1997

Dr Brown was professor of clinical psychology at the City University of New York

where she previously held several Vice Chancellor positions From 1993 to 1994 she

served as the Deputy Mayor for Public and Community Affairs in the Office of the

Mayor of the City of New York Dr Brown also serves on the Board of Directors of

Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation



Joseph IT Doyle Director since 2006

Age 61

Mr Doyle is consultant to and director of several for profit companies and

not for profit organizations From July 2002 through March 2003 he served as Senior

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Foster Wheeler Inc Prior to joimng

Foster Wheeler Mr Doyle was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

of U.S Office Products from 1998 through 2001 Chief Financial Officer of

Westinghouse Electric Companys Industrial Group from 1996 through 1998 and

Chief Financial Officer of Allison Engine Company now Rolls Royce Allison from

1994 through 1996

William Habermeyer Director since 2008

Age 66

Mr Haberrneyer retired in 2006 as President and Chief Executive Officer of

Progress Energy Florida subsidiary of Progress Energy Inc diversified energy

company Mr Habermeyer joined Progress Energy predecessor Carolina Power

Light in 1993 and served as Vice President of Nuclear Services and Environmental

Support Vice President of Nuclear Engineering and Vice President of the Western

Region in North Carolina before assuming the role of President and Chief Executive

Officer of Progress Energy Florida in 2000 Prior to that Mr Habermeyer had 28-

year career in the U.S Navy retiring as Rear Admiral Mr Habermeyer also serves

on the Board of Directors of Raymond James Financial Inc and Southern Company

John Hall Director since 1998

Age 76

Mr Hall retired in 1997 as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ashland Inc

company engaged in specialty chemicals lubricants car-care products chemical and

plastics distribution businesses position he held since 1981 Mr Hall also was Chief

Executive Officer of Ashland Inc from 1981 to 1996 Mr Hall was Chairman of the

Board of Directors of Arch Coal Inc from 1997 to 1998 and director until 1999

William Madia Director since 2008

Age 61

Dr Madia is vice president at Stanford University responsible for oversight of

the SLAC National Accelerator Laboratory U.S Department of Energy national

science lab Dr Madia retired in 2007 as Executive Vice President of Laboratory

Operations of the Battelle Memorial Institute non-profit independent research and

development organization where he oversaw the management or co-management of

six Department of Energy National Laboratories Dr Madia served in that position

since 1999 In addition he was President and CEO of UT-Battelle LLC he managed

Battelles global environmental business served as president of Battelle Technology

International director of Battelles Columbus Laboratories and corporate vice

president and general manager of Battelles Project Management Division



Henson Moore Director since 2001

Age 69

Mr Moore was President and Chief Executive Officer of the American Forest and

Paper Association the national trade association of the forest paper and wood

products industry from 1995 to 2006 He was also President of the International

Council of Forest Product Associations from 2002 to 2004 Mr Moore was previously

Deputy Secretary of Energy from 1989 to 1992 and in 1992 became Deputy Chief of

Staff for President George Bush From 1975 to 1987 he represented the Sixth

Congressional District of Louisiana in the U.S House of Representatives Mr Moore

also serves on the Board of Directors of Domtar Corporation

Joseph Paquette Jr Director since 2001

Age 74

Mr Paquette retired in 1997 as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of PECO

Energy Company company engaged in the production purchase transmission

distribution and sale of electricity and the distribution and sale of natural gas

position he held since 1988 Before that Mr Paquette held positions with Consumers

Power Company as President and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

and with Philadelphia Electric Company as Chief Financial Officer Mr Paquette also

serves on the Board of Directors of CMS Energy Corporation

John Welch Director since 2005

Age 58

Mr Welch has been President and Chief Executive Officer since October 2005

Prior to joining USEC he served as consultant to several government and corporate

entities He was Executive Vice President and Group Executive Marine Systems at

General Dydamics Corporation from March 2002 to March 2003 and Senior Vice

President and Group Executive Marine Systems from January 2000 to March 2002

Prior to that Mr Welch held several executive positions over ten-year period at

General Dynamics Electric Boat Corporation including President from 1995 to 2000

Mr Welch currently serves on the Board of Directors of Battelle Memorial Institute

the U.S Naval Academy Foundation and Precision Custom Components Inc



GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

Governance Information

Our Governance Guidelines

The Board of Directors recognizes that good corporate governance is an important means of protecting

the interests of USECs shareholders employees customers and the community We have adopted Governance

Guidelines which serve as principles addressing the role of the Board of Directors in the areas of fiduciary

oversight independence evaluation of the chief executive officer and succession planning The Governance

Guidelines also set standards relating to the composition and operation of the Board of Directors and its

committees including standards relating to the selection and qualification of directors evaluation of the Board

and its committees and director education The Governance Guidelines are administered by the Boards

Nominating and Governance Committee which regularly reviews director criteria and qualifications and leads

the performance assessments of the Board and its Committees The Board annually assesses the adequacy and

effectiveness of its Governance Guidelines Copies of the current Governance Guidelines are available on our

website at www.usec.com or upon written request addressed to the Secretary USEC Inc at Two Democracy

Center 6903 Rockledge Drive Bethesda Maryland 20817

Executive Sessions of Non-Management Directors

Our Governance Guidelines contemplate that non-management directors meet regularly in executive

session During 2008 the non-management directors met without management at regularly scheduled executive

sessions and Michael Armacost Chairman of the Nominating and Governance Committee presided at these

executive sessions

Communications with the Board of Directors

The Board has an established process to receive communications from shareholders and other interested

parties This process has been approved by majority of the independent directors Shareholders and other

interested parties may contact the Board the presiding director for executive sessions of the non-management

directors or the non-management directors as group by mail or electronically To communicate with the

Board of Directors the presiding director for executive sessions of the non-management directors or the non-

management directors as group correspondence should be addressed to such recipient or recipients in care

of USECs Secretary at the following address do Secretary USEC Inc Two Democracy Center 6903

Rockledge Drive Bethesda Maryland 20817

To communicate electronically with the Board the presiding director for executive sessions of the non-

management directors or the non-management directors as group shareholders should go to our website at

www.usec.com Under the Corporate Governance section you will find link to the e-mail address for writing

an electronic message to the Board the presiding director for executive sessions of the non-management

directors or the non-management directors as group

Director Independence

The New York Stock Exchange NYSE listing standards require that the boards of listed companies

have majority of independent directors and that audit nominating and governance and compensation

committee members must all be independent as affirmatively determined by the Board At its February 2009

meeting after reviewing the NYSE standards of independence the Board of Directors affirmatively determined

that the following seven directors were independent Mr Armacost Dr Brown Mr Doyle Mr Habermeyer

Mr Hall Mr Moore and Mr Paquette The basis for these determinations was that each of these seven

directors other than Mr Habermeyer had no relationships with the Company other than being director

and/or shareholder of the Company The Board determined that Mr Habermeyer had no material relationships

with the Company taking into consideration his service on the board of directors of Southern Company

customer of USEC All of the members of the Companys Audit and Finance Nominating and Governance

and Compensation committees are independent



Criteria for Board Membership

The Nominating and Governance Committee believes that the minimum qualifications for serving as

director of the Company are that nominee demonstrate by significant accomplishment in his or her field an

ability to make meaningful contribution to the Boards oversight of the business and affairs of the Company
This assessment includes the consideration of each directors or each nominees business background

experience and capabilities complementary to other directors experience and capabilities frnancial acumen

experience with government willingness and ability to devote adequate time to the Company integrity and

any other factor deemed appropriate all in the context of an assessment of the perceived needs of the Board at

that point in time In addition the Board considers the diversity of its members when considering candidate

The Nominating and Governance Conmiittee identifies potential nominees by asking current directors to

notify the Committee if they become aware of persons meeting the criteria described above who might be

available to serve on the Board The Nominating and Governance Committee also from time to time may
engage firms that specialize in identifying director candidates As described below the Committee will also

consider candidates recommended by shareholders

Once person has been identified by the Nominating and Governance Conmiittee as potential

candidate the Committee may collect and review publicly available information regarding the person to assess

whether the
person

should be considered further If the Nominating and Governance Coniniittee determines

that the candidate warrants further consideration the Chairman or another member of the Committee contacts

the person Generally if the
person expresses willingness to be considered and to serve on the Board the

Nominating and Governance Committee requests information from the candidate reviews the persons

accomplishments and qualifications including in light of any other candidates that the Committee might be

considering and conducts one or more interviews with the candidate In certain instances Committee members

may contact one or more references provided by the candidate or may contact other members of the business

community or other persons that may have greater first-hand knowledge of the candidates accomplishments
The Committees evaluation process does not vary based on whether or not candidate is recommended by
shareholder

Director Nominations by Shareholders

The Nominating and Governance Committee will consider director candidates recommended by share

holders In considering candidates submitted by shareholders the Nominating and Governance Committee will

take into consideration the needs of the Board and the qualifications of the candidate To have candidate

considered by the Nominating and Governance Committee shareholder must comply with notification

requirements in USECs bylaws The bylaws require among other things that shareholder must submit the

recommendation in writing and must include the following information

the name of the shareholder and evidence of the persons ownership of Company stock including the

number of shares owned and the length of time of ownership and

the name of the candidate the candidates resume or listing of his or her qualifications to be

director of the Company and the persons consent to be named as director if selected by the

Nominating and Governance Committee and nominated by the Board

Under our bylaws shareholders nomination for director must be delivered to the Companys Secretary

not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the previous years annual

meeting unless the daie of the next annual meeting is more than 30 days before or more than 60 days after

such anniversary date in which case notice must be received not later than the tenth day following the day on

which notice of the meeting is mailed or public disclosure of the date of the annual meeting is made

Accordingly shareholder nominations for director must be received by the Company between December 31
2009 and January 30 2010 in order to be considered timely unless the Company gives notice that the date of

the annual meeting is more than 30 days before or more than 60 days after April 30 2010
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Code of Business Conduct

USEC has Code of Business Conduct applicable to all of our directors officers and employees that

provides summary of the standards of conduct that are at the foundation of our business operations The

code of business conduct states that we conduct our business in strict compliance with all applicable laws and

addresses other important matters such as conflicts of interest and how violations of the code may be reported

and will be handled Each director officer and employee must read the code of business conduct and sign

form stating that he or she has read understands and agrees to comply with the code of business conduct Our

Business Conduct Committee is responsible for monitoring performance under the code of business conduct

and for addressing any issues that arise with respect to the code copy of the code of business conduct is

available on our website at www.usec.com or upon written request addressed to the Secretary USEC Inc at

Two Democracy Center 6903 Rockledge Drive Bethesda Maryland 20817

Transactions with Related Persons

The Board has adopted policy nd procedures for review approval or ratification of transactions

involving the Company and related persons the Companys directors and executive officers and shareholders

owning five
percent or greater of the Companys outstanding stock or their immediate family members The

policy covers any related person transaction that meets the minimum threshold for disclosure under the

relevant SEC rules or that is otherwise referred to the Board for review This generally includes transactions

involving amounts exceeding $120000 in which related person has direct or indirect material interest

Under this policy related person transactions must be approved by the Nominating and Governance

Committee although the Chairman of the Board may direct that the full Board review specific transactions

The transaction must be approved in advance whenever feasible and if not feasible must be ratified at the

Nominating and Governance Committees next meeting In determining whether to approve or ratify related

person transaction the Nominating and Governance Committee will take into account all factors it deems

appropriate including whether the subject matter of the transaction is available from other non-affiliated

sources whether the transaction is on terms no less favorable to the Company than terms generally available

from an unaffiliated third party the extent of the related persons interest in the transaction and whether the

transaction is in the best interests of the Company

Management is responsible for the development and implementation of processes and controls to ensure

that related
person transactions are identified and that disclosure is made as required by law To that end

currently we annually require each of our directors and executive officers to complete directors and officers

questionnaire that elicits information about related
person transactions

Corporate Governance Information

Shareholders will find information about our corporate governance practices on our website at

www.usec.com Our website contains information about our Board of Directors Board committees current

copies of our bylaws and charter conmiittee charters Code of Business Conduct and Governance Guidelines

Shareholders may obtain without charge hard copies of the above documents by writing to the Secretary

USEC Inc at Two Democracy Center 6903 Rockledge Dnve Bethesda Maryland 20817

Board and Committee Membership

Pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law under which USEC is organized our business

property and affairs are managed under the direction of our Board of Directors Members of the Board are

kept informed of our business through discussions with the Chief Executive Officer and other officers by

reviewing materials prepared for them by management by participating in meetings of the Board and its

committees and by other means

It is the Boards policy that all directors attend the annual meeting We had ten directors at the time of

the 2008 Annual Meeting all of whom attended the 2008 Annual Meeting
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During 2008 the Board of Directors held eight regular meetings and no special meetings All directors

attended 75% or more of the Board of Directors meetings and meetings of the committees on which they

served The average
attendance of all directors at all Board and committee meetings in 2008 was 95%

During 2008 the Board had designated five committees each identified in the table below All five

committees are composed entirely of non-employee directors The Board.has adopted written charter for

each of these committees The full text of each charter is available on the Companys website located at

www.usec.com

The table below sets forth the membership of these committees as Of March 2009 and the number of

meetings held in 2008

Regulatory and

Audit and Nominating and Government Technology and

Finance Compensation Governance Affairs Competition

Director Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee

James Mellor

Michael Armacost

Joyce Brown

Joseph Doyle

William Habermeyer

John Hall

William Madia

Henson Moore X1

Joseph Paquette Jr

Number of Meetings in 2008

Chairman

The functions performed by our five standing committees are described below

Audit and Finance Committee

The Audit and Finance Committee represents and assists the Board with the oversight of the integrity of

the Companys financial statements and internal controls the Companys compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements the independent auditors qualifications and independence the performance of the Companys

internal audit function and the performance of the independent auditors In addition the Committee is

responsible for appointing overseeing and terminating the Companys independent auditors and reviewing the

Companys accounting processes financial controls reporting systems and the scope of the audits to be

conducted The Committee is also responsible for advising the Board regarding significant financial matters

The Committee meets regularly in executive session with the Companys independent auditors and with the

Companys internal auditors

The Board has determined that each member of the Audit and Finance Committee is an independent

director in accordance with NYSE listing standards Under the NYSE listing standards all audit committee

members must be financially literate as that term is determined by the Board in its business judgment

Further under the Securities and Exchange Commissions the SEC rules the Board must determine

whether at least one member of the audit committee is an audit committee financial expert as defined by

the SECs rules The Board has determined that all members of the Audit and Finance Committee are

financially literate and that Mr Paquette and Mr Doyle qualify as audit committee financial experts

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committees responsibilities include annually reviewing the performance of the Chief

Executive Officer and other senior management overseeing and administering the Companys executive

compensation program and advising and making recommendations to the Board with respect thereto and
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reviewing overseeing and evaluating overall compensation programs and policies for the Company and its

employees and making recommendations to the Board The Compensation Committee is also responsible for

periodically reviewing compensation for non-employee directors and making recommendations to the Board

The Compensation Committee also establishes annual performance objectives under the Companys incentive

programs and oversees administration of employee benefit plans Additional information on the processes and

procedures for consideration of executive and director compensation are addressed in the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis

The Board has determined that each member of the COmpensation Committee is an independent

director in accordance with NYSE listing standards

Nominating and Governance Committee

The functions of the Nominating and Governance Committee include the following identifying and

recommending to the Board individuals qualified to serve as directors of the Company recommending to the

Board directors to serve on committees of the Board advising the Board with
respect to matters of Board

composition and procedures developing and recommending to the Board set of
corporate governance

principles applicable to the Company and overseeing corporate governance matters generally and overseeing

the annual evaluations of the Chief Executive Officer the Board and its committees The Nominating and

Governance Committee will consider director candidates recommended by shareholders in accordance with the

procedures previously described under Governance Information Director Nominations by Shareholders In

addition the Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing the Companys Code of

Business Conduct and overseeing the Companys processes for monitoring compliance and for reviewing and

approving all transactions between the Company and any related person under the Companys related
person

transaction policy previously described

The Board has determined that each member of the Nominating and Governance Committee is an

independent director in accordance with NYSE listing standards

Regulatory and Government Affairs Committee

The Regulatory and Government Affairs Committees responsibilities include monitoring the Companys
compliance with regulatory requirements overseeing the Companys initiatives with and involving various

agencies of the United States government and applicable State governments and advising the Board on

regulatory and other governmental considerations in the Boards deliberations and decision-making processes

Technology and Competition Committee

The Technology and Competition Committees responsibilities include providing oversight and guidance

to management with respect to the Companys technology initiatives with focus on the potential technolog

ical advances and technological risk related to the Companys centrifuge technology informing the Board of

significant energy policy developments and developments in enrichment technology monitoring competition

and market demand in the enrichment industry monitoring the protection of the Companys intellectual

property and monitoring issues with respect to the Companys information technology

Compensation of Directors

Standard Non-Employee Director Compensation Arrangement

Annual compensation for non-employee directors covers service for the
one-year term commencing at the

annual meeting The compensation is unchanged for the 2009 2010 term Mr Welch President and Chief

Executive Officer did not receive separate compensation for his Board activities in 2008

During the 2008 2009 term non-employee directors received an annual retainer of $200000 consisting

of $80000 in cash and restricted stock units with value of $120000 under the USEC Inc 1999 Equity

Incentive Plan The restricted stock unit portion of the annual retainer was increased in 2008 for the
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2008-2009 term by $20000 from $100000 These restricted stock units will vest one year from the date of

grant however vesting is accelerated upon the director attaining eligibility for retirement termination

of the directors service by reason of death or disability or change in control No separate meeting fees

are paid The chairman of the Audit and Finance Committee receives an annual chairmans fee of $20000 in

cash the chairman of the Compensation Committee receives an annual chairmans fee of $10000 in cash and

the chairman of each other committee receives an annual chairmans fee of $7500 in cash Directors have the

option to receive their cash fees in restricted stock units director who elects to receive their cash fees in

restricted stock units will receive an incentive payment of restricted stock units equal to 20% of the portion of

the cash fees that the director elects to take in restricted stock units in lieu of cash These incentive restricted

stock units will vest in equal annual installments over three years from the date of grant however vesting is

accelerated upon the director attaining eligibility for retirement termination of the directors service by

reason of death or disability or change in control All fees are payable at the beginning of the term

Settlement of restricted stock units granted to non-employee directors is made in shares of USEC stock upon

the directors retirement or other end of service All non-employee directors are reimbursed for any reasonable

expenses incurred in connection with their duties as directors of the Company

Director Deferred Compensation Plan

Directors also have the option to defer all or portion of their cash fees into the USEC Inc Director

Deferred Compensation Plan This plan is intended to be non qualified deferred compensation plan that

complies with the regulations of Section 409A Of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended Participants

in the plan may defer up to maximum of 100% and minimum of 5% of cash director fees director may

receive distribution from the plan upon qualifying distribution event such as separation from service

disability death or in-service distribution change in control or an unforeseeable emergency all as defined in

the plan Distributions from the plan will be made in cash in lump sum annual installments or

combination of both in the manner elected by the director and provided for in the plan During 2008 no

directors participated in the plan

Arrangement with James Mellor

James Mellor Chairman of the Board receives an annual chairmans fee of $100000 in cash in

connection with his duties as Chairman of the Board This is in addition to the annual compensation payable

to all non-employee directors In 2008 Mr Mellor elected to receive all fees including his annual chairmans

fee in restricted stock units in lieu of cash and was eligible to receive an incentive payment of restricted stock

units equal to 20% of the cash fees that he elected to take in restricted stock units in lieu of cash

Director Stock Ownership Guidelines

In order to more closely align directors interests with the interests of shareholders directors are required

to hold 25000 shares of Company common stock As an incentive to take more of their compensation in the

form of Company stock directors are eligible to receive incentive restricted stock units described above under

Standard Non-Employee Director Compensation Arrangement
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Director Compensation in Fiscal Year 2008

Fees Earned or Stock

Name Paid in Cash1 Awards23 Total

James Mellbr $336000 $336000

Michael Armacost 87500 $120000 $207500

Joyce Brown 80000 $120000 $200000

Joseph Doyle $216000 $216000

William Habermeyer 96658 $140822 $237480

John Hall $228000 $228000

William Madia $105719 $140822 $246541

Henson Moore 87500 $120000 $207500

Joseph Paquette Jr $240000 $240000

The amounts shown in the Fees Earned or Paid in Cash column include the following

Annual Retainers Cash paid in 2008 to Mr Armacost Dr Brown Mr Habermeyer Dr Madia and

Mr Moore for $80000 cash portion of annual retainers for the 2008 2009 term Mr Mellor

Mr Doyle Mr Hall and Mr Paquette elected to take all fees in restricted stock units in lieu of cash as

shown in the Stock Awards column Cash paid in 2008 to Mr Habermeyer and Dr Madia for $16658

cash portion of pro-rated annual retainer for the 2007-2008 term Mr Habermeyer and Dr Madia joined

the Board in February 2008

Committee Chairmans Fees Cash paid in 2008 to Mr Armacost Dr Madia and Mr Moore for annual

committee chairmans fees of $7500 for the 2008 2009 term Cash paid in 2008 to Dr Madia for

$1561 pro-rated committee chairmans fee for the 2007-2008 term

The amounts shown in the Stock Awards column represents the compensation cost recognized by USEC in

2008 related to stock awards to directors computed in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 123 Revised 2004 Share Based Payment SFAS No 123R and do not reflect

whether the director has actually realized financial benefit from the award For discussion of valuation

assumptions see Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements included in our annual report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 In accordance with SEC rules the amounts shown

exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting coiiditions

Mr Mellor Mr Doyle Mr Hall and Mr Paquette elected to take all fees in restricted stock units in lieu

of cash and so amounts include $200000 annual retainer for the 2008-2009 term chairman fe8s and

incentive restricted stock units Amount for Mr Armacost Dr Brown Mr Habermeyer Dr Madia and

Mr Moore includes $120000 annual retainer payable in resthcted stock units Amount for Mr Habermeyer

and Dr Madia includes $20822 pro-rated annual retainer payable in restricted stock units for the

2007-2008 term The amounts shown in the Stock Awards colunm for each of the non-employee directors

includes the following grants of restricted stock units which have the following grant date fair value
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calculated using the closing price of USECs common stock on the date of grant in accordance with

SFAS No 123R
Number of

Restricted Grant Date

Name Grant Date Stock Units Fair Value

James Mellor 05/06/08 64245 $336000

Michael Armacost 05/06/08 22945 $120000

Joyce Brown 05/06/08 22945 $120000

Joseph Doyle 05/06/08 41300 $216000

William Habermeyer 02/08/08 2666 20822

05/06/08 22945 $120000

John Hall 05/06/08 43595 $228000

William Madia 02/08/08 2666 20822

05/06/08 22945 $120000

Henson Moore 05/06/08 22945 $120000

Joseph Paquette Jr 05/06/08 45S89 $240000

The aggregate number of stock awards including shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units

outstanding at December 31 2008 for each of the non-employee directors are as follows

Number of Shares of

Restricted Stock or

Name Restricted Stock Units

James Mellor 262793

Michael Armacost 56487

Joyce Brown 75681

Joseph Doyle 52806

William Habermeyer 25611

John Hall 163202

William Madia 25611

Henson Moore 63884

Joseph Paquette Jr 106601

No stock option grants were made to directors in 2008 and all prior stock option grants to directors had

been fully expensed prior to 2008 The following table shows the number of stock options held by each

non-employee director as of December 31 2008 all of which are immediately exercisable

Number of Securities

Underlying

Name Unexercised Options

James Mellor 211876

Michael Armacost 16750

Joyce Brown 17250

Joseph Doyle 1227

John Hall 47222

Henson Moore 10500

Joseph Paquette Jr 17250
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth as of March 2009 the beneficial ownership of the Companys common

stock for the following persons all shareholders known by the Company to beneficially ownmore than 5%

of the common stock each of the Companys directors the Companys Chief Executive Officer Chief

Financial Officer and the three other most highly paid executive officers of the Company serving as executive

officers at December 31 2008 and all of the Companys directors and executive officers as group

Unless otherwise indicated in the table each person has the sole power to vote and dispose of the shares

reported as beneficially owned by such person Certain information in the table is based on information

contained in filings made by the beneficial owner with the SEC

Common Stock

Beneficially Owned1

Name of Beneficial Owner Shares Owned Percent of Class

FMR LLC2 12701820 8.0%

82 Devonshire Street

Boston Massachusetts 02109

Tradewinds Global Investors LLC3 12018278 10.8%

2049 Century Park East 20th Floor

Los Angeles California 90067

Donald Smith Co Inc.4 11108700 10.0%

152 West 57th Street

New York New York 10019

SouthernSun Asset Management5 8209379 7.4%

600 Poplar Avenue Suite 220

Memphis Tennessee 38119

Dimensional Fund Advisors LP6 7367590 6.6%

6300 Bee Cave Road

Austin Texas 78746

Dire ctors

Michael Armacost 745527

Joyce Brown 699347

Joseph Doyle 42 1817

William Habermeyer 356117

John Hall 212 4247

William Madia 26667

James Mellor 4756697

Henson Moore 743847

Joseph Paquette Jr 142 6597

Officers

John Welch 10072267

John Barpoulis 291 5527

Philip Sewell 465 6397

Robert Van Namen 3738167

Lance Wright 2499057

Directors and all executive officers as group 21 persons 40678988 3.6%

Less than 1%

For purposes of computing the percentage of outstanding shares beneficially owned by each person the

number of shares owned by that person
and the number of shares outstanding includes shares as to which

such person has right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days for example through the exercise
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of stock options or conversion of securities in accordance with Rule 13d-3d1 under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

According to the Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC by FMR LLC and Edward Johnson 3d on

February 17 2009 the beneficial owner of 11524135 shares of the Companys common stock is Fidelity

Management Research Company wholly owned subsidiary of FMR LLC and the beneficial owner of

the remaining 1177685 shares is Pyramis Global Advisors LLC wholly owned subsidiary of FMR

LLC The Schedule 13G/A states that the number of shares of common stock owned by the investment

companies includes 2482435 shares of common stock resulting from the assumed conversion of

$29680000 principal amount of the Companys 3% convertible senior notes due October 2014

83.64 shares of common stock for each $1000 principal amount of notes and so in calculating the per

centage of the class owned by FMR LLC we have assumed the conversion of the entire $575000000 prin

cipal amount of the Companys 3% convertible senior notes The predominant owners of Class shares of

common stock of FMR LLC representing 49% of the voting power of FMR LLC are members of the

Edward Johnson 3d family The Schedule 13G/A states that FMR LLC has sole voting power with

respect to 1177685 shares and sole dispositive power with respect to 12701820 shares For additional

information on FMR LLCs beneficial ownership please see the Schedule 13G/A

The Schedule 13G/A filed on February 13 2009 with the SEC by Tradewinds Global Investors LLC states

that it has sole power to vote 8654841 shares and sole power to dispose of 12018278 shares Tradewinds

Global Investors LLC states in its Schedule 13G/A that all securities reported therein are owned by its

clients

The Schedule 13G filed on February 11 2009 with the SEC by Donald Smith Co Inc states that it has

sole power to vote 8455962 shares and sole power to dispose of 11108700 shares Donald Smith Co
Inc states in its Schedule 13G that all securities reported therein are owned by its advisory clients no one

of which to its knowledge owns more than 5% of the class of securities

The Schedule 13G/A filed on January 12 2009 with the SEC by Michael Cook Asset Management

Inc d/b/a SouthernSun Asset Management states that it has the sole power to vote 7531819 shares and

the sole power to dispose of 8209379 shares

The Schedule 13G/A filed on February 2009 with the SEC by Dimensional Fund Advisors LP states

that it has sole power to vote 7189428 shares and sole power to dispose of 7367590 shares Dimensional

Fund Advisors states in its Schedule 3G/A that all securities reported therein are owned by its funds no

one of which to its knowledge owns more than 5% of the class of securities In its Schedule 13G/A

Dimensional Fund Advisors disclaims beneficial ownership of all such securities

Includes shares subject to options granted pursuant to the USEC Inc 1999 Equity Incentive Plan exercis

able as of March 2009 or within 60 days from such date as follows Mr Armacost 16750 Dr Brown

17250 Mr Doyle 1227 Mr Hall 47222 Mr Mellor 211876 Mr Moore 10500 Mr Paquette 17250

Mr Welch 347563 Mr Barpoulis 89785 Mr Sewell 280606 Mr Van Namen 160830 and Mr Wright

83312 Also includes restricted stock units that can be converted into USEC common stock within 60 days

from March 2009 as follows Mr Armacost 31960 Dr Brown 8863 Mr Doyle 10954

Mr Habermeyer 25611 Mr Hall 64356 Dr Madia 2666 Mr Mellor 91016 Mr Moore 31960 and

Mr Paquette 52172

Includes 1372172 shares subject to options granted pursuant to the USEC Inc 1999 Equity Incentive Plan

exercisable as of March 2009 or within 60 days from such date Includes 320051 restricted stock units

that can be converted into USEC common stock within 60 days from March 2009
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SECTION 16A BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our executive officers directors and

persons
who own more than 10% of our common stock to file reports of beneficial ownership and changes in

beneficial ownership with the SEC and to furnish us with copies of the reports We received written

representations from each such person who did not file an annual report with the SEC on Form that no

Form was due Based on our review of the reports and representations except as follows we believe that all

required Section 16a reports were timely filed in 2008 Stephen Greene and Tracy Mey executive

officers both filed an amended Form on March 2008 which corrected the number of shares of restricted

stock granted to them that was reported on their Form filed on March 2008 Joseph Paquette Jr

director filed an amended Form on May 22 2008 which included the late reporting of restricted stock units

which had been omitted from his Form filed on May 2008
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The following discussion and analysis contains statements regarding future individual and company

performance targets and goals These targets and goals are disclosed in the limited context of USECs

executive compensation programs and should not be understood to be statements of managements expecta

tions or estimates of financial results -or other guidance USEC specifically cautions investors not to apply

these statements to other contexts

Executive Summary

USEC is global energy company that currently operates the only uranium enrichment plant in the

United States We are in the midst of critical transition period for our enrichment business as we move from

the older gaseous diffusion enrichment technology to the advanced technology of the American Centrifuge

through our deployment of the American Centrifuge Plant ACP The transition period has several

challenges and opportunities and during this period our ability to attract motivate and retain employees and

executives with the requisite skills and experience to meet these challenges is essential to our success and to

the creation of long-term value for our shareholders In recognition of this in February 2008 the Compensa

tion Committee determined to reposition overall total direct compensation for certain executives for 2008 to

approximately the 75th percentile of the market This included an increase in base salary levels and annualized

target levels of restricted stock and nonqualified stock options for 2008 These changes are discussed more

fully below in Elements of Executive Compensation Total Direct Compensation However in early 2009

as part of the Companys cash conservation efforts steps were taken to limit executive compensation as more

fully described below

USEC began 2008 with business plan focused on retiring or mitigating number of key risks that faced

the business and getting us to the next step with respect to the American Centrifuge program At the beginning

of 2008 when the annual performance goals were set the financial outlook for 2008 included projected net

income for the year in range
of $25 to $45 million projected gross profit margin for 2008 of roughly 13%

to 14% and projected cash flows used by operations for the year of $60 to $80 million As reported in our

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 we ended 2008 with net income of

approximately $49 million and gross profit margin of 14.2% which exceeded the high end of the range for

both items notwithstanding greater than expected increases in costs of production that were seen in 2008

Management was also successful in its efforts to control selling general and administrative SGA expense

at just below our initial forecast of $55 million However on the cash side our business was severely impacted

by rising costs for electric power which makes up 70-75% of our cost of production which are largely

outside of managements control We ended 2008 with cash flow used by operations of approximately

$105 million This was unfavorable compared to our initial outlook and our annual incentive award target

However management initiated efforts in 2008 that although they had negative impact on 2008 cash flow

were value-adding For example the Companys early repurchase in 2008 of notes due in January 2009 had

negative cash impact in 2008 but yielded net savings of approximately $2 million As more fully described

below under Elements of Executive Compensation Annual Incentive adjustments were made in calculat

ing cash flow for purposes of determining 2008 annual incentive awards in order not to penalize management

for these efforts

USEC management also achieved number of key business objectives in 2008 including progress in

our efforts with respect to the centrifuge machine that we will deploy in the American Centrifuge Plant with

the continued operation of prototype machines in our Lead Cascade test program which has now operated for

more than 150000 total machine hours transferring technology to our strategic suppliers to manufacture

components for our centrifuge machines selling output from the American Centrifuge Plant positioning

the Company to receive loan guarantee from the U.S Department of Energy DOE to fund the completion

of the ACP performing comprehensive analysis of the activities steps processes systems
and

organization infrastructure needed during the period of transition through commercial deployment of the ACP
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and strengthening our core operations by producing the most enrichment at our Paducah gaseous diffusion

plant in 14 years while achieving one of their best safety records ever

However we ended 2008 with one important disappointment the Bush administrations Department of

Energy did not take action to select any advanced energy projects for funding under its Loan Guarantee

Program That remains one of managements top priorities as we enter 2009 The uncertainty surrounding

project funding forced us in early 2009 to begin taking steps to conserve cash and reduce the planned

escalation of American Centrifuge project construction and machine manufacturing activities until we gain

greater clarity on potential funding for the project through the DOE Loan Guarantee Program

Setting the tone at the top management began the cash conservation program with recommending to

the Compensation Committee freeze in base salaries for senior officers capping 2008 annual incentive

awards at the target level and requiring that 50% rather than 35% or 0% for someone who had met their

stock ownership guidelines of 2008 annual incentive awards for officers be taken in restricted stock instead of

cash Mr Welch President and Chief Executive Officer elected to take his entire 2008 annual incentive award

in restricted stock as he has done now for three consecutive years Director compensation for 2009-2010 was

also frozen at the 2008-2009 level all non-employee directors already receive more than 50% of their

compensation in equity and have not received an increase in their cash compensation since 2007 The

Compensation Committee determined that these actions were appropriate in responding to the current business

circumstances while rewarding performance and recognizing the importance of retention of executives and

other key employees who are critical to the Companys success

Taking into account the achievements of management and other key employees combined with the focus

on cash conservation discussed above the five executives named in the Summary Compensation Table that

follows this discussion whom we refer to as our named executive officers were awarded annual incentive

awards that were just below target for 2008 and that were payable at least 50% in restricted stock 100% in

the case of Mr Welch

December 2008 marked the end of the three-year performance component of the Long-Term Incentive

Program described below under Long-Term Incentive Compensation 2006 2008 Executive Incentive

Plan which covers the performance period March 2006 through December 31 2008 Despite the

significant achievements of management during the period and the continued progress on the American

Centrifuge project the failure to fully achieve financial and economic performance targets related to the

American Centrifuge project that were set back in 2006 at an early stage in the project coupled with declines

in the Companys stock price led to performance and payout well below target for the plan 56% of target

levels. In light of general economic and market conditions and the short-term uncertainty facing the Company

with respect to the financing of the American Centrifuge project which impacts the project cost and schedule

the Compensation Committee determined to postpone the implementation of new three-year- Executive

Incentive Plan until at least 2010 and instead to replace the plan for 2009 with one-year performance based

award that vests over three years as discussed under Long-Term Incentive Compensation 2009 Perfor

mance Plan

Looking ahead the Compensation Committee is particularly focused on retention of key executives and

employees during this critical transition period while still maintaining focus on pay-for-performance

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

The Compensation Committee on behalf of the Board of Directors oversees an executive compensation

program designed to enable USEC to attract highly talented individuals This program reflects the Companys

philosophy that the majority ofan executives compensation should be based on his or her overall contribution

to the success of the Company and the creation of long-term value for our shareholders This pay-for

performance philosophy is the basis for the development of the Companys executive compensation program
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In keeping with this philosophy the Compensation Committee has established the following objectives for the

Companys executive compensation program

Compensation should be aligned with shareholders interests The program seeks to align the interests

of executives with the long-tenn interests of our shareholders by providing strong incentives to

maximize long-term value for our shareholders Long-term stock ownership by our executives is

emphasized to provide ongoing alignment

Compensation should support our business strategy Our compensation program is designed to

reinforce our underlying business strategy and objectives by rewarding successful execution of our

business plan with performance goals tied to our business plan Our success is heavily dependent on

our ability to attract and retain experienced executives who consistently deliver operational and

fmancial results

Compensation should reward performance substantial portion of the total compensation opportu

nity is variable and dependent upon the Companys operating and financial performance

Compensation opportunities should be market competitive To accomplish these guiding principles it

is essential for the compensation and benefits programs to provide competitive compensation relative to

the labor markets for our executives while maintaining fiscal responsibility for our shareholders

Compensation and benefits programs should encourage long-term retention Our compensation and

benefits programs including our retirement plans are intended to encourage retention and reward

continuity of service which is particularly important due to the unique skill sets of our executives

The elements of direct compensation for the named executive officers are base salary cash and restricted

stock awards under the Companys annual incentive program and long-term incentive awards The long-term

awards include restricted stock non-qualified stock options and performance component Named executive

officers are also eligible for other elements of indirect compensation including retirement benefits In setting

the terms of executive compensation the Compensation Committee considers all elements of compensation

both direct and indirect In addition the Compensation Committee has instituted stock ownership guidelines

for all executives providing an additional alignment between the interests of executives and shareholders

Director compensation is established by the Board upon the recommendation of the Compensation

Committee In recommending director compensation the Compensation Committee consults with Watson

Wyatt Worldwide Watson Wyatt an independent compensation consultant Watson Wyatt utilizes compen

sation information from
peer group of companies with board members with comparable experience to the

Companys Board Watson Wyatts role is more fully described under Setting Executive Compensation

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions

The Compensation Committee believes that input from management provides useful information and

points of view to assist the Compensation Committee The Chief Executive Officer and the Senior Vice

President of Human Resources and Administration provide support to the Compensation Committee The Chief

Executive Officer gives the Compensation Committee performance assessments and compensation recommen

dations for each of the other named executive officers Those recommendations are considered by the

Compensation Committee with the assistance of the compensation consultant The Chief Executive Officer and

the Senior Vice President of Human Resources and Administration generally attend Compensation Committee

meetings but are not present for the executive sessions or for any discussion of their own compensation The

Chief Financial Officer also attends Compensation Committee meetings as needed to report on financial items

Each Compensation Committee meeting usually includes an executive session without members of manage

ment present
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Setting Executive Compensation

Based on the foregoing objectives the Compensation Committee has structured the Companys executive

compensation program to motivate executives to achieve the business goals set by the Company and to reward

executives for achieving these goals

In furtherance of this the Compensation Committee has retained the services of Watson Wyatt Watson

Wyatt provides the Compensation Committee with independent compensation data analysis and advice

Watson Wyatt reports to the Compensation Committee and under the Compensation Committees charter the

Compensation Committee has sole authority to retain and terminate the compensation consultant and to

approve the consultants fees and other retention terms Watson Wyatt does not do any work for USEC other

than work performed for the Compensation Committee Throughout 2008 Watson Wyatt worked closely with

the Compensation Committee and attended all Compensation Committee meetings Examples of projects

assigned to Watson Wyatt included market studies of executive pay and of Board pay development of

revised
peer group for executive compensation benchmarking review of the value of Company equity owned

by executives review of walk-away values as of year end and presentation on executive compensation

trends to the Board

Watson Wyatt uses compensation information from Peer Group of companies in specific industries

in which we compete for executive talent through review of their proxy statements and general industry

companies with revenues comparable to USECs through the pooled survey data described below

Currently as the only uranium enrichment company in the United States USEC does not have direct

publicly traded U.S peers Therefore the Peer Group was selected by the Compensation Committee on the

recommendation of Watson Wyatt and includes energy/utility and processing-oriented companies similar in

size to the Company The selected companies in the Peer Group are companies that fall within reasonable

range of comparison factors such as revenue and market capitalization and/or that we may compete with for

executive talent The Peer Group was not picked on the basis of executive compensation levels The Peer

Group during 2008 was comprised of the following 15 companies

2007 12/31/08

Ticker Revenue Market Cap

Company Name Symbol $MM $MM SIC Code SIC Description

Vestem Refining Inc WNR 7305 691 291 PETROLEUM REFINING

Frontier Oil Corp FTO 5270 1913 291 PETROLEUM REFINING

oI1y Corp HOC 4792 1435 2911 PETROLEUM REFINING

3emis Co Inc BMS 3779 2360 2670 CONVRT PAPRPAPRBRDEX BOXES

ytec Industries Inc CYT 3640 1000 2890 MISC CHEMICAL PRODUCTS

STAR NST 3345 3897 4911 ELECTRIC SERVICES

ieorgia Gulf Corp GGC 3157 86 2810 INDL INORGANIC CHEMICALS

rch Coal Inc ACI 2984 2327 1220 BITUMINOUS COAL LIGNITE MNG
MC Corp FMC 2633 3311 2800 CHEMICALS ALLIED PRODUCTS

abot Corp CBT 2616 1001 2890 MISC CHEMICAL PRODUCTS

Ubemarle Corp ALB 2336 2034 2890 MISC CHEMICAL PRODUCTS

-lercules Inc HPC 36 N/A 2890 MISC CHEMICAL PRODUCTS

JSEC inc USU 28 602 2810 INDL INORGANIC CHEMICALS

NM Resources Inc PNM 1914 872 4931 ELECTRIC OTHER SERV COMB

Vestar Energy Inc WR 1727 2492 4931 ELECTRIC OTHER SERV COMB

rch Chemicals Inc ARJ 1492 649 2800 CHEMICALS ALLIED PRODUCTS

p0th Percentile 808 344

During 2008 the Compensation Committee asked Watson Wyatt to conduct review of its Peer Group in

light of potential changes in the types of companies we may be competing with for executive talent as we
focus on the deployment of the American Centrifuge project Watson Wyatt worked with members of the

Compensation Committee to develop new Peer Group of companies for purposes of evaluating executive
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compensation for 2009 In selecting companies for the Peer Group consideration was given to several factors

including industry relevance focusing on specialty chemicals aerospace and defense construction and

engineering utilities with nuclear operations and other utilities business operations and comparable size

This new Peer Group includes the following nineteen companies five of which were included in the 2008 Peer

Group denoted by an asterisk Albemarle Corp Alliant Techsystems Inc Arch Chemicals Inc Arch Coal

Inc Cameco Corp CONSUL Energy Inc Curtiss-Wright Corp Cytec Industries Inc Esterline Technol

ogies Corp FMC Corp Goodrich Corp Hexcel Corp McDermott International Inc UM Group Orbital

Sciences Corp Rockwell Collins Inc Rockwood Holdings Inc Shaw Group Inc and Teledyne Technolo

gies The Peer Group is different from the peer group
index utilized in the performance graph included in our

annual report on Form 10-K which is more focused on companies with similar business attributes primarily

utilities with nuclear power generation capabilities but also including chemical processing companies and

aluminum companies that are also large users of electric power

Peer Group compensation data is limited to publicly available information and therefore does not provide

precise comparisons by position as offered by more comprehensive survey
data As result our Compensation

Committee uses Peer Group data on limited basis to analyze the competitiveness of our target compensation

and our general compensation philosophy

Because the Peer Group data is limited our Compensation Committee also used commercially available

survey data provided to it by Watson Wyatt to identify market-median and other market elements related to

our 2008 compensation program This survey data included the 2008/2009 Watson Wyatt Data Services Top

Management Report the 2008 Mercer Executive Compensation Survey and proprietary Watson Wyatt large

company compensation survey This survey data includes pooled compensation data from many companies and

the findings are segregated by for example revenue level number of employees and industry Using survey

cuts of durable goods manufacturing organizations and general manufacturing organizations with comparable

annual revenues the Compensation Conmiittee reviewed pooled compensation data for positions similar to

those held by each named executive officer In the case of Messrs Welch and Barpoulis whose positions are

the most directly comparable with those in other companies the Compensation Committee also used survey

cut of metals and mining organizations with comparable annual revenues The Compensation Committee is not

provided with the names of the companies making up these surveys and is only privy to the statistical

summaries provided in these surveys

Based on the objectives outlined above the Compensation Committee strives to set target opportunity

compensation levels to be competitive with the market in which the Company competes for executive talent

Actual compensation may be above or below targets based on both the performance of the Company and of

the individual Executives may realize compensation above target levels based on achieving outstanding

results This approach is intended to ensure that there is direct relationship between the Compaays overall

performance in the achievement of its financial operational and strategic goals and each individual executives

total compensation In making its decisions on an individuals compensation the Compensation Committee

considers the nature and scope
of all elements of an executives total compensation package the executives

responsibilities and his or her effectiveness in supporting Company performance

The Compensation Committee strives to align each component of the executives compensation as well as

the total compensation opportunity with the competitive market and the Companys objectives Generally as

employees move to higher levels of responsibility with greater ability to influence the Companys results

greater proportion of pay will be at nsk and dependent on Company performance The Compensation

Committees goal is to strike the appropriate balance among base salary annual and long-term incentives and

it may adjust the allocation of pay to best meet the Companys objectives or maintain compensation equity

with the competitive market in which the Company competes for executive talent
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Elements of Executive Compensation

TOTAL DIRECT COMPENSATION

For 2008 total direct compensation for the named executive officers consisted of three key elements base

salary performance-based annual incentive and performance-based and time-based long-term incentive

compensation The chart below shows the relative proportion of each program based on target levels

Information Related to the CEO
Base Salary $900000

Target Annual Incentive $900000 1X or 100% of base salary

Target Long-Term Incentive $2250000 2.5X or 250% of base salary

Fixed vs Variable Pay Short-Term vs Long-Term Pay Cash vs Equity-Based Pay

Fixed 22% Short-Term 44% Cash 37%

Base Salary Salary Annual Incentive Value Salary 65% of Annual Incentive

Value

Variable 78% Long-Term 56% EqWty-Based 63%

Annual Long-Term Incentive Long-Term Incentive Value 35% of Annual Incentive Value

Value Long-Term Incentive Value

Information Related to the Other Named Executive Officers

Base Salary $370000 $470000 Range

Target Annual Incentive $259000 $329000 .7X or 70% of base salary

Target Long-Term Incentive $518000 $846000 1.4X or 140% of base salary to 1.8X or 180% of base salary

Fixed vs Variable Pay Short-Term vs Long-Term Pay Cash vs Equity-Based Pay

Fixed 29-32% Short-Term 49-55% Cash 42-47%

Base Salary Salary Annual Incentive Value Salary 65% of Annual Incentive

Value

Variable 58-61% Long-Term 45-51% Equity-Based 53-58%

Annual Long-Term Incentive Long-Term Incentive Value 35% of Annual Incentive Value

Value Long-Term Incentive Value

Observations Regarding Mix of Total Direct Compensation

The value of long-term incentives is generally about double that of the annual
ii%centive

to weight an

executives compensation toward focus on long-term rather than short-term goals

The amount of variable or at-risk compensation is higher for the Chief Executive Officer than the

other named executive officers in light of his greater responsibility and ability to influence the

Companys results

Annual incentives are normally paid 65% in cash and 35% in restricted stock If an executive has met

his or her stock ownership guidelines the amount of restricted stock received may be less as they may
elect to receive greater proportion of their annual incentive in cash Alternatively an executive may
elect to receive greater proportion of his annual incentive in restriØted stock in lieu of cash

For 2008 annual incentive awards were paid 50% in restricted stock 100% in the case of the CEO
This had the effect of further reducing the amount of cash compensation

Each year using the resources and services of its compensation consultant the Compensation Committee

evaluates compensation levels for each of the executive officers of the Company In setting compensation for

2008 the Compensation Committee reviewed and considered total compensation for each named executive
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officer including review of tally sheets that provide the value of historic and current elements of each

officers compensation including savings plans pension plans health and welfare benefits and perquisites

stock stock options and restricted stock units held by the executive at year-end in the Companys incentive

and benefits plans and review of compensation that would be paid upon termination of employment

under various scenarios

Base Salary

The base salary element of compensation is intended to provide stable annual salary at level consistent

with individual contributions The Compensation Committee recommends base salary levels for executive

officers to the Board of Directors for its approval The Compensation Committee consults with the Chief

Executive Officer with respect to the recommended base salaries for the other officers

USEC is engaged in complicated unique and technologically sophisticated business whose success will

have major impact on the nations energy environmental and national security goals The success of our

business depends on our ability to retain key executives managers and other skilled personnel some of whom

have been involved in the development of centrifuge technology since the early 1980s and whose experience is

virtually irreplaceable In light of the unique qualifications and experience of our key executives and the

importance of retaining these executives during the Companys critical transition period following review of

executive pay and consultation with its compensation consultant in February 2008 the Compensation

Committee decided to reposition 2008 base salaries to approximately the 75th percentile of the market from

within plus or minus 10% of the 50th percentile of the market for 2007 as determined using market data

provided to the Compensation Committee by Watson Wyatt which includes combination of commercially

available pooled survey data and Peer Group data Watson Wyatt averages the data from the Peer Group with

the survey
data to create the market data reviewed by the Compensation Committee In setting individual base

salaries consideration was given to the performance of the Company the individual performance of

each executive the executives scope
of responsibility in relation to other officers and key executives

within the Company and any retention issues In evaluating performance the Compensation Committee

considers the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer with respect to the performance and contribu

tion of individual named executive officers and also considers the performance measures under the Annual

Incentive Program Base salaries are set at the beginning of the year at the same time that annual incentive

awards for the prior year are made under the Annual Incentive Program

The following adjustments were made in 2008 to the base salaries for the named executive officers

Following these adjustments the base salaries of the named executive officers were between approximately

95% and 108% of the 75th percentile of the market as determined by the compensation consultant The Chief

Executive Officers base salary was increased to approximately 100% of the 75th percentile of the market

Name 2007 Salary Adjustment 2008 Salary

John Welch $830000 $70000 $900000

John Barpoulis $350000 $50000 $400000

Philip Sewell $425000 $45000 $470000

Robert Van Namen $371000 $39000 $410000

Lance Wright $320000 $50000 $370000

Increases in base salaries have the effect of increasing other elements of total compensation including

annual incentives long-term incentives and retirement benefits In setting base salaries for the named

executive officers the Compensation Committee considers the effects of such increases on other elements of

total compensation

As part of its previously described cash conservation efforts the Compensation Committee froze the base

salaries for the named executive officers for 2009 at the 2008 level
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Annual Incentive

Corporate Quantitative Goals

Gross profit margin percentage 30%

The Company has established an Annual Incentive Program to reward the achievement of critical annual

financial and operational performance goals Under the Annual Incentive Program executive officers and

certain other key employees have the opportunity to earn an annual incentive based on the achievement of
pre

determined annual performance objectives Executive officers may earn between 0% and 150% of their target

annual incentive based on combination of Company financial and individual performance measures described

below The Annual Incentive Program is subset of the Companys 1999 Equity Incentive Plan shareholder

approved plan

Form of Awards Annual incentives are generally paid 65% in cash and 35% in restricted stock As

discussed above for 2008 awards paid in 2009 executives were required to take 50% of their annual incentive

award in restricted stock in order to conserve cash and Mr Welch elected to take his entire annual incentive

award in restricted stock The restricted stock portion of the award is granted seven days after the release of

the Companys annual earnings and vests one year from the date of grant subject to accelerated vesting in

certain circumstances The number of shares of restricted stock to be issued is calculated based on the New

York Stock Exchange closing pnce of the Company common stock on the date of grant The Compensation

Committee determined that including restricted stock component in the annual incentive conserves cash

provides the executive with an additional incentive to maintain shareholder value further links Company

management and shareholders promotes executive ownership and acts as management retention vehicle

Normally if named executive officer has met his stock ownership guidelines he is viewed as having

already built sigmficant ownership stake in the Company and is entitled to receive all of his annual incentive

in cash If instead he elects to receive any portion of his annual incentive in the form of restricted stock he

would receive an additional incentive payment in the form of restricted stock that vests in equal annual

installments over three years from the date of grant equal to 20% of the portion of the annual incentive that

he took in restricted stock in lieu of cash FOr 2008 all of the named executive officers had satisfied their

stock ownership guidelines Since the Compensation Committee determined that the 20% additional restricted

stock incentive payment remained applicable on any amounts being taken in restricted stock that would have

been payable in cash and since the named executive officers received 50% 100% for Mr Welch their

annual incentive in restricted stOck they also received additional restricted stock with value equal to 10%

20% for Mr Welch of their annual incentive award

Target Levels Target annual incentive levels are set by the Compensation Committee in consultation

with its compensation consultant The Compensation Committee uses commercially available survey data

previously described and analysis by its compensation consultant to compare annual incentive payments to

the market For 2008 target levels were set based on percentage of the executives base salary as follows

Position Target Level Rationale

CEO 100% Provides executives with the motivation and

reward to perform at the highest level in

Other named executive officers 70%
achieving critical annual financial and

operating objectives.

Goal of targeting the named executive

officers base salary plus the annual

incentive to competitive level

Performance Measures For 2008 annual incentive awards our Compensation Committee set the

performance measures as described in the table below

Performance Measure Weight Rationale

55%

Gross profit margin percentage is an important

measure of the Companys operational

profitability
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Weight Rationale

Adjusted cash flow from operations is non

GAAP measure of cash created by existing

operations with slightly lower weighting due

to potential timing variances ACP expense
is

excluded because it is covered by the ACP
earned value metric Interest and taxes are

excluded because most members of

management cannot influence these factors

ACP earned value is an important non-GAAP

measure of managements progress on the ACP
for capital invested and is weighted most

heavily because of its strategic importance

Adjusted SGA expense
is non-GAAP

measure of controllable overhead expenses

Other compensation and stock based

compensation are excluded because they can

be influenced by stock price volatility and

other subjective variables

Based on the Companys strategic initiatives

and operating plan The weight of each of the

key performance objectives varied by

individual based on their areas of

responsibility

Each corporate financial performance measure or corporate quantitative goal comprises threshold

target and maximum performance levels which if achieved results in payments of 0% 100% and 150% of

that target financial performance measure component respectively Proportional payments are made for

achievement between threshold target and maximum performance levels If the threshold corporate financial

performance is not achieved no amount is paid for that financial performance measure component The

threshold levels were set based on the Companys budget for 2008 and the target and maximum levels were

set based on stretch targets taking into account potential opportunities for management to effect positive

impacts and were not designed to encourage or reward the taking of excessive or unnecessary risk The table

below describes the corporate quantitative goal target and achievement levels for 2008

Gross Profit Adjusted Cash

Margin Flow from ACP Earned Adjusted SGA
Percentage 30% Operations 25% Value 35% Expense 10%Level

Maximum 150%

Target 100%
Threshold 0%
Actual Performance 95%

15.5% $220 million 1.5 $36 million

14.0% $140 million 1.0 $43 million

11.5% $25 million 0.5 $50 million

14.2% 102% $98 million 81% 0.97 97% $42.6 million 101%

The Annual Incentive Program penuits the Compensation Conmiittee to adjust performance based criteria

or awards in recognition of unusual or non-recurring events affecting the Company Adjustments to Cash

Flow from Operations totaling $45.9 million were made for net interest savings and bond discount on the

early repurchase in 2008 of notes due in January 2009 power cost credits received in early 2009 for 2008

payments and prepaid taxes

For 2008 the Compensation Committee set specific individual performance measures for our Chief

Executive Officer and adopted specific individual performance measures recommended by the Chief Executive

Officer for our remaining named executive officers which flow down from the key performance objectives

established for the Chief Executive Officer The 2008 key performance objectives for the Chief Executive

Officer and the other named executive officers included objectives aimed at the following five objectives As

detailed in the table below the 2008 key performance objectives were all designed to achieve the Companys

Performance Measure

Cash flow from operations before American

Centrifuge expense interest and taxes

Adjusted cash flow from operations

25%

American Centrifuge project ACP earned

value 35% measures project performance

quantitatively by comparing work completed

against work planned at given date in the

project schedule

Selling general and administrative SGA
expense not including other compensation

and stock based compensation Adjusted
SGA expense 10%

Key Performance Objectives

Individual performance measures weighted

between 10% and 35%

45%
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strategic business plan and accordingly were designed to be achievable and not to encourage or reward

excessive or unnecessary risk but to require substantial effort and initiative on the part of the individual

named executive officers

Key Performance Objective Difficulty

Achievement of initiatives relating to expanding

revenue generation and controlling costs involve

substantial effort and initiative including efforts

with respect to contracting managing electric

power costs and improving plant operations

The American Centrifuge project is unique

project and the Companys deployment schedule

and objectives are ambitious therefore achievement

of this objective is subject to number of

uncertainties and involves substantial effort and

initiative

Perform comprehensive analysis of the activities

steps processes systems and organization

infrastructure needed during the period of transition

through commercial deployment of the American

Centrifuge Plant including optimal use of the

Paducah gaseous diffusion plant Russian purchases

and inventory

This includes contracting for output from the

American Centrifuge Plant and securing the

significant amount of capital needed to complete

construction of the American Centrifuge Plant both

of which are challenging because of the

uncertainties relating to the American Centrifuge

Plant therefore achievement of this objective

involves substantial effort and initiative

USEC purchases low enriched uranium from

dismantled Soviet nuclear weapons under the

Megatons to Megawatts nonproliferation program

with Russia which is unique program In

addition Russia has the largest nuclear fuel

industry in the world and is aggressively seeking to

expand its share of the world market in particular

the United States Therefore this objective is

subject to number of- uncertainties and involves

substantial effort and initiative

For individual named executive officers other than the Chief Executive Officer their particular

objectives were more detailed subset of these five objectives with focus on such named executive officer

functional area. For example Mr Barpoulis specific objectives as Chief Financial Officer generally related to

financial and accounting matters Mr Sewells specific objectives as Senior Vice President American

Centrifuge and Russian HEU generally related to American Centrifuge and Russian HEU program manage
ment matters Mr Van Namens specific objectives as Senior Vice President Uranium Enrichment generally

related to uranium enrichment operations and marketing and sales matters and Mr Wrights specific objectives

as Senior Vice President Human Resources and Administration generally related to functions providing

centralized IT human resources and security support to the Company There are no individual performance

factors in addition to and separate from the five factors listed in the table above and each of the named

executive officers key performance objectives were designed to be difficult to achieve and to challenge the

executive as set forth in the table above

Strengthen near-term performance of the business

through efforts to control costs and increase

revenues

Meet critical design performance and deployment

objectives relating to the Companys American

Centrifuge Plant

Due to the number of risks and uncertainties facing

the Company implementation of smooth

transition plan involves great deal of strategic

planning and substantial effort and initiative

Refine document and begin implementation of

centrifuge production-based business model

focusing on long-term enrichment contracts with

customers and managements capital structure

goals Take steps to improve the Companys long

term credit profile in advance of
issuing

debt

Maintain stable supply under the Russian highly

enriched uranium contract and appropriate

restrictions on imports of low enriched uranium into

the U.S market
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The Compensation Committee reviews and approves the achievement level and incentive payment for

each named executive officer under the Annual Incentive Program The achievement levels and incentive

payment percentages approved by the Compensation Committee for the named executive officers for 2008 are

summarized in the table below

Key Performance Corporate Annual Incentive

Objective Quantitative Goals Award as
Achievement Level Achievement Level percentage of

Name 45% 55% target

John Welch 99% 95% 97%

John Barpoulis 103% 95% 99%

Philip Sewell 103% 95% 99%

Robert Van Namen 100% 95% 97%

Lance Wright 100% 95% 97%

Long-Term Incentive Compensation

The Compensation Committee is committed to long-term equity incentive programs for executives that

promote the long-term growth and success of the Company The long-term incentive compensation is designed

to ensure that the executive decision-making process maintains balanced focus on both immediate measures

of success and on the effective growth and development of the business three to five years
in the future The

Long-Term Incentive Program under the shareholder-approved 1999 Equity Incentive Plan permits the

Compensation Conmittee to grant variety of stock-based awards including restricted stock stock options

and restricted stock units RSUs

Long-term incentives are designed to more closely align executive officers and other employees interests

with those of the shareholders and are key element and significant component of market-competitive total

compensation The Long-Term Incentive Program is designed to make annual grants of restricted stock and

non-qualified stock options with vesting periods of three years to executive officers and other program

participants The Long-Term Incentive Program for 2008 also includes three-year performance component

In consultation with its compensation consultant the Compensation Conmiittee established stock option and

restricted stock award levels that are designed to provide the executive with total direct compensation base

salary annual incentives and long-term incentives at competitive level

Annualized target award levels for named executive officers under the Long-Term Incentive Program for

2008 ranged from 140% to 250% of base salary depending on the executives position and were comprised of

the following as more fully described below

Annualized Target
Percentage of Annualized Long.Term Incentive Value

Long-Term Incentive Value Restricted Stock Stock Option Executive

Position as Multiple of Base Salary Awards Awards Incentive Plan

CEO 2.5X 30% 30% 40%

Other named executive officers. 1.4X to 1.8X 29% to 33% 29% to 33% 33% to 43%

As previously described in light of the unique qualifications and experience of our key executives and

the importance of retaining these executives during the Companys critical transition period the Compensation

Committee determined during 2008 to make certain changes to the Companys compensation program The

Compensation Committee determined to reposition overall total direct compensation for the named executive

officers and certain other executives to approximately the 75th percentile of the market as determined using

market data provided to the Compensation Committee by Watson Wyatt Accordingly adjustments were made

to the annualized target levels of restricted stock and nonqualified stock options granted to the named

executive officers These changes are described below
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Restricted Stock Awards Named executive officers and other program participants receive an annual

grant of resthcted stock as part of their long-term incentive The value of the grant is equal to percentage

of the named executive officers base salary as follows

2007 Target 2008 Target

Name of base salary of-base salary

John Welch 50% 75%

John Barpoulis 35% 60%

Philip Sewell 35% 60%

Robert Van Namen 35% 60%

Lance Wright 35% 40%

These shares are granted by the Compensation Committee at fair market value on the date of grant and

vest ratably over three years subject to accelerated vesting under certain circumstances This grant of

restricted stock has no performance component associated with it It is time based award designed as

retention-based component in achieving market-based total direct compensation for the executive It is also

designed to help increase share ownership by the executive officers It is the Compensation Committee belief

that stock awards combined with the Companys requirement for executive officers to hold significant levels of

Company stock provide direct incentive to achieve the longer-term performance goals for the Company

Stock Option Awards Named executive officers and certain other program participants also receive an

annual grant of non-qualified stock options The value of the grant is equal to percentage of the named

executive officers base salary as follows

2007 Target 2008 Target

Name of base salary of base salary

John Welch 50% 75%

John Barpoulis
35% 60%

Philip Sewell 35% 60%

Robert Van Namen 35% 60%

Lance Wright 35% 40%

Stock options are valued using the Black-Scholes methodology and are calculated with the assistance of the

compensation consultant It is the Companys policy that stock option grants are made seven days after the

release of the Companys annual earnings and are awarded at the New York Stock Exchanges closing price of

the Company common stock on the date of grant Stock option grants vest ratably over three years and expire

five years
alter grant subject to accelerated vestmg under certam circumstances Each named executive officer

2008 grant of stock options is detailed on the Grants of Plan Based Awards in Fiscal Year 2008 table While

number of organizations have recently elimmated or significantly reduced stock option grants to executives the

Compensation Committee believes thatstock options are highly effective way to focus executives on ensuring

the long-term performance of the Company In addition the Compensation Committee believes they are highly

effective tool in aligning the Interests of the executive officers and shareholders toward sustained long term

stock performance Consequently they remain significant component of the incentive mix

2006-2008 Executive InØentive Plan In April 2006 the Compensation Committee approved three-year

performance component of the Companys long-term incentive program the 2006 2008 Executive Incentive

Plan under the USEC Inc 1999 Equity Incentive Plan effective March 2006 Each of the named executive

officers participated in the 20062008 Executive Incentive Plan The Compensation Committee in consultation

with its compensation consultant identified the need for focused long-term program with measurable performance

goals The 2006 2008 Executive Incentive Plan was designed to focus rewards on limited number of highly

important objective targets that if completed would sigmficantly add to the long term value of the busmess

The 2006 2008 Executive Incentive Plan was an objective performance-based program which rewarded

participants for successful performance against financial and business strategy-based targets over three-year

period The performance period ran from March 2006 through December 31 2008 this reflected

shortened performance period due to implementation in the first quarter of 2006 Under the 2006 2008
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Executive Incentive Plan the Companys named executive officers were awarded the right to earn shares of

the Companys conmion stock or an equivalent amount of cash or restricted stock units settleable for cash

Each participants target award was based on an annual percentage of his base salary at the start of the

performance period as follows

Value of Target Award

based on 3-year

Annualized Value performance period
as of base salary as of base salary

100% 300%

Other named executive officers 60%

For this three-year period the annual target percentages were set based on the degree to which an individuals

efforts influence the Companys long-term performance In setting the award levels for the 2006 2008 Executive

Incentive Plan the Compensation Committee worked closely with its compensation consultant The consultant

analyzed the three-year award opportunity both as stand-alone award and as part of the executive officers

overall total compensation Using both commercially available survey data and Peer Group data as previously

discussed the Compensation Committee determined that these award levels were consistent with the market for

similar-sized companies and that executive officers were receiving market competitive total compensation

December 2008 marked the end of the three-year performance period March 2006 through

December 31 2008 Actual payouts of the awards were determined based on performance against pre
determined performance goals described below Participants were eligible to receive from 80% threshold to

120% maximum of their target award for each goal based on performance with performance below the 80%

threshold level resulting in no award for goal

Performance Goal
______

Measure/Difficulty

Threshold Internal target minus $13 million

Target Specified internal target in millions

Maximum Internal target plus at least $35 million

The Compensation Committee believed that these

internal gross profit targets were achievable yet

required considerable effort and innovation on the

part of the executive management team

Actual Performance $228.2 million Capped at Maximum 120%
USECs total shareholder return TSR for 20% Threshold USEC TSR between the 45th and 54th

the period as measured against the SP 500 percentile of the SP 500

total shareholder return without dividends Target USEC TSR between the 55th and 64th

percentile of the SP 500

Maximum USEC TSR at the 65th percentile or

greater of the SP 500

Actual Performance $4.49/share Below Threshold 0%
Two business performance targets 50% Related to achieving USECs internal goals relating

to the American Centrifuge program

3a Achieving specified economic Threshold Performance level is within minus 10%

performance of the centrifuge machine of specified performance level

50% Target Specified performance level is achieved

Maximum Performance level is 10% or more

above specified performance level

The specified performance level is classified for

purposes

Actual Performance J3elow ThrehoId 0%
Achievable yet requires considerable effort and

innovation on the part of the executive management

Name

CEO

180%

Gross profit for 2008 as measured against

internal targets

Weight

30%

3b Completion of financing plan for

the Companys American Centrifuge

plant 50%
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Each named executive officers payout is included in the Summary Compensation Table under Non-

Equity Incentive Plan Compensation

2009 Performance Plan In light of general economic and market conditions and the short-term

uncertainty facing the Company with respect to the financing of the American Centrifuge project which

impacts the project cost and schedule in 2009 the Compensation Committee determined to postpone the

implementation of new three-year Executive Incentive Plan until at least 2010 and instead to replace the

Executive Incentive Plan for 2009 with one-year performance based award that vests over three years the

2009 Performance Plan Under the 2009 Performance Plan executives are awarded the right to earn shares

of restricted stock of the Company that vest ratably over three years from March 2009 Target awards for

the named executive officers are based on percentage of the executives base salary as follows CEO 100%

other named executive officers 60% This amount is equal to the annualized value of the 2006 2008

Executive Incentive Plan that it is replacing The target number of shares of restricted stock was calculated

based on the Companys stock price on March 2009 seven days after the release of earnings for the year

ended December 31 2008

Actual awards if any will be determined by performance of the Company during the period January

2009 through December 31 2009 against pre-determined performance goal relating to ensuring sufficient

liquidity for ongoing Company operations and attracting capital to support the financing of the Company

American Centrifuge Plant Awards will be granted following the completion of the performance period

Participants may receive from 80% threshold to 120% maximum of their target award based on

performance with performance below 80% threshold level resulting in no award If prior to the grant of an

award with respect to the performance period there is change in control of the Company and

participants employment is terminated by the Company other than for cause or by the participant for good

reason fully vested awards will be made at target regardless of performance participant leaves the

Company due to retirement or termination other than for cause fully vested pro rated awards will be made in

accordance with performance at the end of the performance period and participant leaves the Company

due to death or disability fully vested pro rated awards will be made at target regardless of performance

Performance must be approved by the Compensation Committee prior to any award being made

The Compensation Committee believes that placing significant portion of executive officer compensa

tion opportunity in equity sends clear message that primary role of the executive officer is in building the

long-term value of the Company and that his own long-term wealth is tied to the long-term success of the

Company

INDIRECT COMPENSATION

Retirement Plans

The Company provides its executive officers with benefits that are described below and that are intended

to be part of competitive compensation package that provides health welfare and retirement programs

comparable to those provided to employees and executives at other companies in similar industries All

employees of USEC Inc including the named executive officers are eligible to participate in the USEC

Savings Program In addition all employees of USEC Inc other than certain American Centrifuge employees

and any non-union employees hired on or after September 2008 are eligible to participate in the Employees

Retirement Plan of USEC Inc

In addition named executive officers and other executives designated by the Company are entitled to

participate in the USEC Inc Executive Deferred Compensation Plan and the Pension Restoration Plan Each

of the named executive officers also participates in supplemental executive retirement plan The benefit plan

descriptions here and in the Pension Benefits in Fiscal Year 2008 table provide an explanation of the major

features of these benefit plans

Savings Plans Named executive officers have the opportunity to participate in two defined contribution

savings plans The USEC Savings Program and the USEC Inc Executive Deferred Compensation Plan
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The USEC Savings Program is tax-qualified broad-based 401k employee savings pian USEC Inc

employees including the named executive officers are able to contribute the lesser of up to 50% of their

annual base salary or dollar limits established annually by the Internal Revenue Service IRS The Company

will match 100% of the first 3% of pay that is conthbuted to the USEC Savings Program and 50% on the next

2% of pay contributed Employee contributions are fully vested upon contribution and Company match

contributions vest 50% after two years
of service and 100% after three years of service Those USEC Inc

employees who are not eligible to participate in the Employees Retirement Plan of USEC Inc are provided

an enhanced employer matching contribution under the USEC Savings Program

In addition to the USEC Savings Program during 2008 executives designated by the Company including

the named executive officers could participate in the USEC Inc Executive Deferred Compensation Plan the

Deferred Compensation Plan Mr Welch Mr Van Namen and Mr Wright participated in the Deferred

Compensation Plan in 2008 The Deferred Compensation Plan is intended to be non-qualified deferred

compensation plan that complies with the regulations of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986

as amended The Deferred Compensation Plan replaced the USEC Inc 40 1k Restoration Plan effective

January 2008 Account balances under the 401k Restoration Plan were transferred to the Deferred

Compensation Plan Participation in the Deferred Compensation Plan is not limited to the Companys officers

but also includes select group of management and highly compensated employees Participants in the

Deferred Compensation Plan may defer up to maximum of 90% and minimum of 5% Of base salary and

maximum of 100% and minimum of 5% of cash bonus amounts received through the Companys incentive

compensation programs The Company matches participant contributions under the Deferred Compensation

Plan at the rate that would apply if they had been contributed to the USEC Savings Program without regard

for any statutory limitations reduced by amounts contributed to the USEC Savings Program participant

may receive distribution from the Deferred Compensation Plan upon qualifying distribution event such as

separation from service disability death or in-service distribution on specified date change in control or an

unforeseeable emergency all as defined in the plan Distributions from the Deferred Compensation Plan will

be made in cash in lump sum annual installments or combination of both in the manner elected by the

participant and provided for in the plan

Participants in the USEC Savings Program direct the investment of their account balances among various

funds available under the plan Deferred Compensation Plan accounts are deemed to be invested in number

of mutual funds made available for designation by the participant

Pension Plans Named executive officers have the opportunity to participate in qualified pension plan

pension restoration plan and one of two supplemental executive retirement plans each SERP

The Employees Retirement Plan of USEC Inc is broad based tax-qualified pension plan whose

maximum benefits are limited by legislation while the USEC Inc Pension Restoration Plan is non-qualified

supplemental pension benefit that is designed to continue the accrual of pension benefits that exceed the

legislated limits under the Employees Retirement Plan of USEC Inc All officers including the named

executive officers whose compensation exceeds the qualified plan limits are automatically enrolled in the

USEC Inc Pension Restoration Plan Information regarding the calculation of benefits under the Employees

Retirement Plan of USEC Inc and the USEC Inc Pension Restoration Plan can be found in the narrative

accompanying the Pension Benefits in Fiscal Year 2008 table

The Company also maintains two SERPs The USEC Inc 1999 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

the 1999 SERP was approved by the Compensation Committee in 1999 and Mr Sewell is the only active

participant The Compensation Committee decided not to add any additional participants after 2001 The 1999

SERP provides Mr Sewell with benefit calculated in the form of monthly annuity equal to 55% of his

final average compensation with offsets for benefits received under the Companys retirement programs and

any U.S government retirement program to which the Company contributed and Social Security benefits

More information regarding the calculation of benefits payable to Mr Sewell under the 1999 SERP can be

found in the narrative accompanying the Pension Benefits in Fiscal Year 2008 table

Messrs Welch Barpoulis Van Namen and Wright participate in the USEC Inc 2006 Supplemental

Executive Retirement Plan the 2006 SERP As applicable to Mr Welch the 2006 SERP incorporates the
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terms of SERP agreed to by the Company in September 2005 in connection with setting Mr Welchs initial

terms of employment The Company agreed to provide Mr Welch with SERF that generally provided for

benefit equal to 30% of final average pay with five years
of service increasing to 50% with ten or more years

of service with offsets for benefits received under the Companys other retirement programs and Social

Security benefits This new SERP was designed to be less expensive than the 1999 SERP

As applicable to other participants the 2006 SERF provides for monthly supplemental retirement

benefit equal to 2.5% of final average pay for each year
of service to maximum benefit of 50% after

20 years of service with offsets for benefits received under the Companys other retirement programs and

Social Security benefits In determining to implement the 2006 SERP and determining the level of benefits to

be provided the Compensation Committee worked with its compensation consultant and reviewed tally sheets

that showed the value of total compensation paid to executives More information regarding the calculation of

benefits under the 2006 SERP can be found in the narrative accompanying the Pension Benefits in Fiscal Year

2008 table

Participation in the 2006 SERP is contingent on the participant agreeing to comply with certain

restrictive covenants relating to confidentiality non competition and non solicitation of Company employees

for period of time following his terrmnation of employment

Severance Arrangements

Executive Severance Plan The Compensation Committee believes that in the absence of employment

agreements between the Company and its key employees it is appropriate to have reasonable severance

policy in place in order to attenuate concems about short-term continuity of income and allow executives to

focus on the Companys business In 2008 the Board approved the USEC Inc Executive Severance Plan the

Executive Severance Plan intended to be an unfunded welfare plan subject to the Employee Retirement

Income Security Act of 1974 as amended Payment and benefit levels under the Executive Severance Plan

were not changed from what was provided under the Companys existing executive severance policy based on

an assessment by the Compensation Committee in consultation with its compensation consultant that they

continued to be competitive and reasonable with respect to the intent of the program

Under the Executive Severance Plan if an executive officer is terminated by the Company without cause

he is eligible to receive his current base salary and prorated share of his current annual incentive payable at

the end of the performance period based on actual performance up to the date of termination In addition as

severance payment he would receive cash payment equal to one years base salary at his current rate and

an amount equal to his final average
bonus generally the average of his last three years annual incentive

awards both cash and restricted stock He would also receive continuation of medical and dental coverage as

well as life insurance paid for by the Company for one year after termination or until he received similar

coverage
from subsequent employer whichever occurs first and outplacement assistance services Severance

benefits are contingent upon the executive executing release and agreeing to comply with certain restrictive

covenants relating to non-competition and non-solicitation of Company employees for one year following his

termination of employment No severance is paid to an employee who is terminated for cause or who resigns

voluntarily

In addition if an employee is terminated by the Company other than for cause all unvested restricted

stock that vests based on performance of service and all stock options would vest and the employee would

have up to one year to exercise all vested stock options Awards under the one-year
Performance Plan would

be pro-rated based on the period of time in which the participant was in the plan and would be made at the

end of the one-year performance period based on actual performance

Change in Control Agreements The Compensation Committee believes that change in control agree

ments are an important tool for executive retention and the retention of other key employees The Company

has entered into change in control agreements with each of the named executive officers These agreements

have an initial term of three years which is automatically extended for additional one-year periods unless the

Board of Directors has given notice of non-renewal Upon change in coqtrol the agreements will expire no

earlier than three years following the date that the change in control occurs change in control is generally
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defined as the acquisition by person of 30% or more of the voting power of the Company change in the

majority of theCompanys Board the consummation of certain mergers or consolidations involving the

Company sale or disposition of 40% or more of the Companys assets or liquidation of the Company

involving the sale of at least 40% of the Companys assets

Payment and benefit levels under the change in control agreements were set when these agreements were

put into place and were based on an assessment by the Compensation Committee of what was competitive and

reasonable with respectto the intent of the program The Compensation Conimittee periodically reviews the

payment and benefit level under these
agreements and reviewed them in 2008 in consultation with its

compensation consultant and made only technical modifications to the change in control agreements

The change in control agreements provide each named executive officer with certain benefits if there is

change in control of the Company and within protected period beginning three months before and ending

three years after that change in control the protected period the Company terminates his employment for

any reason other than cause or the executive terminates his employment for good reason as defined in the

agreement The Compensation Committee believes this double tngger is appropriate because the purpose of

the change in control agreements is to provide enhanced severance protectiOn and not to provide windfall

upon the change in control These benefits are in lieu of
any severance benefits the named executive officer

would otherwise be eligible to receive under the Companys Executive Severance Plan In order to receive

these benefits the named executive officer must comply with the non-competition non-solicitation and

confidentiality provisions of the change in control agreement during the term of the agreement and for

2.5 years thereafter five years in the case of the confidentiality provision

Under the terms of each named executive officer change in control agreement if during protected

period he is terminated other than for cause or terminates his employment for good reason he would receive

cash payment of his unpaid base salary through the date of termination plus all other amounts to which he

was entitled under any compensation or benefit plan of the Company under the terms of such plans In

addition as change in control payment he would receive cash lump sum payment equal to times the

sum of his final base salary and his final average bonus generally the
average

of his last three years annual

incentive awards both cash and restricted stock In addition under the terms of each agreement the Company
would provide him and his dependents with continuation of life accident and health insurance benefits for

2.5 years following the occurrence of the change in control or if sooner until he is covered by comparable

programs of subsequent employer In addition the executive will receive 2.5 additional years of service for

purposes of retirement plan benefits under the SERPs If the executive receives payments whether or not

under his or her agreement that would subject him to any federal excise tax due under section 4999 of the

Internal Revenue Code the executive will also receive cash payment equal to the amount of such excise tax

In addition if an employee is terminated by the Company other than for cause or by the participant for

good reason coincident with or following change in control all unvested restricted stock and stock options

would vest and the employee would have up to one year to exercise all vested stock options Under the 2009

Performance Plan in the case of termination of employment coincident with or following change in

control for reasons other than for cause fully vested awards will be made at target

For details of payments under the above arrangements see the Potential Payments Upon Termination or

Change in Control table

Perquisites

The Company maintains limited number of perquisites for senior executive officers These include an

annual financial counseling allowance of $7500 $15000 for the Chief Executive Officer and an annual

executive physical valued at approximately $4000 In addition the Company reimburses the Chief Executive

Officer for annual dues for up to two business or golf organizations or clubs Perquisites do not represent

significant compensation element for any of the named executive officers ad the Compensation Committee is

considering phasing some or all of these out beginning in 2010
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Recoupment of Previously Paid Bonuses

The Companys equity incentive plan includes claw back provision that requires repayment of all

payments in settlement of any awards earned or accrued during the twelve-month period following the first

public issuance or filing with the SEC of financial document that is subsequently restated as result of

misconduct The claw back applies to grantee who knowingly or through gross negligence engaged in or

failed to prevent the misconduct or who is subject to automatic forfeiture under Section 304 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

Tax and Accounting Treatments of Elements of Compensation

In its deliberations the Compensation Committee considers the potential impact of IRC SectiOn 162m
IRC Section 162m currently disallows tax deduction for the Company for individual executive compensa
tion exceeding $1 million in any taxable

year
for the Chief Executive Officer and the other three highest

compensated officers other than the Chief Financial Officer other than compensation that is performance-

based under plan that is approved by the shareholders of the Company and that meets certain other technical

requirements Annual incentive awards and awards under the 2006 2008 Executive Incentive Plan and the

2009 Performance Plan are intended to meet the performance based compensation requirements while base

salary long-term incentive awards of time-vested restricted stock and stock options are not

While the Compensation Committee designs certain components of executive compensation to preserve

deductibility it believes that shareholder interests are best served by not restricting the Compensation

Conmiittees discretion and flexibility in crafting compensation programs even though such programs may
result in certain non-deductible compensation expenses Accordingly the Compensation Committee may from

time to time approve compensation arrangements for certain officers that are not fully deductible Further

because of ambiguities and uncertainties as to the application and interpretation of IRC Section 162m and

the regulations issued thereunder no assurance can be given notwithstanding the Companys efforts that

compensation intended by the Company to satisfy the requirements for deductibility under IRC Section 162m
does in fact do so

In addition in structuring compensation arrangements the Compensation Committee intends to permit

participants to avoid potential tax penalties under IRC Section 409A During 2007 and 2008 the Compensa
tion Committee and the Board approved number of technical changes to the Companys compensation

arrangements for executive officers in order to facilitate compliance with IRC Section 409A The Compensa
tion Committee also takes into account the impact of potential gross-up payments by the Company to cover

federal excise taxes due under section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code

The Compensation Committee considers the accounting and dilution impact of equity awards made to

executive officers We account for our equity incentive grants under SFAS No 123R and use the Black

Scholes option pricing formula for determining the fair value of our stock option grants

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Every executive officer and certain other employees must hold an ownership stake in the Company that is

significant in comparison to their base salary The Compensation Committee has established stock ownership

guidelines which apply to all executive officers and certain other employees The amount required to be

retained varies depending on the executives position These guidelines must generally be achieved within five

years after the person becomes subject to the guidelines The stock ownership guidelines that apply to each of
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the named executive officers as well as their achievement as of December 31 2008 are shown in the table

below

Number of Stock

Stock Ownership Guideline Years of Ownership as
Name number of shares Service of 12/31/08

John Welch 300000 463157

John Barpoulis 65000 110940

Philip Sewell 65000 102648

Robert Van Namen 65000 10 108907

Lance Wright 65000 100812

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis

required by Item 402b of Regulation Section 229 402b with management Based on this review and

discussions the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation

Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement

Compensation Committee

John Hall Chairman

Joyce Brown

Joseph Doyle

William Habermeyer
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information regarding the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer the

Chief Financial Officer and the three other most highly paid executive officers of the Company serving as

executive officers at December 31 2008 collectively the named executive officers for the years ended

December 31 2006 2007 and 2008

Change in

Pension

Value and

Non-Qualified

Non-Equity Deferred

Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other

Name and Fiscal Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation

Principal Position Year Salary Total

John Welch 2008 $900000 $1122858 $518712 $371853 $1298226 $61512 $4273161

President and CEO 2007 $828462 $1477617 $330055 65025 925499 $66295 $3692953
2006 $750000 931392 $182934 317658 $49650 $2231634

John Barpouhs 2008 $400000 165623 $136852 $239182 92036 $9200 $1042893
Senior Vice President and 2007 $349808 281543 63375 $168232 29725 9000 901683

Chief Financial Officer 2006 $317538 255836 21991 $190326 20856 8800 815347

Philip Sewell 2008 $473269 169575 $334358 $282677 396197 $1656076
Senior Vice President 2007 $424615 328585 $188928 $544926 749935 $2236989
American Centrifuge and 2006 $401423 338343 91437 $352592 695653 $1879448
Russian lIEU

Robert Van Namen 2008 $410000 13461 $151958 $240696 214180 $30038 $1060333
Senior Vice President 2007 $370404 215500 78386 $473866 129257 $26466 $1293879
Uranium Enrichment 2006 $340000 361559 57122 $296003 222162 $20437 $1297283

Lance Wright 2008 $370000 128911 $114040 $215181 288878 $20827 $1137837
Senior Vice President 2007 $319615 269211 66935 $211389 213867 $19890 $1100907
Human Resources and 2006 $300000 333389 28075 $166700 67611 $17744 913519

Administration

The amounts shown in the Stock Awards column represents the compensation cost recognized by us in the

applicable fiscal year related to stock awards to the named executive officers computed in accordance

with SFAS No 123R and do not reflect whether the named executive officer has actually realized

financial benefit from the award Amounts for fiscal year include amounts taken into account in that fis

cal year for awards granted in and prior to that fiscal year and do not include amounts for restricted stock

awards made for performance during that fiscal year under the Company Annual Incentive Program

which are made in the following fiscal year In April 2008 Mr Sewell became eligible for retirement

under the Company retirement plans and accordingly any unrecognized compensation cost for outstand

ing equity awards was fully recognized at such time In addition the compensation cost of any future

equity award to Mr Sewell is recognized by us in full on the date of grant For discussion of valuation

assumptions see Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements included in our annual report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 Note 15 to our consolidated financial statements

included in our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31 2007 and Note 13 to our

consolidated fmancial statements included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decem

ber 31 2006 In accordance with SEC rules the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfei

tures related to service-based vesting conditions

The amounts shown in the Option Awards column reptesent the compensation cost recognized by us in the

applicable fiscal year related to option awards to the named executive officers computed in accordance

with SFAS No 123R See footnote above regarding equity awards to Mr Sewell For discussion of

valuation assumptions see Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements included in our annual report

on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 Note 15 to our consolidated fmancial statements

included in our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31 2007 and Note 13 to our

consolidated financial statements included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decem

ber 31 2006

The amounts shown in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column constitute the cash portion of

the annual incentive awards made to each of the named executive officers based on the Compensation

Committees evaluation of each officers performance during the year The amounts shown for fiscal year
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include cash amounts earned under the Companys Annual Incentive Program for that year and paid in

March of the following year

For 2008 all of the named executive officers had met their stock ownership guidelines and were eligible

to receive their entire 2008 annual incentive award in cash Named executive officers are eligible to

receive 20% incentive payments of restricted stock for taking amounts they are entitled to receive in cash

in restricted stock in lieu of cash Amounts shown represent only the portion of the annual incentive

awards that was paid in cash as follows Welch 0% Barpoulis 50% Sewell 50% Van Namen 50% Wright

50% Mr Welch took his entire annual incentive award of $871190 in restricted stock and therefore

received an incentive payment of $174238 in restricted stock Messrs Barpoulis Sewell Van Namen and

Wright took 50% of their annual incentive awards of $276 077 $324 394 $279 104 and $251 875
respec

tively inescted stock and therefore received incentive payments Of $27608 $32439 $27910 and

$25187 respectively in restricted stock Restricted stock granted to Messrs Welch Barpoulis Sewell

Van Namen and Wright for 2008 annual incentive awards was granted in March 2009 and is not shown in

the Summary Compensation Table for 2008 Amounts for 2008 also include cash payouts made in March

2009 under the 2006 2008 Executive Incentive Plan for the performance period March 2006 through

December 31 2Q08 as follows Mr Welch $371853 Mr Barpoulis $101144 Mr Sewell $120480

Mr Van Namen $101 144 and Mr Wright $89 244

For 2007 Mr Sewell and Mr Van Namen had met their stock ownership guidelines and were eligible to

receive their entire 2007 annual incentiye awards of $384147 and $340947 respectively in cash All

other named executive officers were eligible to receive 65% of their annual incentive awards in cash

Amounts shown represent only the portion of the annual incentive awards that was paid in cash as follows

Welch 0% Barpoulis 52% Sewell 100% Van Namen 100% Wright 52% Mr Welch took his entire

annual incentive award of $1 086 678 in restricted stock and therefore received an incentve payment of

$141268 in restricted stock Messrs Barpoulis and Wright took 48% of their annual incentive awards of

$323523 and $289744 respectively in restricted stock and therefore received incentive payments of

$8409 and $7524 respectively in restricted stock Amounts for 2007 also include cash payouts made in

2007 to the named executive officers for terminated performance program as follows Mr Welch

$65025 Mr Sewell $160779 Mr Van Namen $132919 and Mr Wright $60722

For 2006 Mr Sewell and Mr Van Namen had met their stock ownership guidelines and were eligible to

receive their entire 2006 annual incentive awards of $352 592 and $296 003 respectively in cash All

other named executive officers were eligible to receive 65% of their annual incentive awards in cash

Amounts shown represent only the portion of the annual incentive awards that was paid in cash as follows

Welch 0% Barpoulis 65% Sewell 100% Van Namen 100% Wright 65% For 2006 Mr Welch took his

entire annual incentive award of $912 533 in restricted stock and therefore received an incentive payment

of $118 629 in restricted stock

The amounts shown in the Change in Pension Value and Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation earnings

column represent the change in the actuarial present value of the named executive officers accumulated

benefits under the Employees Retirement Plan of USEC Inc the USEC Inc Pension Restoration Plan

and the USEC Inc 2006 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan or in the case of Mr Sewell the 1999

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan at December 31 2008 as compared to December 31 2007 at

December 31 2007 as compared to December 31 2006 and at December 31 2Q06 as compared to

December 31 2005 None of our plans provide for above-market earnings on deferred compensation

amounts and as result the amounts reported here do not reflect any such earnings

The amounts shown in the All Other Compensation column for 2008 forMr Welch Mr Barpoulis

Mr Van Namen and Mr Wright include Company matching contributions of $9200 made under the USEC

Savings Program The amounts for Mr Welch Mr Van Namen and Mr Wright for 2008 also include

Company matching contributions of $26800 $20838 and $11627 respectively made under the USEC

Inc Executive Deferred Compensation Plan formerly the 401k Restoration Plan as included in the

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation in Fiscal Year 2008 table For Mr Welch the amount shown for

2008 also includes $25512 for perquisites and other personal benefits received by him in 2008 These per

quisites and other personal benefits none of which exceeded the greater of $25000 or 10% of the total
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amount of these benefits for Mr Welch include financial counseling golf club membership dues

an annual physical and spouse
travel and related expenses

Grants of Plan-Based Awards in Fiscal Year 2008

Date of

Compensation

Committee

Grant Action

Date if different
_________

2/06/08

3/03/08

3/03/08

3/03/08

2/06/08

3/03/08

3/03/08

3/03/08

2/06/08

3/03/08 2/06/083

3/03/08 2/06/083

2/06/08 $0

3/03/08 2/06/083

3/03/08 2/06/083

2/06/08

3/03/08 2/06/083

3/03/08 2/06/083

3/03/08 2/06/083

2095464

1151885

279354

409565

419805

250174

252565

Grant Date

Fair Value

of Stack and

Option

Awards2

$1227940

675000

675000

163700

240000

240000

282000

282000

246000

246000

146600

148000

148000

Amounts shown are estimatedpossible cash payouts
under the Companys 2008 Annual Incentive Program

based on performance against 2008 corporate and individual performance goals at the threshold 0% target

100% and maximum 150% levels ActUal payouts under the 2008 Annual Incentive Program were approved

by the Compensation Committee in February 2009 and were 97% to 99% of target for each of the named

executive officers The cash portion of these payouts are shown in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensa

tion column of the Summary Compensation Table The amounts shown in the table above represent only the

cash portion of the 2008 annual incentive awards Under the Annual Incentive Program annual incentives are

paid in combination of cash and restricted stock As described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis

for 2008 awards were required to be paid at least 50% in restricted stock unless an executive elected to take

greater portion of their annual mcentive restricted stock For 2008 Messrs Barpouhs Sewell Van Namen

and Wright took 50% of their annual incentive awards in cash with the remainder in restricted stock and

Mr Welch took his entire annual incentive award in restricted stock The stock portion of these awards was

awarded in March 2009 and will be reflected in the Grants of Plan Based Awards table for 2009

The value of the stock awards is based on the fair value of such award on the grant date computed in

accordance with SFAS No 123R

These annual incentive awards were made by the Compensation Committee effective as of later date fol

lowing the release of the Companys audited financial results

Includes shares of restricted stock granted to the named executive officers in 2008 under the Companys

Annual Incentive Program based on performance against corporate and individual performance goals in

2007 These shares vested on March 2009

The following table sets forth information concerning each grant of an award to named executive officer

in the year ended December 31 2008 under any plan

Threshold ThrgetName

John Welch

John Barpoulis

Philip Sewell

2/06/083

2/06/083

2/06/083

2/06/083

2/06/083

2/06/083

All Other

Option

Awards Exercise or

Number of Base Price

Securities Option

Underlying Awards

Options $/Sh

3026916 $5.86

1076236 $5.86

All Other

Estimated Possible
Awards

Payouts Under
Number of

Non-Equity Incentive
Shares of

Plan Awardsl
Stock or

Maximum Units

$0

$0 $140000 $210000

$0 $164500 $246750

$143500 $215250

$0 $129500 $194250

Robert Van Namen

Lance Wright..

481235

1264576 $5.86

1103146 $5.86

663686 $5.86
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Includes shares of restricted stock granted to the named executive officers in 2008 under the Companys

Long-Term Incentive Program These shares will vest ratably over three years from the date of grant

Includes non-qualified stock options granted to the named executive officers in 2008 under the Companys

Long-Term Incentive Program These options will vest ratably over three
years

from the date of grant

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End December 31 2008

The following table sets forth information regarding unexercised options stock that has not vested and

outstanding equity incentive plan awards as of the year ended December 31 2008 for each of the named

executive officers If an executives employment is terminated by the Company without cause or is terminated

by reason of the executives death disability or retirement or upon change in control all of the executives

shares of restricted stock and unvested stock options granted under the USEC Inc 1999 Equity Incentive Plan

will become vested

Option Awards Stock Awards

Market

Number of Number of Number of Value of

Securities Securities Shares or Shares or

Underlying Underlying Units of Units of

Unexercised Unexercised Option Option Stock That Stock That

Options Options Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price Date Vested Vested

John Welch 100000 $11.00 10/03/10 3559691 $1598301

59081 295402 $12.09 3/28/11

29023 580453 $13.24 3/05/12

3026914 5.86 3/03/13

John Barpoulis 8655 $13.98 5/04/10 783415 351751

18748 93742 $12.09 3/28/li

8567 171343 $13.24 3/05/12

1076234 5.86 3/03/13

Philip Sewell 59300 8.50 7/31/11 387186 202882

48142 7.02 8/07/12

50000 7.00 8/06/13

53913 8.05 2/10/09

26708 $16.90 3/23/10

22333 111662 $12.09 3/28/11

10403 208053 $13.24 3/05/12

1264574 5.86 3/03/13

Robert Van Namen 36000 8.50 7/31/11 517997 232578

18000 7.00 8/06/13

44571 8.05 2/10/09

23775 $16.90 3/23/10

18748 93742 $12.09 3/28/11

9081 181623 $13.24 3/05/12

1103144 5.86 3/03/13

Lance Wright 5250 8.05 2/10/09 588088 264048

20710 $16.90 3/23/10

16543 82712 $12.09 3/28/11

7833 156553 $13.24 3/05/12

663684 5.86 3/03/13

Shares of restricted stock vest as follows 247942 shares with vesting date of March 2009

10448 shares with vesting date of March 2009 10339 shares with vesting date of March 28 2009
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38396 shares with vesting date of March 2010 10448 shares with vesting date of March 2010

and 38396 shares with vesting date of March 2011

Stock options vest at the rate of 33Y3% per year with vesting dates of March 28 2007 March 28 2008

and March 28 2009

Stock options vest at the rate of 33A% per year with vesting dates of March 2008 March 2009 and

March 2010

Stock options vest at the rate of 33A% per year with vesting dates of March 2009 March 2010 and

March 2011

Shares of restrkted stock vest as follows 41587 shares with vesting date of March 2009 3084 shares

with vesting date of March 2009 3282 shares with vesting date of March 28 2009 13652 shares

with vesting date of March 2010 3084 shares with vesting date of March 2010 and 13652 shares

with vesting date of March 2011

Shares of restricted stock vest as follows 10434 shares with vesting date of March 2009 2436 shares

with vesting date of March 2009 2542 shares with vesting date of March 28 2009 10435 shares

with vesting date of March 2010 2436 shares with vesting date of March 2010 and 10435 shares

with vesting date of March 2011

Shares of restricted stock vest as follows 13993 shares with vesting date of March 2009 3269 shares

with vesting date of March 2009 3281 shares with vesting date of March 28 2009 13993 shares

with vesting date of March 2010 3269 shares with vesting date of March 2010 and 13994 shares

with vesting date of March 2011

Shares of restricted stock vest as follows 33436 shares with vesting date of March 2009 2820 shares

with vesting date of March 2009 2895 shares with vesting date of March 28 2009 8419 shares

with vesting date of March 2010 2820 shares with vesting date of March 2010 and 8418 shares

with vesting date of March 2011

Option Exercises and Stock Vested in Fiscal Year 2008

The following table sets forth information regarding each exercise of stock options and each vesting of

restricted stock during the year ended December 31 2008 for each of the named executive officers

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of Shares Value Realized on Number of Shares Value Realized on

Name Acquired on Exercise Exercise Acquired on Vesting Vesting1

John Welch 98669 $530356

John Barpoulis 15834 80641

Philip Sewell 30238 $150427

Robert Van Namen 8135 35770

Lance Wright 13874 68897

Amounts reflect the market value of the stock on the day the stock vested
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Pension Benefits in Fiscal Year 2008

We maintain the Employees Retirement Plan of USEC Inc tax-qualified defined benefit plan that

provides retirement benefits to eligible employees Section 415 and Section 401 17 of the Internal Revenue

Code generally place limit on the amount of annual pension that can be paid from tax-qualified plan as

well as on the amount of annual earnings that can be used to calculate pension benefit However we

maintain the USEC Inc Pension Restoration Plan that pays eligible employees the difference between the

amount payable under the tax-qualified plan and the amount they would have received without the qualified

plans limits We also maintain two supplemental executive retirement plans each SERP in order to

provide additional retirement benefits to executives to be competitive with the market Mr Welch

Mr Barpoulis Mr Van Namen and Mr Wright participate in the USEC Inc 2006 Supplemental Executive

Retirement Plan the 2006 SERP and Mr Sewell is the sole active participant in the USEC Inc 1999

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan the 1999 SERP The USEC Inc Pension Restoration Plan and the

SERPs are unfunded and are subject to forfeiture in the event of insolvency

The following table shows the present value of benefits that the named executive officers are entitled to

under the Employees Retirement Plan of USEC Inc the Retirement Plan the USEC Inc Pension

Restoration Plan the Pension Restoration Plan and the applicable SERF Mr Welch and Mr Barpoulis

were not vested in the Retirement Plan the Pension Restoration Plan or the 2006 SERP as of December 31

2008 however they would be entitled to minimum benefit under the 2006 SERP in the case of change in

control or death or disability as shown in the Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

table

Present Value of

Number of Years of Accumulated Payments During

Name Plan Name Credited Service Benefit1 Last Fiscal Year

John Welch Retirement Plan yr mos 98440 $0

Pension Restoration Plan yr mos 497355 $0

2006 SERP yr mos $2059012 $0

Total $2654807 $0

John Barpoulis Retirement Plan yr mos 54386 $0

Pension Restoration Plan yr mos 77010 $0

2006 SERP yr mos 34520 $0

Total 165916 $0

Philip Sewell Retirement Plan yrs mos 300710 $0

Pension Restoration Plan yrs mos 740708 $0

1999 SERP yrs mos $3831506 $0

Total $4872924 $0

Robert Van Namen Retirement Plan 10 yrs 157063 $0

Pension Restoration Plan 10 yrs 347370 $0

2006 SERP 10 yrs 279568 $0

Total 784001 $0

Lance Wright Retirement Plan yrs mos 153249 $0

Pension Restoration Plan yrs mos 236443 $0

2006 SERP yrs mos 283488 $0

Total 673180 $0

In determining the present value of each participants pension benefit 6.09% discount rate is assumed

An assumed interest rate of 6.29% is used in converting Pension Restoration Plan 2006 SERP and 1999

SERF annuities into lump sums The lump sum interest rate is determined at the time of benefit com

mencement and reflects an average of the un-annualized Moodys Aa index bond yield plus 75 basis
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points For purposes of this table the calculation assumes retirement at the earliest age at which unreduced

benefits could be paid including projected future service for eligibility purposes only

The Retirement Plan and Pension Restoration Plan benefits shown in the table above are net present

values All named executive officers have elected lump sum form of payment under the Pension Restoration

Plan for benefits earned and vested after 2004 Pension Restoration Plan benefits earned prior to 2005 are

payable as an annuity As of December 31 2008 benefits under theRet1renient Plan are not payable as

lump sum except that under the terms of the plan Mr Van Namen is eligible to receive lump sum for any

benefit accrued prior to 2001 The normal form of payment under the Retirement Plan is single life annuity

or 50% joint and survivor annuity Retirement benefits are calculated under the following three formulas

with the formula that gives the participant the largest benefit used for the final calculation

Regular Formula The monthly benefit under the Regular Formula is calculated as 1.2% of final

average monthly compensation base salary plus annual bonus times
years

and months of credited

service plus $110 There are no.offsets to this benefit

Alternate Formula The monthly benefit under the Alternate Formula is calculated as 1.5% of final

average monthly compensation base salary plus annual bonus times
years

and months of credited

service minus 1.5% times actual or projected monthly primary Social Security benefit times
years

and

months of credited service up to 33
years up to maximum of 50% of the actual or projected

monthly Social Security benefit

Minimum Formula The monthly benefit under the Minimum Formula is calculated as $5 multiplied

by the first ten years and months of credited service plus $7 multiplied by the next ten years and

motiths of credited service plus $9 times the years and months of credited service in excess of 20 years

plus 10% less 1% per year of credited service less than of the final average monthly compensation

as calculated under the Regular Formula plus $110 There are no offsets to this benefit

An employees final
average monthly compensation includes base salary plus annual incentive compensa

tion including cash and restricted stock and does not include the value of any award under the Companys

Long-Term Incentive Program Pension plan benefits are determined in part using the employees actual age

and credited service The normal retirement age under the Retirement Plan and Pension Restoration Plan is 65

An employee is eligible for early retirement without any reduction in benefits if the employee has

completed at least 10 years of service and has attained the age of 62 or if the sum of the employees age

and
years

of service equals 85 or greater In addition an employee is eligible for early retirement after

completing 10
years

of credited service and attaining the
age

of 50 with benefits reduced based on employee

age and credited service per the plans reduction factor schedule As of December 31 2008 Mr Sewell was

eligible for early unreduced retirement He was the only named executive officer eligible for normal or early

retirement under the Retirement Plan and Pension Restoration Plan As practice the Company generally does

not provide additional years of age or service except under the change in control agreements which grant

additional service and no named executive officer has been credited with additional years of age or service

for purposes of computing retirement benefit under the Retirement Plan or the Pension Restoration Plan

The 1999 SERP provides Mr Sewell with an annual benefit in the form of monthly annuity equal to

55% of final average compensation with offsets for any benefits received under the Companys other

retirement programs and any U.S federal governmental retirement program to which the Company has

contributed on the participants behalf and Social Security benefits should the participant be eligible for

such benefit Mr Sewell elected to receive lump sum that is the actuarial equivalent of the above-described

annuity for benefits earned and vested after 2004 Final average compensation for this purpose includes base

salary and annual incentive compensation including cash and restricted stock earned for the three years

preceding the participants date of termination divided by three As of December 31 2008 Mr Sewell was

eligible for normal retirement under the 1999 SERP

Participants in the 2006 SERP will generally accrue monthly supplemental retirement benefit equal to

2.5% of their final average compensation for each year of service to maximum benefit equal to 50% of the

final average compensation after 20 years of service For Mr Welch no supplemental retirement benefit is
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accrued until five years of service at which point Mr Welchs benefit is equal to 30% of final average

compensation With seven years of service this benefit increases to 40% of final average compensation and

with ten or more years
of service increases to 50% of final average compensation Final average compensation

under the 2006 SERP includes salary and annual incentive compensation including cash and restricted stock

paid or vested in the case of restricted stock for the three years preceding the participant date of

termination The normal retirement age under the 2006 SERP is 62 Benefits are reduced by 6% 3% for

Mr Welch for each year the executive commences payment of benefits prior to age
62 Monthly benefits

payable under the 2006 SERF to participant are offset by the amount the participant is eligible to receive

under the Company other retirement plans and Social Security Participants are generally vested in their

benefits under the 2006 SERP after five years
of service although vesting will be accelerated in the event of

the participants death or termination of employment as result of disability or in the event of change in

control of the Company minimum monthly supplemental retirement benefit equal to 10% 20% for

Mr Welch of final average compensation applies where vesting is so accelerated

Benefits under the 2006 SERP are generally payable to participant in the form of lump sum or an

annuity at the election of the participant within the first 30 days of participation when the participant

terminates but no earlier than age 55 age 60 for Mr Welch except in the case of disability or death All

named executive officers participating in the 2006 SERP have elected lump sum Where participant is

terminated for cause as defined in the 2006 SERP or where participant violates certain restrictive

covenants the participants benefits will be forfeited whether or not then vested and subject to repayment to

the company to the extent aheady paid to the participant

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation in Fiscal Year 2008

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Contributions Contributions Earnings Withdrawals Balance

Name in Last FY1 in Last FY2 in Last FY3 Distributions at Last FYE4

John Welch $90000 $26800 $27466 $198835

John Barpoulis

Philip Sewell

Robert Van Namen $37547 $20838 $79228 $124032

Lance Wright $52067 $11627 $38315 73570

Amount represents executives contributions to the USEC Inc Executive Deferred Compensation Plan the

Deferred Compensation Plan These amounts are also included in the Sunimary Compensation Table in

the Salary column

Amount represetits the Companys contributions to the Deferred Compensation Plan These amounts are

also included in the Summary Compensation Table in the All Other Compensation colunm

Amount represents earnings on the Deferred Compensation Plan during 2008

Amount represents the aggregate balance for the named executive officers as of December 31 2008 under

the Deferred Compensation Plan Includes the executive contributions to the Deferred Compensation Plan

formerly the USEC Inc 401k Restoration Plan previously reported as compensation to the named exec

utive officers in the Summary Compensation Table in the Salary column in 2007 and 2006 as follows

Mr Welch $34 081 in 2007 $22 500 in 2006 Mr Van Namen $15 866 in 2007 $9 524 in 2006 and

Mr Wright $9222 in 2007 $7290 in 2006 Amount includes the Companys contributions to the Deferred

Compensation Plan formerly the USEC Inc 401k Restoration Plan previously reported as compensation

in the Summary Compensation Table in the All Other Compensation column in 2007 and 2006 as follows

Mr Welch $26892 in 2007 $21200 in 2006 Mr Van Namen $17466 in 2007 $11637 in 2006 and

Mr Wright $10890 in 2007 $8944 in 2006
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Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

The table below shows potential payments to our named executive officers under existing agreements

plans or arrangements for various scenarios involving termination of employment or change in control of

the Company The table assumes December 31 2008 termination date and is based on the named executive

officers compensation and service levels as of that date Where applicable the table uses the closing pnce of

our common stock of $4.49 as reported on the New York Stock Exchange as of December 31 2008 The

benefits in the table below are in addition to certain benefits available generally to salaried employees such as

accrued salary and vacation pay and distributions of plan balances under the USEC Savings Program

Due to the number of factors that affect the nature and amounts of any benefits provided upon the events

discussed below any actual amounts paid or distributed may be different Factors that could affect these

amounts include the timing during the year of any such event the Companys stock price and the executives

age

Payments Made Upon Termination

Under the USEC Inc Executive Severance Plan if an executive officer is terminated by the Company
without cause he is eligible to receive the following

his current base salary and prorated share of his current annual incentive payable at the end of the

performance period based on actual performance up to the date of termination

cash severance payment equal to one years base salary at his current rate and an amount equal to his

final
average

bonus generally the
average

of his last three years annual incentive awards both cash

and restricted stock and

continuation of medical and dental
coverage as well as life insurance paid for by the Company for one

year after termination or until he receives similar
coverage

from subsequent employer whichever

occurs first and outplacement assistance services

Severance benefits are contingent upon the executive executing release and agreeing to comply with

certain restrictive covenants relating to non-competition and non-solicitation of Company employees for

period of one year following his termination of employment No severance is paid to an employee who is

terminated for cause or who resigns voluntarily

Payments Made Upon Change in Control

The Company has entered into change in control agreements with each of the named executive officers

The change in control agreements provide each named executive officer with the following benefits in lieu of

any severance benefits under the Executive Severance Plan described above if there is change in control of

the Company and within protected period beginning three months before and ending three years after that

change in control the protected period the Company terminates the executives employment without cause

or the executive terminates his employment for good reason as defined in the agreement

cash lump sum payment of his unpaid base salary through the date of termination plus all other

amounts to which he was entitled under any of the Companys compensation or benefit plans under the

terms of such plans

cash lump sum payment equal to times the sum of the executive final annual base salary and his

final
average

bonus The executive final
average bonus is the average of the three most recent annual

incentive bonuses paid to the executive prior to the date of termination whether paid in the form of

cash or in grants of restricted stock Any annual incentive bonus paid to an executive during the prior

three years that was pro-rated or otherwise adjusted because the executive was not employed by the

Company during the entire period to which the bonus related is annualized for purposes of the

calculation of the executives final average bonus If the executive has experienced change in position

that has increased the executives annual bonus opportunity any annual bonus paid to the executive

with respect to period prior to the change in position is not included in the calculation of the
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executives final average bonus If the executive has not been paid at least three annual bonuses prior to

the date of termination that are includable in the calculation of the executives final
average bonus the

executive final
average

bonus is an amount equal to the
average

of such lesser number of annual

bonuses If the executive has not been paid at least one annual bonus prior to the date of termination

that is includable in the calculation of the executive final average bonus the executive final average

bonus is an amount equal to the executive annual target bonus as in effect on the date of termination

continuation of life accident and health insurance benefits for 2.5 years following the change in

control or if sooner until he is covered by comparable programs of subsequent employer

two and one half additional years of service for
purposes

of vesting eligibility and benefit accrual

under the Companys SERPs

if the executive receives payments that would subject him to any federal excise tax due under

section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code he would also receive cash payment equal to the amount

of such excise tax The calculation of the 280G gross-up amount in the tables below is bnsed upon

280G excise tax rate of 20% and 35% income tax rate

In order to receive these benefits the executive must comply with the non-competition non-solicitation

and confidentiality provisions of the change in control agreement during the term of the agreement and for

years thereafter five years in the case of the confidentiality provision For
purposes

of the 280G

calculation we have not assumed that any amounts will be discounted as attributable to reasonable compensa
tion or .that any value will be attributed to executives being bound by the agreements regarding non-

competition non-solicitation and confidentiality contained in their change in control agreements because these

amounts are too subject to the facts and circumstances in place at the time of payment to be capable of

valuation

Equity Awards

If the executives employment is terminated by the Company without cause or is terminated by reason of

the executives death disability or retirement normal retirement or unreduced early retirement all of the

executives shares of restricted stock and unvested stock options granted under the USEC Inc 1999 Equity

Incentive Plan will become vested

In addition under the 2006 2008 Executive Incentive Plan an executive whose employment was

terminated by the Company as of December 31 2008 without cause or was terminated by reason of the

executives death disability or retirement normal retirement or unreduced early retirement would have

received an award valued and paid at the end of the performance period ended December 31 2008 This

performance period has now been completed and actual payouts were made in March 2009 as described in

the Compensation Discussion and Analysis

If the executives employment is terminated for cause or if the executive voluntarily terminates

employment other than retirement all of the executives restricted stock and unvested stock options will be

cancelled and forfeited As of December 31 2008 the executive also would have forfeited any award

opportunities under the 2006 2008 Executive Incentive Plan because awards had not yet been made

Upon change in control all of the executives shares of restricted stock and unvested stock options will

become vested In addition as of December 31 2008 the executive would have received an award under the

2006 2008 Executive Incentive Plan for the performance period ended December 31 2008 The awards

would have been calculated assuming achievement of all applicable performance goals at target level

The table below includes the intrinsic value that is the value based on the closing price of the

Companys stock of $4.49 as reported on the New York Stock Exchange as of December 31 2008 and in the

case of options less the exercise price of stock options and restricted stock that would become exercisable or

vested if the named executive officer terminated employment as of December 31 2008 As of December 31

2008 all unvested stock options held by the named executive officers had exercise prices that were greater
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than the closing price of our common stock of $4.49 as reported on the New York Stock Exchange as of

December 31 2008

Retirement Benefits

The Pension Benefits in Fiscal Year 2008 table describes the general terms of each retirement plan in

which the named executive officers participate the years of credited service and the present value of each

named executive officers accumulated pension benefit The table below includes the present value of benefits

under the Employees Retirement Plan of USEC Inc the Retirement Plan the USEC Inc Pension

Restoration Plan the Pension Restoration Plan the USEC Inc 1999 Supplemental Executive Retirement

Plan the 1999 SERP and the USEC Inc 2006 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan the 2006 SERP
that would have become payable if the named executive officer had terminated employment as of December 31

2008

Involuntary

or Good
Reason

Executive Benefits Involuntary Involuntary Termination

and Payments Voluntary Retirement Not for Cause For Cause Change Death or

Upon Termination Termination Termination Termination in Control Disability

John Welch

Severance Payments2 N/A $1866404 4728509

Stock Options N/A

Restricted Stock N/A $1598301 1598301 $1598301

Executive Incentive Plan3 N/A 448823 448823 448823

Retirement Plan4 N/A

Pension Restoration Plan4 N/A

2006 SERP5 N/A 4997988 $3646414

280G Tax Gross-up N/A 2337091

Continuing Benefits6 N/A 12956 32390

Total $3926484 $14143102 $5693538

John Barpoulis

Severance Payments2 N/A 698771 1770391

Stock Options N/A

Restricted Stock N/A 351751 351751 351751

Executive Incentive Plan3 N/A 122079 122079 122079

Retirement Plan4 N/A

Pension Restoration Plan4 N/A

2006 SERP5 N/A 3462889 332921

280G Tax Gross-up N/A 456045

Continuing Benefits6 N/A 15832 39580

Total $1188433 3086134 806751

Philip Sewell

Severance Payments2 825246 2074418

Stock Options

Restricted Stock 202882 202882 202882 202882

Executive Incentive Plan3 145418 145418 145418 145418

Retirement Plan4 300710 300710 300710 300710 300710 1560468

Pension Restoration Plan4 740708 740708 740708 740708 740708 6495418

1999 SERP7 $3831506 $3831506 $3831506 38315069 $2502553

280G Tax Gross-up

Continuing Benefits6 1648 4120

Total $4872924 $5221224 $6048118 $1041418 7299762 $3656440
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As of December 31 2008 Mr Sewell is eligible for normal retirement in the 1999 SERP and early retire

ment in the Retirement Plan and the Pension Restoration Plan Because of his years of services Mr Sewell

would have been eligible to commence an immediate unreduced retirement benefit if he had retired as of

December 31 2008 No other named executive officer is eligible for an early or normal retirement under

any of the Companys retirement programs as of December 31 2008

In calculating the Severance Payment payable upon involuntary not for cause termination under the USEC

Inc Executive Severance Plan the calculation of the final average bonuses for the named executive offi

cers included each executives 2008 target annual incentive bonus because annual incentive bonuses for

2008 had not been determined as of December 31 2008

In calculating the Severance Payment under the executives change in control agreements the final

average
bonuses for the named executive officers were calculated using the average

of any bonuses paid

in 2007 2006 and 2005 except that Mr Welchs pro-rated 2005 bonus was annualized for purposes
of

this calculation and Mr Barpoulis 2005 bonus was excluded because in 2006 he experienced change in

position that increased his bonus opportunity

Amounts reflect the value of target award as of December 31 2008 notwithstanding the actual perfor

mance during the period ended December 31 2008 of 56% of target which was determined by the Com

pensation Committee in February 2009

Only Mr Sewell Mr Van Namen and Mr Wright are vested under the Retirement Plan and the Pension

Restoration Plan as of December 31 2008 Mr Sewell age 62 as of December 31 2008 is eligible for

early retirement and would commence an immediate unreduced benefit upon termination Mr Van Namen

age 47 as of December 31 2008 is not yet eligible for retirement but is eligible for immediate com

mencement of benefits accrued prior to 2001 payable as lump sum Mr Van Namen will be eligible to

commence reduced pension for benefits accrued after 2000 at age 50 Mr Wright age 61 as of

December 31 2008 is not yet eligible for retirement but is eligible to commence an immediate reduced

benefit Pension Restoration Plan benefits earned and vested after December 31 2004 will be paid as

Involuntary

or Good
Reason

Executive Benefits Involuntary Involuntary Termination

and Payments Voluntary Retirement Not for Cause For Cause Change Death or

Upon Termination Termination Termination Termination in Control Disability

Robert Van Namen

Severance Payments2 N/A 717983 1818583

Stock Options N/A

Restricted Stock N/A 232578 232578 232578

Executive Incentive Plan3 N/A 122079 122079 122079

Retirement Plan4 91600 N/A 91600 91600 91600 1119648

Pension Restoration Plan4 233484 N/A 233484 233484 233484 2476098

2006 SERP5 400540 N/A 400540 6105599 389234

280G Tax Gross-up N/A

Continuing Benefits6 N/A 15874 39685

Total 725624 $1814138 325084 3148568 $1103464

Lance Wright

Severance Payments2 N/A 638399 1610290

Stock Options N/A

Restricted Stock N/A 264048 264048 264048

Executive Incentive Plan3 N/A 107717 107717 1077.17

Retirement Plan4 144419 N/A 144419 144419 144419 691468

Pension Restoration Plan4 248149 N/A 248149 248149 248149 2452018

2006 SERP5 301167 N/A 301167 7156779 301167

280G Tax Gross-up N/A 436372

Continuing Benefits6 N/A 2252 5630

Total 693735 $1706151 392568 3532302 987279
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lump sum Amounts shown are the actuarial present value of annuity payments and lump sums as applica

ble. The present value of accumulated benefits is calculated using the assumptions under SFAS No 158

Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans as shown in Note 10

to our consolidated financial statements included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended

December 31 2008 In the case of disability each of the executives would continue to accrue service dur

ing periods of disability rather than commence retirement benefit

Mr Van Namen and Mr Wnght are the only named executive officers vested under the 2006 SERP

Mr Welch and Mr Barpouhs are only vested under the 2006 SERP in the case of change in control or

death or disability Accrued SERP benefits are forfeited upon termination for cause Mr Barpoulis in

the case of change in control and Mr Van Namen are ineligible to commence payment so their amounts

represent the present value of an age 55 lump sum payment Mr Welch in the case of change in control

and Mr Wright are eligible for immediate lump sum benefits Lump sum death benefits are payable imme

diately The 2006 SERP provides for minimum benefit objective of 10% of final average pay 20% in

the case of Mr Welch in the case of change in control or death or disability Amounts for all executives

represent the present value of accrued benefits payable in lump sum form The present value of accumu

lated benefits is calculated using the assumptions under SFAS No 158 Employers Accounting for

Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans as shown in Note 10 to our consolidated finan

cial statements included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008

Includes the cost of continuation of medical dental and life insurance benefits for period of one year

following termination of employment in the case of an involuntary not for cause termination and the

continuation of medical dental life insurance and disability benefits for period of 2.5
years following

termination of employment in the case of change in control Amounts vary by executive based on their

specific benefit elections

Mr Sewell is the only named executive officer with benefits under the 1999 SERP Mr Sewell is eligible

to commence an immediate unreduced benefit upon termination Benefits accrued prior to 2005 are pay
able in the form of an annuity and post-2004 benefits are payable as the lump sum equivalent of such

annuity Accrued 1999 SERP benefits are forfeited upon termination for cause The amount shown is the

actuarial present value of life annuity and lump sum payments Death benefits are 50% of Mr Sewells

pre-2005 accrued benefit and 100% of his post-2004 accrued benefit with survivor benefits payable as an

annuity The present value of accumulated benefits is calculated using the assumptions under SFAS No 158

Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans as shown in Note 10

to our consolidated financial statements included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2008

In the case of death Mr Sewells Mr Van Namens and Mr Wrights beneficiaries would be entitled to

survivor annuity benefits under the Retirement Plaji and the Pension Restoration Plan and would be eligi

ble to commence survivor benefits immediately Mr Sewells survivor benefit is 50% of the amount

Mr Sewell would receive in the form of single life annuity Mr Van Namens survivors benefit is 50%

of the amount Mr Van Namen would receive in the form of single life annuity and is reduced for early

commencement subject to minimum survivor benefit of 25% Mr Wrights survivors benefit is the 50%

survivor portion of joint and survivor annuity and is reduced for early commencement Benefits accrued

and vested after December 31 2004 in the Pension Restoration Plan are payable as lump sum In the

case of disability each of the executives would continue to accrue service during periods of disability

rather than commence retirement benefit

Change in control agreements provide for an additional 2.5 years of service for vesting eligibility and ben

efit accrual for the executives retirement benefits This is done through the executives SERP benefit and

accordingly amount reflects gross benefit with 2.5 year service enhancement less vested accrued benefits

under the Retirement Plan and the Pension Restoration Plan
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table gives information about the Company common stock that may be issued under the

USEC Inc 1999 Equity Incentive Plan and the USEC Inc 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan as of

December 31 2008

Number of

securities to be Weighted-average Number of securities

issued upon exercise exercise price of remaining available

of outstanding outstanding for future issuance

options warrants options warrants under equity

Plan category and rights and rights compensation plans

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders 2120000 $8.52 54040001

Equity compensation plans not approved

by security holders

Total 2120000 5404000

Includes 5193000 shares available for issuance under the USEC Inc 1999 Equity Incentive Plan net of

awards which terminate or are cancelled without being exercised or that are settled for cash and

211000 shares rounded available for issuance under the USEC Inc 1999 Employee Stock Purchase

Plan
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ITEM APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED USEC INC 2009 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

In 1999 the Companys shareholders approved the 1999 Equity Incentive Plan the 1999 Plan under

which 9000000 shares of its common stock were available for awards to be granted under the 1999 Plan In

2004 the Companys shareholders approved the First Amendment to the 1999 Plan which among other things

increased the number of shares of its common stock available for awards to be granted under the 1999 Plan to

14100000

On February 25 2009 the Board approved the USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan the 2009 Plan
subject to shareholder approval at the 2009 Annual Meeting If approved the 2009 Plan would replace the

1999 Plan and no further awards would be granted under the 1999 Plan The 2009 Plan is needed to enable us

to continue to provide equity-based incentives as key element of our compensation program and remain

competitive with our peers

The purpose of the 2009 Plan is to advance the long-term interests of the Company and its shareholders

by providing incentives to attract retain and reward individuals and by promoting the growth and profitability

of the Company and its affiliates As with the 1999 Plan the 2009 Plan also includes the ability to grant

awards to our non employee directors

As discussed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement equity awards

make up significant portion of total compensation for executives and certain other key employees and are

critical for attracting motivating and retaining these employees and aligning their interests with those of the

shareholders USEC is in critical transition period as we move from the older gaseous diffusion enrichment

technology to the advanced technology of the American Centrifuge Plant and during this period our ability to

attract motivate and retain employees and executives with the requisite skills and experiences to meet these

challenges is essential to our success and the creation of long-term value for our shareholders As discussed in

the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section we have been taking steps to conserve cash until we gaiw

greater clarity on potential funding for our American Centrifuge Plant One way to conserve cash is to divert

potential cash compensation into equity compensation as was done with respect to portion of the 2008

annual incentive awards It is critical that we maintain the ability to provide the
necessary equity incentive

awards

As of March 2009 approximately 978 employees and nine non employee directors are eligible to

participate in the 2009 Plan If approved it is expected that initially approximately 46 employees and nine

non-employee directors would participate in the 2009 Plan Future grants under the 2009 Plan will be made at

the sole discretion of the Committee

Summary Description of the USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan

General

The 2009 Plan is summarized below This summary does not purport to be complete descnption of all

the provisions of the 2009 Plan and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text of the 2009

Plan copy of the 2009 Plan is attached as Appendix to this proxy statement and is incorporated by

reference into this summary

Key Features of the 2009 Plan

An independent committee of the Board administers the 2009 Plan

Awards may not be granted later than 10 years from the effective date of the 2009 Plan

Awards may be stock options stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units

performance awards and cash-based and other stock-based awards

Stock options and stock appreciation rights may not be repriced under the 2009 Plan

Stock options and stock appreciation rights may not be granted below fair market value

Stock options and stock appreciation rights cannot be exercised more than 10 years from the date of

grant
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Awards are subject to the following vesting limits awards other than non-employee director awards

and performance awards will vest no faster than proportionally over minimum period of three years

performance awards shall not be vested over penod of less than one year and up to 210 000

awards may be granted without minimum vesting

Dividends if any may not be paid on unvested performance awards

Awards granted by the Committee under the 2009 Plan will provide for acceleration of exercisability

vesting and/or settlement in connection with change in control where there is also an involuntary

separation from service other than for cause or by the employee for good reason e.g double

trigger

Includes claw back provision that requires repayment of all payments in settlement of any awards

earned or accrued during the 12-month period following the first public issuance or filing with the SEC

of financial document that is subsequently restated as result of misconduct and

The Board may not make matenal amendments to the 2009 Plan without shareholder approval

including an amendment that would materially increase the benefits accrued to participants under

the 2009 Plan materially increase the number of shares available under the 2009 Plan except for

anti-dilution adjustments in the case of certain corporate transactions or events change the type of

awards that may be granted under the 2009 Plan materially modify the requirements for

participation in the 2009 Plan or require approval of the Companys shareholders under applicable

law including the rules of any stock exchange upon which the Companys shares are listed

Administration

The 2009 Plan will be administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors the

Committee but may be administered by another committee or subcommittee of our Board appointed by the

Board The Committee has full power and authority to take all actions necessary to construe and interpret the

2009 Plan to carry out the purpose
and intent of the 2009 Plan and to establish such rules regulations and

procedures for the administration of the 2009 Plan as it deems appropriate The Committee may delegate

certain of its authority under the 2009 Plan except that no delegation may be made in the case of awards

intended to be qualified under Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code or to be made to officers or

directors of the Company who are subject to Rule 16b under the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended

Shares Subject to the Plan

The number of shares of common stock reserved for delivery with respeŁt to awards under the 2009 Plan

is the sum of 4500000 shares plus the number of shares if any underlying grants under the 1999

Plan that are forfeited canceled terminated or settled in cash without delivery of shares on or after the date of

approval of the 2009 Plan by the shareholders of the Company Authonzed but unis sued shares or treasury

shares or any combination may be delivered under the 2009 Plan If any award or portion of an award

expires is forfeited or becomes unexercisable the shares will become available for future grant Restricted

stock that is forfeited will become available for future grant In addition shares that ate applied by the

Company including by net exercise as payment of the exercise price of any award or in payment of any

applicable withholding for taxes in relation to any award will become available for future grant As of March

2009 the closing price per
share of common stock of the Company as quoted on the New York Stock

Exchange was $3.37

Awards granted to individuals reasonably expected to be Covered Employees as defined below under

Section 162m that are intended to qualify for deduction under Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code

Section 162m are subject to limits under the 2009 Plan as follows

For options or SARs the annual grant limit per Covered Employee is 1000000 shares

For restricted stock or restricted stock units the annual grant limit
per

Covered Employee is

1000000 shares
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For performance awards settled in shares the annual grant limit per Covered Employee is

1000000 shares and

For cash-based awards or performance awards settled in cash the annual grant limit per Covered

Employee is $2000000

If the Committee determines that any dividend or other distribution recapitalization share split reverse

share split reorganization merger consolidation split-up spin-off combination repurchase exchange of

shares of common stock or other securities of the Company issuance of warrants or other rights to purchase

shares or other securities of the Company or other similar corporate transaction or event affects the shares

such that an adjustment is appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential

benefits intended to be made available under the 2009 Plan then the Committee will make adjustments it

deems equitable to any or all of the number of shares with respect to which awards may be granted

the annual limits on grants to individuals to comply with Section 162m described above the number

of shares subject to outstanding awards and the exercise price or strike price with respect to any award

Eligibility

The Committee may select officers directors employees and other individuals providing bona fide

services to or for the Company and its affiliates to receive awards under the 2009 Plan Non-employee

directors are only eligible to receive the non-employee director awards

The following types of awards are available under the 2009 Plan

Stock Options

Options may be either nonqualified stock options or incentive stock options under Section 422 of the

Internal Revenue Code The exercise price of any stock option may not be less than the fair market value of

the stock on the grant date Except as otherwise provided in the award the exercise price of any option is

payable in cash check or cash equivalent by tendering shares of common stock by broker-assisted cashless

exercise by net exercise or by such other consideration as the Committee approves or by any combination

thereof No stock option will be exercisable more than ten years
after the grant The Committee determines

the terms of each stock option at the time of the grant

Stock Appreciation Rights

Stock appreciation rights may be granted either in tandem with other awards or as freestanding stock

appreciation rights The strike price of any stock appreciation right granted in tandem with an option will be

equal to the exercise price per share under the related option The strike price of
any freestanding stock

appreciation right will not be less than the fair market value of share on the grant date No stock

appreciation right will be exercisable more than ten years after the grant Stock appreciation rights will entitle

the holder to receive payment in cash in shares or combination having an aggregate value equal to the

difference between the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of exercise and the strike price

The Committee determines the terms of each stock appreciation right at the time of the grant

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock may be subject to restrictions including continued employment achievement of

performance goals or other criteria The Committee will determine the purchase price if any applicable to

restricted stock awards Payment of the purchase price for restricted stock if any may be made in cash by

check or cash equivalent or by such other consideration as the Committee approves or by any combination

thereof Except for restrictions on transfer and such other restrictions as the Committee may impose on

restricted stock award holders will have all the rights of shareholder with respect to the restricted stock

including dividend and voting rights The Committee determines the terms of each restricted stock award at

the time of the grant
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Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock units may become nonforfeitable contingent upon continued employment achievement of

performance goals or other criteria deemed appropriate by the Committee Each restricted stock unit will have

value equal to the fair market value of one share Award holders will not have shareholder rights with

respect to the restricted stock units but may receive dividend equivalent rights Restricted stock units may be

paid in cash shares or other consideration as determined by the Committee The Committee determines the

terms of each restricted stock unit award at the time of the grant

Performance Awards

Performance awards may be payable in cash or shares or combination of both contingent on the level

of attainment of performance goals The Committee will establish performance measures and the performance

period applicable to each performance goal and will determine the level of attainment of the performance

goals Performance awards may include dividend equivalent rights except that dividends may not be paid on

unvested performance awards Performanôe awards may but need not include performance criteria that satisfy

Section 162m

Section 162m disallows our deduction for compensation in excess of $1000000 paid to our chief

executive officer and the three other most highly paid executive officers named in the summary compensation

table other than the Chief Financial Officer Covered Employees However performance-based compen

sation payable solely on account of attainment of one or more performance goals is not subject to this

deduction limitation if the performance goals are objective pre-established and determined by compensation

conmiittee comprised solely of two or more outside directors the material terms under which the compensa

tion is to be paid are disclosed to the shareholders and approved by majority vote and the compensation

committee certifies that the performance goals and other material terms were in fact satisfied before the

compensation is paid The deduction limitation would not apply to compensation otherwise deductible on

account of the exercise of stock options and stock appreciation rights granted under the 2009 Plan with an

exercise price or strike price no less than the fair market value of share on the date of grant provided the

plan limits the number of shares that may be awarded to any individual and is approved by our shareholders

The 2009 Plan is designed so that if the 2009 Plan is approved by our shareholders the Committee may grant

awards that satisfy the performance-based compensation exception under Section 162m

To the extent that awards are intended to qualify for the performance-based compensation exception

under Section 162m the performance criteria will be based on the achievement of any one or more of the

following performance measures as determined by the Committee

revenue cash flows

sales free cash flow

expenses operating cash flow

operating income balance of cash cash equivalents and market-

gross profit
able securities

gross margin
stock price

operating margin
earnings or book value

per share

earnings before any one or more or combina- earnings per share

tion of stock-based compensation expense diluted earnings per share

interest taxes depreciation and amortization
return on shareholder equity

pre-tax profit return on capital

operating income or profit return on assets

net operating income return on equity

net income return on capital capital employed or

after tax operating income investment

economic value added return on investment
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employee satisfaction production separative work units or SWUs

employee retention cUstomer satisfaction safety stock price or total shareholder return

or diversity market share product development dividends and

research and development expenses strategic business objectives consisting of one

completion or attainment of objectively deter- or more objectives based on meeting specified

minable targets with respect to an identified cost targets business expansion goals and goals

special project relating to acquisitions or divestiture

total sales or revenues or sales or revenues per

employee

Awards not subject to Section 162m and awards not intended to qualify for the performanŁe-based

compensation exception may be subject to any other performance criteria established by the Committee

Cash-Based and Other Stock-Based Awards

Cash-based or other stock-based awards will be payable in cash shares or other securities or any

combination thereof as the Committee determines Holders of other stock-based awards will not have the

rights of shareholder until shares are delivered but may receive dividend equivalent rights The Committee

determines the terms of each cash-based award or other stock-based award at the time of the grant

Transferability

Unless otherwise determined by the Committee awards under the 2009 Plan may not be transferred

except by will or the laws of descent and distribution and during his or her lifetime awards may be exercised

only by the grantee

Non-Employee Director Awards

The Committee may provide that all or any portion of non-employee directors annual retainer any

committee or other chairman fees and any other fees will be payable either automatically or at the election

of the non-employee director in the form of nonqualified stock options restricted stock restricted stock units

or other stock-based awards Non-employee director awards will be subject to the terms and conditions

established by the Committee

Special Vesting Rules

The vesting conditions for awards will be determined by the Committee pmvided however that awards

other than non-employee director awards and performance awards will vest no faster than proportionally over

minimum period of three years Up to 210000 shares may be granted under the 2009 Plan without the above

minimum vesting requirements

Change in Control

The Committee may provide for the full or partial acceleration of the exercisability vesting and/or

settlement of an award or any portion thereof in connection with change in control upon such conditions

including termination of the grantees service prior to upon or following such change in control to such

extent as the Committee shall determine

Amendment and Termination

The Board may at any time suspend or terminate the 2009 Plan The Board may amend the 2009 Plan at

any time provided that the Board may not make material amendments to the 2009 Plan without shareholder

approval including an amendment that would materially increase the benefits accrued to participants under

the 2009 Plan materially increase the number of shares available under the 2009 Plan except for anti

dilution adjustments in the case of certain corporate transactions or events change the type of awards that
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may be granted under the 2009 Plan materially modify the requirements for participation in the 2009 Plan

or require approval of the Companys shareholders under applicable law including the rules of any stock

exchange upon which the Companys shares are listed

No awards may be granted under the 2009 Plan after February 25 2019

Certain Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following discussion is brief summary of the principal United States federal income tax treatment

under current federal income tax laws of awards authorized under the 2009 Plan if the plan is approved by

our shareholders This summary is not intended to be exhaustive or to constitute tax advice and among other

things does not describe state local or foreign income and other tax consequences

Incentive Stock Options

An optionee will not recognize any taxable income at the time Of grant or timely exercise of an incentive

stock option and the Company will not be entitled to tax deduction with respect to such grant or exercise

Exercise of an incentive stock option may however give rise to taxable income subject to applicable

withholding taxes and tax deduction to the Company if the incentive stock option is not exercised timely or

if the optionee subsequently engages in disqualifying disposition as described below To be timely

exercise for this purpose the exercise generally must occur while the optionee is employed by the Company

or within three months after termination of employment The amount by which the fair market value of the

common stock on the exercise date of an incentive stock option exceeds the exercise price generally will

increase the optionees alternative minimum taxable income in the year of exercise

An optionee who pays the option exercise price upon exercise of an option in whole or in part by

delivering already owned shares of stock generally will not recognize gain or loss on the shares surrendered at

the time of such delivery Rather such gain or loss recognition generally will occur upon disposition of the

shares acquired in substitution for the shares surrendered

An optionee will recognize long-term capital gain or loss upon his or her disposition of shares acquired

upon the exercise of an incentive stock option if such disposition occurs at least one year after the transfer of

the shares to such optionee and at least two years after the date of grant of the incentive stock option Such

long-term capital gain or loss will be measured by the difference between the amount realized on such

disposition and the option exercise price If however an optionee disposes of shares acquired upon the

exercise of an incentive stock option within two years after the date of grant of the incentive stock option or

within one year from the date of transfer of the incentive stock option shares to the optionee such sale or

exchange will generally constitute disqualifying disposition of such shares and will have the following

results any excess of the lesser of the fair market value of the shares at the time of exercise of the

incentive stock option and ii the amount realized on such disqualifying disposition of the shares over the

option exercise price of such shares will be ordinary income to the optionee and the Company will be entitled

to tax deduction in the amount of such income Any further gain or loss after the date of exercise generally

will qualify as capital gain or loss and will not be deductible by the Company

Non qualified Stock Options

An optionee will not recognize any taxable income upon the grant of nonqualified stock option and the

Company will not be entitled to tax deduction with respect to such grant Upon exercise of nonqualified

stock option the excess of the fair market value of the common stock on the exercise date over the option

exercise price will be taxable as ordinary income to the optionee and will be subject to applicable withholding

taxes The Company will generally be entitled to tax deduction at such time in the amount of such ordinary

income The optionee tax basis for the common stock received pursuant to the exercise of nonqualified

stock option will equal the sum of the ordinary income recognized and the exercise price

An optionee who pays the option exercise price upon exercise of an option in whole or in part by

delivering already owned shares of stock generally will not recognize gain or loss on the shares surrendered at
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the time of such delivery Rather such gain or loss recognition generally will occur upon disposition of the

shares acquired in substitution for the shares surrendered

In the event of sale of common stock received upon the exercise of nonqualified stock option any

appreciation or depreciation after the exercise date generally will be taxed as capital gain or loss

Stock Appreciation Rights

An award holder will not recognize any income upon the grant of stock appreciation right If the stock

appreciation right is settled in cash the cash will be taxed as ordinary income to the award holder at the time

it is received If the stock appreciation right is settled in stock the difference between the fair market value of

the stock received and the aggregate strike price will be taxed as ordinary income to the award holder The

Company will generally be entitled to tax deduction in the amount of and at the same time that ordinary

income is required to be recognized by the award holder as result of the exercise

Restricted Stock

An award holder will not recognize any income upon the grant of restricted stock unless he or she elects

under Section 83b of the Internal Revenue Code within thirty days of such receipt to recognize ordinary

income in an amount equal to the fair market value of the restricted stock at the time of receipt less any

amount paid for the shares If the election is made the award holder will not be allowed deduction for

amounts subsequently required to be returned to the Company If the election is not made the award holder

generally will recognize ordinary income on the date that the shares are no longer subject to substantial risk

of forfeiture in an amount equal to the fair market value of such shares on such date less any amount paid

for the shares At the time ordinary income is recognized the Company generally will be entitled to

deduction in the same amount subject to the application of Section 162m

Generally upon sale or other disposition of restricted stock with respect to which the award holder

recognized ordinary income the award holder will recognize capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the

difference between the amount realized on such sale or other disposition and the award holders basis in such

shares The Company is not entitled to any further deduction

Restricted Stock Units Performance Awards Cash-Based Awards and Other Stock-Based Awards

In general the grant of restricted stockunits performance awards cash-based awards and other stock-

based awards will not result in income for the award holder or in tax dedUction for the Company Upon the

settlement of such an award the award holder will reôognize ordinary income equal to the aggregate value of

the payment received and the Company generally will be entitled to tax deduction in the same amount

subject to the application of Section 162m

Plan Benefits

Future benefits under the 2009 Plan are not currently determinable because participation and the types of

awards available for grant under the plan are subject to the discretion of the Committee To date 181 452

awards have been granted under the 2009 Plan subject to approval of the plan by the shareholders This

included grant of restricted stock under the Company Long Term Incentive Program to the Chief Executive

Officer for 2009 If the 2009 Plan is not approved by the shareholders this award will become null and void

The approval of the 2009 Plan requires the affirmative vote of majority of the shares present at the

annual meeting in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on this matter provided that the total votes cast on

the proposal represent more than 50% of USECs outstanding shares of common stock as of the record date

The Board recommends voting FOR the approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive

Plan
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ITEM APPROVAL OF PROPOSED USEC INC 2009 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

In February 1999 the Company established the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the 1999 Stock

Purchase Plan an employee stock purchase plan under which 2500000 shares of its common stock were

authorized for sale to participating employees In April 2008 the Companys shareholders approved an

increase in the number of shares authorized for issuance under the 1999 Stock Purchase Plan by 250000 to

2750000 and extended the term by two years from February 2009 until February 2011

As of March 2009 there were approximately 211405 shares available for purchase in the current and

future offering periods under the 1999 Stock Purchase Plan which may not be sufficient for the program to

continue beyond 2009 In order to continue this valuable program on February 25 2009 the Board of

Directors adopted the 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan subject to

approval by our shareholders

The purpose of the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan is to provide employees with the opportunity to become

equity owners of the Company by purchasing shares of common stock through generally semi-annual offerings

financed by payroll deductions As of January 2009 the beginning of the current offering period under the

1999 Stock Purchase Plan approximately 2800 employees were eligible to participate During the offering

period ended December 31 2008 approximately 340 employees participated in the 1999 Stock Purchase Plan

Summary Description of the USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The 2009 Stock Purchase Plan is summarized below This summary does not purport to be complete

description of all the provisions of the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan and is qualified in its entirety by reference to

the complete text of the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan copy of the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan is attached as

Appendix to this proxy statement and is incorporated by reference into this summary

General

Th 2009 Stock Purchase Plan is intended to comply with the requirements of Section 423 of the Internal

Revenue Code thereby assuring the participants the associated tax advantages These tax advantages are

described below in the Section entitled Certain Federal Income Tax Consequences

Administration

The 2009 Stock Purchase Plan will be administered by committee of the Board the Committee
which has been so designated by the Board The Compensation Committee of the Board currently has been

designated as the administrator of the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan The Committee has full authority to construe

and interpret the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan and may make such rules and regulations and establish such

procedures for the administration of the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan as it deems appropriate

Shares Available for Purchase

Subject to adjustment as described below the number of shares of common stock that may be sold under

the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan may not exceed 1000000 For purposes of the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan

shares of common stock may be authorized but unissued shares treasury shares or shares purchased on the

open market or from private sources If the Committee determines that any dividend other distribution

recapitalization stock split reverse stock split reorganization merger consolidation split-up spin-off

combination repurchase exchange of shares of common stock or other securities of the Company issuance of

warrants or other rights to purchase shares of common stock or other securities of the Company or other

similar corporate transaction or event affects the common stock such That an adjustment is appropriate to

prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits under the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan then the Committee shall

make such equitable adjustments in the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan and then outstanding offering as it deems

necessary or appropriate including changing the number of shares of Company securities reserved under the

2009 Stock Purchase Plan and the purchase price of the then current offering
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Participation and Offerings

Subject to certain procedural requirements all employees of the Company and any incorporated

subsidiaries that are designated by the Committee who have at least six months of service and work at least

20 hours per week or five months in any calendar year will be eligible to participate in the 2009 Stock

Purchase Plan except that employees who are 5% or more shareholders of the Company or any subsidiary of

the Company will not be eligible to participate

Pursuant to the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan during each offering period generally six-month period or

such other period not to exceed one year as determined by the Committee each eligible employee will be

permitted to make an election to authorize regular payroll deductions for the purchase of shares of common

stock Payroll deductions may be in an amount equal to 1% to 10% of the employees compensation as

defined in the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan as elected by the employee for each payroll period However the

fair market value of the shares of common stock that may be purchased by any employee under the 2009

Stock Purchase Plan during any calendar
year may not exceed $25000

Payroll deductions are credited to recordkeeping accounts At the end of the offering period shares of

common stock will be purchased on behalf of participating employees with their accumulated payroll

deductions at purchase price equal to 85% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date the

offering period ends Participants may withdraw from the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan during an offering period

and will receive their accumulated payroll deductions but may not resume participation until the following

offering period

Change in Control

Upon the occurrence of change in control as defined in the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan if the

Committee determines that the operation or administration of the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan could prevent

participants from obtaining the benefit of accrued purchase rights thereunder the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan

may be tenmnated in any manner deemed by the Committee to provide equitable treatment to participants

Non transferable Right to Purchase

Neither payroll deductions credited to participants account nor any rights with respect to the purchase

of shares of common stock that are granted to participant under the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan may be

assigned transferred pledged or otherwise disposed of in any way other than by will the laws of descent and

distribution or beneficiary designation

Restrictions on Resale

Shares of common stock purchased under the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan by participant will be subject

to one-year restriction on the sale of such shares

Amendment or Discontinuance

The Companys Board or the Committee may at any time and for any reason amend suspend or

discontinue the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan However no amendment will increase the maximum aggregate

number of shares that may be issued under the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan or change the designation of the

corporations or class of corporations whose employees may participate in the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan

without the approval of the Companys shareholders within 12 months before or after such action by the

Companys Board or the Committee

Term

The 2009 Stock Purchase Plan will expire upon completion of any offering period under which the

limitation on the total number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the 2009 Stock Purchase

Plan has been reached unless the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan is sooner terminated by the Companys Board
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Certain Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following discussion is brief summary of the principal United States federal income tax

consequences under current federal income tax laws relating to purchases under the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan

This summary is not intended to be exhaustive or to constitute tax.advice and among other things does not

describe state local or foreign income and other tax consequences

The 2009 Stock Purchase Plan and the right of participants to make purchases thereunder is intended to

qualify under the provisions of Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code Under the applicable Internal

Revenue Code provisions no income will be taxable to participant until the sale or other disposition of the

shares purchased under the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan Upon such sale or disposition the participant will

generally be subject to tax in an amount that depends upon the length of time such shares are held by the

participant prior to disposing of them If the shares are sold or disposed of more than two years
from the first

day of the offering period during which the shares were purchased and one year from the date of purchase or

if the participant dies while holding the shares the participant or his or her estate will recognize ordinary

income measured as the lesser of the excess of the fair market value of the shares at the time of such sale

or disposition over the purchase price or an amount equal to 15% of the fair market value of the shares as

of the first day of the offering period Any additional gain will be treated as long-term capital gain If the

shares are held for the holding periods described above but are sold for price that is less than the purchase

price there is no ordinary income and the participating employee has long-term capital loss for the

difference between the sale price and the purchase price

If the shares are sold or otherwise disposed of before the expiration of the holding periods described

above the participant will recognize ordinary income generally measured as the excess of the fair market

value of the shares on the date the shares are purchased over the purchase price Any additional gain or loss

on such sale or disposition will be long-term or short-term capital gain or loss depending on how long the

shares were held following the date they were purchased by the participant prior to disposing of them

The Company is not entitled to deduction for amounts taxed as ordinary income or capital gain to

participant except to the extent of ordinary income recognized upon sale or disposition of shares prior to the

expiration of the holding periods described above

Plan Benefits

The benefits that will be received or allocated to eligible employees under the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan

cannot be determined at this time because the amount of conthbutions set aside to purchase shares of the

common stock under the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan subject to the limitations discussed above is entirely

within the discretion of each participant

As of March 2009 2538595 shares of our common stock had been purchased under the 1999 Stock

Purchase Plan The following table gives the dollar value of the benefit the 15% discount on the purchase
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price during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 and the number of shares that were purchased under

the 1999 Stock Purchase Plan by the persons and groups identified below during such period

Aggregate Number of

Shares Purchased

under the 199 Stock

Purchase Plan in the

Fiscal Year Ended

_______________ December_31_2008Name

Named Executive Officers

John Welch

President and CEO

John Barpoulis

Senior Vice President and CFO

Philip Sewell

Senior Vice President American Centrifuge and Russian

HEU

Robert Van Namen 723

Senior Vice President Uranium Enrichment

Lance Wright

Senior Vice President Human Resources and

Administration

Total for All Executive Offlcers 12 persons

Non-Executive Director Group persons

All employees who are not executive officers as

group

Total

Dollar Value of

Benefit in the

Fiscal Year Ended

December 31 2008

934

1529

N/A

130354

1183

N/A

$101336

$102519 131883

The approval of the 2009 Stock Purchase Plan requires the affirmative vote of majority of the shares

present at the annual meeting in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on this matter

The Board recommends voting FOR the approval of the proposed USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock

Purchase Plan
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ITEM RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Audit and Finance Committee of the Company has appointed the firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP to serve as the independent auditors of the Company for 2009 subject to ratification of this appointment

by the shareholders of the Company PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has advised the Company that neither it

nor any member thereof has any direct or material indirect financial interest in the Company or any of its

subsidiaries in any capacity One or more representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be present at

the Annual Meeting and will have an opportunity to make statement if he or she desires to do so

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP representatives will also be available to respond to appropriate questions

The Audit and Finance Committee has sole authority for appointing and terminating USECs independent

auditors for 2009 Accordingly shareholder approval is not required to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

as USECs independent auditors for 2009 The Audit and Finance Committee believes however that

submitting the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to the shareholders for ratification is matter of

good corporate governance If the shareholders do not ratify the appointment the Audit and Finance

Committee will review its future selection of the Companys independent auditors

The ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as USECs independent auditors

requires the affirmative vote of majority of the shares present at the meeting in person or by proxy and

entitled to vote

The Board recommends voting FOR ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP as USECs independent auditors

Audit and Non-Audit Fees

The Audit and Finance Committee
pre-approves

all audit and non-audit services provided by the

independent auditors prior to the engagement of the independent auditors with respect to such services The

Audit and Finance Committee has delegated pre-approval authority to the Chairman of the Audit and Finance

Committee who presents any decisions to the full Audit and Finance Committee at its next scheduled meeting

The following amounts were billed to the Company by the independent auditors for services rendered for the

periods indicated

Amount Billed Amount Billed

For Year Ended For Year Ended

Type of Fee December 31 2008 December 31 2007

In thousands In thousands

Audit Feesl 996 $1088

Audit-Related Fees2 300

Tax Fees3 66 99

All Other Fees4

Total $1065 $1489

Primarily audits of the financial statements for both periods including internal control testing over financial

reporting and reviews of quarterly financial statements for both periods

Securities issuance efforts in 2007 and SEC comment letter in 2007

Primarily services related to selected tax projects and IRS audit assistance for both periods

Service fee for access to electronic publication
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AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit and Finance Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised of four independent directors

and operates under written charter The Committee meets with the internal and independent auditors with

and without management present to facilitate and encourage private communication

In fulfilling its responsibilities the Committee has reviewed and discussed with management and the

independent auditors the Companys audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31

2008

The Committee has discussed with the independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by

Statement on Auditing Standards No 61 Communication with Audit Committees as amended In addition the

Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent accountant required by

applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent

accountant communications with the Committee concerning independence and has discussed with the

independent accountant the independent accountant independence

The Committee considered and concluded that the provision of non-audit services by the independent

auditors was compatible with maintaining their independence

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above the Committee recommended to the Board

of Directors that the audited consolidated financial statements referred to above be included in the Company

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008

Audit and Finance Committee

Joseph Paquette Jr Chairman

Michael Armacost

Joseph Doyle

Henson Moore

In accordance with SEC rules notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of the Companys

previous or future filings under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended or the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended that might incorporate this proxy statement or future filings made by the Company under

those statutes the information included under the captions Compensation Committee Report and Audit

and Finance Committee Report shall not be deemed soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC and

shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into any of those prior filings or into any future filings made by

the Company under those statutes except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates these items

by reference
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DATE FOR SUBMISSION OF SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS AND OTHER INFORMATION

Date for Submission of Shareholder Proposals

Under the SEC rules in order to be considered for inclusion in USECs proxy statement for the 2010

annual meeting of shareholders proposals from shareholders must be received by the Secretary of the

Company at Two Democracy Center 6903 Rockledge Drive Bethesda Maryland 20817 not later than

November 20 2009

Our bylaws contain an advance notice provision regarding shareholder proposals that are not sought to be

included in the Company proxy statement which provides that to be timely shareholder notice of

intention to bring business before meeting must be delivered to the Company Secretary at the Company

pnncipal executive office not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the

previous year annual meeting unless the date of the next annual meeting is more than 30 days before or

more than 60 days after such anniversary date in which case notice must be received not later than the tenth

day following the day on which notice of the meeting is mailed or public disclosure of the date of the annual

meeting is made Accordingly shareholder nominations for director or other proposed items Of business

intended to be brought before the next annual meeting of shareholders must be received by the Company

between December 31 2009 and January 30 2010 in order to be considered timely unless the Company gives

notice that the date of the annual meeting is more than 30 days before or more than 60 days after Apnl 30

2010 Any proposals received outside of that penod will not be permitted to be raised at the meeting

Other Matters

As of the date of this Proxy Statement the Board of Directors does not know of any matters to be

presented at the 2009 Annual Meeting other than those specifically set forth above If other matters should

properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof including shareholder proposals that

have been excluded pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the persons named as

proxies in the enclosed proxy card intend to vote the shares represented by them in accordance with their best

judgment with respect to such matters

By order of the Board of Directors

Peter Saba

Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Bethesda Maryland

March 19 2009
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APPENDIX

USEC Inc

2009 Equity Incentive Plan

Establishment Duration and Purpose of Plan

1.1 Establishment and Duration of Plan USEC Inc Delaware corporation the Company hereby

establishes the USEC Inc 2009 Equity Incentive Plan the Plan The Plan is effective February 25 2009

the Effective Date subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company The Plan shall continue in

effect until its termination by the Committee provided however that any Award shall be granted if at all

within ten 10 years from the Effective Date

1.2 Purpose The
purpose

of the Plan is to advance the interests of the Company its Affiliates and its

shareholders by providing incentives to attract retain and reward individuals performing services for the

Company or its Affiliates and by promoting the growth and profitability of the Company and its Affiliates

The Plan seeks to achieve this purpose by providing for Awards in the form of Options Stock Appreciation

Rights Restricted Stock Units Restricted Stock Performance Awards Cash-Based Awards and Other Stock-

Based Awards

Definitions Whenever used herein the following terms shall have their respective meanings set

forth below

2.1 Affiliate means an entity that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediary entities

controls the Company or an entity that is controlled by the Company directly or indirectly through one or

more intermediary entities For this purpose the terms control and controlled by mean ownership of

stock possessing more than fifty percent 50% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock

entitled to vote or more than fifty percent 50% of the total value of all shares of all classes of stock of such

corporation or ii an aggregate of more than fifty percent 50% of the profits interest or capital interest of

non-corporate entity provided that with respect to any entity in which the Company owns at least twenty

percent 20% interest but less than or equal to fifty percent 50% interest the Committee may determine

that such entity will be an Affiliate for
purposes

of this Plan or for purposes of any Award under this Plan if

the Committee has determined prior to the granting of such Award that there are legitimate business criteria

for treating such entity as an Affiliate

2.2 Award means any Option Stock Appreciation Right Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Unit

Performance Award Cash-Based Award or Other Stock-Based Award

2.3 Award Agreement means written agreement contract or other instrument evidencing an Award

setting forth the terms and conditions of an Award which shall incorporate the terms of the Plan by reference

2.4 Board means the Board of Directors of the Company

2.5 Cash-Based Award means an Award granted to grantee as described in Section 11.1

2.6 Cause means unless otherwise defined in the applicable Award Agreement any of the following

the engaging by the grantee in willful misconduct that is injurious to the Company or its Affiliates the

embezzlement or misappropriation of funds or material property of the Company or its Affiliates by the

grantee or the conviction of the grantee of felony or the entrance of plea of guilty or nob contendere by

the grantee to felony the willful failure or refusal by the grantee to substantially perform his or her

duties or responsibilities that continues after demand for substantial performance is delivered by the Company
to the grantee that specifically identifies the manner in which the Company believes the grantee has not

substantially performed his or her duties other than any such failure resulting from the grantees incapacity

due to Disability For purposes of this definition no act or failure to act on the grantees part shall be

considered willful unless done or omitted to be done by him or her not in good faith and without

reasonable belief that his or her action or omission was in the best interest of the Company Any determination
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of Cause shall be made by the Committee in its sole discretion Any such determination shall be final and

binding on grantee

2.7 Change in Control means unless such term or an equivalent term is otherwise defined in the

applicable Award Agreement the occurrence of any of the following

any Person as such term is used in Sections 13d and 14d of the Exchange Act or Persons

acting as group other than the Company any trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under

an employee benefit plan of the Company and any corporation owned directly or indirectly by the

shareholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of Shares is or

becomes the beneficial owner as defined in Rule 3d-3 under the Exchange Act directly or indirectly

of securities of the Company by reason of having acquired such securities during the 12-month period

ending on the date of the most recent acquisition not including any securities acquired directly from the

Company or its Affiliates representing thirty percent 30% or more of the total voting power of the

Companys then outstanding voting securities

the majority of members of the Companys Board is replaced during any 12-month period by

directors whose appointment or election is not endorsed by majority of the members of the Companys

Board before the date of the appointment

there is consummated merger or consolidation of the Company or any subsidiary of the

Company with any other corporation or other entity resulting in change described in clauses

or of this definition other than merger or consolidation that would result in the voting

securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent either by

remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving or parent entity more

than sixty percent 60% of the total voting power of the voting securities of the Company or such

surviving or parent entity outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation or merger or

consolidation effected to implement recapitalization of the Company or similar transaction in which

no Person directly or indirectly acquired forty percent 40% or more of the total voting power of the

Companys then outstanding securities not including any securities acquired directly from the Company

or its Affiliates

liquidation of the Company involving the sale to any Person or Persons acting as group of at

least forty percent 40% of the total gross fair market value of all of the assets of the Company

immediately before the liquidation

the sale or disposition by the Company or any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Company to

any Person or Persons acting as group other than any subsidiary of the Company of assets that have

total fair market value equal to forty percent 40% or more of the total gross fair market value of all of

the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries taken as whole immediately before such sale or

disposition or any transaction or related series of transactions having similareffect other than sale

or disposition by the Company or any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Company to an entity at least

sixty percent 60% of the total voting power of the voting securities of which is beneficially owned by

shareholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their beneficial ownership of the

Company immediately prior to such sale

the sale or disposition by the Company or any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Company to

any Person or Persons acting as group other than any subsidiary of the Company of subsidiary or

subsidiaries of the Company credited under GAAP with forty percent 40% or more of the total revenues

of the Company and its subsidiaries taken as whole in the current fiscal year or in any of the two

most recently completed fiscal
years or any transaction or related series of transactions having similar

effect other than sale or disposition by the Company or any direct or indirect subsidiary of the

Company to an entity at least sixty percent 60% of the total voting power of the voting securities of

which is beneficially owned by shareholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as

their beneficial ownership of the Company immediately prior to such sale or
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change of the kind described in clauses or of this definition with respect to any

Material Subsidiary with such determination made by replacing Company with Material Subsidiary

in each instance in such clauses provided however that for purposes
of applying this provision to

clause of this definition Change in Control shall not be deemed to occur solely as result of

Person or Persons acting as group becoming the beneficial owner as determined under clause of

this definition of less than fifty percent 50% of the ownership interests of Material Subsidiary but

shall be deemed to occur if such Person or Persons acting as group thereafter become the beneficial

owner as determined under clause of this definition of fifty percent 50% or more of the ownership

interests of such Material Subsidiary

2.8 Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended from time to time and any

regulations or administrative guidelines promulgated thereunder

2.9 Committee means the Compensation Committee of the Board or such other committee or

subconmiittee of the Board as may be duly appointed to administer the Plan and having such powers as shall

be specified herein or by the Board If at any time there is no committee of the Board then authorized or

properly constituted to administer the Plan the Board shall exercise all of the powers of the Committee

granted herein and in any event the Board may in its discretion exercise any or all of such powers For

purposes
of Awards granted to Non-Employee Directors pursuant to Section 12 of the Plan references to the

Committee shall be deemed to be references to the Board For purposes
of qualifying transactions as exempt

under Rule 16b-3 the Committee shall be the entire Board or Committee established by the Board of two or

more non-employee directors within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 To the extent desirable to qualify Awards

granted under the Plan for the Section 162m Exemption the Committee shall consist exclusively of two or

more outsidedirectors within the meaning of Section 162m of the Code

2.10 Company means USEC Inc Delaware corporation

2.11 Covered Employee means any employee who is designated by the Committee at the time of any

Award or at any subsequent time as reasonably expected to be covered employee as defined in

Section 162m of the Code and related regulations or any successor statute and related regulations

2.12 Disability means unless otherwise defined in the applicable Award Agreement disability that

would qualify as such under the Companys then current long-term disability plan provided that with respect

to Incentive Stock Options Disability means the permanent and total disability of the grantee within the

meaning of Section 22e3 of the Code

2.13 Dividend Equivalent Right means the right of grantee granted at the discretion of the

Committee or as otherwise provided by the Plan or the Award Agreement to receive credit for the account

of such grantee in an amount equal to the amount of ordinary cash dividends paid on one Share represented

by an Award held by such grantee payable in cash Shares or other securities or other property as determined

by the Committee Dividend Equivalent Rights shall be forfeited or cancelled if the underlying Award is

forfeited or cancelled

2.14 Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

2.15 Exercise Price means the price at which an Option shall be exercised

2.16 Fair Market Value with respect to Shares as of any date shall mean as determined by the

Committee the closing sales price per Share on the New York Stock Exchange or if the shares are no

longer traded on the New York Stock Exchange any other such market on which the Shares are traded on

such date or in the absence of reported sales on such date the closing sales price on the immediately

preceding date on which sales were reported an arithmetic mean of selling prices on all trading days over

specified averaging period or specified averaging period weighted by volume of trading on each trading

day in the period that is within thirty 30 days before or thirty 30 days after the applicable date as

determined by the Committee in its discretion provided that if an arithmetic mean of prices is used to set an

Exercise Price or Strike Price the commitment to grant such Award based on such arithmetic mean must be

irrevocable before the beginning of the specified averaging period in accordance with Treasury
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Regulation AO9A- b5ivA or in the event there is no public market for the Shares the fair market

value as determined in good faith by the Committee in its sole discretion provided that such manner is

consistent with Treasury Regulation .409A- b5ivB
2.17 Freestanding SAR means an SAR granted independently of any Option

18 Grant Date means the date an Award is duly granted by the Committee or the Board or such

later date as may be specified by the Committee or the Board

2.19 Incentive Stock Option means an Option that is identified in the Award Agreement as intended to

qualify as an incentive stock option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code and that actually does so

qualify

2.20 Material Subsidiary means any subsidiary of the Company whose total assets represent forty

percent 40% or more of the total gross fair market value of all of the assets of the Company and its

subsidiaries taken as whole at any time in the current fiscal year or in any of the two most recently

completed fiscal years or credited under GAAP with forty percent 40% or more of the total revenues of

the Company and its subsidiaries taken as whole in the current fiscal year or in any of the two most

recently completed fiscal
years

21 Net Exercise means procedure for exercising an Option subject to Section 19 by which the

grantee will receive number of Shares determined in accordance with the following fonnula

XA-B/A where

the number of Shares to be delivered to the grantee upon exercise of the Option rounded

to the next lower whole number of Shares

the total number of whole Shares with respect to which the grantee has elected to

exercise the Option

the Fair Market Value of one Share on the exercise date and

the Exercise Price per Share

2.22 .Nonqualzfled Stock Option means an option that is not an Incentive Stock Option

2.23 Non-Employee Director means member of the Board who is not an employee of the Company

or any of its Affiliates

2.24 Option means an Incentive Stock Option or Nonqualified Stock Option

2.25 Other Stock-Based Award means any Award granted under Section 11 of the Plan of unrestricted

Shares or other types of equity-based or equity-related Awards not otherwise described by the terms of this

Plan

2.26 Performance Award means performance shares or performance units or any other Award
denominated in cash or Shares in accordance with Section 10 which are based upon the achievement of

Performance Goals

2.27 Performance Goals means the objective performance goals established by the Committee for each

performance period Performance Goals may be based upon the performance of the Company of .any Affiliate

of division or unit thereof or of an individual or groups of individuals using one or more of the

Performance Measures or performance formulas selected by the Committee. Performance Goals may be

expressed on an absolute and/or relative basis may be based on or otherwise employ comparisons based on

internal targets the past performance of the Company and/or the past or current performance of other

companies and in the case of earnings-based measures may use or employ comparisons relating to capital

shareholders equity and/or shares outstanding or to assets or net assets With respect to grantees who are not

Covered Employees and for Awards not intended to qualify for the Section 162m Exemption the Committee

may establish other subjective or objective goals including individual Performance Goals which it deems

appropriate
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2.28 Performance Measures means measures of business or financial performance as described in

Section 10.3a on which Performance Goals are based Performance Measures may be expressed on an

absolute and/or relative basis may be based on or otherwise employ comparisons based on internal targets the

past performance of the Company and/or the past or current performance of other companies and in the case

of earnings-based measures may use or employ comparisons relating to capital shareholders equity and/or

shares outstanding or to assets ornet assets

2.29 Restricted Stock means any restricted Share granted under Section of the Plan

30 Restricted Stock Unit means any unit granted under Section of the Plan

2.31 Retirement means unless otherwise defined in the applicable Award Agreement the termination

of employment of grantee with right to an immediate normal retirement benefit or immediate unreduced

early retirement benefit under the terms of the applicable Company tax-qualified retirement plan or if

grantee is not covered by any such plan termination of such grantees employment for reason other than

Cause on or after such grantees 65th birthday In the case of non-employee directors retirement shall mean
termination of service on or after the non-employee directors 75th birthday

2.32 Rule 16b-3 means Rule 16b-3 as promulgated under the Exchange Act

33 SAR or Stock Appreciation Right means an Award granted under Section of the Plan

2.34 Section 162m Exemption means the exemption from the limitation on deductibility imposed by

Section 162m4C of the Code

2.35 Section 409A means Section 409A of the Code and related regulations or any successor statute

and related regulations

36 Securities Act means the Securities Act of 1933 as amended

2.37 Shares means common stock $0.10 par value of the Company or such other securities of the

Company as may be designated by the Committee from time to time and as adjusted from time to time in

accordance with Section 16

2.38 Strike Price means the price with reference to which the value of an SAR is measured

39 subsidiary means with respect to any Person the parent at any date any corporation limited

liability company partnership association or other entity the accounts of which would be consolidated with

those of the parent in the parent consolidated financial statements if such financial statements were prepared

in accordance with GAAP as of such date as well as any other corporation limited liability company

partnership association or other entity of which securities or other ownership interests representing more

than fifty percent 50% of the equity or more than fifty percent 50% of the ordinary voting power or in the

case of partnership more than fifty percent 50% of the general partnership interests are as of such date or

were prior to Change of Control owned controlled or held or that is or was prior to Change of

Control otherwise Controlled by the parent or one or more subsidiaries of the parent or by the parent and one

or more subsidiaries of the parent For purposes of this paragraph Controlled shall mean the possession

directly or indirectly of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of Person

whether through the ability to exercise voting power by contract or otherwise

2.40 Tandem SAR means an SAR granted with all or any portion of related Option

241 1999 Plan means the USEC Inc 1999 Equity Incentive Plan as amended

Administration

3.1 Administration by the Committee The Plan shall be administered by the Committee Subject to the

express provisions of the Plan all designations determinations interpretations and other decisions under or

With respect to the Plan or any Award shall be within the sole discretion of the Committee may be made at

any time and shall be final conclusive and binding upon all persons including the Company any Affiliate
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any grantee any holder or beneficiary of any Award any employee any Non-Employee Director and any

individual providing bona fide services to or for the Company

3.2 Delegation of Authority The Committee shall have the right from time to time to delegate to one

or more of its members or to one ormore officers of the Company the authority of the Committee to grant

and determine the terms and conditions of Awards granted under the Plan subject to the requirements of

Section 157c of the Delaware General Corporation Law or any successor provision and such other

limitations as the Committee shall determine In no event shall any such delegation of authority be permitted

with respect to Awards to any members of the Board or to any person
who is subject to Rule 16b-3 under the

Exchange Act to any Covered Employee or to such delegate The Committee shall also be permitted to

delegate to any appropriate officer or employee of the Company responsibility for performing certain

ministerial functions under the Plan In the event that the Committees authority is delegated to officers or

employees in accordance with the foregoing all provisions of the Plan relating to the Committee shall be

interpreted in manner consistent with the foregoing by treating any such reference as reference to such

officer or employee for such purpose Any action undertaken in accordance with the Committees delegation

of authority hereunder shall have the same force and effect as if such action was undertaken directly by the

Committee and shall be deemed for all purposes of the Plan to have been taken by the Committee

3.3 Powers of the Committee In addition to any other powers set forth in the Plan and subject to the

express provisions of the Plan the Committee shall have the full and final power and authority in its

discretion to determine the persons to whom and the time or times at which Awards shall be granted and

the number of Shares units or monetary value to be subject to each Award determine the number of

Shares to be covered by or with respect to which payments rights or other matters are to be calculated in

connection with Awards determine the type of Awards to be granted determine the Fair Market Value

of Shares or other property determine the terms and conditions applicable to each Award which need not

be identical and any Shares or cash or other property acquired pursuant thereto determine the exercise or

purchase price of Shares pursuant to any Award determine the method of payment for Shares purchased

pursuant to any Award determine the method for satisfaction of any tax withholding obligation arising in

connection with Award including by the withholding or delivery of Shares determine the timing terms

and conditions of the exercisability or vesting of any Award or any Shares acquired pursuant thereto

determine the Performance Measures performance period performance formula and Performance Goals

applicable to any Award and to determine and certify the extent to which such Performance Goals have been

attained determine the time of the expiration of any Award determine the type and time of the

grantee termination of service and the effect of such termination on any Award determine all other

terms and conditions applicable to any Shares acquired pursuant an Award not inconsistent with the terms of

the Plan determine whether and under what circumstances an Award will be settled in Shares cash other

securities other Awards or other property or any combination thereof or canceled forfeited or suspended

and the method by which Awards may be settled exercised canceled forfeited or suspended approve one

or more forms of Award Agreement amend modify extend cancel or renew any Award or waive any

restrictions or conditions applicable to any Award or any Shares or other securities acquired pursuant thereto

accelerate continue extend or defer the exercisability or vesting of any Award or any Shares acquired

pursuant thereto including with respect to the period following grantee termination of service determine

whether to what extent and under what circumstances amounts payable with respect to an Award shall be

deferred either automatically or at the election of the holder thereof or the Committee construe and

interpret the Plan any Award Agreement and any other document affecting Awards under the Plan or rights

under such Awards prescribe amend suspend waive or rescind rules guidelines and policies relating to

the Plan and adopt sub-plans or supplements to or alternative versions of the Plan including without

limitation as the Committee deems necessary or desirable to comply with the laws or regulations of or to

accommodate the tax policy accounting principles or custom of foreign jurisdictions whose citizens or

residents may be granted Awards appoint such agents as it shall deem appropriate for proper administra

tion of the Plan correct any defect supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan or any

Award Agreement and to make all other determinations and take such other actions with respect to the

Plan or any Award as the Committee may deem advisable to the extent not inconsistent with the express

provisions of the Plan or applicable law The Committees actions and determinations under the Plan need not
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be uniform and may be made by the Committee selectively among individuals who receive or are eligible to

receive Awards under the Plan whether or not such individuals are similarly situated

3.4 Indemnification In addition to such other rights of indemnification as they may have as members

of the Board or the Committee or as officers or employees of the Company or its Affiliates and subject to

Delaware law the members of the Committee and individuals to whom authority to act for the Board the

Committee or the Company is delegated in accordance with Section hereof shall have no liability for any

action taken or determination made in good faith with respect to the Plan or any Award granted hereunder and

shall be indemnified by the Company against all reasonable expenses including attorneys fees actually and

necessarily incurred in connection with the defense of any action suit or proceeding or in connection with

any appeal therein to which they or any of them may be party by reason of any action taken or failure to

act determination made in good faith under or in connection with the Plan or any Award or right granted

hereunder provided however that within sixty 60 days after the institution of such action suit or

proceeding such person shall offer to the Company in writing the opportunity at its own expense to handle

and defend the same

Shares Subject to Plan

4.1 Maximum Number of Shares Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 16 the number of

Shares reserved for delivery under the Plan pursuant to Awards settled in Shares shall be the sum of

4500000 Shares plus ii the number of Shares if any underlying grants under the 1999 Plan that are

forfeited canceled terminated or are settled in cash without delivery of Shares on or after the date of approval

of the Plan by the shareholders of the Company The Shares that may be delivered under the Plan may consist

of authorized but unissued Shares or treasury Shares or any combination thereof

4.2 Awards Intended to Qualify for the Section 162m Exemption The following limitations shall

apply to any Award intended to qualify for the Section 162m Exemption

Options and Freestanding SARs The maximum aggregate
number of Shares underlying any

Option or SAR that may be granted to any one Covered Employee within any fiscal
year

of the Company

is 1000000 Shares

ii Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units The maximum aggregate number of Shares

underlying any Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Unit to be settled in Shares that may be granted to

any one Covered Employee within any fiscal year of the Company is 1000000 Shares

iii Performance Awards The maximum aggregate number of Shares underlying any Performance

Award to be settled in Shares that may be granted to any one Covered Employee in any fiscal
year

of the

Company is 1000000 Shares

iv Cash-Based Awards The maximum aggregate value as of the Grant Date of any Cash-Based

Award or Performance Award payable in cash that may be granted during any fiscal year of the Company

to any one Covered Employee is U.S $2000000

4.3 Share Counting Rules If an Award for any reason expires is forfeited or becomes unexercisable

without having been exercised in full any unpurchased Shares which were subject thereto shall become

available for future grant under the Plan Restricted Stock that is forfeited shall become available for future

grant or sale under the Plan Shares that are tendered whether by physical delivery by attestation or by Net

Exercise to the Company by the grantee as full or partial payment of the Exercise Price of any Award or in

payment of any applicable withholding for federal state local or foreign taxes incurred in connection with the

exercise vesting or settlement of any Award shall become available for future grant under the Plan Except as

otherwise provided in this Section the Committee may determine rules for counting Shares

Eligibility and Participation

5.1 Persons Eligible for Awards Awards may be granted to employees officers directors and other

individuals providing bona fide services to or for the Company or any Affiliate as selected by the Committee

in its sole discretion from time to time provided that Non-Employee Directors shall only be eligible to
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receive Awards granted pursuant to Section 12 The Committee may also grant Awards to individuals in

connection with hiring or other initial engagement prior to the date the individual first performs services for

the Company or an Affiliate provided that such Awards shall not become vested or exercisable and no Shares

shall be delivered to such individual prior to the date the individual first commences performance of such

services

5.2 Participation in the Plan Awards are granted solely at the discretion of the Committee Eligible

persons may be granted more than one Award

Stock Options

6.1 Grant Options shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement specifying the number of Shares

subject to the Award the Exercise Price and such other terms and conditions as the Committee shall provide

subject to the provisions of this Section and subject to the vesting limits in Section 13.1

6.2 Exercise Price The Exercise Price for each Option shall be established in the discretion of the

Committee provided however that the Exercise Price per Share shall not be less than the Fair Market Value

of Share on the Grant Date

6.3 Exercisability and Term of Options Options shall be exercisable at such time or times or upon

such event or events and subject to such terms and conditions as shall be determined by the Committee and

set forth in the Award Agreement provided however that no Option shall be exercisable after the expiration

of ten 10 years after the Grant Date and no Option shall be exercisable after an act or omission of the

Grantee that constitutes Cause whether before coincident with or after the grantees termination of

employment Subject to the foregoing unless otherwise specified in the Award Agreement each Option shall

terminate ten 10 years after the Grant Date unless earlier terminated in accordance with its provisions

6.4 Payment of Exercise Price Except as otherwise provided in the Award Agreement and subject to

Section 19.6 payment of the Exercise Price for the number of Shares being purchased pursuant to any Option

shall be made in cash or by check or cash equialent ii by tender to the Company or attestation to the

ownership of Shares owned by the grantee having Fair Market Value not less than the Exercise Price iiiby

delivery of properly executed notice of exercise together with irrevocable instructions to broker providing

for the assignment to the Company of the proceeds of sale or loan with respect to some or all of the Shares

being acquired upon the exercise of the Option including without limitation through an exercise complying

with the provisions of Regulation as promulgated from time to time by the Board of Governors of the

Federal Reserve System iv by delivery of properly executed notice electing Net Exercise by such

other consideration as may be approved by the Committee from time to time to the extent permitted by

applicable law or vi by any combination thereof Notwithstanding the foregoing an Option may not be

exercised by tender to the Company or attestation to the ownership of Shares to the extent such tender or

attestation would constitute violation of the provisions of any law regulation or agreement restricting the

redemption of the Shares

6.5 Effect of Termination of Service Subject to earlier termination of the Option as otherwise provided

herein and except as otherwise set forth in the Award Agreement an Option shall terminate immediately upon

the grantees termination of service to the extent that it is then unvested and shall be exercisable after the

grantees termination of service to the extent it is then vested only during the applicable time period

determined in accordance with this section and thereafter shall terminate

Death Disability Retirement and Termination Without Cause If the grantees service terminates by

reason of the death Disability or Retirement of the grantee or termination of the grantees service by the

Company or an Affiliate for reasons other than for Cause the Option shall become vested and nonforfeitable

and to the extent unexercised may be exercised by the grantee or the grantees guardian or legal

representative if applicable at any time prior to the expiration of twelve 12 months after the date the

grantees service terminates but in any event no later than the expiration of the term of the Option and shall

thereafter terminate
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Termination for Cause If the grantees service is terminated by the Company or an Affiliate for

Cause the Option shall terminate in its entirety and cease to be exercisable immediately upon the act or

omission of the Grantee that constituted Cause

Voluntary Termination of Service If the grantee voluntarily terminates his or her service for any

reason other than Retirement the Option to the extent unexercised and exercisable for vested Shares on the

date the grantees service terminates may be exercised by the grantee at any time prior to the expiration of

thirty 30 days after the date the grantees service terminates but in any event no later than the expiration of

the term of the Option and shall thereafter terminate

6.6 Incentive Stock Option Limitations and Terms

Persons Eligible Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to person who on the Grant Date

is an employee of the Company or any parent corporation or subsidiary corporation of the Company as

defined in Sections 424e and of the Code respectively

$100000 Limitation To the extent that Incentive Stock Options granted under all plans of the

Company or any subsidiary corporation become exercisable by grantee for the first time during any

calendar year for Shares having Fair Market Value greater than One Hundred Thousand Dollars $100000

the portion of such Options which exceeds such amount shall be treated as Nonqualified Stock Options For

purposes
of this section Options designated as Incentive Stock Options shall be taken into account in the order

in which they were granted and the Fair Market Value per
Share shall be determined as of the Grant Date

Exercise Price No Incentive Stock Option granted to any employee who as of the Grant Date owns

stock possessing more than ten percent 10% of the total combined voting power of the Company shall have

an Exercise Price per Share less than one hundred ten percent 110% of the Fair Market Value of Share on

the Grant Date of the Option Notwithstanding the foregoing an Option whether an Incentive Stock Option or

Nbnqualified Stock Option may be granted with an Exercise Price lower than the minimum Exercise Price

set forth above if such Option is granted pursuant to an assumption or substitution for another Option in

manner qualifying under the provisions of Section 424a of the Code

Term No Incentive Stock Option granted to any employee who as of the Grant Date owns stock

possessing more than ten percent 10% of the total combined voting power of the Company shall be

exercisable after the expiration of five years after the Grant Date of such Option

Transferabilily Incentive Stock Options shall not be assignable or transferable other than by will or

the laws Of descent and distribution and may be exercised during the grantees lifetime only by the grantee

provided however that the grantee may to the extent provided in the Plan in any manner specified by the

Committee designate in writing beneficiary to exercise his or her Incentive Stock Option after the grantees

death

Notflcation of Disqualifying Disposition If any grantee shall make any disposition of Shares

delivered pursuant to the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option under the circumstances described in

Section 421b of the Code relating to certain disqualifying dispositions such grantee shall notify the

Company of such disposition within ten 10 days thereof

Stock Appreciation Rights

7.1 Grant An SAR shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement specifying the number of Shares

subject to the Award the Strike Price and such other terms and conditions as the Committee shall provide

subject to the provisions of this Section and subject to the vesting limits in Section 13

7.2 Types of SARs Authorized and Strike Price Tandem SARs and Freestanding SARs may be granted

under the Plan

7.3 Strike Price The Strike Price for each SAR shall be established in the discretion of the Committee

on the Grant Date provided however that the Strike Price per Share subject to Tandem SAR shall be

equal to the Exercise Price per
Share under the related Option on the Grant Date and the Strike Price per

Share subject to Freestanding SAR shall be not less than the Fair Market Value of Share on the Grant Date
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7.4 Exercisability and Term of SARs

Tandem SARs Tandem SARs shall be exercisable only at the time and to the extent the related

Option is exercisable subject to such provisions as the Committee may specify where the Tandem SAR is

granted with respect to less than the full number of Shares subject to the related Option Tandem SAR shall

terminate and cease to be exercisable no later than the date on which the related Option expires terminates or

is forfeited or canceled Upon the exercise of Tandem SAR with respect to some or all of the Shares subject

to such SAR the related Option shall be canceled automatically as to the number of Shares with respect to

which the Tandem SAR is exercised Upon the exercise of an Option related to Tandem SAR as to some or

all of the Shares subject to such Option the related Tandem SAR shall be canceled automatically as to the

number of Shares with respect to which the related Option is exercised

Freestanding SARs Freestanding SARs shall be exercisable at such time or times or upon such

event or events and subject to such terms and conditions as shall be determined by the Committee and set

forth in the Award Agreement provided however that no Freestanding SAR shall be exercisable after the

expiration of ten 10 years after the Grant Date

7.5 Exercise Of SARs Upon the exercise of an SAR the grantee or the grantees legal representative

or other person who acquired the right to exercise the SAR by reason of the grantees death shall be entitled

to receive payment of an amount for each Share with respect to which the SAR is exercised equal to the

excess if any of the Fair Market Value of Share on the date of exercise of the SAR over the Strike Price

Payment of such amount following exercise shall be made in Shares or cash or in any combination thereof as

provided in the Award Agreement When the Award Agreement provides for payment in Shares the number

of Shares to be delivered shall be determined on the basis of the Fair Market Value of Share on the date of

exercise of the SAR

7.6 Effect of Termination of Service Subject to earlier termination of the SAR as provided herein an

SAR shall be exercisable after grantees termination of service only to the extent and during the applicable

time period determined in accordance with Section 6.5 treating the SAR as if it were an Option and

thereafter shall terminate

Restricted Stock

8.1 Grant Restricted Stock shall be evidenced by Award Agreements specifying the number of Shares

subject to the Award and such other terms and conditions as the Conmiittee shall provide subject to the

provisions of this Section

8.2 Vesting Restricted Stock shall be made subject to vesting conditions based upon the satisfaction of

such service requirements conditions restrictions or Performance Goals as shall be established by the

Committee and set forth in the Award Agreement and shall be subject to the vesting limits in Section 13.1

Unless otherwise provided in the Award Agreement Restricted Stock that vests based on continued provision

of service shall vest automatically when the grantee becomes eligible for Retirement If either the grant of or

satisfaction of vesting conditions applicable to Restricted Stock Award is to be contingent upon the

attainment of one or more Performance Goals and the Award is intended to qualify for the Section 162m
Exemption the Committee shall follow procedures substantially equivalent to those set forth in Section 10

8.3 Purchase Price The Committee shall determine the purchase price if any that grantee shall pay

for Restricted Stock Notwithstanding the foregoing if required by applicable state corporate law the grantee

shall furnish consideration in the form of cash or past services rendered to Company or any Affiliate or for

its benefit having value not less than the par
value of the Shares subject to Restricted Stock Award The

purchase price if any shall be paid no more than thirty 30 days from the Grant Date of the Restricted Stock

8.4 Payment of Purchase Price Payment of the purchase price if any for the number of Shares being

purchased pursuant to any Restricted Stock shall be made in cash or by check or cash equivalent by

such other consideration as may be approved by the Committee from time to time to the extent permitted by

applicable law or by any combination thereof
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8.5 Voting Rights Dividends and Distributions Except as provided in the Award Agreement during

any period in which Shares acquired pursuant to Restricted Stock Award remain subject to vesting

conditions the grantee shall have all of the rights of shareholder of the Company holding Shares including

the right to vote such Shares and to receive all dividends and other distributions paid with respect to such

Shares The right to receive dividends shall end on the date on which the Restricted Stock Award is

terminated canceled or forfeited

8.6 Effect of Termination of Service Unless otherwise provided in the Award Agreement

if the grantees service terminates for any reason except as provided below in or all

Restricted Stock shall automatically be forfeited and the Company shall pay the grantee the lesser of the Fair

Market Value of number of shares equal to the number of Shares of Restricted Stock forfeited or the original

purchase price paid by the grantee for the Restricted Stock if any

if the grantees service terminates by reason of the death or Disability of the grantee all Restricted

Stock held by the grantee as of the date of such termination shall become vested and nonforfeitable as of the

date of such termination

if the grantees service is involuntarily terminated by the Company or an Affiliate for reasons other

than for Cause all Restricted Stock held by the grantee as of the date of such termination that vests based on

performance of service shall become vested and nonforfeitable as of the date of such termination and

if the grantee has Retirement or the grantees service is involuntarily terminated by the Company or

an Affiliate for reasons other than for Cause all Restricted Stock held by the grantee as of the date of such

termination that vests based on the satisfaction of Performance Goals or similar conditions or restrictions other

than service shall vest at the time and in accordance with the terms and conditions of such Performance Goals

or similar conditions or restrictions

Restricted Stock Units

9.1 Grant Restricted Stock Units shall be evidenced by Award Agreements specifying the number of

Restricted Stock Units subject to the Award and such other terms and conditions as the Committee shall

provide subject to the provisions of this Section

9.2 Vesting Restricted Stock Units may but need not be made subject to vesting conditions based

upon the satisfaction of such service requirements conditions restrictions or Performance Goals as shall be

established by the Committee and set forth in the Award Agreement and shall be subject to the vesting limits

in Section 13.1 If either the grant of Restricted Stock Units or the vesting conditions with respect to such

Award is to be contingent upon the attainment of one or more Performance Goals and the Award is intended

to qualify for the Section 162m Exemption the Committee shall follow procedures substantially equivalent

to those set forth in Section 10

9.3 Settlement of Restricted Stock Units The Company shall deliver to grantee on the date on which

Restricted Stock Units subject to the grantees Restricted Stock Unit Award vest or on such other date as

provided in the Award Agreement one Share for each Restricted Stock Unit then becoming vested or

otherwise to be settled on such date subject to the withholding of applicable taxes if any Notwithstanding the

foregoing the Committee in its discretion may provide in the Award Agreement on the Grant Date for

settlement of any Restricted Stock Units by payment to the grantee in cash of an amount equal to the Fair

Market Value on the payment date of the Shares or other property otherwise to be deliveredto the grantee

pursuant to this section

9.4 Voting Rights Dividend Equivalent Rights and Distributions grantee shall have no voting rights

with respect to Shares represented by Restricted Stock Units until the delivery of the Shares subject to such

Award as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of duly authorized transfer

agent of the Company However the Committee in its discretion may provide in the Award Agreement that

the grantee shall be entitled to Dividend Equivalent Rights with respect to Restricted Stock Unit during the

period beginning on the date such Award is granted and ending with respect to each Share subject to the

Award on the earlier of the date the Award is settled or the date on which it is terminated canceled or
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forfeited Notwithstanding the foregoing the receipt of Dividend Equivalent Rights shall not be made

contingent on the exercise of any Award

9.5 Effect of Termination of Service Unless otherwise provided in the Award Agreement

if the grantees service terminates prior to the date the Restricted Stock Units become vested for any

reason except as provided below in or all Restricted Stock Units shall automatically be forfeited for no

consideration on the date of such termination of service

if the grantees service terminates by reason of the death or Disability of the grantee all Restricted

Stock Units held by the grantee as of the date of such termination shall become vested and nonforfeitable as

of the date of such termination and

if the grantees service is involuntarily terminated by the Company or an Affiliate for reasons other

than for Cause or in the event of the grantees Retirement all Restricted Stock Units held by the grantee as of

the date of such termination that vest based on performance of service shall become vested and nonforfeitable

as of the date of such termination and all Restricted Stock Units held by the grantee as of the date of such

termination that vest based on the satisfaction of Performance Goals or similar conditions or restrictions other

than service shall vest at the time and in accordance with the terms and conditions of such Performance Goals

or similar conditions or restrictions

10 Performance Awards

10.1 Grant Performance Awards may be denominated as performance shares performance units or

other Awards payable in cash or Shares and shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement specifying the

number of Shares or units or the amount of cash subject thereto the Performance Goals the Performance

Measures the performance period the performance formula determining the amount of cash or Shares or

combination thereof to be earned based on achievement of the Performance Goals and such other terms and

conditions as the Committee shall provide subject to the provisions of this Section 10 The Plan is designed to

permit the grant of Performance Awards that qualify for the Section 162m Exemption Whenever the

Committee determines that it is advisable the Committee may grant Awards that do not qualify for the

Section 162m Exemption Each performance unit shall have an initial value that is established by the

Committee on the Grant Date Each performance share shall have an initial value equal to the Fair Market

Value of Share on the Grant Date

10.2 Establishment of Performance Period Performance Goals and Performance Formula With

respect to each Performance Award intended to qualify for the Section 162m Exemption the Committee

shall establish the Performance Goals and the performance formula as applicable no later than the earlier of

the date ninety 90 days after the commencement of the applicable performance period or the date on

which 25% of the performance period has elapsed and in any event at time when the outcome of the

Performance Goals remain substantially uncertain Once established the Performance Goals and the perfor

mance formula for an Award intended to qualify for the Section 162m Exemption shall not be changed

during the performance period

10.3 Measurement of Performance Goals Performance Goals shall be established by the Committee

on the basis of one or more Performance Measures subject to the following

Performance Measures Performance Measures shall have the same meanings as used in the

Companys financial statements or if such terms are not used in the Companys financial statements

they shall have the meaning applied pursuant to applicable accounting principles or as used generally in

the Companys industry Performance Measures may be one or more of the following as determined by

the Committee revenue sales expenses operating income gross profit gross margin operating margin

earnings before any one or more or combination of stock-based compensation expense interest taxes

depreciation and amortization pre-tax profit operating income or profit net operating income net

income after tax operating income economic value added cash flows free cash flow operating cash

flow balance of cash cash equivalents and marketable securities stock price earnings or book value per

share earnings per share diluted earnings per share return on shareholder equity return on capital
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return on assets return on equity return on capital capital employed or investment return on investment

employee satisfaction employee retention customer satisfaction safety or diversity market share product

development research and development expenses completion or attainment of objectively determinable

targets with respect to an identified special project total sales or revenues or sales or revenues per

employee production separative work units or SWUs stock price or total shareholder return dividends

strategic business objectives consisting of one or more objectives based on meeting specified cost targets

business expansion goals and goals relating to acquisitions or divestiture and except in the case of

Awards to Covered Employees intended to qualify for the SectiOn 162m Exemption any other

performance cnteria established by the Committee

Permitted Adjustments In its discretion the Committee may either at the time it grants

Performance Award or at any time thereafter provide for the positive or negative adjustment of the

performance formula applicable to Performance Award granted to any grantee except in the case of an

Award intended to qualify for the Section 162m Exemption with respect to Covered Employee to

reflect such factors as the Committee may determine Notwithstanding the foregoing Performance Goals

shall to the extent applicable and to the extent provided in the Award Agreement be adjusted by the

Committee to take into account the effect of the following changes in accounting standards that may be

required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board after the Performance Goal is established realized

investment gains and/or losses extraordinary unusual non-recurring or infrequent items currency

fluctuations acquisitions divestitures litigation losses financing activities expenses for restructuring or

productivity initiatives other non-operating items new laws cases or regulatory developments that result

in unanticipated items of gain loss income or expensç executive severance arrangements investment

returns relating to investment vehicles which are unaffiljated with Company or divisional operating

strategy bonus expense the impact on pre-tax income of interest expense
attributable to the repurchase

of Shares extraordinary dividends or Share dividends the effect of corporate reorganizations or

restructuring spinoff or sale of business unit and other items as the Committee determines to be

required so that the operating results of the Company division or Affiliate shall be computed on

comparative basis from performance period to performance period in each case as those terms are

defined under applicable accounting principles and provided in each case that such excluded items are

objectively determinable by reference to the Companys financial statements notes to the Companys

financial statements and/or managements discussion and analysis in the Companys financial statements

Determination by the Committee shall be final and conclusive on all parties but shall be based on

relevant objective information or financial data The Committee shall have the discretion on the basis of

such criteria as may be established by the Committee to reduce some or all of the value of the

Performance Award that would otherwise be paid to the Covered Employee notwithstanding the

attainment of any Performance Goals and the resulting value of the Performance Award determined in

accordance with the performance formula No such reduction may result in an increase in the amount

payable upon settlement of another grantees Performance Award that is intended to qualify for the

Section 162m Exemption

10 Settlement of Performance Awards

Determination of Final Value Following the completion of the performance period applicable to

Performance Award the Committee shall certify in wnting the extent to which the applicable Performance

Goals have been attained and the resulting final value of the Award earned by the grantee and to be paid upon

its settlement in accordance with the applicable performance formula

Payment in Settlement of Performance Awards Following the Committees determination and

certification in accordance with Section 10.4a payment shall be made to each eligible grantee or such

grantees legal representative or other person who acquired the right to receive such payment by reason of the

grantees death of the final value of the grantees Performance Award Payment of such amount shall be made

in cash Shares or combination thereof as determined by the Committee on the Grant Date and set forth in

the Award Agreement Unless otherwise provided in the Award Agreement payment shall be made in lump

sum following the close of the performance period at the time and in accordance with procedures established

by the Committee but in no event later than months following the calendar year in which the Performance
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Goals are achieved If permitted by the Committee and consistent with the requirements of Section 409A the

grantee may elect to defer receipt of all or any portion of the payment to be made to the grantee pursuant to

this section on such terms and conditions as the Committee may allow If any payment is to be made on

deferred basis the Committee may but shall not be obligated to provide for the payment during the deferral

period of Dividend Equivalent Rights

Provisions Applicable to Payment in Shares If Performance Award is denominated in Shares the

number of Shares delivered pursuant to such Award shall be set forth in the Award Agreement or determined

by the Committee based on the achievement of the applicable Performance Goals If payment of

Performance Award that is not denominated in Shares is to be made in Shares the number of such Shares

shall be determined by dividing the final value of the Performance Award by the Fair Market Value of Share

Shares delivered in payment of any Performance Award may be fully vested and freely transferable Shares or

may be Shares subject to vesting conditions as provided in Section 8.2 Any Shares subject to vesting

conditions shall be evidenced by an appropriate Award Agreement and shall be subject to the provisions of

Section 8.6

Performance Awards The vesting conditions for Performance Awards shall be determined by the

Committee and set forth in the Award Agreement provided that such Awards shall vest proportionally over

minimum period of one year

10.5 Voting Rights Dividend Equivalent Rights and Distributions Grantees shall have no voting rights

with respect to Shares represented by Performance Awards until the date of the delivery of such Shares if any

in settlement of such Awards as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of duly

authorized transfer agent of the Company However the Committee in its discretion may provide in the

Award Agreement that the grantee shall be entitled to Dividend Equivalent Rights during the period beginning

on the date the Award becomes vested and ending with respect to each Share subject to the Award on the

earlier of the date on which the Award is settled or the date on which it is terminated canceled or forfeited

Notwithstanding the foregoing the receipt of Dividend Equivalent Rights shall not be made contingent on the

exercise of any Award

10.6 Effect of Termination of Service Unless otherwise provided in the Award Agreement

if the grantees service terminates for any reason except as provided below in or all unvested

Performance Units shall automatically be forfeited for no consideration on the date of such termination of

service

if the grantees service terminates by reason of the death or Disability of the grantee all Performance

Units held by the grantee as of the date of such termination shall become vested and nonforfeitable as of the

date of such termination and the prorata portion thereof shall become payable or any lapse restrictions shall

lapse as to pro rata portion of the Performance Units as applicable as though the performance needed to

achieve target payment had been achieved The prorata portion shall be fraction the numerator of which is

the number of days of employment during the performance period and the denominator of which is the

number of days in the performance period and

if the grantees service is involuntarily terminated by the Company or an Affiliate for reasons other

than for Cause or in the event of the grantees Retirement prorata portion as defined above of the

Performance Units held by the grantee as of the date of such termination shall be paid at the time set forth in

the Award Agreement or any lapse restrictions shall lapse as to pro rata portion of the Performance Units

as applicable to the extent otherwise earned on the basis of achievement of the applicable Performance

Goals

11 Cash-Based Awards and Other Stock-Based Awards

11.1 Grant of Cash-Based and Other Stock-Based Awards The Committee may grant Cash-Based

Awards and Other Stock-Based Awards evidenced by an Award Agreement in such form and containing such

terms and conditions as the Committee shall provide subject to the provisions of this Section 11 Other Stock

Based Awards other than unrestricted Shares shall be subject to the vesting limits in Section 13.1
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11.2 Payment or Settlement of Cash-Based Awards and Other Stock-Based Awards Payment or

settlement if any with respect to Cash-Based Award or an Other Stock-Based Award shall be made in

accordance with the terms of the Award Agreement in cash Shares or other securities or any combination

thereof as the Committee determines The determination and certification of the fmal value with respect to any

Cash-Based Award or Other Stock-Based Award intended to qualify for the Section 162m Exemption shall

comply with the requirements applicable to Performance Awards set forth in Section 10

11.3 Voting Rights Dividend Equivalent Rights and Distributions Grantees shall have no voting rights

with respect to Shares represented by Other Stock-Based Awards until the delivery ofsuch Shares as
evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of duly authorized transfer agent of the

Company in settlement of such Award However the Committee in its discretion may provide in the Award

Agreement that the grantee shall be entitled to Dividend Equivalent Rights with respect to the payment of

ordinary cash dividends on Shares subject to Other Stock-Based Awards during the period bØginthng on the

date such Award is granted and ending with respect to each Share subject to the Award On the earlier of the

date the Award is settled or the date on which it is terminated canceled or forfeited Notwithstanding the

foregoing the receipt of Dividend Equivalent Rights shall not be made contingent on the exercise of any

Award

11.4 Effect of Termination of Service Each Award Agreement shall set forth the extent to which the

grantee shall have the right to receive upon or after termination of service Cash-Based Awards and Other

Stock-Based Awards outstanding as of such termination of service

12 Non-Employee Director Awards

The Committee may provide that all or portion of Non-Employee Directors annual retainer any

committee or other chairman fees and any other fees be payable either automatically or at the election of an

Non-Employee Director in the form of Nonqualified Stock Options Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units

and/or Other Stock-Based Awards evidenced by Award Agreements containing such terms and conditions as

the Committee shall determine

13 Vesting Limits and Change in Control

13.1 Vesting Limits The vesting conditions for Awards shall be determined by the Committee and set

forth in the Award Agreement provided however that Awards other than Non-Employee Director Awards and

Performance Awards shall vest no faster than proportionally over minimum period of three
years Up to

210000 Shares subject to such Awards may be granted without minimum vesting otherwise required by this

Section

13.2 Change in Control The Committee may in its discretion provide in any Award Agreement or in

the event of Change in Control may take such actions as it deems appropriate to provide for the acceleration

of the exercisability vesting and/or settlement in connection with Change in Control of each or any

outstanding Award or any portion thereof and Shares acquired pursuant thereto upon such conditions including

termination of the grantees service prior to upon or following such Change in Control to such extent as the

Committee shall determine provided that there shall be no such acceleration where it could result in additional

taxes penalties or interest under Section 409A of the Code

14 Compliance with Securities Law

The Committee may refuse to deliver any Shares or other consideration under an Award if acting in its

sole discretion it determines that the issuance delivery or transfer of such Shares or such other consideration

might violate any applicable law or regulation including applicable non-U.S laws or regulations or entitle

the Company to recover the same under Section 16b of the Exchange Act and any payment tendered to the

Company by grantee other holder or beneficiary in connection with the exercise of such Award shall be

promptly refunded to the relevant grantee holder or beneficiary Without limiting the generality of the

foregoing no Award granted hereunder shall be construed as an offer to sell securities of the Company and no

such offer shall be outstanding unless .and until the Committee in its sole discretion has determined that any

such offer if made would be in compliance with all applicable requirements of the U.S federal or
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non-U.S securities laws and any other laws to which such offer if made would be subject The inability of

the Company to obtain from any regulatory body having jurisdiction the authority if any deemed by the

Companys legal counsel to be necessary to the lawful delivery and sale of any Shares hereunder shall relieve

the Company of any liability in respect of the failure to issue or sell such Shares as to which such requisite

authority shall not have been obtained As condition to delivery of any Share the Company may require the

grantee to satisfy any qualifications that may be
necessary or appropriate to evidence compliance with any

applicable law or regulation and to make
any representation or warranty with respect thereto as may be

requested by the Company

15 Tax Withholding

15.1 Tax Withholding in General The Company shall have the right to deduct from any and all

payments made under the Plan or to require the grantee through payroll withholding cash payment or

otherwise to make adequate provision for the federal state local and foreign taxes if any required by law to

be withheld by the Company or any Affiliate with respect to an Award or the Shares acquired pursuant thereto

The Company shall have no obligation to deliver Sharesto release Shares from an escrow established

pursuant to an Award Agreement or to make any payment in cash under the Plan until the Companys or any

Affiliates tax withholding obligations have been satisfied by the grantee

15.2 Withholding in Shares Subject to Section 19.6 the Company shall have the right but not the

obligation to deduct from the Shares deliverable to grantee upon the exercise or settlement of an Award or

to accept from the grantee the tender of number of whole Shares having Fair Market Value as determined

by the Company equal to all or any part of the tax withholding obligations of the Company or any Affiliate

The Fair Market Value of any Shares withheld or tendered to satisfy any such tax withholding obligations

shall not exceed the amount determined by the applicable minimum statutory withholding rates

16 Adjustments for Corporate Transactions and Other Events

16.1 Adjustments In the event that the Committee determines that any dividend or other distribution

whether in the form of cash Shares other securities or other property recapitalization Share split reverse

Share split reorganization merger consolidation split-up spin-off combination repurchase exchange of Shares

or other securities of the Company issuance of warrants or other rights to purchase Shares or other securities of

the Company or other similar corporate transaction or event affects the Shares such that an adjustment is

determined by the Committee to be appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or

potential benefits intended to be made available under the Plan then the Committee shall without the grantees

consent in such manner as it may deem equitable adjust any or all of the number of Shares or other

securities of the Company or number and kind of other securities or property with respect to which Awards

may be granted ii the maximum number of Shares subject to Awards granted to grantee pursuant to

Section 4.2 of the Plan iiithe number of Shares or other securities of the Company or number and kind of

other securities or property subject to outstanding Awards and iv the Exercise Price or Strike Price with

respect to any Award if deemed appropriate subject to Section 16.3 provide for the continuation of the

outstanding Options if the Company is the surviving entity of
any merger consolidation or event of transaction

providing for the sale of all or substantially all of the Companys Shares or assets or other transaction or event

having similareffect or ii the assumption of the Plan and outstanding Options or the substitution of an

equivalent award in respect of securities of the surviving entity of any merger consolidation or transaction

providing for the sale of all or substantially all of the Companys Shares or assets or other transaction or event

having similareffect or if deemed appropriate make provision for the settlement of the intrinsic value of

the outstanding Options whether or not exercisable in cash cash equivalents or equity followed by the

cancellation of such Options or other cash payment to the holder of an outstanding Award provided that in each

case with respect to Awards of Incentive Stock Options no such adjustment shall be authorized to the extent

that such authority would cause the Plan to violate Section 422b1 of the Code as from time to time amended

unless otherwise determined by the Committee 11 with respect to any Award no such adjustment shall be

authorized to the extent that such authority would be inconsistent with the Plans qualification for the

Section 162m Exemption unless otherwise determined by the Committee and III such adjustment shall be in

accordance with Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1b5vD
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16.2 Adjustment of Awards Upon the Occurrence of Certain Unusual or Nonrecurring Events Subject

to Section 16.1 the Committee may make adj.ustments in the terms and conditions of and the criteria included

in Awards in recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events including without limitation the events described

in Section 16.1 hereof affecting the Company any Affiliate or the financial statements of the Company or

any Affiliate or of changes in applicable laws regulations or accounting principles whenever the Committee

determines that such adjustments are appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or

potential benefits intended to be made available under the Plan provided that no such adjustment shall be

authorized to the extent that such authority would be inconsistent with an Awards qualification for the

Section 162m Exemption unless otherwise determined by the Committee

16.3 Limitation on Adjustments and Substitutions With respect to Options or SARs no substitutions

or adjustments under Sections 16.1 or 16.2 shall be made if such substitution or adjustment would cause such

Option or SAR to be treated as deferred compensation subject to taxes and penalties under Section 409A With

respect to Options and SARs any substitutions or adjustments under Sections 16.1 or 16.2 shall be based on

the intrinsic value of such Option or SAR as determined by the Committee in its discretion as of the date of

such substitution or adjustment For the absence of doubt if the Exercise Price per Share or Strike Price per

Share of an Option or SAR is higher than the Fair Market Value of Share the intrinsic value of such Option

or SAR shall equal zero

17 Amendment or Termination of Plan

The Board may at any time suspend or terminate the Plan The Board may amend the Plan at any time

provided that any material amendment to the Plan will not be effective unless approved by the Companys

shareholders For this purpose material amendment is any amendment that would materially increase the

benefits accrued to participants under the Plan materially increase the number of Shares available under

the Plan except by operation of the provisions of Section 16 change the types of awards that may be

granted under the Plan materially modify the requirements for participation in the Plan or require

approval of the Companys shareholders under any applicable law regulation or rule including the rules of

any stock exchange or market system upon which the Shares may then be listed The Committee may in its

sole and absolute discretion and without the consent of any grantee amend the Plan or any Award Agreement

to take effect retroactively or otherwise as it deems necessary or advisable for the purpose of conforming the

Plan or such Award Agreement to any present or future law regulation or rule applicable to the Plan The

Committee may amend any Award Agreement in any other manner or may waive any conditions or rights

under or alter suspend discontinue cancel or terminate any Award theretofore granted prospectively or

retroactively provided that any such amendment waiver alteration suspension discontinuance cancellation

or termination that would materially adversely affect the rights of any grantee or any holder or beneficiary of

any Award theretofore granted shall not to that extent be effective without the consent of the affected grantee

holder or beneficiary No amendment or termination of the Plan shall result in any acceleration or delay in the

payment of any amount due under this Plan except to the extent such acceleration or delay would not result in

amounts granted or payable under the Plan becoming subject to the gross income inclusion set forth in

Section 409Aa1A of the Code or ii the interest or additional tax set forth in Section 409Aa1B of

the Code

18 Section 409A

18.1 Awards Subject to Section 409A The provisions of this Section 18 shall apply to any Award or

portion thereof that is or becomes deferred compensation subject to Section 409A notwithstanding any

provision to the contrary contained in the Plan or the Award Agreement applicable to such Award

18 Termination of Employment/Service The term termination of employment or termination of

service shall mean the grantee separation from service as defined in Code Section 409A For this purpose

separation from service is deemed to occur on the date that the Company and the grantee reasonably

anticipate that the level of bona fide services the grantee would perform for the Company and/or any Affiliates

after that date whether as an employee director or other service provider would permanently decrease to

level that based on the facts and circumstances would constitute separation from service provided that

decrease to level that is 50% or more of the average
level of bona fide services provided over the prior
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36 months shall not be separation from service and decrease to level that is 20% or less of the
average

level of such bona fide services shall be separation from service The Committee retains the right and

discretion to specify and may specify whether separation from service occurs for individuals providing

services to the Company or an Affiliate immediately prior to an asset purchase transaction in which the

Company or an Affiliate is the seller who provide services to buyer after and in connection with such asset

purchase transaction provided such specification is made in accordance with the requirements of Treasury

Regulation Section .409A- 1h4 To the extent that settlement of an Award subject .to Section 409A is

triggered by grantees separation from service if the grantee is then specified employee as defined in

Section 409Aa2Bi of the Code of the Company no disthbution shall be made before the date which is

six months after such grantees date of separation from service or if earlier the date of the grantees

death

18.3 Avoidance of Section 409A Penalties The Company intends for the Plan as described herein and

as may be subsequently amended from time to time and for every Award Agreement under this Plan to be

written construed and operated and the Plan and each Award Agreement shall be written construed and

operated in manner such that no amounts granted or payable under the Plan or such Award Agreement

become subject to the
gross income inclusion set forth within Section 409Aa1A of the Code or

the interest and additional tax set forth within Section 409Aa1B of the Code The provisions of the

Plan shall not be construed as guarantee by the Company of any particular tax effect to any grantee The

Company shall not be liable to any grantee for any payment or grant made under this Plan that is determined

to result in an additional tax penalty or interest under Section 409A of the Code nor for reporting in good

faith any payment or grant made under this Plan as an amount includible in
gross income under Section 409A

of the Code

19 Miscellaneous Provisions

19.1 Forfeiture Events If the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement due to the

material noncompliance of the Company as result of misconduct with any financial reporting requirement

under the securities laws any grantee who knowingly or through gross negligence engaged in the misconduct

or who knowingly or through gross negligence failed to prevent the misconduct and any grantee who is one

of the individuals subject to automatic forfeiture under Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 shall

reimburse the Company the amount of any payment in settlement of an Award earned or accrued during the

twelve- 12- month period following the first public issuance or filing with the United States Securities and

Exchange Commission whichever first occurred of the financial document embodying such financial

reporting requirement

19.2 Rights as Employee or Service Provider No person even though eligible pursuant to Section

shall have right to be selected as grantee or having been so selected to be selected again as grantee

Nothing in the Plan or any Award granted under the Plan shall confer on any grantee right to remain an

employee service provider or director of the Company or interfere with or limit in any way any right of the

Company or any Affiliate to terminate the grantees service at any time To the extent that an employee of any
Affiliate receives an Award under the Plan that Award shall in no event be understood or interpreted to mean
that the Company is the employees employer or that the employee has an employment relationship with the

Company

19.3 Rights as Shareholder grantee shall have no rights as shareholder with respect to any
Shares covered by .an Award until the date of the delivery of Shares pursuant to the Award as evidenced by

the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of duly authorized transfer agent of the Company
No adjustment shall be made for dividends distributions or other rights for which the record date is prior to

the date such Shares are delivered except as provided in Section 16 or another provision of the Plan For the

absence of doubt grantee to whom Restricted Shares are delivered is entitled to all rights of shareholder of

the Company

19.4 Transferability of Awards Except as provided below no Award shall be assigned alienated

pledged attached sold or otherwise transferred or encumbered by grantee except by will or the laws of

descent and distribution Notwithstanding the foregoing an Award Agreement may provide that grantee may
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transfer any vested Award other than an Incentive Stock Option to members of his or her immediate family

as defined as his or her spouse children or grandchildren or to one or more trusts for the exclusive benefit of

such grantee or his or her immediate family members or partnerships in which such grantee or his or her

immediate family members are the only partners if the transfer is approved by the Committee and the grantee

does not receive any consideration for the transfer Any such transferred Award shall continue to be subject to

the same terms and conditions that were applicable to such Award immediately prior to its transfer except

that such transferred Award shall not be further transferable by the transferee Compliance with Section 15 of

the Plan respecting tax withholding shall remain the responsibility of the original grantee and the rights of

any person under the Award upon or after the termination of service of the original grantee shall depend on

the circumstances of the original grantees termination of service Any transfer shall be subject to such other

rules and procedures as the Committee may specify

19.5 Delivery of Title to Shares Subject to any governing rules or regulations the Company shall

issue or cause to be delivered the Shares acquired pursuant to an Award and shall deliver such Shares to or for

the benefit of the grantee by means of one or more of the following by delivering to the grantee evidence

of book entry Shares credited to the account of the grantee by depositing such Shares for the benefit of

the grantee with any broker with which the grantee has an account relationship or by delivering such

Shares to the grantee in certificate form

19.6 Fractional Shares No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan or any

Award and the Committee shall determine whether cash other securities or other property shall be paid or

transferred in lieu of any fractional Shares or whether such fractional Shares or any rights thereto shall be

canceled terminated or otherwise eliminated In the event of any payment by grantee of any Exercise Price

withholding obligation or otherwise under the Plan where such payment is made in Shares payment shall be

made in whole Shares only in number whose Fair Market Value does not exceed the amount to be paid

Any amount payable with value of fractional Share shall be paid by grantee or the Company as applicable

in cash or such other manner as determined by the Committee

19.7 Retirement and Welfare Plans Neither Awards made under this Plan nor Shares or cash paid

pursuant to such Awards may be included as compensation for purposes of computing the benefits payable

to any grantee under the Companys or any Affiliates retirement plans both qualified and non-qualified or

welfare benefit plans unless such Other plan expressly provides that such compensation shall be taken into

account in computing grantees benefit

19.8 Beneficiary Designation Each grantee may file with the Company written designation of

beneficiary who is to receive any benefit under the Plan to which the grantee is entitled in the event of such

grantees death before he or she receives any or all of such benefit The grantee may change or revoke any

such designation without the consent of any designated beneficiary Each designation will revoke all prior

designations by the same grantee shall be in form prescribed by or acceptable to the Committee and will be

effective only when filed by the grantee in writing with the Committee during the grantees lifetime If

grantee dies without an effective designation of beneficiary who is living or in existence at the time of the

grantees death the Company will pay any remaining unpaid benefits to the grantees surviving spouse if any

or if none then to the grantees estate

19.9 Severability If any one or more of the provisions or any part thereof of this Plan shall be held

invalid illegal or unenforceable in any respect such provision shall be modified so as to make it valid legal

and enforceable and the validity legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions or any part thereof

of the Plan shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby

19.10 No Constraint on Corporate Action Nothing in this Plan shall be construed to limit impair

or otherwise affect the Companys or any Affiliates right or power to make adjustments reclassifications

reorganizations or changes of its capital or business structure or to merge or consolidate or dissolve

liquidate sell or transfer all or any part of its business or assets or limit the right or power of the

Company or any
Affiliate to take any action which such entity deems to be necessary or appropriate
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19.11 Governing Law The validity construction and effect of the Plan and any rules and regulations

relating to the Plan and any Award Agreement shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of

Delaware without giving effect to the conflict of law principles thereof

19.13 No Trust or Fund Created Neither the Plan nor any Award shall create or be construed to create

trust or separate fund of any kind or fiduciary relationship between the Company or any Affiliate and

Participant or any other Person To the extent that any Person acquires right to receive payments from the

Company or any Affiliate pursuant to an Award such right shall be no greater than the right of any unsecured

general creditor of the Company or any Affiliate

19.14 Construction Captions and titles contained herein are for convenience only and shall not affect

the meaning or interpretation of any provision of the Plan Except when otherwise indicated by the context

the singular shall include the plural and the plural shall include the singular Use of the term or is not

intended to be exclusive unless the context clearly requires otherwise
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APPENDIX

USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

SECTION

Purpose The
purpose

of the USEC Inc 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the Plan is to provide

employees of USEC Inc the Company and its subsidiaries with an opportunity to become part owners of

the Company by purchasing Shares as defined below through periodic offerings fmanced by payroll

deductions It is the intention of the Company to have the Plan qualify as an Employee Stack Purchase Plan
under Section 423 of the Code as defined below The provisions of the Plan shall be construed accordingly

SECTION

Definitions As used in the Plan the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below

Affiliate shall mean any entity that directly or indirectly is controlled by the Company ii any entity in

which the Company has significant equity interest and iii an affiliate of the Company as defined in

Rule 12b-2 promulgatcd under Section 12 of the Exchange Act in each case determined by the Committee

Board shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company

Code shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended from time to time

Change in Control shall mean the occurrence of any of the following

any Person as such term is used in Sections 13d and 14d of the Exchange Act or Persons

acting as group other than the Company any trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under

an employee benefit plan of the Company and any corporation owned directly or indirectly by the

shareholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of Shares is or

becomes the beneficial owner as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act directly or indirectly

of securities of the Company by reason of having acquired such securities during the 12-month period

ending on the date of the most recent acquisition not including any securities acquired directly from the

Company or its Affiliates representing thirty percent 30% or more of the total voting power of the

Companys then outstanding voting securities or

ii the majority of members of the Company Board is replaced during any 12 month period by

directors whose appointment or election is not endorsed by majority of the members of the Companys
Board before the date of the appointment or

iii there is consummated merger or consolidation of the Company or any subsidiary of the

Company with any other corporation or other entity resulting in change described in clauses ii

iv or vi of this defimtion other than merger or consolidation that would result in the voting

securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent either by

remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving or parent entity more

than sixty percent 60% of the total voting power of the voting secunties of the Company or such

surviving or parent entity outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation or merger or

consolidation effected to implement recapitalization of the Company or similar transaction in which

no Person directly or indirectly acquired forty percent 40% or more of the total voting power of the

Companys then outstanding securities not including any securities acquired directly from the Company
or its Affiliates or

iv liquidation of the Company involving the sale to any Person or Persons acting as group of at

least forty percent 40% of the total gross fair market value of all of the assets of the Company

immediately before the liquidation or

the sale or disposition by the Company or any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Company to any

Person or Persons acting as group other than any subsidiary of the Company of assets that have total

fair market value equal to forty percent 40% or more of the total gross fair market value of all of the
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assets of the Company and its subsidiaries taken as whole immediately before such sale or disposition

or any transaction or related series of transactions having similar effect other than sale or

disposition by the Company or any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Company to an entity at least sixty

percent 60% of the total voting power of the voting securities of which is beneficially owned by

shareholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their beneficial ownership of the

Company immediately prior to such sale or

vi the sale or disposition by the Company or any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Company to

any Person or Persons acting as group other than
any subsidiary of the Company of subsidiary or

subsidiaries of the Company credited under GAAP with forty percent 40% or more of the total revenues

of the Company and its subsidiaries taken as whole in the current fiscal year or in any of the two

most recently completed fiscal years or any transaction or related series of transactions having similar

effect other than sale or disposition by the Company or any direct or indirect subsidiary of the

Company to an entity at least sixty percent 60% of the total voting power of the voting securities of

which is beneficially owned by shareholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as

their beneficial ownership of the Company immediately prior to such sale or

vii change of the kind described in clauses ii iii or iv of this definition with respect to

any
Material Subsidiary with such determination made by replacing Company with Material Subsid

iary in each instance in such clauses provided however that for purposes of applying this provision to

clause of this definition Change in Control shall not be deemed to occur solely as result of

Person or Persons acting as group becoming the beneficial owner as determined under clause of this

definition of less than fifty percent 50% of the ownership interests of Material Subsidiary but shall

be deemed to occur if such Person or Persons acting as group thereafter become the beneficial owner

as determined under clause of this defmition of fifty percent 50% or more of the ownership

interests of such Material Subsidiary

Committee shall mean committee of the Board designated by the Board to administer the Plan

Compensation shall mean the total earnings prior to withholding and prior to employee elective contribu

tions to plan described in Sections 125 or 40 1k of the Code paid to an Employee during the applicable

pay period including overtime and bonus payments Compensation shall exclude relocation expenses tax

gross ups referral bonuses tuition reimbursement the imputed value of group life insurance car allowances

contest earnings any employer contributions to 401k plan or other similar extraordinary remuneration

received by such Employee

Employee shall mean any individual who is an employee of the Company or of any Subsidiary whose

customary employment with the Company or such Subsidiary is at least twenty 20 hours per week or five

months in any calendar year within the meaning of Sections 423b4B and of the Code

respectively For purposes
of the Plan the employment relationship shall be treated as continuing intact while

the individual is on sick leave or other leave of absence approved by the Company Where the period of leave

exceeds ninety 90 days and the Employees right to reemployment is not guaranteed either by statute or by

contract the employment relationship shall be deemed to have terminated on the ninety-first 1st day of

such leave

Enrollment Date shall mean the first day of each Offering Period

Exchange Act shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

Fair Market Value with respect to the Shares as of any date shall mean the closing sales price of the

Shares on the New York Stock Exchange or if the Shares are no longer traded on the New York Stock

Exchange any other such market on which the Shares are traded or in the absence of reported sales on such

date the closing sales price on the immediately preceding date on which sales were reported and ii in the

event there is no public market for the Shares the fair market value as determined in good faith by the

Committee in its sole discretion
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Material Subsidiary shall mean any subsidiary of the Company whose total assets represent forty percent

40% or more of the total gross fair market value of all of the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries

taken as whole at any time in the current fiscal year or in any of the two most recently completed fiscal

years or credited under GAAP with forty percent 40% or more of the total revenues of the Company and

its subsidiaries taken as a.whole in the current fiscal year orin any of the two most recently completed fiscal

years For purposes of the definitions of Change in Control and Material Subsidiary only subsidiary

shall mean with respect to any Person the parent at any date any corporation limited liability company

partnership association or other entity the accounts of which would be consolidated with those of the parent

in the parents consolidated financial statements if such financial statements were prepared in accordance with

GAAP as of such date as well as any other corporation limited liability company partnership association or

other entity of which securities or other ownership interests representing more than fifty percent 50% of

the equity or more than fifty percent 50% of the ordinary voting power or in the case of partnership more

than fifty percent 50% of the general partnership interests are as of such date or were prior to Change of

Control owned controlled or held or that is or was prior to Change of Control otherwise Controlled

by the parent or óiie or more subsidiaries of the parent or by the parent and one or more subsidiaries of the

parent For purposes of this paragraph Controlled shall mean the possession directly or indirectly of the

power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of Person whether through the ability

to exercise voting power by contract or otherwise

Offering Period shall mean period of approximately six months or such other period not to exceed

one year as determined by the Committee

Participant shall mean an Employee who elects to participate in the Plan by filing an Enrollment Form as

defined in Section 6b hereof

Person shall mean any individual corporation partnership association joint-stock company trust unincor

porated organization govemment or political subdivision thereof or other entity

Purchase Date shall mean the date the Plan administrator shall acquire Shares for Participants which shall

be the last business day of the Offering Period unless otherwise determined by the Committee

SEC shall mean the Securities and Exchange Commission or any successor thereto and shall include the

staff thereof

Shares shall mean shares of common stock $0.10 par value of the Company or such other securities of the

Company as may be designated by the Committee from time to time

Subsidiary shall mean subsidiary of the Company defined under Section 424f of the Code

SECTION

Administration

Authority of Committee The Plan shall be administered by the Committee Subject to the express

provisions of the Plan and applicable law and in addition to other express powers and authorizations conferred

on the Committee by the Plan the Committee shall have full power and authority to construe and interpret the

Plan and may from time to time adopt such rules and regulations for .carrying out the Plan as it may deem

necessary or desirable for the adimmstration of the Plan including but not limited to the determination of

Offering Periods hereunder

Committee Discretion Binding Unless otherwise expressly provided in the Plan all designations

determinations interpretations and other decisions under or with respect to the Plan shall be within the sole

discretion of the Committee may be made at any time and shall be final conclusive and binding upon all

Persons including the Company any Subsidiary any Participant any Employee and any designated

beneficiary
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Delegation Subject to the terms of the Plan and applicable law the Conimittee may delegate to one or

more officers or managers of the Company or any Subsidiary or to committee of such officers or managers

the authority subject to such terms and limitations as the Committee shall determine to administer the Plan

No Liability No member of the Board or Committee or any delegate pursuant to Section 3c shall be

liable for any action taken or determination made in good faith with respect to the Plan

SECTION

Shares Available for Awards

Shares Available Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4b the number of Shares which may be

sold under the Plan shall not exceed 1000000 Shares The Board or Committee may specify the number of

Shares to be offered during an Offering Period In the event that any Shares offered during an Offering Period

are not purchased such unpurchased Shares may again be sold under the Plan

Adjustments In the event that the Committee determines that any dividend or other distribution whether

in the form of cash Shares other securities or other property recapitalization stock split reverse stock split

reorganization merger consolidation split-up spin-off combination repurchase or exchange of Shares or

other securities of the Company issuance of warrants or other rights to purchase Shares or other securities of

the Company or other similar
corporate transaction or event affects the Shares such that an adjustment is

determined by the Committee to be appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or

potential benefits intended to be made available under the Plan then the Committee shall in such manner as it

may deem appropriate make such equitable adjustments in the Plan and the then outstanding offerings as it

deems necessary and appropriate including but not limited to changing the number of Shares reserved under

the Plan and the price of the current offering

Source of Shares Shares which are to be delivered under the Plan may be obtained by the Company from

its treasury by purchases on the open market or from private sources or by issuing authorized but unissued

Shares Any issuance of authorized but unissued Shares shall be approved by the Board or the Conmiittee

Authorized but unissued Shares may not be delivered under the Plan if the purchase price thereof is less than

the par value of the Shares Subject to the provisions of Section 11i below fractional Shares may not be

issued and sold under the Plan

Oversubscription If the number of Shares that Participants become entitled to purchase is greater than the

number of Shares offered in particular Offering Period or remaining available the available Shares shall be

allocated by the Committee among such Participants in such manner as it deems fair and equitable

SECTION

Eligibility All Employees including Employees who are directors of the Company or of any Subsidiary

designated by the Committee will be eligible to participate in the Plan in accordance with such rules as may
be prescribed from time to time provided however that such rules shall neither permit nor deny participation

in the Plan contrary to the requirements of the Code including but not limited to Sections 423b3 and

thereof and regulations promulgated thereunder No Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Plan

until the completion of six months of service During an Offering Period no Employee may participate

under the Plan if such Employee would own 5% or more of the total combined voting power or value of all

classes of stock of the Company or any Subsidiary For purposes of the preceding sentence the rules of

Section 424d of the Code shall apply in determining the stock ownership of an Employee and Shares which

the Employee would be permitted to purchase under the current Offering Period shall be treated as Shares

owned by the Employee
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SECTION

Participation and Offerings

The Company may authorize one or more Offering Periods to Employees to purchase Shares under the

Plan The Committee may at any time suspend an Offering Period if required by law or if the Committee

determines in good faith that it is in the best interests of the Company

Eligible Employees may become Participants in such Offering Periods at such times as determined by

the Committee by filing form of enrollment Enrollment Form with the Company authorizing specified

regular payroll deductions Subject to paragraph below payroll deductions for such purpose shall be in one

percent 1% increments of Compensation subject to minimum of one percent 1% and maximum

deduction of ten percent 10% of Compensation per pay period

Notwithstanding anything else contained herein no Employee may purchase Shares under this Plan and

any other qualified employee stock purchase plan within the meaning of Section 423 of the Code of the

Company or its Subsidiaries at rate which exceeds $25000 of Fair Market Value of Shares for each calendar

year in which purchase is executed For purposes
of this Section Fair Market Value shall be determined as

of the first date of the applicable Offering Period

The Company and participant Subsidiaries will establish Participant recordkeeping accounts for the payroll

deductions authorized pursuant to Section 6b No interest shall be earned by or credited to any recordkeeping

account

Participant may by written notice at any time during the Offering Penod direct the Company to reduce

or increase payroll deductions subject to maximum of one change per Offering Period

Participant may elect to withdraw all of his or her entire account prior to the end of the Offering Period

No partial withdrawal will be permitted unless otherwise determined by the Committee Any such withdrawal

will terminate such Participants participation for the remainder of the Offering Period If Participant

withdraws from an Offering Period payroll deductions shall not resume at the beginning of the succeeding

Offering Period unless the Participant delivers to the Company new Enrollment Form

As of the last day of the Offering Period the recordkeeping account of each Participant shall be totaled

Subject to the provisions of Section 6f above if such account contains sufficient funds to purchase one or

more Shares as of that date the employee shall be deemed to have purchased the largest number of Shares at

the price
determined under Section below such Participant account will be charged on that date for the

amount of the purchase and for all purposes under the Plan the Participant shall be deemed to have acquired

the Shares on that date The registrar
for the Company will make an entry on its books and records evidencing

that such Shares have been duly issued as of that date

Any Shares purchased pursuant to Section 6g above shall include one year restriction on their sale

The Participant will not be allowed to sell the Shares during the one year restriction period and the registrar of

the Company will note in its records the restriction during the one-year restriction period

Each Participant may be requested to notify the Company of any disposition of Shares purchased pursuant

to the Plan prior to the expiration of the holding periods set forth in Section 423a of the Code

SECTION

Purchase Price The purchase price of Share pursuant to transaction under the Plan shall be 85% of the

Fair Market Value of Share on the Purchase Date of the applicable Offering Period

SECTION

Termination of Employment Upon Participants ceasing to be an Employee of the Company or

participating Subsidiary for any reason he or she shall be deemed to have elected to withdraw from the Plan

and the payroll deductions credited to such Participants account during the Offering Period but not yet used

shall be returned the Participant or in the case of his or her death to the Participants designated beneficiary
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or estate If the Participant ceases to be an Employee of the Company because he or she voluntarily resigns

his or her position with the Company or retires or is terminated for cause the Shares in his or her account

may not be sold or stock certificate issued until the restriction period under Section 6h has expired If the

Participant ceases to be an Employee of the Company because of death disability or termination other than

for cause then the restriction period of Section 6h remaining on any Shares in his or her account shall be

deemed to have expired on the date employment is terminated

SECTION

Transferability Neither payroll deductions credited to Participants account nor any rights with regard to

the purchase of Shares under the Plan may be assigned transferred pledged or otherwise disposed of in any

way other than by will laws of descent and distribution or beneficiary designation by Participant Any
such attempt at assignment transfer pledge or other disposition shall be without effect except that the

Company may treat such act as an election to withdraw funds from an Offering Period in accordance with

Section 6f hereof

SECTION 10

Change in Control Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary in the event of Change in

Control of the Company if the Committee determines that the operation or administration of the Plan could

prevent Participants from obtaining the benefit of accrued purchase rights under the Plan the Plan may be

terminated in any manner deemed by the Committee to provide equitable treatment to Participants Equitable

treatment may include but is not limited to payment to each Participant of the amount of contributions

standing to such Participants account as of the date of the Change in Control plus an additional amount

determined by calculating the number of full Shares that could have been purchased for the Participant

immediately prior to the Change in Control at the purchase price determined under Section at the beginning

of the Offering Period the Purchase Price and multiplying that number of Shares by the difference

between the Purchase Price per Share and the highest price paid per Share in connection with the Change in

Control of the Company

SECTION 11

General Provisions

Amendments The Board or the Committee may from time to time alter amend suspend or discontinue

the Plan provided however that no such alteration or amendment shall increase the maximum aggregate

number of Shares that may be issued under the Plan or change the designation of the corporations or class of

corporations whose Employees may participate in the Plan without the approval of the shareholders within

12 months before or after such action of the Board or the Committee

No Right to Employment The grant of an Award shall not be construed as giving Participant the right to

be retained in the employment of the Company or any Subsidiary Further the Company or any Subsidiary

may at any time dismiss Participant from employment free from any liability or claim under the Plan unless

otherwise expressly provided in the Plan

No Rights as Shareholder Subject to the provisions of the Plan no Participant or holder or beneficiary of

any purchase shall have any rights as shareholder with respect to any Shares to be distributed under the Plan

until such Shares have been purchased pursuant to Section 6g hereof

Obligatory Status Participation in the Plan shall impose no obligation upon Participant to purchase any

Shares under the Plan

Application of Funds The proceeds received by the Company from the sale of Shares pursuant to

purchases under the Plan will be used for general corporate purposes

Severability If any provision of the Plan becomes or is deemed to be invalid illegal or unenforceable in

any jurisdiction or as to any person or would disqualify the Plan or any purchase under any law deemed

applicable by the Committee such provision shall be construed or deemed amended to conform to the
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applicable laws or if it cannot be construed or deemed amended without in the determination of the

Committee materially altering the intent of the Plan such provision shall be stricken as to such jurisdiction or

person and the remainder of the Plan shall remain in full force and effect

Governing Law The validity construction and effect of the Plan and any rules and regulations relating to

the Plan shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to the

conflict of law principles thereof

Other Laws The Committee may refuse to issue or transfer any Shares if acting in its sole discretion it

determines that the issuance or transfer of such Shares or such other consideration might violate any applicable

law or regulation including applicable non-U.S laws or regulations or entitle the Company to recover the

same under Section 16b of the Exchange Act and any payment tendered to the Company by Participant

other holder or beneficiary in connection with the purchase of such Shares shall be promptly refunded to the

relevant Participant holder or beneficiary Without limiting the generality of the foregoing no Plan provision
shall be construed as an offer to sell securities of the Company and no such offer shall be outstanding unless

and until the Committee in its sole discretion has determined that any such offer if made would be in

compliance with all applicable requirements of the U.S federal or non-U.S securities laws and any other laws

to which such offer if made would be subject

No Fractional Shares No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan Any payroll

deductions credited to Participants account which are not sufficient to purchase full Share shall in the

discretion of the Committee be retained in the Participants recordkeeping account for the subsequent Offering

Period subject to early withdrawal by the Participant as provided in Section 6f hereof or distributed as

cash payment on the Purchase Date

Shareholder Approval This Plan shall not be effective until approved by the shareholders of the Company
as provided in Section 423b2 of the Code and the regulations thereunder

Headings Headings are given to the Sections and subsections of the Plan solely as convenience to

facilitate reference Such headings shall not be deemed in any way material or relevant to the construction or

interpretation of the Plan or any provision thereof

SECTION 12

Term of the Plan

Effective Date The Plan shall be effective as of February 25 2009 provided it has been approved by the

Companys shareholders

Expiration Date The Plan shall terminate subject to the provisions of Sections 4d and 11a above
coincident with the completion of any Offering Period under which the limitation on the total number of

Shares in Section 4a above has been reached
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